
AGENDA
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING

March 12,2018

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m., Board Room, District Office
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California

ROLL CALL Directors LaMar, Matheis, Swan, Withers and President Reinhart

NOTICE

If you wish to address the Board on any item, including Consent Calendar items, please file
your name with the Secretary. Forms are provided on the lobby table. Remarks are limited to
three minutes per speaker on each subject. Consent Calendar items will be acted upon by one

motion, without discussion, unless a request is made for specific items to be removed from the
Calendar for separate action.

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARI)

1. A. Written:

B. Oral:

TOO LATE TO

Recommendation: Determine the need to discuss andlor take immediate action on item(s)

2.

CONSENT CALENDAR Resolution No. 2018-8

3. RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF IRECTORS' ATTENDANCE AT
MEETINGS AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratifylapprove the meetings and events
for Steven LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Peer Swan, and John Vy'ithers, as

described.

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the February 12,2018 Regular Board
Meeting be approved as presented.

Items 3-11

4



IRWD Board of Directors'Meeting
March 12,2018
Page2

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued

5. 2018 LEGISLATIVE AND REGI]LATORY I]PDATE

Recommendation: That the Board adopt an "OPPOSE/OPPOSE UNLESS
AMENDED" position on the "Safe and Affordable Drinking V/ater Act" budget
trailer bill and a "SUPPORT IN CONCEPT" position on AB 2050 (Caballero,
D-Salina).

6. CULVER DRIVE RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
CONSULTANT SELECTION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the addition of project 10588 in
the amount of $717,000 to the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget and authorizethe
General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement in the amount
$149,850.50 with RCE Consultants to provide design engineering services for
the Culver Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement, project 10588.

7. MICHELSON V/ATER RECYCLING PLANT BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY
RECOVERY FACILITIES CT CHANGE ORDER NO. 73

Recommendation: That the Board approve Contract Change Order No. 73 in
the amount of $150,755.29 with Filanc/Balfour Beatty for additional electrical
conduits and circuits for control of the dewatering centrifuges for the
Michelson Water Recycling Plant Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities,
project 04286.

MICHELSON V/ATER RECYCLING PLANT ASPHALT REPLACEMENT
CONTRACT AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute
a construction contract with Sanders Paving, Inc. in the amount of
5376,133.35 for replacement of approximately I27,350 square feet of asphalt
at the Michelson'Water Recycling Plant.

REHABILITATION FINAL ACCEPTAN

Recommendation: That the Board accept construction of the 2017 Sewer
Rehabilitation, project 07100, authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of
Completion; and authorizefhe payment of the retention 35 days after the date of
recording the Notice of Completion.

Items 3-11

8

9



IRWD Board of Directors' Meeting
March 12,2018
Page 3

CONSENT CALENDAR - Continued

10 TER AL AC

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to accept

construction of Baker Water Treatment Plant, project 05027 ,; authorize the

General Manager to file a Notice of Completion, and authorize the release of
retention 35 days after filing of the Notice of Completion.

11. ADDENDUM NO 3 TO THR RAKER WATER TMENT PT,ANT
ENV RT

Recommendation: That the Board approve the proposed Addendum No. 3 to

the Baker Water Treatment Plant project final Environmental Impact Report,

including the determinations set forth in Addendum No. 3, and authorize staff
to post and file a Notice of Determination.

ACTION CALENDAR

t2. RECY
CONSTRUCTION AWARD

Recommendation: That the Board authorize a budget increase in the amount

of $640,000, from $720,500 to $1,360,500, for project 07099; waive the

requirement that T.E. Roberts shall not award work to subcontractors in
excess of 50Yo of the contract price without prior written approval of the

District; and authorizethe General Manager to execute a construction contract

with T.E. Roberts in the amount of $1,071,100 for the Seawatch Recycled

Water Main Rehabilitation, project 07099.

13. V/ITHDRAV/AL M SO{ITH ORANGE COI.INTY V/ASTEWATER
RECYCL PERMIT

COMMTITEE I2I

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to notifi'the
South Orange County Wastewater Authority of its intent to withdraw from the

Recycled V/ater Master Permit (Project Committee 12) effective July 1, 2018.

AND IRRI TWO-
EXTENSION

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a

two-year contract extension with TropicalPlazaNursery, Inc. for a total of
$985,856.28, effective April 1, 201 8.

Items 3-11

I4



IRWD Board of Directors' Meeting
March 12,2018
Page 4

ACTION CALENDAR - Continued

l5 MARSH AND NA
FACILITIES THREE-YEAR MAINTENANCE SERVICE,S

CONTRACT

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a

contract with LandCare in the amount of $2,616,874.33 and with Habitat
Restoration Sciences in the amount of $42,792 for landscape maintenance
contract services for a three-year term.

16. CALIFORNIA WATERFIX PAR CIPATION THROI]GH DUDLEY
RIDGE WATER DISTRICT

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to submit
an election to fully participate in the California WaterFix through Dudley
Ridge'Water District at the 100% level, which will be subject to change by
IRV/D at alater date based on new substantive information.

OTHER BUSINESS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask

questions for clarification, make brief announcements, and make brief reports on his/her own
activities. The Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for
factual information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. Such matters may be brought up under
the General Manager's Report or Directors' Comments.

17. A. General Manager's Report

B. Directors'Comments

C. Closed Session

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED
LITIGATION - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government
Code Section 54956.9(dX2). (One (l) potential case);



IRWD Board of Directors'Meeting
March 12,2018
Page 5

OTHER BUSINESS - Continued

17. C. Closed Session

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Pursuant to
Govemment Code Section 54957(b)
Title: Legal Counsel;

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE -Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b); and

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT - Pursuant to Government
Code Section 54957(b)
Title: Legal Counsel

D. Open Session

E. Adjourn

Availability of agenda materials: Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all
or a majority of the members of the Irvine Ranch Water District Board of Directors in connection with a matter subject

to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the Board of Directors are available for public inspection in the

District's office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California ("District Office"). If such writings are distributed to
members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District Secretary of the

District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed one

hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available at the entrance to the Board of Directors Room of the District
Office. The Irvine Ranch Water District Board Room is wheelchair accessible. If you require any special disability-
related accommodations (e.g., access to an amplified sound system, etc.), please contact the District Secretary at (949)
453-5300 during business hours at least seventy-two (72) hours priorto the scheduled meeting. This agenda can be

obtained in alternative format upon written request to the District Secretary at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the

scheduled meeting.



March 12,2018

Ë;"J#:,ïiî,* swan y,f
Approved by: Paul A. Cook.,t Ø

CONSENT CALENDAR

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS'
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND EVENTS

SUMMARY

Pursuant to Resolution2006-29 adopted on August 28,2006, approval of attendance of the
following events and meetings are required by the Board of Directors.

Events/Meetings
Steven LaMar

April8-12 National'Water Association's Federal Water Issues Conference, D.C

Mar)¡ Aileen Matheis

February 23
March29

Peer Swan

January 24

John Withers

January 11

February 23
lÙyIarch29

South Orange County Economic Coalition's 2018 Economic Report Preview
ISDOC Quarterly Luncheon Meeting

AZI"t Century Financing Framework to Support \ùy'ater Sector Paradigm
Shift, UCI

Cushman & V/akefield's "The Source" Project Preview & Open House
South Orange County Economic Coalition's 2018 Economic Report Preview
ISDOC Quarterly Luncheon Meeting

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD RATIFY/APPROVE THE MEETINGS AND EVENTS FOR STEVEN
LAMAR, MARY AILEEN MATHEIS, PEER SWAN, AND JOHN V/ITHERS AS
DESCRIBED HEREIN.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None

3lb-Board Mtgs Events.doc



March 12,2018
Prepared and
Submitted by: L.
Approved by: P. Coolzt Ø .

CONSENT CALENDAR

MINUTES OF MEETING

SUMMARY:

Provided are the minutes of the February 12 2018 Board Meeting for approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

Not applicable.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Not applicable.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY I2,2OI8 BOARD MEETING BE APPROVED
AS PRESENTED.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A" - February 12,2018 Minutes of Board Meeting

4
lb - Minutes of Board Meeting.docx



EXHIBIT "A"

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING _ FEBRUARY 12, 2018

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was called
to order at 5:00 p.m.by President Reinhart on February 12,2018 in the District office, 15600 Sand
Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California.

Directors Present: LaMar, Reinhart, Matheis, Swan, and Withers

Directors Absent: None

Also Present: General Manager Cook, Executive Director of 'Water Policy 'Weghorst, Executive
Director of Engineering and Water Quality Burton, Executive Director of Finance and
Administration Clary, Executive Director of Operations Sheilds, Director of Public Affairs Beeman,
Public Affairs Manager Fabris, Director of Human Resources Roney, Director of Treasury and Risk
Management Jacobson, Director of Water Operations Zepeda, Government Relations Officer
Compton, Legal Counsel Smith, Secretary Bonkowski, Assistant Secretary Swan, Mr. Allen
Shinbashi, Mr. Barkev Meserlian, Principle Engineer Malloy, Ms. Sunny Lee, Ms. Paige Midstokke,
Ms. Ashley Armstrong, Mr. Bruce Newell, Ms. Barbara Daly, Mr. James Clark of Black and Veatch,
and members of the public.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: Ms. Barbara Daly invited the Board and staff to attend a South
Orange County's Economic Coalition luncheon on February 23,2018.

ITEMS TOO LATE TO BE AGENDVED: None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On MOTION by V/ithers, seconded and unanimously canied, CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
3 THROUGH 4 V/ERE APPROVED AS FOLLOWS:

RATIFY/APPROVE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
AND EVENTS

Recommendation: That the Board ratify/approve the meetings and events for Steven
LaMar, Mary Aileen Matheis, Peer Swan, Douglas Reinhart and John Withers, as

described.

4. MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Recommendation: That the minutes of the January 22,2018 Regular Board Meeting be

approved as presented.

J

A-1



ACTION CALENDAR

MICHELSON WATER RECYCLING PI,ANT SOUTH IRVINE INTERCEPTOR MANHOLE
ACCESS CONSTRUCTION AWARD

The Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) South kvine Interceptor Manhole Access
project will construct a jetter hose reel on a concrete pad at the first manhole on the South Irvine
Interceptor upstream from the MV/RP headworks to allow more effective maintenance and
cleaning of the sewer segments connected to the manhole.

Executive Director of Engineering and Water Quality Burton reported that the District's design
consultant, JIG Consultants, completed the design in December 2017 and the project was
advertised to a select bidders list of 17 contractors. Mr. Burton said that the bid opening was
held on January 17,2018. Bids were received from three contractors with the apparent low
bidder being S.S. Mechanical Construction Corporation with a bid of $170,333; the engineer's
estimate was $170,333.

On MOTION by Withers, seconded and unanimously canied, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED A
BUDGET INCREASE IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,400, FROM $341,600 TO $383,000, AND
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT WITH S.S. MECHANICAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION IN THE
AMOUNT OF $170,333 FOR THE MWRP SOUTH IRVINE INTERCEPTOR MANHOLE
ACCESS, PROJECT O]112.

MICHELSON WATER RECYCT,TNG MISCELLANEOUS REPAIRS
ARD

General Manager Cook reported that this project will consist of miscellaneous repairs on the
conctete decking at the secondary sedimentation tanks, filling an unused concrete trough
adjacent to the primary clarifiers and the replacement of four electrical pull boxes that have
subsided over time due to poor soil conditions.

The project was advertised for construction to a select list of 10 contractors. The bid opening
was held on February I,2Ol8 and four bids were received with Pacific Hydrotech as the
apparent low bidder with a bid amount of $398,02I; the engineer's estimate was $43 1,000.

On MOTION by Withers, seconded and unanimously canied, THE BOARD AUTHORIZED
THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH
PACIFIC HYDROTECH IN THE AMOUNT OF $398,021 FOR THE MICHELSON V/ATER
RECYCLING PLANT MISCELLANEOUS REPAIRS, PROJECT 04467.

CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH REGARDIN
DIVERSION RECYCLED WATER TO SAN DIEGO CREEK WATERSHED

General Manager Cook reported that the District has been working with stakeholders, including the
City of Newport Beach, to develop an understanding of and support for an amendment to the
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System permit for the District's Michelson Water

A-2



Recycling Plant (MWRP). Mr. Cook said that the permit amendment would allow for the
emergency diversion of emergency water produced by the MU/RP into the San Diego Creek
watershed under certain conditions. He said that the City had requested the District execute an
agreement to memorializethe understanding. He said that the agreement along with the "side letter"
is provided in the exhibits. Following discussion, on MOTION by Swan, seconded and unanimously
carried, SUBJECT TO NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES V/ITH DISCRETION GIVEN TO THE
GENERAL MANAGER, THE BOARD AUTHORZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH PERTAINING TO
THE EMERGENCY DIVERSION OF RECYCLED WATER INTO THE SAN DIEGO CREEK
WATERSHED.

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

General Manager Cook said that as mentioned in his Weekly Report, the District successfully
remarketed Index Tender Notes for $83 million which was priced below SIFMA.

Mr. Cook reported on a meeting he and staff attended with Mr. Bob Hill and Mr. Dennis Cafferty of
El Toro Water District relative to SOCWA, water banking and other mutual programs.

Mr. Cook introduced Ms. Paige Midstokke as the newest member of the General Manager's office
who will be working with Ms. Christine Compton. Ms. Ashley Armstrong was also introduced to
the Board as Operations' Executive Assistant. He further announced that Executive Director of
Operations Sheilds would be leaving the District to work as General Manager of West Basin
Municipal Water District, and thanked him for his service over the past five years.

DIRECTORS' COMMENTS

Director Withers reported on his attendance at a CASA conference, a southern California
LAFCO meeting, an ISDOC Executive Committee meeting, an OCSD meeting, and an OCBC
dinner. He said that tomorrow he will be attending an OCBC Infrastructure meeting and this
Friday an OCWD and OCSD Winterfest to commemorate the 10th anniversary of the
Groundwater Replenishment System.

Director Matheis reported on her attendance at an Urban \üy'ater Institute Spring conference in
Palm Springs.

Director Swan reported on his attendance at a CASA conference, an Urban'Water Institute
conference, an economic forecast event, a lecture at UCI regarding water rates, and Newport
Chamber of Commerce meetings.

Director LaMar reported on his attendance at ACWA's Federal Affairs, Board and Executive
Committee meetings, an ACC-OC and MV/D WaterFix breakfast, and an Urban Water Institute
conference.

Director Reinhart reported that he attended a SOCWA Board meeting, a WACO monthly
meeting, an ACC-OC and MWD V/aterFix breakfast meeting, and a MV/DOC Board meeting.

A-3



CLOSED SESSION

President Reinhart said that the following Closed Sessions would be held this evening

1) CONFERENCE V/ITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - Significant
exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2). (one potential case);
and 2) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION-
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) (one
potential case).

OPEN SESSION

Following the Closed Session, the meeting was reconvened with Directors LaMar, Reinhart,'Withers,
Swan and Matheis present. President Reinhart said that there was no action to report.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, President Reinhart adjourned the meeting.

APPROVED and SIGNED this 12th day of March, 2018.

President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Secretary IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Alfred Smith, Legal Counsel - Nossaman LLP

A-4



I

March 12,2018
Prepared and
submitted by: C.
Approved by: Paul A. Cook

CONSENT CALENDAR

2018 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY UPDATE

SUMMARY:

This report provides an update on the 2018 legislative session and IR'WD's legislative and
regulatory priorities. As legislation and regulations develop, staff will provide updates and
recommendations to the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee and the
Board, as appropriate. Staff recommends that the Board consider the following actions /
positions:

"Safe and Affirdable Drinking l[/ater Act" Budget Trailer Bill- "OPPOSE/OPPOSE
UNLESS AMENDED,,; and

AB 2050 (Caballero, D-Salina) - Small Water System Authority Action of 2018 -..SUPPORT IN CONCEPT''.

BACKGROUND

The second year of the 2017-2018 legislative session is in full swing. State Senator Toni Atkins
(D-San Diego) has been formally elected President Pro Tem of the State Senate and will take
office in her new role on March 21,2018. In addition, members of the Legislature with two-year
bills remaining in their house of origin at the beginning of the year had until January 3 1 to have
the bill heard and passed over to the other house. Those bills failing to meet the house of origin
deadline are now dead. Members had until February 16 to introduce any new bills.

A copy of the 2018 Legislative Matrix is attached as Exhibit "A". Exhibit "B" is the 2018
Legislative Update Report Links to Bill and Regulatory Texts, which contains links to the bills
and regulations discussed below, unless a separate exhibit is noted.

State of the State:

Governor Brown delivered his annual State of the State address to a joint session of the
Legislature on January 25. The Governor's address focused on what the State has achieved
during his Administration. Of particular note, he highlighted the passage of legislation related to
pension reform, workers' compensation reform, the water bond, the Rainy Day Fund, and the
Cap-and-Trade Program's reauthorization. Additionally, he focused on the destructive forest
fires that have impacted the state saying:

"The devastating forest fires and the mudslides are a profound and growing challenge.
Eight of the state's most destructive fires have occurred in the last five years. Last year's
Thomas fire in Ventura and Santa Barbara counties was the largest in recorded history.
The mudslides that followed were among the most lethal the state has ever encountered.
In20l7, we had the highest average summer temperatures in recorded history. Over the

cc 201 8 Legislative Update- WRP- February.docx

a

5



Consent Calendar: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
March 12,2018
Page2

last 40 years, California's fire season has increased 78 days - and in some places it is
nearly year-round.

So we have to be ready with the necessary firefighting capability and communication
systems to warn residents of impending danger. 

'We 
also have to manage our forests -and soils - more intelligently.

Toward that end, I will convene a task force composed of scientists and knowledgeable
forest practitioners to review thoroughly the way our forests are managed and suggest
ways to reduce the threat of devastating fires. They will also consider how California can
increase resiliency and carbon storage capacity. Trees in Califomia should absorb COz,
not generate huge amounts of black carbon and greenhouse gas as they do today when
forest fires rage across the land."

Governor Brown also emphasized water and water infrastructure during his State of the State.
His comments on water consisted of the following statement:

"As the climate changes and more water arrives as rain instead of snow, it is crucial that
we are able to capture the overflow in a timely and responsible way. That, together with
recycling and rainwater recapture will put us in the best position to use water wisely and
in the most efficient way possible. We are also restoring the Sacramento and San Joaquin
watersheds to protect water supplies and improve California's iconic salmon runs.

Finally, we have the California'Waterfix, a long studied and carefully designed project to
modernize our broken water system. I am convinced that it will conserve water, protect
the fish and the habitat in the Delta and ensure the delivery of badly needed water to the
millions of people who depend on California's aqueducts. Local water districts - in
both the North and South - are providing the leadership and the financing because they
know it is vital for their communities, and for the whole state. That is true, and that is the
reason why I have persisted."

State Budget Update:

January Revenue Numbers

On February 13,2018, State Controller Betty Yee released her monthly report on the State's
finances. She announced that the State took in $17.35 billion during the month of January. This
was $2.37 billion, or 15.8 percent, higher than the proposed budget estimates and $1.45 billion,
or 9.1 percent, higher than projections contained in the FY 2017-2018 Budget Act.

Additionally, the Controller reported:

"For the first seven months of the 2017-18 fiscal year, total revenues of $74.56 billion are
higher than expected in the January budget proposal by 4.0 percent, 7.5 percent above the
enacted budget's assumptionso and 1 1.7 percent higher than the same perio d in2016-17 ."

The State's outstanding loan balance was $5.64 billion, which was $5.19 billion, or 47 .9 percent,
less than proposed budget estimates and $5.02 billion, or 47.I percent, less than the FY 2017-
2018 Budget Act.



Consent Calendar: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
March 12,2018
Page 3

2018 State Legislative Update:

"Making Water Conservation a Caliþrnia Way of Life"

Since the beginning of last year, staff has worked with various stakeholders and the Association
of California Water Agencies (ACV/A) on long-term water use efficiency and drought planning
legislation. As reported to the Board, at the end of session there remained two active bills on
"Making Water Conservation a Califomia Way of Life" - AB 1668 (Friedman, D-Glendale)
and SB 606 (Hertzberg, D-Van Nuys/Skinner, D-Oakland). SB 606 and AB 1668 are two-year
bills. SB 606 is currently located on the Assembly Third Reading File and AB 1668 is in the
Senate Rules Committee.

Staff continues to meet with various stakeholders on the bills in order to seek amendments
requested by the water community that would improve the proposals currently before the
Legislature and ensure they can be implemented consistent with the intent of the authors and the
Administration. Staff will provide an update on the ongoing discussions taking place on the
legislation.

In addition to SB 606 and AB 1668, several other bills have been introduced that relate to water
conservation and "Making'Water Conservation a California V/ay of Life". Those bills include:

AB 2038 (Gallagher, R- Chico), Coungwide Drought and Water Shortage Contingency
Plans, relates to drought and water shortage vulnerability of small water suppliers and in
rural communities;

a

AB 2241 (Rubio, D-West Covina), Sustainable Water Use and Demand Reduction
Legislative Finds and Declarations, was introduced as a spot bill;

AB 2242 (Rubio, D-West Covina), Urban Water Management Planning, was introduced
as a spot bill;

AB 2266 (Bigelow, R-O'Neals), Urban Water Management Planning, was introduced as a

spot bill; and

SB 952 (Anderson, R-El Cajon), Water Conservation: Local Water Supplies, was
introduced as a spot bill.

Water Tax- SB 623 (Monning, D-Santa Cruz) and Budget Trailer Bill Proposal

ln 2017 , Senator Bill Monning (D-Sant a Cruz) authored SB 623. SB 623 would have established
the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund in the State Treasury and would have provided
that the moneys in the fund be continuously appropriated to the State Water Resources Control
Board for grants, loans, contracts, or services to assist those without access to safe and affordable
drinking water consistent with a fund implementation plan to be adopted annually by the State

a

a

a

a



Consent Calendar: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
March 12,2018
Page 4

Board. On August 2l,the bill was amended to include a fee on fertilizer, a fee on milk, and a
monthly water tax of the following:

. $0.95 per month for meters less than or equal to 1";

o $4.00 per month for meters less than or equal to 2";

o $6.00 per month for meters less than or equal to 4";

. $10.00 per month for meters greater than"4; and

o Customers without a meter would be taxed at arate of $0.95

SB 623 remains a two-year bill and is being held in Assembly Rules Committees. Last year,
IRWD adopted an "oppose/oppose unless amended" position on SB 623 and advocate against
any water tax inconsistent with the Board-adopted policy on a public good charge/statewide user
fee.

In addition, the Administration has released a budget trailer bill labeled as "Safe and Affordable
Drinking Vy'ater Act" which proposes in the form of a budget trailer bill the agricultural fees and
water tax included in SB 623. Given the budget trailer bills' similarity to SB 623 and its
inconsistency with the Board-adopted policy on a public good charge/statewide user fee, staff
recommends that the Board adopt an "oppose/oppose unless amended" position on the budget
trailer bill.

Staff has continued to work with ACV/A and the District's other industry partners to oppose a

water tax. Staff will be available to provide an update on any new developments.

AB 2050: Small Water System Authority Action of 2018

In addition to the discussions taking place on a water tax to address water quality issues within
disadvantaged communities, the water community has continued to think about other ways to
address the challenges facing many communities in the state. The Eastern Municipal W'ater
District (EMWD), in partnership with the California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA),
has put forth a proposal that would address the management and governance challenges facing
water systems within disadvantaged communities. The proposal has been authored and
introduced by Assemblymember Anna Caballero (D-Salinas) in AB 2050.

AB 2050 is intended to create a new category of water agency - a Small System Water
Authority with unique powers to absorb, improve and competently operate currently non-
compliant public water systems with either contiguous or non-contiguous boundaries. Small
System Water Authorities would consolidate failing small water systems that are voluntarily
donated to the authority to provide technical, managerial and financial capabilities to ensure the
provision of safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water and local govemance. As currently in
print, AB 2050 would create the Small System Water Authority Act of 2018 and state legislative
findings and declarations relating to authorities of small system water authorities as EMWD and
CMUA continue to refine legislative language related to the creation of small system water
authorities.



Consent Calendar: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
March I2,20I8
Page 5

Given the important role governance will play in California's ability to address water quality
issues within disadvantaged communities, staff recommends that the Board adopt a "support in
concept" position on AB 2050.

2018 State Regulatorv Update:

State Water Resources Control Board "Prohibiting Wasteful Water Use Practices" Regulations

At the end of last year, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) proposed and
accepted comments on draft regulations "Prohibiting Wasteful Water Use Practices." The
District, along with many others in the water community, submitted comments on the draft
regulations. Of particular interest to the District was the inclusion of recycled water irrigation of
publicly-owned or maintained turf within the draft regulations.

At the end of January,the State Board released revised draft regulations, which are attached as

Exhibit "C". The revised regulations now exclude recycled water inigation of publicly-owned
and maintained turf from the prohibited uses if the recycled water irrigation system serving the
landscape was installed prior to January 1,2018. The State Board accepted public comments on
the revised regulations until February 14,2018. The District submitted comments on the revised
regulation.

The State Board is scheduled to consider the revised regulations at its February 20 meeting.
Staff will provide an update on any new developments related to the regulations.

201 8 Federal Legislation:

Tr ump A dmini s tr at i o n Infr a s tr u c tur e P r op o s al

As has been widely reported, President Donald Trump released his infrastructure plan for
moving forward an infrastructure funding package to rebuild America's infrastructure and to get
Americans back to work. The plan titled a "Legislative Outline for Rebuilding Infrastructure in
America" is at attached as Exhibit "D".

The plan proposes to stimulate $1.5 trillion in new investments in the nation's infrastructure.
The plan proposes to stimulate this investment through $200 billion in Federal funding, and
focuses on streamlining permitting timelines and an investment in rural infrastructure. Staff will
be available to discuss the plan further.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Not applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE :

Not applicable



Consent Calendar: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
March 12,2018
Page 6

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the V/ater Resources Policy and Communications Committee on
February 20,2018.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ADOPT AN "OPPOSE/OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED" POSITION ON
THE "SAFE AND AFFORDABLE DRINKING WATER ACT" BUDGET TRAILER BILL
AND A "SUPPORT IN CONCEPT" POSITION ON AB 2050 (CABALLERO, D-SALINA).

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit '(A)) - IRWD Legislative Matrix
Exhibit 6(8" - 2018 Legislative Update Report Links to Bill Texts
Exhibit 4C)' - Revised "Prohibiting V/asteful'Water Use Practices" Regulations
Exhibit '(D') - Legislative Outline for Rebuilding Infrastructure in America



EXHIBIT "A'
IRWD 2016 LEGISLÀTIVE MATRIX

Updated Wl nAlS

StatusSummaryÆffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

Ogl3Il2OlT - In SENATE. Joint Rule
62(a) suspended.;08/3 l/2017 - From
SENATE Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES AND WATER: Do pass

to Committee on GOVERNANCE
AND FINANCE.;08/3l/2017 - From
SENATE Committee on
GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE: DO

pass to Committee on
APPROPRIATIONS.
O8l2ll2017 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: Not heard.

O9lOll2Ol7 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

0ll29l20l8 - In ASSEMBLY. Read
third time. Passed ASSEMBLY.
***x*To SENATE.

OgnlnDl7 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

Enacts the California Clean Water, Climate, Coastal Protection and

Outdoor Access For All Act, which would authorize the issuance of
bonds to finance a clean water, climate, and coastal protection and

outdoor access for all program. Provides for the submission of
these provisions to the voters at the statewide direct primary
election.

Authorizes the Department of Finance to identify infrasfructure
projects in the state for which the department will guarantee a rate
of return on investment for an investment made in that
infrastructure project by the Public Employees'Retirement System.

Amends the Global Warming Solutions Act, which creates the
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund and authorizes specified
investments, including water use and supply. Authorizes the use of
the moneys in the fund for electric pump efficiency, water ând
wastewater systems, pump and pump motor efficiency
improvements, and drinking water transmission and distribution
systems' water loss if the investment furthers the regulatory
purposes of the act and is consistent with law.

Prohibis a parent, grandparent, sibling, child, or grandchild ofan
elected officer or a candidate for elective office, from receiving, in
exchange for goods, services, facilities, or anything ofvalue.

Extends inde{initely the operation ofthe authorization to advance
funds to reimburse local agencies under a program for the
maintenance or improvement of project or nonproject levees.
Postpones the operation ofcertain related provisions.

Clean Water, Climate, and
Coastal Protection Act

Department of Finance:
Infr astructure Investment

Greenhouse Gas Reduction
Fund: Water Supply

Political Reform Act:
Campaign Fund
Expenditures

Levee Maintenance

AB 18
GarciaE (D)

AB 16I
lpvine (D)

AB 196
Bigelow (R)

AB 664
Steinorth (R)

^8732Frazier (D)

A-1



IRWD 2016 LBGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0Ul4l20l8

StatusSummary/EffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBíll No.
Author

0812412017 - From SENATE
Committee on NATURAL
RESOURCES AND WATER with
author's amendments.;0812412017 - In
SENATE. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on
NATURAL RESOURCES AND
IWATER.

O9llll20lT - In SENATE. Read second
time. To third reading.;09llll20l7 -
Re-referred to SENATE Committee on
RULES.

0910112017 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

0911512017 - In ASSEMBLY. Ordered
returned to SENATE. x****To
SENATE.

Requires long-term standards for urban water conservation and
water use to include a credit for recycled water. Prohibits an urban
retailer water supplier from being required to reduce the amount of
recycled water it produces, sells, or distributes for beneficial
potable or nonpotable uses during a period when water
conservation measures a¡e in effect.

Amends existing law relating to the State General Obligation Bond
Law. Relates to the capital asset exception provided under

Proposition I . Clarifies that a conflict exists for purposes of that
exception ifany provision ofthis division authorizes, either
expressly or by necessary implication, a project or program that
would not result in the creation ofa capital asset, including projects
relating to the prevention, cleanup, treatment, or remediation of
contaminated groundwater, or other such projects.

Prohibits a transferor of water from using a water conveyance
facility that has unused capacity to transfer water from a

groundwater basin underlying desel lands that is in the vicinity of
specified federal lands or state lands to outside of the groundwater
basin unless the State Lands Commission, in consultation with the
Department of Fish and Wildlife, hnds that the transfer of the water
will not adversely affect the natural or cultural resources ofthose
federal and state lands.

Amends the existing law, with regard to disputes concerning
collective bargaining agreements for private employees. Provides
for such provision apply to public employment. Limits liability for
attorney's fees under such provisions to a labor organization or
employer,

WATCH

Sustainable Water Use:
Recycled Water

Water Quality, Supply, and
Infrastructure
Improvement

Water Conveyance;
Unused Facility Capacity

Collective Bargaining
Agreements: Arbitration

AB 869
Rubio (D)

AB 987
Calderon I (D)

aB 1000
Friedman (D)

aB 1017
Santiago (D)

A-2



IR\ryD 2016 LEGISLATIVB MATRIX
Updated ÙAM|2Aß

StåtusSummaryÆffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

02ll3l20l8 - Enrolled.

O7llll20l7 - In SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
rüVATER: Failed passage.

08l2ll20l7 - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: To Suspense

File.

O9lOll2OlT - In SENATE Committee
on APPROPRIATIONS: Held in
committee.

existing law that fequ lres the Department of Water
Resources to inspect dams, reservoirs, and appurtenant structures
once per fiscal year. Requires the owner ofa dam to operate critical
outlet and spillway control features on an annual basis and to
demonstrate their full operability in the presence of the Department.
Provides certain inspection reports may be withheld from public
release. Requires the Department to provides specified information
on its website.

Amends the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
Exempts from the requirements of the CEQA, repairs of critical
levees of the State Plan of Flood Control within an existing levee
footprint to meet standards of public health and safety. Requires the

lead agency to take certain actions regarding the repairs,

Requires the Department of Water Resources to convene a
stakeholder workgroup. Requires the workgroup to develop,
evaluate, and recommend proposals for establishing new water use

targets for urban water suppliers and report to the Governor and the

Legislature. Requires all expenses to be the responsibility ofthe
nonstate agency stakeholders.

Requires State Water Resources Control Board to give priority to
adopting general conditions that permit a registrant to store water
for small irrigation use during times of high streamflow in
exchange for the registrant reducing diversions during periods of
low streamflow. Exempts an entity from the requirement to enter
into a lake or streambed alteration agreement with the department
under specified circumstances.

Dams and Reservoirs:
Inspections and Reporting

Environmental Quality
Act Exemption: Levee
Repairs

Sustainable Vy'ater Use and
Demand Reduction

lVater Rights: Small
Irrigation Use

LB 1270
Gallagher (R)

^B 
tn3

Gallagher (R)

aB 1323
Weber (D)

aB 1420
Aguiar-Curry
(D)

A-3



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0Ul4l20l8

StatusSummaryÆffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

O9ll5l20l7 - In SENATE. Read third
time, Failed to pass

SENATE.;09ll5l20t7 - In SENATE.
Motion to reconsider. ;091 I 51201'l - In
SENATE. Reconsideration
granted^;09/l512017 - In SENATE.
From third reading. To Inactive File.

07ll9l20l7 - Re-referred to SENATE
Committee on RULES.

O7l11l20l7 - In SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER: Heard, remains in
Committee.

O9ll5l20l7 - From SENATE
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Do pass to Committee on RULES.

Requires valid and current certifications for cross connection
inspection or backflow prevention device inspection, testing, and
maintenance that me€t specified requirements for competency to be
considered approved certification tests, until the Water Resources
Control Board promulgates specified regulations or by a specified
date. Prohibits a water supplier from refusing to recognize
certifications tests that meet standards set by regulations ofthe
board.

States the intent ofthe Legislature to enact legislation necessary to
help make water conservatìon a California way of life.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to adopt long-
term standards for urban water conservation and water use on or
before the specified date. Requires the board to adopt performance
measures for commercial, industrial, and institutional water use on
or before that date. Require an urban water supplier to calculate a
water use target beginning the calendar year after the board adopts
long-term standards for urban water conservation and water use.

Relates to submission of specified information.

Requires the State V/ater Resources Control Board to adopt long
term standards for the efficient use of water and performance
measures for certain water uses. Requires the department to
conduct necessary studies. Establishes a specified number of
gallons as a standard for indoor residential water use effective until
a specifred date. Requires use of available data to identify small
water suppliers and rural communities that may be at risk of
drought and water shortage no later than a specific date.

co-
SPONSOR &

SUPPORT

OPPOSE

OPPOSE
TJNLESS

AMENDED

Cross Connection or
Backflow Prevention
Inspectors

Water Conservation

Water Management
Planning

Water Management
Planning

aB 1529
Thurmond (D)

,4,816_q
Rubio @)

ABI6CI
Friedman (D)

AB 1668
Friedman (D)

A-4



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0U1412018

StatusSummaryÆffectsIR\ryD
Position

TitleBÍll No.
Author

Ol11612018 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on INSURANCE.

Atlrcl20t& - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on TRANSPORTATION

0l/16/2018 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on REVENUE AND
TAXATION.

Oll22l20l8 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on LOCAL
GOVERNMENT.

Deletes the provisions regarding the actual cash value of the claim
oftotal loss to the structure and instead requires that the actual cash
value of the claim, for either a total or partial loss to the structure or
its contents, be the amount it would cost the insured to repair,
rebuild, or replace the thing lost or injured less a fair and
reasonable deduction for physical depreciation based upon its
condition at the time of the injury or the policy limit, whichever is
less.

Requires all new passenger vehicles to be zero emissions vehicles
after January I, 2040. States that zero emissions vehicles cannot
produce exhaust emissions of any criteria pollutant or greenhouse
gas under any operational mode or condition. Exempts large
commercial vehicles (larger than 10,000 pounds) and does not
apply to vehicles owned by people moving into California from
other states.

Requires, subject to specified procedures, the base year value of
property that is eligible for the homeowner's exemption of any
person, regardless of age or disability, to be transferred to any
replacement dwelling, regardless of the value of the replacement
property or whether the replacement property is located within the
same county.

Revises the maximum S-year maturity requirement regarding
investment in securities by a local agency to instead require that the
securities have a maximum remaining security of 5 years or less.

Eliminates the requirement that the securities issuer be rated A or
its equivalent or better for the issuer's debts as provided by an

NRSRO.

Fire Insurance: Valuation
ofLoss

Vehicles: Clean Cars 2040
Act

Property Taxation: Base
Year Value Transfer

Local Government:
Investments

AB 1740
Daly (D)

AB 1745
Ting (D)

AB 174E
Steinorth (R)

AB 1770
Steinorth (R)

A-5



IR\ryD 2016 LEGISLATTVE MATRIX
Updated O?/l4l20t8

StatusSummaryÆffectsIR\ilI)
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

0112212018 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on INSURANCE.

0l129l20l8 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on WATER, PARKS AND
WILDLTFE.
OI 129 I2OI8 - INTRODUCED

OAOINAIS - INTRODUCED.

oztol t20t8 - INTRODUCED.

OZll2l2OlS - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on LOCAL
GOVERNMENT.

0211212018 - To ASSEMBLY
Committee on PUBLIC EMPLOYEES,
RETIREN,IENT AND SOCIAL
SECURITY.

Extends the minimum time limit during which an insured may
collect the full replacement cost of a loss relating to a state of
emergency to 36 months.

Increases the membership of the Delta Stewardship Council to l3
members, including I I members and 2 nonvoting rnembers.

Makes a nonsubstantive change to existing law which requires the

Department of Finance to develop a 3-year investment plan for the

moneys deposited in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law which requires any
person who owns a public water system to ensure that the system,
among other things, provides a reliable and adequate supply of
pure, wholesome, healthful, and potable water.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to existing law establishing the Safe

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund.

Relates to existing law which requires a sanitation district, when an

expenditure for work exceeds a specified amount, to contract with
the lowest responsible bidder after notice. Requires the notice to be
published in a manner that the district board determines to be
reasonable, which may include, but is not limited to, newspap€rs,
Internet Web sites, radio, television, or other means of mass
communication.

Prohibits a public employer from deterring or discouraging
prospective public employees from becoming or remaining
members of an employee organization.

Fire Insurance: Indemnity

Sacramento-San Joaquin
Delta: Stewardship
Council
Global Warming Solutions
Act of 2006: Greenhouse
Gas

California Safe Drinking
Water Act

Safe Drinking Vy'ater State
Revolving Fund Law of
1997

Public Contracts:
Sanitation Districts

Public Employers:
Empl oyee Organizations

^8t772Aguiar-Curry
(D)

aB 1876
Frazier (D)

aB 1945
Garcia E (D)

aB 1989
Mathis (R)

aB 1991
Mathis (R)

AB 2003
Daly (D)

^Bz0nChiu (D)

A-6



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0Øl4l20l8

StatusSummaryÆffectsIRWI)
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

ozt 06t201 I - INTRODUCED.

02t0612018 - TNTRODUCED.

o2to6 I 20 t8 - INTRODUCED.

02/06120IS.INTRODUCED.

OAOT I2O1 8. INTRODUCED.

Requires the Department of Water Resources, in consultation with
the State Water Resources Control Board and other relevant state

and local agencies and stakeholders, to use available data to
identify small water suppliers and rural communities that may be at

risk of drought and water shortage vulnerability and requires fhe
department to notify counties and groundwater sustainability
agencies of tiose suppliers or communities.

Expresses the intent ofthe Legislature to enaet legislation to extend

frnancial incentives to single-family and multi-family homeowners
to incentivize the purchase of residential graywater reuse systems.

Creates the Small System Water Authority Act of 2018 and state
legislative fìndings and declarations relating to authorizing the
creation of small system water aufhorities that will have powers to
absorb, improve, and competently operate noncompliant public
water systems. Defines various terms and requires a change in
organization to be carried out as set forth in the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000.

Requires the Department of Water Resources to provide advanced
payment for specified water projects of a specified amount or
specified percentage of a grant. award, whichever is less. Eliminates
the requirement that the grant award for the project be less than a
specified amount to obtain advanced payment. Eliminates the
repeal of advanced payment provisions.

Requires a project proponent, upon completion ofthe first one-half
of a project receiving a regional water management grant award, to
provide a first one-halfproject accountability report to the
Department of Water Resources that reports the completion of
objectives for the first one-halfofthe project and documents the
expenditure and use of advanced grant funds.

Countywide drought and
water shortage contingency
plans

Residential graywater
reuse systems: incentives

Small System Water
Authority Act of 2018

W'ater: grants: advanced
payments

Integrated Regional Water
Management Plans: Grants

aB 2038
Gallagher (R)

LB204¿
Steinorth (R)

AB æ5()
Caballero @)

aB 2060
GarciaE (D)

aB 2064
Gloria (D)

A-7



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0Ul4l?Ã18

StatusSummary/EffectsTitle IRWD
Position

Bill No.
Author

{DI 07 I2O I 8 - INTRODUCED

O2IO7 12018 - INTRODUCED

O2IO7 I2OI 8 - INTRODUCED.

O2IO7 I2OI8 : INTRODUCED.

02 I I 2t20 t8 - INTRODUCED.

Expands the definition of local agency to include sewer, water,
utility, and local and regional park districts, joint powers
authorities, successor agencies to former redevelopment agencies,
housing authorities, and other political subdivisions of this state and
any instrumentality thereof that is empowered to acquire and hold
real property, thereby requiring these entities to comply with the
requirements for the disposal of surplus land.

Provides that a public entity, public officer, or an employee of a
public entity, is not liable for any personal injury, death, property
damage, or inverse condemnation, that has arisen from or is related
to the use of an accessory dwelling unit and that is proximately
caused by any utility system that the public entity owns, operates,
or maintains if the legislative body of a local agency has permitted
the equipment, or accessory dwelling unit, to remain in the same
location prior to January 2018.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board, to the extent
that the state board determines funds are available, to estâblish and
maintain a dedicated program to research contaminants of emerging
concem to understand the contaminants entering drinking water
supplies. Requires the program to research the impacts of
contaminants of emerging concern on human health and the
environment.

Relates to net energy metering of eligible customer-generators of
electricity.

Prescribes requirements relating to release time that would apply to
all of the public employers and employees subject to specified
public employee acts and would generally repeal the provisions
relating to release time in those acts.

Local agencies: surplus
land

Accessory dwelling units:
improvements : liability

State Vy'ater Resources
Connol Board:
contaminants

Electricity: Net Energy
Metering: Eligible
Customer
Public Employment: Labor
Relations: Release Time

aB 2065
Ting (D)

AB207t
BloomO)

L82072
Quirk (D)

^82077Limon (D)

^ß2154Bonta (D)

A-8



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated OUI4l20l8

StatusSummaryÆffectsIR\üD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

0a l2t2ar8 - INTRODUCED.

02 I 13 I2OI8 . INTRODUCED.

ozt 13 t20l 8 - INTRODUCED.

ozt r3t20r8 - INTRODUCED.

02t t3 t20 t8 - TNTRODUCED.

02t t3 t20t8 - INTRODUCED.

Authorizes a municipal corporation to utilize the alternative
procedures to lease, sell, or tr¿nsfer that portion of a municipal
utility used for furnishing sewer service outside the boundaries of
the municipal corporation.

States the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation that would
require public agencies to meet increased data protection standards

by enhancing password protection requirements and annually
assessing cybersecurity responses.

Makes nonsubstantive changes in legislative findings and

declarations regarding the need to reduce urban water use statewide

by 20Vo and to effectively measure a water supplier's efforts to
reduce urban water use in its service area.

Makes nonsubstantive changes in findings and declarations relating
to urban water management planning.

Authorizes public projects of $60,000 or less to be performed by
the employees ofa public agency, authorize public projects of
$200,000 or less to be let to contract by informal procedures, and

require public projects of more than $200,000 to be let to contract
by formal bidding procedures.

Makes a nonsubstantive change in findings and declarations
concerning urban water management planning.

Municipal Corporations:
Public Utility Service

Public Agencies: Data
Protection: Standards

Sustainable Water Use and

Demand Reduction

Urban Water Management
Planning

Public Contracts: Local
Agencies: Alternative
Procedure

Urban water management
planning

^82t79Gipson (D)

LB?.?.25
Limon (D)

^ß2UtRubio (D)

A82242
Rubio (D)

AB?.U9
Cooley (D)

^82266'Bigelow (R)

A-9



IRWD ã}16 LEGISLATTVE MATRIX
Updated 0AMl?.018

StatusSummaryÆffectsIR\ryI)
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

o2l 1312018 - INTRODUCED.

ozt t3 t20 t8 - INTRODUCED.

021 t3 120 l8 - INTRODUCED.

O2I 13 I2OI8 - INTRODUCED.

O2I IO I2OI 8 - INTRODUCED.

O8l3ll2017 - In ASSEMBLY. To
Inactive File.

Vests the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery with
the primary responsibility for the disposal of home- generated

pharmaceutical waste and would require the Department of
Resources Recycling and Recovery, in collaboration with the State

Department of Public Health, the Department of Toxic Substances

control, and the California State Board of Pharmacy, to adopt

regulations authorizing the incineration of home- generated

pharmaceutical waste by solid waste facilities.

Repeals the requirement that when the last billing cycle of a 12-

month period is reached, any remaining credit is reset to zero.

Repeals the Local Government Renewable Energy Self-Generated
Program.

Extends the operation of existing law which provides an exclusion
from gross income for any amount received as a rebate. voucher, or
other financial incentive issued by a local water agency or supplier

for participation in a turf removal water conservation program.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to provisions of the Meyers-Milias-
Brown Act.

Specifies that, except as provided, the aesthetic effects of projects

meeting certain requirements are not significant effects on the

environment for the purposes of California Environmental Quality
Act and that the lead agency is not required to evaluate the aesthetic

of those projects.

Amends the Political Reform Act which requires certain disclosures
to include a statement indicating the fair market value of
investments or interests in real property and the aggregate value of
income received from each reportable source. Revises the dollar
amounts associated with these ranges.

Solid Waste Facilities:
Pharmaceutical Waste

Local Government
Renewable Energy
hogram

lncome taxes: exclusion:
turf removal program

Local public employee
labor relations

California Environmental

Quality Act

Political Reform Act of
1974: Economic Interest

LB2n7
Mathis (R)

^82n8Berman (D)

L82283
Holden (D)

aB 2305
Rodriguez (D)

^ß2341Mathis (R)

SB24
Portantino (D)

A-10



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATTVE MATRIX
Updated 0U1412018

StatusSummaryÆffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

æil2l20l7 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on RULES with author's

amendments.;09| l2l2Ùl7 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and

amended. Re-referred to Committee on

RULES.

l0l15l2Ûl7 - Vetoed by GOVBRNOR.

08n8nÙn - In ASSEMBLY. Suspend

Assembly Rule 96.;08/2812017 - Re-
referred to ASSEMBLY Committee on

RULES.

Oll22l20l8 - In SENATE. Read third
time. Passed SENATE. *****To
ASSEMBLY.

Relates to the California Environmental, Public Health, and
rùy'orkers Defense Act of 2017. Relates to clean air, drinking water,

discharge of pollutants into the atmosphere and waters, and

endangered species. Requires specified agencies to take prescribed

actions to maintain and enforce standards pertaining to air, water,

and protected species. Prohibits a state agency from amending rules

to be less stringent in protection of workers'rights and workers'

safety than established by federal law.

Amends the California Environmental Quality Act. Requires a lead

agency to post certain notices on the agency's Internet Web site and

to offer to provide those notices by e-mail. Requires a county clerk
to post notices regarding an environmental impact report or a
negâtive declaration on the county's Internet Web site. Requires the

filing of a notice in certain cases.

Authorizes the State Air Resources Board to develop and

implement a Heavy-Duty Vehicle Inspection and Maintenance
Program for nongasoline heavy-duty on road motor vehicles.
Authorizes the state board to assess a fee and penalty as part ofthe
program. Creates the Truck Emission Check Fund and the Diesel
Emission System Inspection and Smoke Test Account in the fund,
with all the moneys deposited in each fund to be available upon

appropriation.

Amends existing law which establishes liability for sexual

harassment when thc plaintiff proves specified elements and

existing law which states that a relationship may exist between a

plaintiffand certain persons. Includes an investor, elected official,
lobbyist, director, and producer among those listed persons who
may be liable to a plaintiff for sexual harassment.

Environmental and
'rùy'orkers' Defense Act

California Environmental

Quality Acfi Notices

Heavy Duty Vehicle
Inspection and
Maintenance Program

Personal Rights: Sexual
Harassment

SB 49
de læon (D)

sB 80
Wieckowski
(D)

sB 210
Leyva (D)

sB?24
Jackson (D)

A-11



IRWD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0211412018

St¿tusSummarylEffectsIRWD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

O9lO8l2Ol7 - In ASSEMBLY. To
Inactive File.

0911312017 - Withdrawn from
ASSEMBLY Committee on

RULES.;09/l3l20n - In ASSEMBLY
Ordered to third reading.;09/1312017 -
In ASSEMBLY. Suspend Assembly
Rule 96.

09l0ll20l7 - Re-referred to
ASSEMBLY Committee on RULES.

O7lÙ5l20l7 - From ASSEMBLY
Committee on UTILITIES AND
ENERGY with author's
amendments.;O1 10512017 - In
ASSEMBLY. Read second time and
amended. Re-referred to Committee on

UTILITIES AND ENERGY.

Amends the California Endangered Species Act which prohibits the

taking ofan endangered or threâtened species. Provides that the

accidental take of candidate, threatened, or endangered species

resulting from acts that occur on a farm or a ranch in the course of
otherwise lawful routine and ongoing agricultural activities is not
prohibited by the act.

Requires an urban retail water supplier to calculate an urban water

use objective and its actual urban water use by specified dates and

requires a report. Imposes civil liability for a violation of an order

or regulation issued pursuant to certain provisions' Authorizes the

State \l'ater Resources Control Board to issue a regulation or
information order requiring a wholesale water supplier, urban retail
water supplier, or distributor of a public water supply to provide a

monthly report of certain information.

Establishes the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund in the

State Treasury and would provide that moneys in the fund are

continuously appropriaæd to the state board. requires the state

board to expend moneys in the fund for grants, loans, contracts, or
services to assist eligible applicants with projects relating to safe

and affordable drinking water.

Requires the Public Utilities Commission and the governing boards

of local publicly owned electric utilities to establish an Energy
Storage Initiative to provide rebates to customers of electrical
corporations for the installation ofenergy storage systems

consisfent with certain requirements. Requires the PUC to ensure

an orderly transition ofthe funding for energy storage systems from
the self-generation incentive program to the Energy Storage

Initiative to minimize disruption.

OPPOSE
I.JNLESS

AMENDED

OPPOSE

Califomia Endangered

Species Act

l0Vater Management
Planning

Waær Quality: Safe and
Affordable Drinking Water
Fund

Energy Storage Initiative

sB 473
Hertzberg (D)

sB 606
Skinner (D)

SB 623
Monning (D)

sB 700
Wiener (D)

A-12



IR\ryD 2016 LEGISLATTVE MATRIX
Updatcd 0U1412018

StatusSummaryÆffectsIR\MD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

09ll3l20l7 - In ASSEMBLY. To
Inactive File.

O9lOll2Ol1 - In ASSEMBLY
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:
Held in cc,mmittee.

Olll6l2DlS - To SENATE Committees
on TRANSPORTATION AND
HOUSING and GOVERNANCE AND
FINANCE.

02lDll20l8 - To SENATE Committee
on NATURAL RESOURCES AND
WATER.

O2lO8l2O18 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

Relates to The California Environmental Quality Act. Establishes a

continuing education requirement for employees of public agencies

who have primary responsibility to administer the act.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to track and

publish on its Internet \Veb site an analysis ofall voluntary and

ordered consolidations of water systems that have occurred on or
after a certain date. Requires the published information to include
the resulting outcomes of the consolidations and whether the

consolidations have succeeded or failed in providing an adequate

supply of safe drinking water to the communities served by the

consolidated water systems.

Relates to accessory dwelling units in single- family and multi-
family residential zones. Deletes the requirement tlat the area be

zoned to allow single-family and multi-family use. Specifies that if
a local agency does not act on an application for an accessory

dwelling unit within 120 days, then the application shall be deemed

approved.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board, upon
appropriation, to develop a plan to deploy a network of stream
gages that includes a determination of funding needs and

opportunities for reactivating existing gages. Requires the board to
prioritize the deployment ofstream gages based upon gaps in the

existing system ofgages and specified considerations.

Makes nonsubstantive changes to provisions relative to minor water
quality violations.

California Environmental

Quality Act

Safe Drinking rù[ater Fund

Land use: accessory
dwelling units

'Water resources: stream
gages

Water quality: minor
violations

sB 771
de Leon (D)

SB 778
Hertzberg (D)

SB 831
Wieckowski
(D)

sB 919
Dodd (D)

sB 934
Allen (D)

A-13



IR\ryD 2016 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated Wl4l20t8

StatusSummary/EffectsIRWI)
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

0210812018 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

02l}8l2Ûl8 - To SENATE Committee
on ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY.

ozt 05 t201 8 - TNTRODUCED.

ozt o8l20l 8 - INTRODUCED.

States the intent of the L,egislature to enact legislation that would
require the State Water Resources Control Board to recognize local

water agency investment in water supply and ensure that local

agencies receive sufficient credit for these investments in meeting

any 't¡/ater conservation or efficiency mandates.

Requires the State Water Resources Control Board in consultation
with the California Building Standards Commission, to adopt
regulations for risk-based water quality standards for the onsite

treatment and reuse of nonpotable water, as provided' Authorizes

the state board to contract with public or private entities regarding

the content of the standards and exempts those contracts from
review and approval ofthe Department ofGeneral Services'

Re4uires an urban and community water system as a public water

system that supplies water to more than 200 service connections, to

have a written policy on residential service shutoff available in
specified languages of the people residing in its service area.

Requires certain aspect to be available on it's system web site and

be provided annually to customers in writing.

Authorizes a contracting agency to terminate its contract with the

Board of Administration of the Public Employees' Retirement
System the agency's will and would not require the contracting
agency to fully fund the board's pension liability upon termihation
of the contract. Authorizes the board to reduce the member's

benefits in the terminated agency pool by the percentage of liability
unfunded.

lVater Conservation: Local
Ìüy'ater Supplies

Onsite Treated Nonpotable
Water Systems

Waær Shutoffs: Urban and
Community Vy'ater

Systems

Califomia Public
Employees' Retirement
Systern

sB 952
Anderson (R)

sB 966
Wiener (D)

SB 998
Dodd (D)

sB 1032
Moorlach (R)

A-14



IRWD 201-6 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX
Updated 0Ul4l20l8

StatusSummarylEffectsIR\üD
Position

TitleBill No.
Author

O2IO8I2OI8 - INTRODUCED.

A2lß12017 - To SENATE Committee
on RULES.

0711812017 - In SENATE. Read second
time.;07|l8l20l7 - To SENATE
Committee on ENERGY AND
NATURAL RESOURCES.
0210712017 - In HOUSE Committee on
NATURAL RESOURCES: Referred to
Subcommittee on WATER, PO'WER
ANDOCEANS.
ov11t20t7 -
INTRODUCED.;Û| I ll l20l7 - To
HOUSE Committee on 1VAYS AND
MEANS.

Requires an agency participating in the public employees

retirement system that increases the compensation of a member
who was previously employed by a different agency to bear all
actuarial liability for the action, if it results in an increased actuarial
liability beyond what would have been reasonably expected'for the

member. Requires the increased liability be in addition to
reasonable compensâtion growth that is anticipated for a member
who works for employer or employers over an extended fime.

Declares the intent of the Lægislature to amend the California
Constitution to provide a program that would ensure that affordable
water is available to all Californians and to ensure that water
conservation is given a permanent role in California's future.

Amends the Gaining Responsibility on Water Act of 2017 , provides
drought relief in the State of California.

Authorizes a pilot project for an innovative water project financing
program.

Amends the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, expands the exclusion
for certain conservation subsidies to include subsidies for water
conservation or efficiency measures and storm water management
measures.

Public Employees
Retirement: Reciprocal
Benefits

Water Conservation

Gaining Responsibility on
'Water Act

Vy'ater hoject Financing
Program Pilot Project

Conservation Subsidies
Water Conservation
Exclusion

sB 1033
Moorlach (R)

scA 4
Hertzberg (D)

HR23
Valadao (R)

HR434
Denham (R)

HR448
Huffman (D)

A-15



Exhibit "B"

2018 Legislative Update Report:
Links to Bill & Regulatory Texts

(as of February 14,2018)

http://leginfo.legi$Jatur e.ca. gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtrnl?bill
id=201720180A'81668

AB 1668 (Friedman)
as amended

blLtp://leginfo. le gislature.ca. eov/faces/billNavClient.xhtÍIl?bill
id=2017201804B2038

AB 2038 (Gallagher)
as introduced

bgtp;//legi nfs.legislature;ca. gsv/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill
id=201720180482050

AB 2050 (Caballero)
as introduced

http://leeinfg.legislature,-ca. gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtnll ?bill
id=20l72OL8OAB224T

AB224I (Rubio)
as introduced

httn://leginfo.legislature.ca. gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml ?bill
id=2017201.80482242

A82242 (Rubio)
as introduced

A82266 (Bigelow)
as introduced

http://leginfs. Iegislature.ca. gov/faces/billNavClient.xhrnl?bill
id=20172O18OA82266

SB 606 (Hertzberg/Skinner),
as amended

http://leginfo.leeislature.ca. gov/faces/billNavClient. xhtml?bill
id=20172018058606

http: //leginfo. legislatu re .ga eov/face s/bi llNavClient. x htrnl ?bill
id=20172018058623

SB ó23 (Monning),
as amended

http://le ginfo. legislature.ca. gov/faces/billNavClient. xhtml?bill
id=20172018058952

SB 952 (Anderson)
as introduced

http://dof.ca.eovlBudget/Trailer Bill Langüage/docutIlclnts/S
afeandAffsrdableDrinkinglVoter.pdf

"Safe and Affordable Drinking
Water" Budget Trailer Bill

B-1



L
2
3
4
5
6
7
I
9

10
LL
L2
13
L4
15
16
t7
18
19
20
2L
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
4L
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

EXHIBIT ''C''

PROPOSED TEXT OF REGULATION

Title 23. Waters
Division 3. State Water Resources Control Board and RegionalWater Quality
Control Boards

Through 2900

S 955¡.êlaime te Water Supp'lied þy Biotriet er Water Gempany: lRenumþeredl
S€5+.4 955- Policy and Definition.

ia) ln ¡nvestigating any uses of water and making the determinations required by this

àri¡cle, the bãard énatígive particular consideration to the reasonableness of use of

reelaimed recnrcled Water or reuse of water.
(Oj Às useã'lñiñi- rticle, "misuse of water" or "misuse" means any waste, unreasonable

use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion of water'

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Referente: Sections 100,275, 1240, 1251, 1253 and 1257, Water Code; and Section 2,

Article X, California Constitution.

S'85S.Sggg- I nvesti g atio n s.

Íhe board staff shall investigate an allegation of misuse of water:
(1) when an interested person shows good cause, or
(2) when the board itself believes that a misuse may exists.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code'
Referente: Sections 1OO, 183, 275 and 1051, Water Code; and Section 2, Article X,

Galifornia Constitution.

S€5Z,S-952 Notif ications, Hearin gs and Orders.

[a¡ $ tñ-e investigation indicates that a misuse of water has occurred, the board staff shall

Àotify interesteJpersons and allow a reasonable period of time in which to terminate

such misuse or demonstrate to the satisfaction of the board staff that misuse has not

occurred.
(b) At the end of the time set by the board staff, and upon application of any interested

òérson or upon its own motion, the board may hold a hearing to determine if misuse has

occurred or continues to occur.
(c) lf the misuse is alleged to have occurred or to continue to occur in connection with

àierc¡se of rights evidJnced by a permit or license issued by the board, the þoard shall

notice the heáring as a permit revocation hearing pursuant to Water Code Section

1410.'1, or as a liõense revocation hearing pursuant to Water Code Section 1675.1, as

I
c-1



51
s2
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
7L
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101

appropr¡ate; or as a preliminary cease and desist order hearing pursuant to Water Code

Section 1834.
(d) The board may issue an order requiring prevention or termination thereof.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Reference: Sections 1OO,275,183, 1051 , 1401, 1675.1 and 1834, Water Code.

Noncompliance with Order Regarding Under Water Right

Entitlement,
lf a permittee or licensee does not comply with any order issued pursuant to Section

ffp:ffi-within such reasonable period of time as allowed by the board, or such

extension thereof as may for good cause be allowed by the board, and if such order
includes a finding that waste, unreasonable use, method of use, or method of diversion

has occurred in connection with exercise of a right evidenced by a permit or license

issued by the board, a revocation action may be commenced by the board:
(a) lf the hearing has been noticed as a permit or license revocation hearing, and if the

tióarO finds thaimisuse has occurred or continues to occur, the board may order the
permit or license revoked or impose appropriate additional or amended terms or
conditions on the entitlement to prevent recurrence of the misuse;
(b) lf the hearing pursuant to Section €ÆF:fl_has been noticed as a preliminary cease
and desist order hearing, and if the board finds that misuse has occurred or continues to

occur, the board may issue a preliminary cease and desist order'

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Reference: Sections 141A, 1675 and 1831, Water Code.

S8€g'S-$gg. Noncompliance with Other Order.
ú a person õther than a permittee or licensee does not comply with any order issued
pursuant to Section €ÆFf5/_within such reasonable period of time as allowed by the
board, or such extension thereof as may for good cause be allowed, and if such order
includes a finding that such person has misused or continues to misuse water, the board

may request appropriate legal action by the Attorney General.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Reference: Section 275, Water Code.

5€60'$999. Alternative Procedure.
fne proceOure established in this article shall be construed as alternative to, and not

exclusive of, the procedures established in Chapter 5 of Title 23, California
Administrative Code, in accordance with Section 4007 therein.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code'
Reference: Section 275, Water Code.

2

c-2



LOz
103
104
105
106
LO7
108
109
110
LLL
ttz
Lt3
Lt4
115
116
tt7
118
tLg
120
tzL
122
!23
r24
L25
L26
t27
L28
L29
130
131
L32
133
L34
135
136
t37
138
139
140
t4L
t42
143
L44
I45
146
r47
L48
149
150
151
t52

S+3SS 961. Napa River, SPecial.

ia) guãO¡ng grape vines and certain other crops in the Napa Valley may be severely

àámageO Ùy-spi¡ng frosts. During a frost, the high instantaneous demand for water for

frost p-roteclion fy numerous vinãyardists and other water users frequently exceeds the

suppÛ in the Napa River stream system. This results in uncoordinated diversions and

po'si¡6n infringements upon other rights. Therefore, all diversions of water from the

rtte"r systern'between 
-tr¡larch 

1S añd May 15 determined to be significant by the board

oracouñofcompetentjurisdictionshaltbeconsidered@and
a violation of Water Cod-e Section 100 unless controlled by a watermaster administering

a board or court approved distribution program. Diversions for frost protection and

irrigation during thié per¡od shall be restricted to: (1) replenishment of reservoirs filled

priãr to March 
-15 

under an appropriative water right permit, or (2) diversions permitted

by the court.

(b) The service area of the distribution program may be revised at any time by order of

ihe board or the court. The board will retaiñ jurisdiction to revise terms and conditions of

all frost protection permits should future conditions warrant.

(c) Under this section diversion of water during the spring frost season from March '15 to

fr¡ãV f 5 to replenish water stored in reservoirs prior to the frost season is "regulation," as

defined in Chapter 2. Article 2, Section 657: Replenishment diversion must be to

reservoirs for wffch a permit or license authorizing winter storage prior to the frost

season has been issued.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Referente: Section 2, Article X, California Constitution; and Sections 1QQ,275 and

1051.5, Water Code.

$8€eS 962. Russian River, SPecial.
Budd¡ngrerape vines and certain other crops in the Russian River watershed may be

severef ãañrageO by spring frosts. Frost protection of crops is a beneficial use of water

under section 671 of this-chapter 2 of this divisiôn. During a frost, however, the high

instantaneous demand for water for frost protection by numerous vineyardists and other

water users may contribute to a rapid decrease in stream stage that results in the

mortality of salmonids due to stranding. Stranding mortality can be avoided by

coordinãting or otherwise managing diversions to reduce instantaneous demand.

Because a ieasonable alternative to current practices exists, the Board has determined

these diversions must be conducted in accordance with this section'

(a) After March 14,2012, except for diversion upstream of Warm Springs Dam- in

òónoma Gounty or Coyote Dam in Mendocino County, any diversion of water from the

Russian River stream system, including the pumping of hydraulically connected
groundwater, for purposes of frost protection from March 15 through May 15, shall be

ãiverted in accordance with a board approved water demand management program

(WDMp). For purposes of this section, groundwater pumped within the Russian River

watershed is considered hydraulical[ cònnected to the Russian River stream system if

that pumping contributes to a reduction in stream stage to any surface stream in the

Russian River watershed during any single frost event.

J

c-3



153
t54
155
156
t57
158
159
160
t6L
t62
163
L64
165
166
L67
168
169
t70
L7T
172
L73
174
L75
L76
L77
t78
L79
180
181
L82
183
L84
185
186
r87
188
L89
190
1_91

L92
193
194
195
196
L97
198
199
200
20r
202
203

(b) The purpose of the WDMP is to assess the extent to which diversions for frost
protection affect stream stage and manage diversions to prevent cumulative diversions
ior frost protection from causing a reduction in stream stage that causes stranding
mortality. The WDMP, and any revisions thereto, shall be administered by an individual

or goveining body (governing body) capable of ensuring that the requirements of the
program aré met- Any WDMP developed pursuant to this section shall be submitted to

the board by February 1 prior to the frost season.

(c) At a minimum, the WDMP shall include (1) an inventory of the frost diversion systems

within the area subject to the WDMP, (2) a stream stage monitoring program, (3) an

assessment of the potential risk of stranding mortality due to frost diversions, (4) the
identification and timelines for implementation of any corrective actions necessary to
prevent stranding mortality caused by frost diversions, and (5) annual reporting of
program data, activities, and results. ln addition, the WDMP shall identify the diverters
participating in the program and any known diverters within the area subject to the
WDMP who declined to participate. The WDMP also shall include a schedule for
conducting the frost inventory, developing and implementing the stream stage

monitoring program, and conducting the risk assessment.
(1) Inventóry oifrost diversion systems: The governing body shallestablish an inventory

of all frost diversions included in the WDMP. The inventory, except for diversion data,

shall be completed within three months after board approval of a WDMP. The inventory

shall be updated annually with any changes to the inventory and with frost diversion

data. The inventory shall include for each frost diversion:
(A) Name of the diverter;
(B) Source of water used and location of diversion;
(C) A description of the diversion system and its capacity;
(D) Acreage frost protected and acres frost protected by means other than water
diverted from the Russian River stream system; and
(E) The rate of diversion, hours of operation, and volume of water diverted during

each frost event for the year.
(2) Stream stage monitoring program: The governing body shalldevelop a stream stage

monitoring program in consultation with National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and

California Department of Fish and Game (DFG). For the purposes of this section,

consultation involves an open exchange of information for the purposes of obtaining

recommendations. The governing body is authorized to include its own expert scientists
and engineers in the consultation, and request board staff to participate, when desired.

The stream stage monitoring program shall include the following:
(A) A determination of the number, type, and location of stream gages necessary

for the WDMP to monitor and assess the extent to which frost diversions may

affect stream stage and cause stranding mortality;
(B) A determination of the stream stage that should be maintained at each page

to prevent stranding mortalitY;
(Cj Provisions for the installation and ongoing calibration and maintenance of
stream gages; and
(D) Monitoring and recording of stream stage at intervals not to exceed 15

minutes.
(3) R¡sk assessment: Based on the inventory and stream stage information described
above, and information regarding the presence of habitat for salmonids, the governing

body shall conduct a risk assessment that evaluates the potential for frost diversions to
cauðe stranding mortality. The risk assessment shall be conducted in consultation with

4

c-4



204
205
206
247
208
2A9
2L0
2tL
2tz
2L3
234
275
2t6
2t7
278
2L9
220
227
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
23L
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
24L
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
25L
252
2s3
254

NMFS and DFG. The governing body is authorized to include its own expert scientists
and engineers in the consultation, and request board staff to participate, when desired.

The risk assessment shall be evaluated and updated annually'
(4) Corrective Actions: lf the governing body determines that diversions for purposes of
irost protection have the potential to cause stranding mortality, the governing body shall

notify the diverter(s) of the potential risk. The governing body, in consultation with the

diverters, shall develop a corrective action plan that will prevent stranding mortality.

Corrective actions may include alternative methods for frost protection, best

management practices, better coordination of diversions, construction of ofüstream
storagã facilities, real-time stream gage and diversion monitoring, or other alternative
methóds of diversion. Corrective actions also may include revisions to the number,

location and type of stream stage monitoring pages, or to the stream stages considered

necessary to prevent stranding mortality. ln developing the corrective action plan the
governing body shall consider the relative water right priorities of the diverters and any

time delay between groundwater diversions and a reduction in stream stage, The

correctivé action plan shall include a schedule of implementation. To the extent feasiþle,

the corrective action plan shall include interim corrective actions if long-term corrective
actions are anticipated to take over three years to fully implement. The diverters shall

implement corrective actions in accordance with the corrective action plan, or cease
diverting water for frost protection.
(S) Annual Reporting: The governing body shall submit a publically available annual

ie'port of program operations, risk assessment, and corrective actions by September 1

foilowing the frost season that is the subject of the report. The report shall include:
(A) The frost inventory, including diversion data.
(B) Stream stage monitoring data.
(C) The risk assessment and its results, identification of the need for any

additional data or analysis, and a schedule for obtaining the data or completing

the analysis.
(D) A description of any corrective ac{ion plan that has been developed, any

corrective actions implemented to date, and a schedule for implementing any

additional corrective actions.
(E) Any instances of noncompliance with the WDMP or with a corrective action
plan, including the failure to implement identified corrective actions. The report
shall document consultations with DFG and NMFS regarding the stream stage
monitoring program and risk assessment and shall explain any deviations from
recommeñdations made by DFG or NMFS during the consultation process. ln
addition, the annual report shall evaluate the effectiveness of the WDMP and

recommend any necessary changes to the WDMP, including any proposed

additions or subtractions of program participants. Any recommendations for
revisions to the WDMP shall include a program implementation plan and

schedule. The board may require changes to the WDMP, including but not limited

to the risk assessment, corrective action plan, and schedule of implementation,

at any time.

(d) The governing body may develop and submit for the Deputy Director for Water
Rights' ãpproval,-criteria, applicable to any participant in its WDMP, for identifying
gróundwater diversions that are not hydraulically connected to the Russian River stream

system. The governing body may submit to the Deputy Director a list of groundwater

diverters that appear to meet these criteria and could be exempted from thís section.

The Deputy Director is authorized to exempt the listed groundwater diverters, or identify

the reason for not exempting the listed groundwater diverters. Beginning three years

5

c-5



255
2s6
257
258
259
260
26L
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
27t
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
28L
282
283
284
28s
286
287
288
289
290
29L
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
30L
302
303
304

from the effective date of this section, if an individual groundwater diverter can
independently demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Deputy Director that the diversion is
not hydraulically connected to the Russian River stream system, the Deputy Director is

authorized to exempt the groundwater diverter from this section.

(e) Compliance with this section shall constitute a condition of all water right permits and
licenses that authorize the diversion of water from the Russian River stream system for
purposes of frost protection. The diversion of water in violation of this section, including
the failure to implement the corrective actions included in any corrective action plan

developed by the governing body, is an unreasonable method of diversion and use and
a violation of Water Code section 100, and shall be subject to enforcement by the board.

The board has continuing authority to revise terms and conditions of all permits and
licenses that authorize the diversion of water for purposes of frost protection should
future conditions warrant.

Authority cited: Section 1058, Water Code.
Reference: Section 2, Article X, California Constitution; and Sections 100,275 and
1051.5, Water Code.

Article 2. Wastefuland Unreasonable Water Uses

Q 963. Wastefuland Unreasonaþlg Water Use Practices,

Thê State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) has determined that iUs a
waste and unreas..onable use of water under ArticleI. section 2 of thC¡ Câlifornla
Constitution to divert or use water inconsistent with subdivision (a) re,Çardless of wâter
rioht senioritv. given the need for the water to suoporl other more critical uses.

(a) As used in this article:
L1) "Commercial agricultural use meeting the definition of Government Code section
51201. subdivision (b)" includes irrioation, frost protection and heat control. but does not
inelude cleanino. processino or other símilar oost-harvest activities.

functionino solelv in a wholesale capacitv. but does applv to suppliers when they are
functioninq in a retailcapacitv.
tâåAlet€r+€aÉ' rn€enÊ-the
Wfrere a wateevear is ge€¡

(3) "Turf' has the same meaninq as in Section 491.
(4) {lncidental runoff means unintended amounts (volume) of (unoff. such as

or svstem desion. if it is due to excessive application,-if it is due to intentional overflow or
apolication. or if lt ls due to neslioence.

6

c-6



305
306
307
308
309
310
311
3L2
313
314
315
3L6
3L7
318
319
32A
32L
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
33s
336
337
338
339
340
34L
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
3s3
354
355

(bll't) The use of water is prohiþited as identif¡ed in this subdivision for Eã+€åthe

areas¡ Orivate and public walkwavs. roadwavs. parkins lots. or strUctures:
(B) The use of a hose that disognses water to wæh a motor ve-hicle. except
where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device attached to it that Oauses
it to cease dispensino water immediately when not in use:
(Cl The qpplication of potable water directlv to drivewavs and sidewalks:
(Þ) The use of potable water in an omamental fo.untain or otheldecorative watêr
feature. exeept where: (DXi) the water is part of a recirculatinç svgtçrm: or (D)lii)

rain. ln determining whether measurable rainfall of at least tenth fourth of one
inch of rain oqcurred in a given area. erifsrCement mey be based on records of
the National Weather Service. the closest CIMIS station to the parcel. or anv
other reliable source of raintall data available to the entitv undertakino
enforcement of this subdivision:

sidewalk. except where:
(¡) the turf serves a community.or neiqhborhood-function. includino. but

not limited to. recreational uses and civic qf communitv events:
lii) the turf irrioated incidentallv bv an irrioation the orimarv

purpose of which is the ¡rriqât¡on of trees: or
(iii) the turf is irriqated with recvoled water throuoh an inioation svstem

installqd pr¡or to Januarv 1.201&-and.
(2) Notwithstandinq sqbdivision (bX1). lhê use of water is not orohibited bv this article
under the followins circumstances:

required bv law to bç ootable.
(B) To the extent necessarv to complv with a term or condition in a oermit issued

the definition of Govemment Code section 51201..subdivision $l'

(o) To promote water conservation. ooeratsrs of hotels and motels shall pfovide quests

with the option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered dailv. The hotel or
motel shall prominently displav notice of this option in each questroom usino clear and
easilv understood languaoe.

7

c-7



356
357
358
3s9
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
37L
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
39s
396
397
398
399
400
40t
402
403
404
405
406

(d)f1) To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of wqter and to promoje Wäter
cornservàiion. anv homeowners'association or community service organization or similar
entitv iq prohibitêd fiom:

iÀi Takino or threateninq to teKe any action to enforce anv provislon of the
governino documents or architectural or landscapino guidelines or policies of a
common intêrest develooment where that qrovislon is void or unenforceable
under section 4735; subdivisions (a) and (b) of the Clvil Code:
(Bl lmposino or threatenino to impose a fine. assessment. or other monetarv
oenaltv aqainst anv owner of a separate interest for reducing or eliminatino the
watering of veqetation or lawns durinq a declared drouqht emetoêncY, as
described in section 4735. subdivision (c) of the Civil Code: or

conelusion of the state of emerqencY.

(2) As used in this subdivisioni
1A) "Architectural or landscapinq quidelines or policies" includes anv formal or
informal rules other than the ooverninq docuFents of a common intêrest
develooment.
1B) "Homeowners' association" means an "association" as defined in section

4080 of the CivilCode,
(c) "Common ¡nteresi deve

of the Civil Code.

1D) "Community service orqanizatisn or similar entitvo has thê same meanins as
in sectlon 4110 of the CivilCode.
19) "Governing documents" has the same meaning as in section 4150 of thg

Civil Code.
1r¡ 'separate interesl" has the s?,me meaninq as in section 4185 of the Civil

Code.
(3) lf a disciolinFry proceeding or other oroceedino to enforce a rule in violatign of
subdiv¡sion idXl) is initiated. eaeh day the proceeding remains pendino shallconstitute
a separate v-iolation of this resulation.

(e) To prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water and to promote wâter

infraction is in addition to. and does not supersede or limit. anv other remedies. civil oi
criminal.

8

c-8



407
408
409
410

9

c-9



EXHIBIT ''D''

++
+|***)t'**+

+*
r+

*
*
*t
*
+
+
+
+

*
*
*
*
+
+
+
+I+**

I*
***++++**

Legislative Outline for
Rebuilding Inf Í astructure

in America

THE WHITE HOUSE



TO THE CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES:

I have enclosed with this message my Administration's framework for
rebuilding infrastructure in America. Our Nation's infrastructure is in an

unacceptable state of disrepair, which damages our country's competitiveness

and our citizens' quality of life. For too long, lawmakers have invested in
infrastructure inefficiently, ignored critical needs, and allowed it to
deteriorate. As a result, the United States has fallen further and further behind

other countries. It is time to give Americans the working, modern

infrastructure they desen¡e.

To help build a better future for all Americans, I ask the Congress to act soon on an

infrastructure bill thatwill: stimulate at least $r.5 trillion in newinvestment over

the next 10 years, shorten the process for approving projects to z years or less,

address unmet rural infrastructure needs, empower State and local authorities,

and train the American workforce of the future.

To develop the infrastructure framework I am transmitting today, my
Administration engaged with Governors, mayors, Federal agencies, State and local

agencies, Members of Congress, industry, and most importantly, the American

people who depend on upgraded infrastructure. The product of these efforts is a

roadmap for the Congress to draft and pass the most comprehensive

infrastructure bilt in our Nation's history. MyAdministration's plan addresses

more than traditional infrastructure -- like roads, bridges, and airports -- but

addresses other needs like drinking andwastewater systems, waterways, water

resources, energy, rural infrastructure, public lands, veterans'hospitals, and

Brovvnfield and Superfund sites. The reforms set forth in my plan will strengthen

the economy, make our country more competitive, reduce the costs of goods and

sen¡ices forAmerican families, and enableAmericans to build their lives on top of
the best infrastructure in the world.

MyAdministration is committed to workingwith the Congress to enact a lawthat
will enable America's builders to construct new, modern, and efficient
infrastructure throughout our beautiful land.

THE TWHITE HOUSE,

D-2



TABTE OF CON .TENTS

PrutT T_TUWNWC R¡ID FINAITICING INFRASTRUCTURÊ IMPROVEMENTS.... E

t. INFRASTRUCTURE INCENTIVES PROGRAM ....-+.¡..¡,...¡.¡.r...'...'.,.,...,...-....,..-...3

A. EstabÌishment of the Incentives Program

II. RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM
A. Estqblishment of Rural Infrastructure Program.....'.

D. DístributÍon of Rural Infraslructure Program Formula Funds...-....-..

E. Applications and Evaluatíon Criteria for Rural Perþrnance Grants,.

III, TRANSFORMATIVEPROJECTS PROGRAM.. ".."'....."....,..........7
E s t a b l i s hm en t of Tr a nsþr m a t iv e P r oi e ct s P r o g' am. -. -...A.

B,

C,

D.
E.

8
I

F. Applícations and Evaluation Criteria,..,,, '.""...'..{ri..;'....¡..ir...:.....-.,.,.. """"""'9
G. Partnership Agreement and Proiecl Milestones """"""""""9
H. Value Sharing Structure for C apital C onstructi on Tr ack,-..,.,..,..

t. Perþrmance Monitoring and Oversight............... ...!¡!!....1¡r¡...r...

IV.INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING PROGRAMS .""..........,.."....I0

A. Expand Transportation Infrastruclure Finance and Innovation Act QIFIA) Funding and Broaden

B. Expi,qnf, pq¡¡road Rehabilitation ond Improvemenl Financing (RNF) and Broaden Program Eligibilily 1A

C. Expand L\ater Infrastucture Finance and Innovation Act (tl/IFIA) Funding and Broaden Progrant

D. Expand Department of Agriculture Rural Iltilities Service (RUS) Lending Progrøms Funding.'.'....,.,...' l3
E. Create Ftexibility and Broaden Eligibitity to Facilitate use of Private Activity Bonds (PABr) '....".....'...13

v. PUBLIC LANDS INFRASTRUCTURE,............,.i,,..........¡.....¡i.....¡.¡¡..¡ri:....¡.i.¡...:..'......-..r...r..i....,!.....!........'....16

A. Establish Interior Maintenance Fund,',-..-.'--.- .¡;.¡.¡¿....'...r¡"" """""","'""""" I7

VL DISPOSITION OF FEDERAL REAL PROPERTY ..............'r.r"""'r';"""¡"""r¡"1"'¡"" '"""-""17
A. Codífy Accelerated Deprecíation þr the Disposítion of Non-Federal Assets with a Federal Interest Due

B. Slreamline and Improve the Federal Real Property Disposal Process """"' 17

C. Authorize Federal Divestiture of Assets that Would Be Betler Managed by State, Local, or Privale

VII. FEDERAL CAPITAL FINANCING FI'ND..,.......
A. Create Federal Capitat Financing Fund '...........'...'............,..¡....i...;".;..'.....'q'.'.--.,!.."'¡¡'ri"""^¡ """"'""""' l9

PrutT Z _NOOIIIOTTIAI FBOYISIONS FQR IN.FRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTSzO

2Q

20
22

D-3



C. Transit. 24
25

II. V/ATERINFRASTRUCTURE ."...",.,.27

A. Prwide VA Reat Property Flexíbitities """"""'31
IV. LAND REVITALIZATION (BRO'WNFIELD/SUPERFUND REFORM)... ........32

A Creale o Superfund Revolving Loan Fund
Sites to be Eligible for BrownJìeld Grants ,

and Grant Program and Authorize National Priorities List

B. Provide Liability Relieffor States and Municipalities Acquiring Contaminated Property through Actions

as Sovereign Governments

C. Provide EPA Express Settlement Authoríly to Enter into Adntinístrative Agreements..'.....'-'........'....'..... -i3

D. Integ.ate Cleanup, Infrastructure and Long-lerm Stewardship Needs by Creating Flexibility in Funding

PAIÌT ?-INFIUTSTBUCTURE PERMITTING IMPROVEIVIENT ..,....'.'....-...-......' 3q

.......'.....,.,',..' 3 2

A.

B.

C.

D.
E.

F.

Estabtishing a "One Agency, One Decision" Environmental Review Structure....., ¡¡.¡...¡¡.r

Reducing Inefficiencies in Erwironmental Reviews ....'.¡...'.,..'....i'-.;......¡¡..r¡.r,,,¡'...ì........'¡..,..,..'

Pr olecting Cle an l( ater w ith Gre ater Effi c i en cy...........

Redu cin g Ineffic i en c i es in th e M a gnus on Stevens A ct ".'.. "'...'.......
Reducing Inefficiencies in Protecting Clean Air'....'¡'...i...!,i¡.'."r¡,.

Reducing Infficiencies in Preserving Publicly Owned Land and Historic Properties ....

35
35
42
44

44

45

II. DELEGATIONTOSTATES ,..".,.,47

A. Expønd Department of Transportation NEPA Assignment Progrant to Other Agencies.'.....'..'............'...47

B. Allow States to Assume FHWA Responsíbilitiesþr Approval of Right-of-llay Acquisitions..,,.,.,,.'.........47

C. Broaden NEPA Assignment Program to Include Olher Delerminations '........ """"""""""48

B. Negotiated Mitígation Pilot

A. Limit Iniunctive Relief to Exceptional Circumstances """"""'49
B. Revise Statute of Limitations þr Federal Infrastructure Permits or Decisions to 150 Days

C. Provide Certainty in Claims on Currentness of Data ín Envíronmental Reviews and Permils.'
50
50

PART À-\IVO.RI(FORCE DEVELOPMENT .........'.'...........""""""""""""""""""' 51

I. ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENTPROGRAMS,""..." ...,'""5I
A. Expand Petl Grant Eligibítity to High-Quality, Short'Tetm Program.i¡-,-.........."..-. '..*.""'51
B, Reþrm Career ønd Technical Education '.. -.......':....'.:'..¡, "";'i"1""';r;':'- '""""52
C. Strengthen Ties to the llorkforcefor College Students -...... """""""""""""52

rr. EMPOV/ERING WORK8RS.............. .........'.'.'.'-."..'53

A. Reþrm Licensing Requirementsfor Individuals Seeking a Job on an Infrastructure Proiect,..........'.......Jj

2

D4



PART 1 -FUNDING AND FINANCING INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROTüEMENTS

I. INFRASTRUCTURE INCENTTTü-ES PROGRAM

States and localities are best equipped to understand the infrastructure investments
needs of their communities. The infrastructure incentives program, described below,
would encourage increased State, local, and private investment in infrastructure. This
program would provide for targeted Federal investments, ercourage innovation,
itreãmtine projèct delivery, and help transform the way infrastructure is designed,
built, and maintained.

Under this program, States and localities would receive incentives in the form of
grants. nrojecisponsors selected for award would execute an agreement with express

þrogress milestones. Federal incentive funds would be conditioned upon achieving
the milestones within identified time frames.

A. Establishment of the Incentives Program

This provision would establish the Incentives Program to maximize investment in
infrastructure. The purposes of this program would include-

¡ attracting significant new, non-Federal revenue streams dedicated to
infrastructure investments ;

. creating significant leverage of Federal infrastructure investments;
o assuring long-term performance of capital infrastructure investments;
o modernizing infrastructure project delivery practices;
o increasing economic growth;
. spurring itre development and use of new and rapidly evolving infrastructure

technolog¡r to improve cost and improve performance; and
. ensuring Federal grant recipients are accountable for achieving specific,

measurable milestones.

B. Applícability

The Incentives Program would provide support to wide-ranging classes of assets,
including the following governmental infrastructure: surface transportation and
airportsfpassenger rail, ports and waterways, flood control, water sgPPlY'

hydropower, waier resources, drinkingwater facilities, wastewater facilities,
stormwater facilities, and Brownfield and Superfund sites.

C. Funding

Sroo billion would be made available for the Incentives Program. The funds
would be divided in specific amounts to be administered by the United States
Department of Transportation (DOT), United States Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE), and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

3

a

D-5



a Other Federal agencies seeking to incentivize eligible projects within their areas

of jurisdiction could petition DOT, USACE, or EPA to transfer Incentives
erógram funds to be used consistentwith the requirements under the program.
A percentage of the Incentives Program funds would be set aside for temporary
administrative expenses necessary to administer the program.

D.

a

a

Applications and Evaluation Criteria

Each lead Federal agencywould solicit applications as soon as practicable after
enactment of the Incentives Program and every six months thereafter.
Each lead Federal agencywould determine the content, format, and timing of
applications and would make incentive awards. Applications also would
include information on each of the evaluation criteria.
The evaluation criteria would be-
o the dollar value of the project or program of projects (weighted at ro

percent);
o evidence supporting how the applicant will secure and commit new, non-

Federal revenue to ðreate sustainable, long-term funding for infrastructure
investments (weighted at 5o percent);

o evidence supporting how the applicant will secure and commit new, non-
Federal revenue for operations, maintenance and rehabilitation (weighted

at 20 percent);
o updates to procurement policies and project delivery approaches to improve

eificiency in project delivery and operations (weighted at 10 percent);
o plans to íncorporate new and evolving technologies (weighted at 5 percent);

and
o evidence supporting how the projedt will spur economic and social returns

on investment (weighted at 5 percent).
Each lead Federal agency would calculate each application score by multiplying
the weighted score from the evaluation criteria by the percentage of non-
Federal revenues (out of total revenues) thatwould be used to fund the project
or program of projects.
To ensure that applicants could receive credit for actions that occurred prior to
the enactment of the Incentives Program that align with the desired outcomes
of the program, the Incentives Programwould include a look-backperiod. The
took-back-period would be defined as the time preceding the project sponsor's
cornpleted application during which the new revenue generation wa.s

implãmenteä. Subsequent applications in later years would add such addítional
time to the time after enactment of the program. The look-backperiodwould
be three years before the date of application to the program, and the
determination would be made based on the implementation date (or take effect
date) of the new revenue source. In evaluating applications, the project
sponsorts new revenue application score would be multiplied by a relevant
multiplier to determine scoring as illustrated below:

t

a

a

rl

4

D-6



Years Passed

New Revenue Credit
Score Multiplier

>3 X percent

2-3 X percent

t-2 X percent

0-1 X percent

After February
201 8

100 percent

The tead Federal agency would have sole discretion to provide credit for
previous revenue generation. The agency could request additional information
Írom a project sponsor to clarify how the revenue source has met expectations
and revise forecãsts to reflect actual performance. The amount of funds
dedicated to the look-backwould not exceed 5 percent of the total amount for
the Incentives Program.

E. IncentiveGrantAwards

. An incentive grant could not exceed 20 percent of new revenue.

. Any individual State could not receive more than ro percent of the total amount
available under the Incentives Program.

. The lead Federal agency and the grant recipient would enter into an
infrastructure incðntives agreement setting forth progress milestones toward
obtaÍning increased revenue that the recipient would achieve prior to receiving
the gran[ award, which could include advance grant disbursements.

. anyãgreement with incomplete milestones after two years would be voided,
exóept upon determination by the lead Federal agency that good cause exists to
renew the agreement for an additional period not to exceed one year. Any funds
available from a voided agreement could be re-allocated through a new
application process.

II. RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROGRAM

The Rural Infrastructure Program, described, belowwould provide for significant
investment in rural infrastruõture to address long-unmet needs. This investment is
needed to spur prosperous rural economies, facilitate freight movement, improve 

-
access to relÍabie anã affordable transportation options and enhance health and safety
for residents and businesses. Under this program, States would be incentivizedto
partnerwith local and private investments for completion and operation of rural
infrastructure projects.

A. Establishment of Rural Infrastructure Program

This provisionwould establish a Rural Infrastructure Program to-,
o improve the condition and capability of rural infrastructure through capital

imþrovements and outcomes-driven planning efforts that enhance private

5

a

D-7



B.

o

a

a

C. Funding

$5o billion would be made available to the Rural Infrastructure Program for
capital investments in rural infrastructure investments.
8o percent of the funds under the Rural Infrastructure Program qould be
prwided to the governor of each State via formula distribution. The go-vernors'

in consultation with a desígnated Federal agency and State directors of rural
developrnent, would have discretion to choose individual investments to
respond to the unique rural needs of their States.

zo þercent of the funds under the Rural lnfrastructure Programwouldbe
resên¡ed for rural performance grants within eligible asset classes and
according to specified criteria.
Funds máde available to States under this program would be distributed as

blockgrants to be used for infrastructure projects in rural areas with
populations of less than 5o,ooo.
Ã portion of the Rural Infrastructure Program funds would be set aside for
Tribal infrastructure and territorial infrastructure, with the remainder
available for States.

Distribution of Rural Infrastructure Program Formula Funds

6

a

a

a

a

a

a

sector productivity, modernize existing infrastructure systems, and prioritize
projects essential for efficiency and safety;
óxpand access to markets, customers, and employment opportunitieswith
pro¡ects that sustain and growbusiness revenue and personal income for rural
Americans;
enhance regional connectivity through public and private interregional and

interstate rural projects and initiatives that reduce costs for sustaining safe,

quality rural communities; and
increase rural economic growth and competitiveness by closing local
infrastructure gaps in development-ready areas to attract manufacturing and

economic growth to rural America.

Applicability

Eligible asset classes under the Rural Infrastructure Program would include:
o Transportation: roads, bridges, public transit, rail, airports, and maritime

and inland waten^tay Ports.
o Broadband (and other high-speed data and communication conduits).
o \Ã/ater andWaste: drinkingwater, wastewater, stormwater, land

revitalization and Brownfields.
o Power and Electric: governmental generation, transmission and

distribution facilities.
o Water Resources: flood riskmanagement, Water supply, andwatenuays.
This program onlywould apply to the specified asset classes and to other
infrastrutture assets directly attributable to, and essential to, the operation of
those assets.

D.

a

D-8



E.

F

G

a

a

a

The statute would create a ttrural formula,tt calculated based on rural lane miles
and rural population adjusted to reflect policy objectives. Each State would
receive no less than a specified statutory minimum and no more than a

specified statutory maiÍmum of the Rural Infrastructure Program formula
funds, automatically.

Applications and Evaluation Criteria for Rural Performance Grants

In addition to receiving formula funds under the Rural Infrastructure Program'
States also could apply for rural performance grants andwould be encouraged

to do so within twó yeãrs after eñactment. Rural performance grantsw_ouldbe

available for up to tén years after enactment or until funds were expended. In
order to qualify for rural performance grants, a State would be required.to:
o publish a cómprehenJive rural infrastructure investment plan (RIIP) within

1Bo days of reðeiving rural formula funds. The RIIPwould demonstrate how
the Státe,s intendedlural projects align with the evaluation criteria in the
infrastructure incentives program, including State, local and private sector
investment in eligible Projects.

o Demonstrate the quatity of any investments planned with rural
performance funds.

o bernonstrate performance in leveraging formula distributions with Federal

credit programs and rewarding rural interstate projects through the
infrastructure incentives program.

o Demonstrate the State's performance in utilization of Rural Infrastructure
program formula funds, èonsistent'with the RIIPbased on stated general
criteria.

For specific sectors, a State also would demonstrate other criteria the
administering agency determines appropriate consistent with this program,
including increased broadband availability and investment'

Tribal Infrastructure

The Rural Infrastructure Program also would ensure investment in Tribal
infrastructure by providing dedicated funding to the Secretary of
Transportation ior distriUution through the Tribal Transportation Program and

to the-Secretary of Interior for distribution through grants or awards to Tribes
determined by a process created in consultationwith Tribes.

Territorial Infrastructure

The Rural Infrastructure Program also would provide dedicated funding to
address infrastructure needs of U.S. Territories.

III. TRANSFORI\IATTVE PROJECTS PROGRA,M

7

D-9

t



The Transformative Projects Program, described below, would provide Federal
funding and technical assistance forbold, innovative, and transformative
infrastlucture projects that could dramaticalty improve infrastructure. Funding
under this program would be awarded on a competitive basis to proiects that are
likely to be commercially viable, but that possess unique technical and risk
characteristics that othen^rise deter private Sector investment. The
Transformative Projects Program would support projects that, with Federal
support, are capablé of generãting revenue, would provide net public benefits, and
would have a significant positive impact on the Natíon, a region, State, or
metropolitan area.

A. Establishment of Transformative Proiects Program

This provision would establish a program to advance transformative projects. The
purpòses of the Transformative Projects Program would include-- ; significantly improving performance, from the perspective of availability,

safety, reliability, frequency, and sen¡ice speed;
o substantially reducing user costs for services;
. introducing new types of senrices; and
. improving services based on other related metrics.

B

c.

a

a

Applicability

The Transformative Projects Programwould fundamentally transform the way
infrastructure is delivered or operated. Theywouldbe ambitious, exploratory,
and ground-breaking project ideas that have significantly more_ risk-than
stanãard infrastructure projects, but offer a much larger reward profile.
Infrastructure sectors covered by this program could include, but would not be

limited to, the transportation, cleanwater, drinkingwater, energy, commercial
space, and broadband sectors.

Funding

. gzo billion would be made available for the Transformative Projects Program.
e The Department of Commerce (DOC) would serve as the Chair for the purposes

of program administration and could request other relevant Federal agency
employees to sen¡e on a temporary assignment to assist in the administration
of this program.

o A percentage of the Transformative Projects Program funds would be set aside

foi temporáry administrative expenses necessary to administer the program'
including technical assistance.

FundingTracks

Funding under this programwould be available under three tracks, each of
which would be designed to support a distinct phase of the project life cycle:

8

D-10

D.

a



E.

F

G.

H

a

a

a

a

a

demonstration, project planning, and capital construction. Applicants could

apply for funding underall three tracks or under individual tracks.
fäoþtimize the ieturn on taxpayer investment, funding under this program
could be used for-
o up to 30 percent of etigible costs under the demonstration track;
o uþ to 50 percent of eligible costs under the project planning track; and

o uþ to 8o þercent of eligibte costs under the capital construction track.

TechnicalAssistance

An appticant could seektechnical assistance from the Federal Government in
addiii-on to the funding tracks, or could seek technical assistance alone under

the Transformative Projects Program.

Applications and Evaluation Críteria

The DOC would administer the Transformative Projects Program with an

interagency selection committee composed of representatives of relevant
federil agéncies. The Secretary of Commerce would serr¡e as the chair of
the committee. Given the rnultidisciplinary nature of the Transformative
projects program, interagency evaluation panels comprised of individuals
from the applicable Federal agencies would review and evaluate all
applications.

Partnership Agreement and Project Milestones

Applicants selected for award under the Transformative Projects Program
*ort¿ enter into a partnership agreementwith the Federal Government, which

would specify the t-erms and cbnditions of the award, major mílestones, and

other key metrics to assess performance'

Value Sharing Structure for Capital Construction Track

As a condition of receiving any financial assistance for a construction
project under the capital construction track, an applicantwould be

reqûirea to include in its partnership agreement avalue share agreernent
wiih the Federal Government. The terrns of the value share agreement
would varyby project based on the characteristics of the specific project
and its próieõtãA revenue profile. Each agreementwould provide the
terms fór the Federal Government to share in anyproject value.

Performance Monitoring and Oversight

Given the innovation and substantial Federal support projects would receive

under this program, the recipients would be required to publish performance

informatioir ufott achieving milestones and upon project completion. The lead

9

D-11

I

o



Federal agencies also would conduct regular audits to ensure that funds were
used for eligible costs.

IV. INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING PROGRAMS

The below infrastructure financing proposals would dedicate Szo billion of the overall
amount to advance major, complex infrastructure projects by increasing thecapacity-
of existing Federal creáit progrãms to fund investments and by broadening the use of
Private Activity Bonds (PABs).

Of the appropriated funds, Sr4 billion would be made available for the exp_ansion of
existing ðredit programs to address a broader range of infrastructure needs, giving
State aña tocat govérnments increased opportunity to finance large-scale
infrastructure frojects under terms that are more advantageous than in the financial
market. Ail fun¿s remaining in credit programs ten years after enactment would be

diverted to the Federal capital financing fund, to allow for efficient acquisition of real
property.

The budgetary cost for the expansion of PABs would be $6 billion. These provisions
would piovide tools and mechanisms for market participants to invest in public
infrastructure.

A. Expand Transportation Infrastructure Finance and InnovationAct (TIFIA)
Funding and Broaden Program Eligibility

o Additional budget authority would be made available to DOT for subsidy costs

under TIFIA. Sþecific fundi set aside from the appropriated subsidy would be

appropriated to DOT, notwithstanding Section zoor of the FixingAmericats
S-ui'face TransportationAct of 2ot5, andwould remain available until end of
Fiscal Year zoz8.

. Support airport and non-Federal watenÃ''ays anil ports fingrycíyø options. TIFIA
curientþ limits project eligibitity to those that are eligible for Fe¡leral

assistanôe through existing surface transportation programs (highway projects

and transit capitãl projectsJ. Port and airport infrastructure enhancement and

expansion projectJacross the United States do not have access to the credit
asiistance that is available via TIFIA for other types of transportation
infrastructure projects, making it more difficult for project sponsors to pursue

alternative project delivery for airports and to implement critical airport
infrastructure improvements. Amending the project eligibility in the TIFIA
statute to enable ilfnto offer loans and other credit assistance to non-Federal
watenffays and ports and airport projects (such as renovated or newpassenger
terminali, rumùays, and relãted facilities) would incentivize proiect delivery for
airports and porté andwould accelerate overall improvements in airport and

seaport infrastructure.

B. Expand Railroad Rehabilitation and Improvement Financing (RRIF) and
Broaden Program EligibílitY

10

D-12



a

a

a

a

Additional budget authority would be made available to DOT for subsidy costs
under RRIF. Specific funds set aside from the appropriated subsidy would be
appropriated io DOT, notwithstanding Section zootof. the FixingAmerica's
Surface Transportation Act of 2oL5,t and would remain available until end of
Fiscal Year zoz8.
Subsídize RRIF/or short-líne freíght and passenger ra il. The current RRIF law
does not provide specific subsidies or incentives for either short-line freight
rail or passenger rail projects. A subsidy is not currently provided to cover the
cost of the RRIF credit riskpremium, so the project sponsor is always required
to pay that amount at the time of the loan disbursement. The cost of the credit
risk premium is often cited as one of the reasons that project sponsors,
including those in the short-line freight rail and passenger rail sectors, are
reluctant to pursue RRIF financing. lmending the law (¿l u.s.c. 8zz) to
provide a subsidy to cover the RRIF credit risk premium for short-line freight
and passenger rail project sponsors would incentivize more project sponsors to
pursue RRIF credit assistance for projects. This, in turn, would leverage more
State and local funds for rail infrastructure development.

Er<pand lMater Infrastructure Finance and Innovatíon Act (\,[IIFIA) Funding
and Broaden Program Eligibitity

Additional budget authority woutd be made available to EPA for subsidy costs
under WIFIA, and the current tending limit of $t.z billion would be removed.
SpecÍfic funds set aside from the appropriated subsidy would be appropriated to
tñe EPA, notwithstanding Section 5oZ3ofthe\Mater Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act of zot1, and would remain available until end of Fiscal Year
2c28.
This proposal includes the following additional reforms toWIFIA:
o Fsqand EPA'sWIEIA authorízution to include non-Federal flood mítígation,

navígation andwater supply. Currently, \IüIFIA is authorized for almost all
types of water projects. tWhile EPAhas drought mitigation and stormwater
mitigation authorities, it lacks authority for flood mitigation, hurricane and
storm damage reduction, navigation, environmental restoration, and
restoration of aquatic ecosystems (which has principallybeenwithin
USACEIs jurisdiction). This creates an unnecessary and arbitrary carve-out
of integrated water projects to which EPA is unable to provide loans because
those types of projects are not authorized by EPA' only by USACE.

lmending the law (¡¡ U.S.C. 39oÐ to include flood mitigation, navigation
and water supply would allow EPA to service the full water cycle and provide
one streamlined and integrated lending process to project sponsors.

o Elímínate requirement undermElAlor borrowers to be communíty water
systems. Currently, a public authority that sells water directly to another
water provider is not a communitywater system and is not eligible for
ÏVIFIA funding unless specific statutory authority is provided. TWithout

explicit statutory eligibility, this type of public authority (e.g., a desalination

c.

11

D-13



plant) is unable to receive WIFIA funding. Removing the restriction that
iequires borrowers to be ((community water systemstt instead of just ((water

syslems', (:¡ U.S.C. 1goÐwould allow drinkingwater providers and other
pubtic authorities to participate in VI/IFIA and the Drinking \Jt/ater State
Revolving Fund (DWSRF) programs.

o Authorize Brownfíeld rehabílítatíon and cleanup of Superlund sítes under
WIEIA. Currently, only specific water sector projects are authorized under
WIFIA. Brownfield and Superfund programs do not have access to a Federal
lending program that requires large upfront funding and repayment based
on latei ãevelopment. Broadening eligibility under WIFIA (33 U.S.C. 39o5)
to include remediation of water quality contamination by non-liable parties
at Brownfield and Superfund sites would enable greater use of the program
to address water quality issues. A separate account would be appropriate for
individual eligibitities and ranking metrics because new revenues would be
more speculative and would lower the leveragability ratio for all \ÃIIFIA

loans.
o Reduce rating agenq, opínions trom two to one for øll borrowers. Current law

requires boriowers to provide two opinion letters from rating agencies for
\Ã¡IFIAloans. Opinion letters canbe expensive and time intensive for
borrowers to obtain. Reducing from the number of required rating agency
final opinions forborrowers (¡¡ U,S.C. 3907) to allowfor one opinion letter
instead of two would reduce \li¡IFIA borrowing costs for borrowers. At the
same time, retaining agency authority to request two letters from a

borrower under WIFIA would ensure continued protection of Federal
interests andwould minimize default riskwhen a projectwarrants a second
letter.

o Provide EPA authoríty to wsíve the springíng lien in certaín lending síúuctíons.
Currently, loans under \ii/IFIA must have a springing lien in place. This is a
problem when a project sponsor has outstanding senior debt obligations.
\Ã/ithout a waiver to the springing lien requirement, the sponsor has to use

more expensive debt, and\¡úIFlAhas less security in the special purpose
vehicle. Amending the law (¡¡ U.S.C. 39oS(b)) to allow for a waiver of the
\¡üIFIA springing lien in certain instances similar to the TIFIA statute (23

U.S.C. 603(b)) (i.e., where a project has an A category rating, where the
pledge is not dependent on project revenue, or where the borrower is a
public sectorborrower) would allowfor the most efficient capital structure
for agencies with existing senior debt.

o Increasethebaselevelof øilministrativelundíng authorizedta ensureEP[has
sulficíent fundíng to operate the WIFIA progrcm. The current authorized
administrative funds level for EPAwas determined when \lt/IFIAwas a pilot
program and may notbe sufficient to coverboth administrative costs and
the Íronting of underwriting costs, especially with our proposed expansion
of WIFIA. Authorizing an administrative set-aside (¡¡ U.S.C. ¡qrz(b)) to an
amount in line with similar programs would more accurately reflect the
costs required to administer the \Ã/IFIA program and would allow for hiring
appropriate staff for the oversight efforts associated with a larger portfolio.

L2

D-14



D.

E.

a

o Remove the restríctíon on the abílíty to reímburse costs incurred prior to loan
closíng underWlFlA, A recent amendment to WIFIA restricts the \ÃIIFIA

prográmts ability to reimburse costs incurred prior to loan closing. This
ãmãndment, pait of the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation
Act (TWIIN Act), attempts to ensure that costs incurred prior to loanclosing
maybe consÍdered eligible project costs. However, the WIIN amendment
only allows non-WIFiR funds to reimburse the costs. Revising the law (33

U.S:C. 39o8(b)) to provide that costs incurred prior to loan closing are

eligible costs that can be covered by the WIFIA loan would prevent the
boirower from having to raise sÍgnificant sums of money prior to loan
closing.

o Fsqanit theWlEl/.program to authoríze elígíbility for creilit assistønce for water
system acqußitíons anA restructurings. Currently, proiects only are allowed to
access WIFIA for acquisitions of water systems prÍor to substantial
completion, similar to TIFIA. This prevents TWIFIA funds from being used

for alquisition of water systems after they are completed, or substantially
completed. Expanding \ÃTIFIA authorization ( 33 U.S.C. 39oÐ to allow for
acquisitions and restructurings would enable WIFIA as a mechanism for
consolidation in the water industry.

o ExpandwlnA authorization to ínclude Federøl deauthoríz.ed wøter resource

projects, Currently, \MIFIA is authorized for non-Federal water resource

þro¡ects unless ttrey are deemed Federal projects. Once deemed Federal, a

þroject is no longei etigible forWIFIAborrowing, even if no Federal funding
is uied. This hinãers the ability to incentivize non-Federal involvement for
USACE projects. Authorizing USACE to defederalize water resource projects
upon transfer of title and ownership from the Federal Government to a
witting and capable non-Federal entitywould enable\lt/IFlAto be used for
these projects.

Expand Department of Agriculture Rural Utilities Sen¡ice (RUS) Lending
Programs Funding

Additional budget authority would be made available to the USDA for loan
subsidy costs uñder RUS lending programs. Specific funds set aside from the
appropriated subsidy would be made available to the USDA, notwithstanding
aþþticaUte sections of the Agriculture Act of 20:.4, and would remain available
until end of Fiscal Year zoz8.

Create Flexibility and Broaden Eligibility to Facilitate use of Private Activity
Bonds (PABs)

These provisions would create flexibitity and broaden eligibility to facilitate use

of PABI to leverage financing for public-purpose infrastructure projects. These

provisions also would allow for greater Federal leverage and therefore more
efficient infrastructure improvements.

t3

D-15

a



o

Requíre publíc attríbutes for publícínlrastructure proiects. In extendÍng tax
exemptions to private enterprises, tax benefits could go to purely private
enterþrises, which would nol be beneficial to the public or a sound use of public
tax benefits. Requiring public infrastructure projects to have the following
public attributes would ensure the public nature of eligible infrastructure-
; either State or local governmental ownership or private ownership under

arrangements in which rates charged for services or use of projects are

subjeõi to State or local governmeñtd regulatory or contractual control or
approval; and

o avãitaUitity of projects for general pubtic use (e.g., public roads) or provision
of services to the general public (e.g., water service).

For purposes of the gõvernmental ownership alternative under the public
attributes requirement, a new safe harbor would treat a project as

governmendlly ovrmed when a State or local governmental unit leases the
project to a private business provided that-
; ihe terrnof the private lease is no longer than 95 percent (rather than 8o

percent under the existing safe harbor) of the reasonably expected
economic life of the project;

o the private lessee irrevocably agrees not to take depreciation or investment
tax credit with respect to the project; and

o the private lessee ñas no option to purchase the project other than at fair
marketvalue.

Broaden elígíbilíty of PABs. Current law includes a limited list of exempt 
.

facilities efgible to be financed with tax-exempt bonds. Additionally, different
categories oi exempt facilities are subject to varying requirements, which
restiicts the usefulness of PABs. This timits the potential financing tools that
can be used to facilitate performance-based infrastructure, both for a wide
variety of transportation projects and other public-purpose infrastructure
projeits. The revised parãmèters would allowlonger-term private leas_es and
õoncession arrangements for projects financed with PABs. Amending the law
(26 U.S.C. ttrz) toãIowbroader categories of public-purpose infrastructure,
including reconstruction projects, to take advantage of PABs would encourage
more priiate investment in projects thatbenefit the public. Allowing-privately
finanðed infrastructure projects to benefit from similar tax-exempt financing
as publicly financed infrastructure projects would increase infrastructure
investment. This proposal would expand and modify eligible exempt facilities
for PABs to include the following public infrastructure projects.
o Existing

¡
¡

categories:
airports (existing category) ;

doõks, wharves, maritime and inland waterway ports, and
watenuay infrastructure, including dredging and navigation
improvements (expanded existing category) ;

mass commuting facilities (existing category) ;

facilities for the furnishing of water (existing category);
sewage facilities (existing category) ;

solid waste disposal facilities (existing category);

t4

D-16



a

o Modified categories:
. qualified surface transportation facilities, including roads, 

-
bridges, tunnels, passenger railroads, surface freight transfer
facilities, and other facilities that are eligible for Federal credit
assistance under title z3 or t+g (i.e., qualified projects under TIFIA)
(existing category with modified description);

. hydroelectric power generating facilities (expanded existing
categorybeyond environmental enhancements to include new
construction);

. flood control and stormwater facilities (newcategory);

. rural broadband sen¡ice facilities (newcategory);and

. environmental remediation costs on Brovrmfield and Superfund
sites (new category).

Eliminate the Alternative Mínímum Tax preference on PABs, One reason why
PABs have been underutilized is due to the punitive market interest rate effect
of the Alternative Minimurn Tax (AMT) tax preference on PABs, which adds an

estimated 3c.-4obasis points (o.3o-o.4o percent) yield premium to the
borrowing rate for PABs compared to traditional governmental municipal
bonds duðto the more limited demand. This creates inconsistent premiums for
service providers and disincentives forborrowers to use this financing
mechanisms. Eliminating the AMT preference on PABs would lower borrowing
costs and increase the utilization of PABs.

Remove State volume caps and transportstíon volume caps on PABs for publíc
purpose infrastructure projects ønd expand eligíbílíty to ports and airports. Clean

waier anôdrinking water projects currently are subject to State volume caps for
PABs, based on poþulation. In recent years, as little as 1-1.5 percent of all
exempt bonds were issued to water and wastewater projects. Exceptions from
the volume cap currently are provided for other governmentally ovr¡ned

facilities such as aírports, ports, housing, high-speed intercity rail, and solid
waste disposal sites. Additionally, many performance-based infrastructure
projects fõr transportation facilities described inz6 U.S.C. 1/+2(m) have taken
ãdvantage of PABs, which allow private sector developers to benefit from
similar tãx-exempt subsidies provided to public sectorborrowers. The law
establishes a nationwide volume cap of $r¡ billion for these projects, to be
allocated by the Secretary of Transportation.
o These câps create uncertainty as to the availability of PABs in the future, as

projects require long lead times for development, and no additional PABs

may be issued for this type of facility once the cap has been exhausted.
o Amending 26 U.S.C. t46 to remove the population-based volume cap

appticable to PABs for public purpose infrastructure projects of the tVpes

cõvered by this proposal that have the requisite public attributes would level
the playing field between public and private service providers.

o Amending26 U.S.C. r4z(m) to eliminate the nationwide capwould provide
certaintyihat PABs would be available to a project sponsor as it developed
and evaluated a project's financial strategy. This provisionwould apply
only if a State volurne cap did not already apply.

L5

D-17



t Províde change-of-use provísions to presewe the tax-exempt status of
governmentdAonds. Currently, when a public project is purchasu{ by a private
éervice provider, the tax-exempt status is eliminated when the private use

limits on government bonds are exceeded. This creates a structural barrier to
the privatã sector acquiring projects because that cost premium must be funded
at cl,osing. Adding change-of-use curative provisions (26 U.S.C. r5o) to protect
the tax-õxempt status oÍ governmental bonds in transactions involving private
business use óf projects financed with governmental bonds that othenrise
would violate pr-ivale business use limits on those bonds (e.g., private leases)

would eliminate this private sector barrier. One curative action would allow
alternative business use of the public project in a manner thatwould qualify as

an infrastructure project eligible for a new issuance of PABs under the proposal.

Another curative ãction would allow recycling of an amount equal to the total
present value of a private lease of any project financed with governmental
bonds into expendltures for governmental use within two years of the lease.

. Províde chanfe-of-use cures lor private leasing of projecæ to ensure presentation

o! tax exempfron ior ínfrastructure projects. Currently, Treasury regulations allow
cãrtain chahge-ôf-use remedial actions to preserve the tax exemption for the
tax-exempt governmental bonds upon a violation of private business use

restrictions. Existing remedial actions include: defeasance of the outstanding
bonds, ('recycling" amounts received to qualífying governm€lt uses within two
years, or altêrnative use of a project in a way that would qualify for tax-exempt
6onds (including PABs) if retested at the time of use. These change-of-use
cures do not include private leasing as a remedial action that would preserve

tax-exempt status of the bonds. Therefore, the private sector market
participants are not able to access the tax-exempt debt market for-public
infrastructure. Providing for tailored change-of-use remedial actions that
preserve the tax exemption status upon private leasing of projects subject to_

õutstandit g tax-exempt governmentbonds or allowing((recycling" the total
present value of the private lease payments into public and governmental uses

inrittrin two years would ensure the assets retain the tax-exempt status of the
associated debt obligations.

V. PUBTIC I,ANDS INFRASTRUCTURE

Thebelowpublic lands provisions would enable the additional revenues generated

frorn etrerp¡y development on public lands to pay for capital and maintenance needs of
pubtic landi infrastiucture. The Department of the Interior (DOI) manages an

ãxtensive infrastructure asset portfolio. The infrastructure managed by the DOI

includes approximately loo,ooo miles of roads as well as dams, bridges, and irrigation
and poweilnfrastructure. Taking care of this significant asset portfolio is apcrsistent
chalienge. The National Park Service (NPS) has a deferred maintenancebacklog_of
grr.¡ biÍion, half of which is for roads, bridges and tunnels, and the U,S. Fish and
Witãnfe Service also has a deferred maintenance backlog of $L2 billion. To address

this infrastructure need, this provision would establish a new infrastructure fund in
the U.S. Treasury entitled the Interior Maintenance Fund (Fund) comprised of

16

D-18



additional revenues from the amounts due and payable to the United States from
mineral and energy development on Federal lands and waters.

A. Establísh Interior Maintenance Fund

r Currently, receipts generated from mineral and energy developpent on public
lands aré not available for capital and maintenance of public infrastructure.

. This limitation perpetuates the deferred maintenance backlog for public lands
infrastructure.

r Allowing half of additional receipts generated by expan{ed Federal energy
development to be deposited into the Fund would help the DOI address this
backloþ. Such receiptswould be deposited into the Fund until the cumulative
amount deposited had reached $18 billion.

r The receipis deposited in the Fund would be made available to the Secretary of
the Interior, wiÍhout fiscal year limitation, to address the deferred maintenance
and capital needs for infrastructure in national parks and wildlife refuges.

. The OOI would use its capital asset management systems to prioritize projects,
' monitor implementation, and measure results'

VI. DISPOSITION OF FEDERAL REAL PROPERIY

The below provisions would establish authority to allow for the disposal of Federal

assets to improve the allocation of economic resources in infrastructure investment.

A. CodifyAccelerated Depreciation for the Disposition of Non-FederalAssets
with a Federal Interest Due to Grant Receipt

. Currently, it is unclear which disposition actions utilities and municipalities-
may have undertaken with assets funded by Federal construction grants and

earmarks. Prior to Executive Order p8o3-Infrastructure Privatization (tggz)

-the federally funded share of any disposed asset was to be returned to
Treasury.

. This lack of clarity results in project sponsors not understanding their
responsibilities añd benefits when disposing of federally funded assets and

some sponsors choosing not to dispose of assets due to incorrect assumptions.
o Codifying Executive Order tzSo3would allow accelerated depreciation for the

dispositión of non-Federal assets and application of those rules to any
disþositions undertaken since issuance of the Executive Order. Directing the
agencies to provide guidance on implementation alsowould provide clarityfor
utilities and municipalities when divesting or privatizing assets'

B. Streamline and Improve the Federal Real Property Disposal Process

. The current statutory disposal process for real property is governed primarily
bytitle 4o of.the United States Code, with many requirem-ents that are
burdensome and delay sale or disposal of federally owned assets.

17

D-19



I The Federal real property civilian inventory is comprised of facilities with an

average age of 47 years, many of which are inefficient and outdated. Today,

agencies iequire more fl exible work environments; however, the Government
lJrgely is unable to tap into the value of the portfolio due to the current
statutory limitations.
Amending the statute to allow agencies to move property to market more
quicldy añd retain the gross proceeds of sale would allow the Government to be

more nimble and lower costs.
o Allow the Governmentto take cssets no longer neededby øny Federal agency

dírectly to market, Currently, title 40 of the United States Code requires
agencíes to screen a potential disposal for at least rz public benefit
conveyance requirements. State and local governments and certain non-
profitinstitutiõns may acquire surplus real property at discounts of up to
ioo percent for various types of public use. This process can take years to
cornplete. Allowing the Government to take assets no longer needed by any

Federal agency directly to marketwould allow any interested party to
purchaseãssels at fair market value without any preferences or right of first
refusal.

o Retaín proceeds for reinvestment in agenr,y real property requirements.- Under
current law, móst agencies lack retention of proceeds authority, and nearly
all agencies with retlntion authority require an appropriation to access the
fundi. This creates a disincentive to agency disposition action and prevents
reinvestment in rnission-critical Federal facilities. Rmending the statute to
allow retention of proceeds and expenditure without future authorization or
appropriation would allow agencies to take immediate action reinvesting in
ciiiicát real property assets, ieconfiguring space to improve utilizatÍon and

lower costs, and disposing of additional unneeded assets. This provision
also would allow proceeds to be retained without fiscal year limitation.

o Expand the atlowable uses of the General Sewices Administration (GSA)

Disposal Fund,. Current authoritylimits GsAassistance to other Federal

agéncies for those activities that occur after a report of excess (which
highlights unneeded real property). GSA does not have authgrity lo_help
agãncies on activities that prepare for the report of excess, which inhibits
the agencies' ability to dispose of assets. Additionally, agencies do not
always complete ttrese activities because agencies must fund them from
their limited resources. Expanding authority to allow GSA to support
activities that occur prior to the report of excess, including identifying,
preparing, and divesting properties prior to the report of excess, would
reduce the Federal footprint and allow more efficient asset management.
Under this provision, the same account properties would remain, allowing
GSA to recover costs from the gross proceeds prior to agency retention.

o Elíminate the requírement, to transÍer funds above the ídentified threshold to the

Land andWster ConsentationFund, Current non-GSA property disposal
under title 40 requires a transfer to the Land andrWater Consen¡ation Fund.

Eliminating the requirement to transfer funds above the identified

a

18

D-20



c.

threshold to the Land and \jtlater Conservation Fund would maximize the
funds available to support disposition actions.

Authorize Federal Divestiture of Assets thatÏtlould Be BetterManagedby
State, Local, or Private Entities

The Federal Government owns and operates certain infrastructure thatwould
be more appropriately owned by State, local, or private entitíes.
For examplè, ttre vast majority of the Nation's electricity needs are met through
for-profit investor-owned utilities. Federal ovrmership of these assets can

result in sub-optimal investment decisions and create risk for taxpayers.
providing Fedeial agencies authority to divest of Federal assets where the
agenciesian demonstrate an increase in value from the sale would optimize the
tãxpayer value for Federal assets. To utilize this authority, an agencywould
delinéate howproceeds would be spent and identify appropriate conditions
under which sáles would be made. An agency also would conduct a study or
analysis to show the increase in value from divestiture. Examples of assets for
potential dÍvestiture include-
o Southwestern Power Administration's transmission assets;

o rüVesternArea PowerAdministrationts transmission assets;

o Ronald ReaganWashington National and Dulles InternationalAirports;
o George\Ã/ashington and Baltimore\[/ashington Parlnnrays;

o Tennessee Valley Authority transmission assets;
o Bonneville PowerAdministration's transmission assets; and
o Washington Aqueduct.

a

a

a

VII. FEDERAL CAPITAL FINANCING FUND

Before an agency can purchase real property, it must receive an appropriation for the
full purchase price. The full appropriation scores in that year again-st the-

discietionaryìaps and against the maximum funding (the 302(b) allocation) that the
Appropriatións Subcommittee can provide. This is problematic for large-dollar,
irreguiar acquisitions because they must compete with agency oper¡ting and
proframmatlc expenses for the ]imited resources available. The below provisions
would create a funding mechanism to address this issue.

A. Create Federal Capital Financing Fund

o Too often, tight spending limits mean that purchases are not funded, and
agencies rnuit resort to signing long-term leases. These are always more
eipensive to taxpayers ovèr the long run because Treasury can always borrow
atihe lowest rate. Because rent is obligated one year at a time, the lease
payments can fit within an agency's budgetwíthout disrupting other needs. In
contrast, private firms and State and local governments budget for purchases of
real property in separate capital budgets so that real property purchases do not
comþetewiih annual operaiing needs. Their system allows proposed purchases

19

D-21



to be compared to each other and ranked such that the oneswith the highest
return on investment are funded within the total capital budget.

This provision would create a funding mecha¡ism t!1t is similar to a capital

budgät bur operares within the traditional rules used for the Federal bu4get by

estailishingã mandatory revolving fund to finance purchases of federally
owned civiñan real propérg. Of ttre totat appropriation, $ro billion would be

made available to cãpitãhze the revolving fund. Upon approval in an

Appropriations Act, ihe revolving fund would transfer money to.agencies to

niränc'e large-dollar real property purchases. Purchasing agencies would then

be requireðto t.p"y the fünd in r5ãqual annual amounts using discretionary
appropriations.
esã rËsutt, purchases of real property assets would-no-longer compete with
annual opéiating and programmätic expenses for the limited funding available

under tignt aiscr-etionäryõaps. Instead, agencies would pay forreal prgpgrtV

over tin;e as the property were utilized. Tñe repayments would be made from
future appropriaiions, which would provide an incentive to select proiects with
the highlit rãt.trtt on investment, in¿luding future cost avoidance. The

,.p.fr.trts also would replenish the revolving fund so that real property could

continuallybe replaced as needed.

pART 2 -ADDITIONAL PROvISIONS FOR INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROTü-EMENTS

I. TRANSPORTATION

These provisions would incentivize and remove barriers to the development and

i*pio.r.-ent of transportation infrastructure in our Nation. These provisions would

.tt.outug. and incentivize alternative project delivery, inclucling State, tribal,local
and privãte investment, in transportation; streamline Federal pr-ocedures for
delivering transportation projects; and decrease barriers and reduce unnecessary

reãerat oiersigËt to facitiiate timely detivery of projects. This renewed investment in
transportationlwould strengthen oúr economy, enhance our competitiveness inworld
tradel create jobs and increãse wages for our workers, and reduce the costs of goods

and services for our families.

A. Financing

1. Provide States Tolling Flexibílífy

. províde States flexibítíty to toll on lnterstates and reínvest toll revenues in

ínfrastructure. Curren[$, Federal law allows tolling Interstates in limited
circumstances. Tollingrestrictions foreclose what might otherwise serve as a

major source of revenue for infrastructure investment. Providing States

noiiUitity to toll existing Interstates would generate additional revenues for
States to invest in surfaõe transportation infrastructure. Current requirements

that States must reinvest toll revenues in infrastructure would continue to

apply.

20

D-22

a

a



2.

3

a

a

a

a

a

Reconcile the gr andf/ ather ed r estrictíons on use of highw ay toll r evenuel with
currentlaw. foll facitities that received Federal approval under the Surface

Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of r9g7 (STURRA) may

use toll revenues only for the construction, reconstruction, operation,and debt

service of the toll facility itself. Current law, however, allows other toll
facilities to use toll revenues (in addition to the costs noted above) on other

title 23 projects. The tighter restrictions, specific to the STURRA toll facilities,
pre.reñf some States frõm devoting existing toll revenues to other critical
ñign 

"y 
projects. Adjusting the SiUnnR'\rse of revenues' p_lovisíons to align

wiîn cuíränftotl authãrities-would free these resources and allow other critical
highway projects to go for"vr¡ard.

Extend Streamlined Passenger Facility Charge Process from Non-hub Aírports to

Smoll Hub Airports

Current law (4g U.S.C. 4ott7) outlines the application process to impose-
passenger faòiiity charges (PFCs), as well as the approval process and pilot

þrogr"ñ. for alteinative procedures. Small, medium, and large-hub airports
in"ít provide extensive åocumentation in PFC applicalions to demonstrate the

eligibility, justification, objective, project costs, significant contribution (large

anã mediuíntruUs) and ottrer requirements. The streamlined non-hub process

iàquires reduced information, piimarily relating to project descriptions and

costs.
Current law creates an unreasonable burden on small hub airports filing PFC

applications.
f,Ttending the streamlined PFC process to small hub airp_orts would a.ltgw these

airports tõ more readity fund neided development as well as reduce delays and

unnecessary requirements in the PFC process.

Provide States FlexibíIity to Commercialize lnterstate Rest Areas

Federal lawprohibits most commercial activitywithin the Interstate right-of-
way, including at Interstate rest areas.

Thís timits inlrastructure investment opportunities and the ability to generate

revenues to operate and maintain Interstates.
Amending the law (z¡ U.S.C. nr) to provide States flexibility to commercialize

Interstate rest areaà,ãnd requiring the revenues to be reinvested in the corridor
in which they are generated, would support new infrastructure investment.
States would not bîe permitted to charge fees for essential sen¡ices such as water

or access to restrooms.

provideNew Flexibility for TransportationProiectswithDe Minimis FederalShare

Under current law, even when a State or private sector entity provides the
majority of the funaing for a project' it stiil mus-! seek review and approval

unáer tñe hws of any Federal agency with jurisdiction.

a

a

2L

4.

a

D-23



a The additional procedures, costs and time delays associated with Federal
requirements discourage infrastructure investments by State and local entities
anã private investors. Federal requirements also contribute to unnecessary
delays in delivering needed projects even when the Federal interest is small.
Amending titles z3 and 49 to provide targeted flexibility pertaining to th.g

application of Federal requirements where the project funding is primarily
n-on-fe¿eral and the Federal share is minimalwould increase investments in
infrastructure and reduce project delays and costs.

Expand Qualífied Credit Assistance and Other Capabilities for State Infrastructure
Banls

¡ State infrastructure banks (SIBs) currently are underutilized.
. This underutilization can Ínhibit State and local governments frombest

directing Federal funds to infrastructure projects.
. providing incentives to use SIBs, such as reducing federalization requirements

on funds lent to SIBs that are deployed locally, could encourage the use of SIBs.

Expanding the legal capabilities of SIBs, in addition to direct lppropriations,
woutd allow SIBs to take responsibility for infrastructure funding in an

effective manner that may not be possible for the Federal Government,
particularly for rural projects or projects of smaller total cost.

Highways

Authorize Federal Land Management Agencíes to Use Contracting Methods
Avaiiable to States

Current law authorizes State departments of transportation (State DOTs) and
local governments to use a range of commonly used project delivery methods
(e.g., electronic bidding, bridge bundling, project bundling, c,onstruction
maltâger-general contiactor), but does not authorize Federal Land
iVtana[ement Agencies (FLIVIAs) to use these same methods-even when the
FLMAs are delivering projects with title 23 funds.
This constrains FLMAst procurement options, which in some cases increases

the cost or timeline for delivering Federal lands highway projects.
Expanding to FLMAS atl title 23 contracting rnethods (for projects funded with
tit[e z3 fuñ¿s) would enable more efficient delivery of these projects'

Roise the CostThresholdfor Maior ProiectRequírements to St Billion

Current law (23 U.S.C. roó(h)) defines a major project as any project that
receives Federal financial assistance and has an estimated total project cost of
S5oo million or more. Financial plans and project management plans must be

submitted to the Federal HighwayAdministration (FH\ÃrA) for all major
projects.

a

5.

B.

7.

a

a

2

22

a

D-24



o For projects that are routinely managed by FHWA and State DOTs, thes_e

reqúirements do very little to ensure the success of the project. Instead,_the

re{uirements create an administrative burden that wastes resources and delays

project delivery.
Àmênding the iaw to raise the threshold for major projects from $5oo million
to gr bilhõn would remove unnecessary oversight requirements from smaller,
less complex projects that are routinely managed by FHWA and State DOTs.

Authorize Utttífy Relocation to Take Place Príor to NEPA Completton

Current law requires any utility relocation to occur after completion of the
NEpA review piocess. Utility relocation is similarly restricted for transit
projects.
inoit projects with pre-construction activities include utility relocation,-wttich
typicällyis a long lead item that cannot start until NEPA is completed. This
contributes to construction delays and cost escalation.
Amending the law to allow utility relocation to take place prior to_NEPA

completiõn would streamline the buÍlding process, reduce overall construction
time, and lower costs. Under this proposal, appropriate limitations would be

included to ensure the integrity of the NEPA process' such as making the
reimbursement of costs incurred dependent on the selection of an alternative
that requires the utilities to be relocated. Relocation costs only would be

reimbursed if a projectwere completed.

Authorize Repayment ol Federal Investment to Eliminate Perpetuøl Applícation of
Federal Requirements

Projects that use of Federal-aid highway funds for the construction of a
higÍrway or bridge are constrained by Federal re,quirements. Many of these

re[uirements continue to apply to the facility after the project is
complete. These requirements include restrictions on tolling; requirements
pertåining to the locãtion of a commercial plazawithin the right-of-way of an

interstate-highway; restríctions on Interstate access; and compliance with size

and weight s[andards, highway beautification standards, and high occupancy
vehicle lane operation standards.
These perpetual Federal requirements can inhibit a Statets abilityto obtain
value fi.om the facility and have flexibilitywith respect to its future operations
and maintenance. In the past, whenever a State wished to be released from the
application of these requirements, Congress enacted a specific statutory
p?õvision that permitted the State to refund the Federal investment in that
iacitity. Upon iepayment of Federal funds, the State was relieved of compliance
with the fódera} requirements that attached to the facility.
Amending the law to provide general authority for States to repay the Federal
investmeñr in a facility woulðprovide States with the ability to obtain value
from their assets and ilexibility in how their highways and bridges are operated
and maintained. The repayment of Federal funds invested in a facilitywould be

23

D-25

3

f+.

a

a

a

o

a



the actual amount of Federal investment, unadjusted for inflation. Anyfunds
repaid in this manner would be credited to the Highway Trust Fund, and the 

_

Stäte would receive an equal amount of funding (àvailable for obligation) under

the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program.

j. provide Small Highway Projects with Relief for the Same Fed,eral Requírements cs

MajorProiecs

r Currently, some smaller scale projects (e.g., those-typically eligible for
transporiätion alternatives) tin¿ó¿ undei the Surface Transportation Block

Granf program must be treated as major highway projects,_eve,n !f _theV 
are not

located wi-thin the right-of-way of a Federal-aid highway (zl u.s.c. r¡l).
r This means that smalller, simplêr projects that could be implemented and open

to the public quickly often are deláyeá by tengtfry procurement procedures and

Federal requirìments that are more appropriate for larger, more complex
projects.

. Amênding this requirement for smaller projects that predominantly are outside

the Federãl -aid hiþhway right - of -way would eliminate Federal procurement

requirements for tiese infrastructure projects. This would allow States to use

their own procedures to implement these projects.

C. Transit

1. RequireValue Capture Financing as Condítion af Receípt olTransitEunds for Capítal

Investment Grants

¡ Federal programs for transit capital projects do not requi,re value capture

financing. õurt.ttt law includei a broad definition of ttvaluecapturett to mean
,,recoveiíng the increased property value to prop€{ty located near publi

transportat-ion resulting frõm investmentsin public transportation." (49 U.S.C.

ßo2(zÐ). Value capturé can include joint development, land value taxes, tax

increment financinþ, special assessment districts, transportatÍon utility fees,

development impacl.feäs, negotiated extractionS, transit oriented
development, and air rights.

. Failure of transit authoiities to use value capture financing reduces funds

available for transit capital projects.
o Amending the law to iñclude vãlue capture financing as a Prereqüisite for

Section lãog Capital Investment (Discretionary) Grants, excluding Small Starts

projectslwould increase resources available for transit capitalprojects and

äecrease dependence on Federal grant programs for continued development.

z. Eliminategonsrroints on Use of Public-Privste and Public-Public Partnerships in

Transit

24

D-26



o Current law (49 U.S.C. Chapter 53 and its implementing regulatíons) impedes

the greater use of public-private and public-public partnerships in transit
capital projects.

. These cônstraints reduce the funds available for transit capital projects.
o Eliminating these constraints would encourage greater investment in transit

capital projects.

3. Codify ExpeditedProjectDelivery for CapitallnvestmentGrantsPilotProgram

. Currently, the Federal TransitAdministrationts (FTA) frameworkfor public-
private pártnerships is a non-codified pilot program limiting the number of

þrojects eligible to participate and capping the Federal share at 25 percent
(section ¡oóf (b) of the FAST Act). The program also requires participants to
utilize existing union staff.

. The current pilot program is structured to offer partícipants a more
streamlinedãpprõacñ to the full-funding grant agreement approval process

and broader au[hority to proceed with construction. These attributes are

appealing to potential concessionaires and State and local jurisdictíons.
H-orueverlthe constraints placed on the program undermine the goals of
expediting project delivery.

. Coãifying the pilot program, ensuring it is allowable for all Capital Investment
CraniprõjectJand ñot just on a pilotbasis, and increasing_the Federal share to

5o perèent would attract increased private investment and further expedite
project delivery.

D. Rail

1. Apply FA,ST Actstreamliníng Provísions to Roíl Proiects and Shorten the Statute of
Limitations

The FAST Act directed DOT to review all previously enacted highway permit
reforms and project streamlining procedures under title 23 and to apply them
to railroad projects under jurisdictíon of the oOT.
This createã a discrepancy between a two-year statute of limitations for rail
projects and a llo-day statute of limitations for transit and highway projects.
'In 

áddition, this creatêd a discrepancy between railroad proiects administered
by DOT and many large railroad
piojects adminisiered Uy agencies other than the DOT (e.g., USACE and the
Ûniled States Coast Cuard)-which are not subject to the FAST Act streamlining
provisions under title 23.
Amending the law to clarify that all rail projects, regardless of lead Federal

agency, cãn take advantage of FAST Act streamlining provisíons would help

elpedite rail project delivery. Amendíng the statute of limitations from two
yeãrs to 15o days for rail projects would make the time frame fgl tegal
óha[enges on iail projects consistent with those for transit and highway
projects.

a

a

25

D-27

a



E.

1.

Airports

Create MoreEfficíentFederolAviation Adminisffation Oversight of Non-sviatíon
D ev elo p m e nt Activ ití e s at Air p o rts

r The FederalAviationAdministration (FAA) has conducted long-standing
reviews of projects other than critical airfield infrastructure (including
terminals, ãccess and ser,¡ice roads, hangars, and other types of facilities)
(based on statutory requirements set forth in t+9 U.S.C. Chapter 4Tt,patticularly
Sections t+7to2-47tr3 and Section 5oror).

r This burdens FAA to review projects other than critical airfield infrastructure,
and as a result, slows project delivery.

o Amending the law (49U.S.C. 47toÐ to limit FAA approval and ov-ersight of non-
aviation d-evelopment activities at airports would create more efficient FAA

oversight of critical airfield infrastructure.

Reduce Barriers to Alternative Proiect Delivery for Airports

. Current law (4g U.S.C. t+7ßÐ provides that, under an existing pilot program, 65

percent of carriers at an airport must approve privatization to privatize an

äirport. The current pilot program is limited to only to airports, including only
one largehub airport.

. The pilót program allows individual air carriers to overturn an airportts desire
to privatize, blocking private investments in airports.

r Removing the limitation on the number and size of airports that can participate
in the pilõt program and decreasing the percentage of airlines needed to
approve privatiãation from 65 percent to a majority vote would reduce barriers
tõ ãtternãdve project delivery for airports and provide more flexibility for
carriers to approve privatization.

Ctarify Authority for lncentive Payments under the AírportlmprovementProgram

r Currently, the Airport Improvement Program (AIP) does not allowincentive
payments for accelerated construction.

. ttris adds time to AIP projects, since they cannot pay for accelerated
completion.

. clarifying the authority under the AIP (¿q u.s.c. 47tro) to permit additional
finanèial incentives, along with profit margin, for contractors would increase

work efficíency and reduce project completion times.

Move Oversightof NP Funds to Post-expenditureAudits

. Current law (4g U.S.C. I+7toL- 47ro6) requires FAA to review and approve grant
applications under the AIP.

2.

3

26

4.

D-28



This oversight sometimes causes delays in sponsors receiving funds assigned

to their airports.
Revising the statutory requirements for AIP to shift FAA oversight from grant

applicat"ions to post-ãxpenditure audits would expedite conveyance of funds to

sponsors.

N. ïYATER INFRASTRUCTURE

The belowwater infrastructure provisions would incentivize the development of
effective and efficient water infrastructure, outcome-based procurement, and full
life-cycle asset management to improvewater infrastructure. These changesyqqld
proviáe greater flexiblities for USACE and its non-Federal partners to use available

Federal and non-Federal funds, generate new revenues and retain certain revenues in
ruppott of project requirementi,-make greater use of contributed funds, and allow for
innovative use of contracting tools.

Financing

Authorize Clean Water Revolving Fund for Privately Owned Public- purpose

TreatmentWorl<s

Current law allows the D\MSRF to lend to private owners- However, the Clean

Water State Revolving Fund (C\[/SRF) is generally restricted to publiclyovr.rned

wastewater projects.
privately owneá public-purpose treatmentworks are not eligible for C\MSRF

funding at the Federal level.
Authorizing the C\¡ISRF (33 U.S.C. 1383) to provide financial assistance to
publicly or¡ñred and privaleþ owned public-purpose treatment works would
make more funding available for treatmentworks.

Provide New Ftexibilíty for Water Proiects wíth De Minímís Federal Share

Under current law, even when a State or private sector entity provides the
majority of the funding for a project, a project must still obtain review and

approvåt under the taws of any Federal agenc¡¡ with jurisdiction.
fne additional procedures, colts, and time delays associated with Federal

requirements discourage infrastructure investrnents by State and-local entities
anä private investors. ihese legal restrictions also contribute to delays in
delivering needed projects evenwhen the Federal interest is small.

AmendinÉ the lawio provide targeted flexibllity pertaining to the application of
Federal requirementiwhere theþroject funding is primarily non-Federal and

the Federai share is minimalwould increase investments inwater
infrastructure and reduce project delays and costs.

t

a

A.

1.

a

I

a

2

a

o

a

27

D-29

B. \lllater Programs



I

2.

c.

a

o

a

a

a

t

Provide EPA Infrastructure Programs wíth " SEP - t5" Authorízíng Language

Currently, the EPAAdministrator has limited authority to test and experiment
within its programs.
This limits thõ EPA's ability to explore new approaches that might increase
project management flexibility, increase innovation, improve efficiencyr assure

timely project implementation, and develop new revenue streams.

nroviãíng ltre npÃnaministrator authority (similar to 23 U.S.C . 5o2) to
encourage tests and experimentation in thewater projects development
process io permit the Administrator to explore alternative and innovative
ãpproacheõ to the overall project development process and to develop more

eifictive approaches to pròject planning, project development, finance, design,
construction, maintenance, and operations.

Apply ldentical Regulatory Requirements to Privately Owned Public- purpose

TreatmentWorlc and Publicly Owned Trestment Worlcs

Currently, different requirements may apply to privately versus publicly owned
treatmentworks.
This creates an unnecessary rnarket distortion that puts private treatment
works under rnore stringent and costly regulatory requirements than public
sector equivalents, despite both serving public communíties.
Modifying the CleanWaterAct to ensure identical requirernents apply_to

privatãty ówned public -purpose treatment works and privately ovrnred. 
-

ireatmentworks-would þrovide a level playing fietd for all service providers,

InlandÏtlatenyays

Expand Authority Related to Non-Federal Constructíon and Operation of Inland
Waterways Projects

Currently, Congress individually authorizes inlandwaterways proiects to be

construcied, maintained and operated by USACE. Only USACE is authorized to
use funds appropriated from the Inland \trater-ways Trust Fund (IWTF) or from
the Generaf fund (GF) of the Treasury for construction, repair, rehabilitation,
maintenance, and operation of inland waten /ays projects. Fuel taxes paid by
commercial users of the inland waterway system contribute to the IWIF' which
pays for 5o percent of construction and maþr rehabilitation on the system,

i,viitr ttre rest coming from the General Fund;once completed, project
maintenance and operations are entirely paid for from the General Fund.

This means that onty USACE can perform construction and operations, even if
there is a less costly alternative. In addition, this constrains projects to USACE

operational capacity limits, which has resulted in a backlog of project_s and
dãferred mainlenance, lower operational effectiveness, and increased down
time of watenuay assets.

a

1.

28

D-30



D.

1.

a

a

Authorizing the Secretary of the Army to execute agreements with non-Federal
public or pr-ivate entities to use IW1IF and GF funds for construction, repair,

iehabititation, rnaintenance and operation activities, and the ability to e¡ter
into third party contracts, concessions, and operating agreements, would
enable greatefinnovation and efficiency by allowing non-Federal entities a

greater role in performingwork on these projects.

lltlater Infrastructure Resources

Authorize User Fee Collectíon and Retention under the WRRDA Section 50ú Pilot
program and RecreationUser Fees for Operation and Maíntenance oJ Public

Facilities

Currently, neither the Federal Governrnent nor non-Federal service providers
have autÍr'órity to impose user fees under thewater infrastructurepilot program

authorized under Section 5ottrofthe Water Resources Reform and
DevelopmentAct (WRRDA) of.Zott*. Trlti/hen user fees are permitted, they are

sent to Treasury once collected, not returned to operate and maintain the site

from which they were generated.
Without a dedicated revenue source, innovative partnerships are nearly
impossible to execute because third parties woutd be lubi_e_ct 

to appropriation
risi<. this risk makes transactions uneconomical and highly unlikely to close.

Aging infrastructure at USACE-managed recreation sites is in need of
signilficant repair and rehabilitation, and annuat USACE appropriations have

no"tbeen sufficient to address long-term operation and maintenance needs and

safety concerns.
Authórizing the Federal Government and third pa$y service providers to.

impose anðretain fees under\¡fRRDA to use or defray costs associated with
.uñrying out a project would enable effective infrastructure partnerships. This

proposãt would limit application to no more than ten proiects a1_d tyguJd

ip.õify that the respeclive non-Federal interests indemnify and hold-the
fè¿erát Government harmless as a result of non-Federal actions, including that
the Federal Government assumes no responsibility for costs of said non-
Federal actions. Amending the law (16 U.S.C. 46odl) to provide USACE the

authority to retain recreation user fees generated at USACE-managed
recreatión sites and facilities would enable USACE to address the backlog of
infrastructure, public safety and visitor use management needs at sites where

user fees are collected.

Expand U.S. Army Corps of Engíneers' Authority to Engage in Long-term Contracts

Current law generally restricts the award of multi-year contracts to a period of
no more than five years.
Infrastructure assét contracts typicatly are much longer than five years, and

therefore the cost and risk associated with five-year contracts creates a cost

and resource prohibitÍve barrier to successful transactions.

29

D-31

o

a

2.

a

o



3.

4.

I

a

a

a

a

a

a

Extending the contract period to allow the Secretary of the Army to enter into
contractifor a period up to 50 years-would enable usAcE to enter into long-
term contractsihat encõmpass the fult tife-cycle management of infrastructure
assets in the program (Secfion 5or4 of rr¡üRRDA). This amendmentwould
specify that úre rãspective non-Federal interests indemnify and ttgt¿.ttt:
fe¿erát Government harmless as a result of non-Federal actions, including that
the Federal Government assumes no responsibility for costs of said non-
Federal actions.

Authorize Commercíal Operation and Maintenance Activitíes at Hydropower

Facílities

Current law defines operation and maintenance activíties athydropower
facilities undertaken 6y Civil Works personnel as of the date of enactment of

the Tritlater Resources Oóvelopment Act of. tggo as Ínherently governmental and

not commercial activities. (Section 3t4ofthe TWater Resources DevelopmentAct
of tggo;33 U.S.c. z3zt).
This designatíon creates unnecessarybureaucracy and restricts opel
competitíon that leads to excess costs for operations that can easilybe done at a

lower cost and more efficientlY.
Amending the law to restore the authority of the,secretary o{ the Army to
determinã whether operation and maintenance functions at hydropower
facilities on USACE piojects are commercial activities and appropriate for
performance by non-f'ôderal entities would increase the opportunity for open

ãompetition and lead to more efficient operations and maintenance.

Deauthorize Certaín F ederal Civil Worls Proiects

currently, all usACE projects remain authorized in perpetuity. rþis inc-ludes

comptetéá projects that áre under USACE control but are approa-ching the end

of ttreir servicé üfe, as well as projects that were built by USACE but are

operated and maintained by nôn-federal entities. Extensive regulatory and

tiæutory compliance proviiions apply to non-Federal sponsors associated with
USACE pro¡ects, inctuding Section r4 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899' as

amendéd (i¡ u.s.c. 4o8, ðommonly referred to as "section 4o8")'
These proviiions can make local alterations to federalþco¡tstructed projects

.*p"niive and difficult, as even simple modifications to a Federal project Þy at

upþU.rnt trigger a Section 4o8 review, which increases the costs to both the

Government and the aPPlicant.
Amending the law to es[abüsh a streamlined deauthorization process_that

allows foithose USACE projects approaching the end of their service life and for
those projects operatedãnd maintained by-non-Federal interests that do not
require féderal õversightwould release Federal and non-Federal resources to
be used for other purposes.

Expand Authority Íor Acceptance of Contributed and Advanced Funds

3a

D-32

5.



6

. Anon-Federal sponsor can provide non-Federal funds to the Federal

Government thrõugh contributed and advanced funds, to advance investments
in infrastructure. However, under current law, the process to accept

contributed and advanced funds is protracted and limited by several factors.
o projects therefore suffer years of delay, unable to take full benefit of a willing

sponsor to provide non-Federal funds.
. Ámending ihe law (33 U.S.C. Zorh) to expand authority for the_acceP-tance of

contributõd funds even if no Federal funds have been appropriated for the

authorized project, changing individual notifications to an annual reportin_g

requiremeni, aid expandìng applicability of advanced funds authority to all
auihorized water resburcesãevelopment studies and projects would increase

non-Federal spending and expedite project execution.

Amend Water Resources Development Act to AIIow for Waiver of Cost Límíts

r Current law provides a maximum total cost for congressionally authorized
projects.

. Þrojects that exceed the cost limitation (Section gozoL therWater Resources

Oeúelopment Act of rg86) require authorization by Congress to raise the

maximum total proiect cost, whích can add significant delays in delivering
infrastructure projects.

. Amending the iawto allow the maximum total cost limitation to be waived

upon the Iecommendation of the Secretary of the Army would provide

flãxibility to avoid delays in delivering infrastructure projects.

III. VETERANS AFFAIRS

The following provisions would provide flexibility to the Department of Veterans

Æfairs (Va) tãise the value of itl existing assets to provide our Nationts veterans the

state-oi-the-art facilities they deserve. Íhe VA has a nationwide physical footprint
that includes aging facilities. f¡¡trile the physical assets orn¡red by the VA are growing

outdated, the undertying property values continue to increase.

A. Provide VA Real Property Flexibilities

¡ AuthorizeVAto retain proceeds from sales ol propertíes and exchange ødsting

løcílíties for constructíon of new facílitíes. Under current law, the VA cannot
ietaitt the proceeds from sales of its properties, nor can the VA exchange its-

existing facitities for the construction of new facilities. This hinders the VA's

ability lo make needed capital improvements, including new construction and

renoúations. Authorizing the VA to retain proceeds from sales of its properties

and exchange its existing facilities or land for new construction would provide

the VA flexiUitíty to better futfill its mission, including making capital
improvements for newconstruction and renovations and for funding lease or
senrice costs in a facilitY.

3t

D-33



. Authoríze pilot program forVAto exchange land or facilities lor lease of space in

multi-tenantfäcílilies. Congress should create a pilot program, for-up to five
projects, to ailow the VA toãxchange existingVA land or facilities for a lease of
spaôe in a resulting private facility built on the former VA land. The VA-
oicupied space woui¿ be built to the same commercial standards as the

remainder of the facility and could be in a stand-alone building or part of- ,-
another building. The private sector financing could not be based on the full
faith and credit of the U.S. Government or guaranteed U.S. Government
tenancy. The lease term after credits would be a maximum of seven years, and

any future lease or extension after the initial term also would be limited to
seven years. The lease and service rates during the credit timeframe and any

subsequent lease term would be at market or less. The explicit dollar amount of
termiriation (e.g., one year of rent payments) would be required to be included

in the agreemeñt, andVAwouldbudget rent and termination in accordance

with OMB Circular A-rr. The lease wóuld be structured to assure that VA had

exit privileges, and that VAwould have an exclusive right, but not the
obligation, to renew or extend the term of the lease.

, Incróase tfic threshold sbove whichVAís reguire to obtain congressíonal
authorizationfor leases. Current law requires VA to obtain congtessional
authorization for any lease above $r million in annual costs. This differs from
the GSA prospectus ihreshold established under title 4o of the United States

Code. Tlie GSA prospectus currently carries a threshold of 5¡.095 million and is

reevaluated perlodicilly. These differing thresholds require tle V+ to seek

authorization for more leases. Increasing the authorization threshold forVA
major medical leases (:S U.S.C. 8ro4) from the current threshold of $r million
in ánnual costs to the current GSA prospectus threshold which is 53.095 million
and updated periodicallywould reduce the number of VA authorizations and

align the authorization levels across the two programs.

IV. LIIND REVITALIZATION (BRO\¡VNFIELD/SUPERFUND REFORM)

The below provisions would expand funding eligibility for revitalization projects and

establish tôols to manage and address legal and financial risks. These provisions
would incentivize the dõvelopment and dissemination of strong infrastructure risk
mitigation and asset management standards to accelerate the desired
tr.ttõfot-ational shifts for the public good-increases in revenue generation, risk
allocation to the parties best equipped to mitigate concerns, and greater attention to
rnaintenance and innovative design.

A. Create a Superfund Revolving Loan Fund and Grant Program and Authorize
National Priorities List Sítes to be Eligible for Brownfield Grants

. Currently, the Brovrmfield program has a revolving loan/grant fund, but under
CERCLA Sections 1o1(39X8) añd ror(4rXC), Superfund sites are not eligible for
the program. National Priorities List (NPL) sites currently are not eligible for
Brownfield grants.

32

D-34



a Therefore, low interest loan funds are not available to clean up Superfund sites

and because NPL sites cannot access Brownfield grants, they cannot fund any

development unrelated to the response action.
Rmending the Small Business Liability Relief and Bro¡¡rmfields Revitalization
Act to incl-ude a Superfund revolving fund would facilitate new investment into
Superfund cleanup and reuse andwõuld provide non-liable third parties a low
intirest source ofiunds to perform removals, remedial design, remedial action

and long-term stewardship. Amending the taw (CERCLA Section 1o1(4o)) to

allow NpL sites or portioni thereof to bl etigible for Brolunfield grants at EPA's

discretionwould make funds available to eligible entities to conduct
assessments, complete cleanups, and implement remedy enhancetqents to
accommodate devèlopment and perform long-term stewardship. This
proposalwould incluäe areas of ihe NPL site that are not related to the response

ãcti-on; areas that can be parceled out from the NPL response action; ?rg.as
where the NPL response ãction is complete but the site has not been delisted
yet; or areas where the NPL response áction is complete but the facility is still
íuU¡ect to orders or consent dedrees under CERCLA. This would be a new
Brownfields grant program targeted to Superfund sites'

provide tiability Relief for States and Municipalities Acquiring Contaminated
Property through Actions as Sovereign Governments

Currently, State and local governments may be exempt from CERCTA liability as

an ,,ownãr or operatortt iflhey acquire ornnrership or control of contaminated
property involuntarily through bankruptcy, ta-x delinquency, abandonment' or

i¡ttrõr circumstances únderwhictr the State or local government involuntarily
acquires title by virtue of its function as a sovereign government.

Ho'wever, confúsion exists regarding the meaning of (ra unit of State or local

gou.tnmãnt,tt ((involuntary aiquisition,t' and "gcquires title by virtue of its

function as sovereign,t'which inhibits State and local govern-ments from
becoming full partners in the cleanup and reuse of Superfund sites.

Clarifyin! and expanding the current liability exemption (CERCLA Section

ror(zóXñ)) to afford StaIe and local governments an exemption |tory liability
for all proþerty acquisitions underta[en by virtue of their sovereign function
wouldãnc-ouráge tñese entities to become full partners in the cleanup and reuse

of Superfund siies. Additionally, these change_s would allow more State and

tocdþovernments to be eligibtè for grants and to acquire propertywithout fear

of UaËility. Such relief frorñfability-would be conditioned upon State and local

governments not contributing to the contamination and meeting.the
õbügations imposed on BonaÞide Prospective Purchasers (BFPPs) in Section

ror(ZoXC)-(Gi, including exercising appropriate care with respect to releases

of hazardous substances at the facility.

provÍde EPA Express Settlement Authority to Enter into Administrative
Agreements

B.

a

a

a

33

D-35

c.



a Currently, CERCLA does not provide express autho-rity for EPA to enter into
certain administrative settlement agreements to clean up and reuse sites. EPA

does not have express authority to s?ttle with BFPPs or other third parties who

maybe subject tô a shtutory défense or exemption or to settle administratívely
witir a potentially responsible party who iswillingto perform remedial
action. CERCLA (section tzz(i)) provides the President with authority to enter

intoanagreementwithanypersõntoperfg¡¡¡aresponseactionwhenthe
presidenãdetermines the áclionwillbe done properly. CERCLAfurther requires

that when EpA enters into a settlement for a iemedial action with a potentially

responsible party, the settlement must be approved by the Attorney General

and enteredìntothe United States District Court as a consent decree'

CERCLAlimitations hinder the cleanup and reuse of superfund sites and

contribute to delays in cleanups due to negotiations.
Amending the law to provide EPAwith express settlement authority to enter

into admilistrative alreements with BFPPs and other statutorily protected

pattiãs and to enter iñto administrative agreements with any party to perform

remedial action in appropriate circumstañces (e.g., partial, early remedial

action) would promöie añd expedite the cleanup and reuse of Superfund sites.

Integrate Cleanup, Infrastructure and Long-term Stewardship Needs by

Creating Flexibility in Funding and Execution Requirements

CERCLA and appropriations laws restrict EPA's ability to creatively integrate

.-t.ãnup, reUuitåing infrastructure, and long-term.stewardship. Additionally'
EPA is iubject to a number of restrictions on its ability incorporate
infrastructure needs into cleanup design and implementation, particularlywith
respect to coordinating funding of such activities.
These restrictions preietrt EPA from incorporating infrastructure needs into
cleanup design and implementation.
nemoving thãr. restriõtions for infrastructure projects that could easily be

int"gt"i"ä with the cleanup work and funded by a thild party, would enable EPA

to bãtter incorporate infraitructure needs (e.g., pipelines, power lines) into
cleanup design and implementation and would promote site reuse.

a

D.

a

a

a

34

D-36



PART3_INFRASTRUCTUREPERMITTINGIMPROVEMENT

I. FEDERALROLE

The below provisions would protect the environment while at the same time
delivering projects in a less cõstþ and more time effective manner by:

. crõaiing a new, expedited structure for environmental reviews;

. delegatirg *ot. dècision-making to States and enhancing coordination
between State and Federal reviews; and

o author izingpilot programs through which agencies may experiment with
innovativeãþproãche1 to environmental reviews while enhancing
environmental Protections.

A. Establishing a r(One Agency, One Decision" Environmental Review Structure

1. protect the Environment through a Structure that Establishes Firm Deadlínes to

Complete Environmental Reviews and Permits

. Under current law, project sponsors of ínfrastructure projectsmust navigate

environmental reøãws undðr the National Environmental PolicyAct (NEPA)

and permitting processes with multiple Federal agencies with separate

deciõion-m.Li'ù authority and often counter-viewpoints. These many hoops

affect the abÍlitliof projecisponsors to construct projects in a timely and cost

effective manner.
r This creates inefficiencies in project environmental protection, review and

permitting decisions, which delays infra,structure investments, increases

þroject coãts, generates uncertainty, and prevents the American people from
i".éiøng the bîenefits of improved infrastructure and environmental
protections in a timelY manner.

. this proposal would establish a firm deadline of zt months for lead a-genciglJo

.o*ft.tê their environmental reviews tþrough the issuance of a Finding of No

Significant Impact (FONSI) or Record of Decision (ROD)' as appropriate.
. Additionally, tire proposal would establish a firm deadline of 3 months after the

lead agency'l fOÑSl or ROD for Federalaggnc-i-qs to make decisions with respect

to the necessarypermits. (This 3-month deadline alsowould apply to any

permits issued 
-by 

State agencieJ under Federal law pursuant to delegations of
äuthority from a Federal óversight agency where such p-ermits- are a

prerequiïite to the completion õf a f'ederàt agency's {itity to issue a permit.)

Àpproþriate enforcement mechanisms would be established to ensure that
permit decisions are issued.

B. Reducing Inefficiencies in Environmental Reviews

1. Require a SíngleÐnvironmentalReview Document and a Single Record of Decísion

Coordinated by the Lead AgencY

35

D-37



2

. Currently, Federat NEPAreviews are conductedby the Federal agencies with
jurisdictíón over the same project. Agencies aÌe encouraSgd, but not required,

io pr.p.t. joint analyses. ñ.equiring joint analyses can reduce the potential for
delay caused by separate analyses.

. \ÃIhen not coordittãted, these reviews can be duplicative and difficult for a
project sponsor to navigate. Decisions are not issued in the same time frame

ättd tteqü.ntly are spreãd out over long periods of time. This additional time
can add-montfis, or ètren years, to the e-nvironmental review process, with little
benefit to the environment.

o Requiring the lead Federal agency under NEP{_to develop a singlelederal

"truirontñ.ntal 
review document to be utilized by all agencies, and a single ROD

to be signed by the lead Federal agencyand all cooperating agencies, would
reduce ãuplicátion and create a more efficient, timely review process.

Clarrfy thatAlternatives Outside of the Scope o! anAgenqt's Authority or Applícant's

Capability Are Not F easible Alternativ es

. The heart of the NEPA process is the evaluation of alternatives. The

development, analysis, and weighing of alternatives sen¡es to ensure that
Federal officials make informed decisions.

e However, an agency should notbe required to consider alternatives that are

outside its autñority or outside the capabitity of the applicant' such
alternatives are not feasible and do not need to be considered in an

environmental review.
. Clarifying that alternatives outside the scope of an-agencyts authority or an

apphóantis capability are not feasible alternatives for purposes of NEPAwould

ailã," agenciei and aþpücants to focus their resources and analyses on those

alternaãives that areããtually legally, technically, and economicallyfeasible.

Direct the Councíl on Envíronmental Quality to Issue Regulations to Streamline the

NEPAProcess

. Council on Environmental Quality (CEOJ regulations and guidance provide an

important basis for the implementation of NEPA. The environmental review
ptô..rs under NEPA as it exists today is lengthy, inefficient, and costly.

. ðgqs regulations were issued in 1978, before the advent of the Internet, and

have beeñ subject to only one revision since then.
. Requiring CE{to revise its regulations to streamline NEPAwould reduce the

timì andlostJassociated witñ the NEPA process and would increase efficiency,
predictability, and transparency in environmental reviews.

Etiminate Redundanqt in EPlReviews of Environmental Impact Statements under

Section 3og oÍtheCleanAír Act

r Currently, Section 3o9 of the CleanAirAct requires that EPAreviewand publish

comments on mosi Environmental Impact Statements (EISs) (42 U.S.c. Iß32).

36

3

l+,

D-38



5

6

a

a

a

o

a

a

Under this authority, EPA publishes comments on draft and final EISs. EPA also

provides a rating foi USs. In addition to its responsibilíty under Section_3og,

np6 has a separáte regulatory responsibility to review and comment on EISs on

matters within its jurlsdiction and typically would be included as a cooperating
agency for areas within its technical expertise.
tie eitra review under Section 3o9 adds a step to the environmental review
process that can cause delays without increasing protection to the
ènvironment. Issues are sometimes raised late in the process or go beyond the

bounds of EPAts subject matter expertise. Lead Federal agencies must take

time to respond to EPA's additional comments in the Section 3o9 review' even

if the comments are outside of EPA's special expertise. This review is no longer
necessary, given that Federal agencies have gained significant NEPA experience
since thiã iãwwas enacted andbecause EPAhas other authority to review and

comment on matters within its jurisdiction.
Eliminating EPAts additional revíew and assessment of EISs would remove
duplicatioriand make the environmental reviewprocess more efficient. This
chánge would not eliminate EPAts regulatory responsibilities to comment
durin"g the development of EISs on mãtters within EPAts jurisdiction or EPAts

respoñsibilities to collect and publish EISs. It also would not prevent EPA from
proïiding technical assistance to the lead or other cooperating agencies upon
request.

Focus the Scope of F eder al Resour ce Agency NEPA Analysis on Areas of Special

Expertise or Iurisdíction

Currently, disagreements often occur regarding the proper scope of NEPA

review, particu[arly a resource agency's reviewfor a large or complexproiect.
Federal ãgencies sometimes provide comrnents or raise objections to issues

beyond ttre scope of their areas of special expertise or jurisdiction.
These objectioñs and comments create confusion for the public and result in
untimely decisions and additional worldoad.
tr'ocusing Federal resource agenciest authority to comment on portionsof the

NEpA analysis that are relevãnt to their areas of special expertise or jurisdiction
would maximize the effectiveness of agency reviews and streamline project
delivery.

Reduce Duplicatíon and Incresse Flexibitíty in Establíshing andUsing Categorícal

Exclusions

Currently, each Federal agency establishes its own categorical exclusions (CEs)

by develóping a record to substantiate that an activitywould not result in
sígnificant eñvironmental impacts. All categorical exclusions that a Federal
agãncy proposes to establish or change are reviewed and approved by CEQ

nlen whenã CE has been substantiated by a Federal agency and approved by
CEq it may not be used by another Federal agencywithout a separate

subitantiaiion and approval process to incorporate the CE into the other

37

D-39

o



7.

I

a

a

a

Federal agencyts NEPA procedures. A Federal agency also may not change its
internal dlocumentationrequirements related to CEs, such as moving a
,,documentedtt CE to the ttuhdocumented" list, even if experience shows that
documentation is no longer needed.
Authorizing any Federal ãgency to use a CE that has been established by
another peãerai agency anã idéntifying documented CEs that can be moved to

an agency,s undoðumented CE listwithout undergoingthe CE substantiation
anA ãppróval process would reduce duptication and unnecessary environmental
rnatyiir for aðtions that do not create a significant environmental impact. Each

ag"ncy *ould track and catalogue its use of another agencyts CEs under this
provision.

More Effectivety Address Envíronmental Impacts by All.owing Design-Build 
__

Contraïtors ¡oimgnway Projects to ConductFinalDesignActivitíesbefore NEPAIS

Complete

Under current law, a design-build contractor for a Federal-aid highway project
is not authorized to commence final design activities until after the conclusion
of the NEPA process (z: U.S.C. r2(bx3)).
This restrictiron diminishes the flexibility afforded with the design-build
procurement method, because States are not permüted to allow designers to

þroceed with final design activities with their own funds under the traditional
design-bid-build method.
Ailoiving design-build contractors to conduct final design_activities woqJd

facilitatõ better environmental reviews in conjunctionwith the design of
projects and would facilitate more efficient and more effective efforts to
ãddress environmental impacts. The lead Federal agencywould continue to
conduct an independent review of the environmental documents and prohibit
the agency fromtaking any action thatwould prevent the objective
consideration of alternatives.

Curtail Costs by Allowíng for Advance Acquisition and Presewation of Rail RÍghts-

of -Way before NEPA Is ComPlete

Currently, real property generally cannot be acquired for rail rights-of-way
prior to ihe completion of the NEPAenvironmental reviewprocess.
Vnit. project spõnsors might have an opportunity to purchase better and less

expeniive righis-of-way iñ advance, the lack of clear statutory direction
impedes preõeruation of rail rights-of-way inadvance of project approval.

Anäwing ttre advance propertyacquisition and preservation of rail corridors for
rail projËcts would heþ cõntrot coits and improve p_roject delivery. Right-of-
wayþuíchase still would be eligible for Federal funding-only if used for a
ptó¡Ë.t selected through the NÈfnprocess. The riskof bias in the evaluation of
ältórnatives under these circumstances would be minimal, because project

sponsors would be able to recoup the value of property if a different alternative
ultimately was selected.

a

a

a

a

38

D-40



9.

10

a

Enhance Integration of Transportation Planning andNEPAby Removíng an

Unneeded Concurrencâ noint' ¡or Usíng Transportation Planníng Documents and

Decísíons in NEPA

Under current law, lead Federal agencies have been encouraged to adopt or
incorporate by reference relevant documents and decisions into their NEPA

documents. This includes documents from the transportation planning
process. The transportation planning process includes robust study and public

ängugu*.nt to develop transportation plans for metropolitan areas. In the

fVfoîviãgAhead for Progress in the 21st CenturyAct (mAP-zt), Congress

formaiized the practicã of incorporating transportation planning documents

but added a new requirement that coopèrating agencies had to concur (z¡ U.S.C.

16B(d)).
Concurrence for incorporating transportation planning documentq and

decisionswas not preiiously requireã and is not required for the adoption of
other documentation. The transþortation planning documents already undergo

review and consideration by agencies and the public during plan development.

The additional concurrencè point adds an unnecessary step that impedes

efficient environmental reviãw and the integration of the planning and

environmental review process. It also can rðsult in substantiat duplication of
work, if a cooperating ãgency does not concur in the incorporation of
documentation from Planning.
Eliminating the requiiement Íor concurrence by a cooperating agen-cy would

reduce duplícationãnd delay, andwould facilitate the integration of the NEPA

process with the transportation planning process.

Remove Duplication in the Review Process for MitigationBanking by Eliminating
the Interagency Review Team

The zooS Mitigation Rule that USACE and EPAjointly_promulgated includes

specified timeiines for various tasks associatedwith the approval and oversight
o? mitigation banks. The Mitigation Rule provides an opportunity for public

and agãncy review and comrnãnt on mitigation banks_during the approval
pro..ãs. Iá addition to this review, the Mitigation Rule requires a second

ieview by an interagency review team, conslsting of reviewing agencies, Tribal
nations, and the mitigation banking sponsor.
Rpprovát dmelines often are extended beyond those specified il the Mitigation
nui., due to protracted consultation among the intetagency reviewteal. The

final appro.rål of a mitigation bank often isdelayed because of the time it takes

to resolve disagreemenls among the entities participating in-tþe second review.

Removing the ãecond review would enhance the efficiency of themitigation
bank appioval time frames. The members of the interagency review te?T
would ilitt trarre an opportunity to review and comment through the public
participation process required in the Mitigation Rule.

39

D-41

I

a

a

a



11.

t2

L3.

a

a

o

a

a

Authoríze Alt Lead Federat Agencíes for lnfrastructure Projects to Opt into Híghway
and Trsnsít Streamlining Procedures

Highway and transit projects currently have specific statutory authority that
prõmotés efficiencieð initre environmental review process for their proiects (23

U.S.C. r¡g). This authority promotes efficiencywithout changing any
substantive environmental laws.
However, these benefits are limited because they do not apply to other types of
infrastructure projects.
Amending the õurient law to allow other lead Federal agencies to opt into these

provisionl could make environmental reviews on other infrastructure projects

mot. efficient. This option would not apply to projects that are eligible under
FAST 4t because they already have separate streamlining provisions.

Increase Efficiency by Expeditíng CertainSmoll Telecommunícations Equípmentin
NEPA and the Notionol Historic Pr eserv ation Act

Current law requires that wireless deployers comply with both NEPA and the
National Histoiic PreservationAct (NHPA) for small cells and\ÃIi-Fi
attachments in the same way that they obtain permits for large towers.

Small cells and \Mi-Fi attachments do not have an environmental footprint, nor
do they disturb the environment or historic property. However, despitethis
Iack of impact, small cells and Wi-Fi attachments typically go through the
same levei of analysis and review under NEPA and the NHPA, which needlessly
adds both delays and costs to the process.
Amending the iaw to expedite small cells and \Mi-Fi attachments in NEPA and

the NHpÀwould eliminãte unnecessary reviewswithout adversely affecting the
environment.

Create Incentiv es f or Enhanced Mitig ation

Current environmental laws focus primarilyon adverse environmental impacts

of infrastructure projects, without also recognizing their potential
environmental benefits.
Opportunities for enhancing mitigation or environmentally friendly-designs
oitän are lost, because theyãetayþroject developmentwithout providing any

benefit to the project sponsor.
Establishing proiedures that expedite environmental or permitting reviews for
projects thalènhance the environment through mitigation, design, or other
means would provide incentives for project sponsors to propose more
environmentally beneficial projects.-This would streamline the environmental
and permitting review process for those projects that demonstrate an

improvement to the environment.

Modify the Federal Power Act and Other Laws to prohíbít the Abilíty of Federal

Agencies to Intervene in FERC P roceedings

40

D-42

a

a

a

t4.



15.

a

a

a

a

Under current FERC policy and regulations, agencies that participate as

cooperating agenciei in FERCts pieparation of NEPA documents cannot also

inte-rvene iñ tñe FERC licensing proceeding. The rationale for FERC's policy is

that cooperating agency staff will necessarily engage in off-the-record
communications with FERC staff concerning the merits of issues in the
proceeding. If the agency is subsequently allowed to become an intervenor in
ihe ticensiág proceeãing, the agencywould then have access to information
that is not avãilable to other parties, in violation of the prohibition on ex parte

communications in both FERC's rules and in the Administrative Procedure Act.

FERC,s rules force Federal agencies to choose either to waive their right to
intervene in the proceeding or their right to participate, upon request' as a

cooperating ageñcy in FERCts preparation of an environmental document. By

choosing nõt ó patticipate as ã cooperating agency, FERC loses the benefit of
the agen-cyt s technical äxpertise on important environmental issues, thus
inhibltingthe Ídentification and resolution of key issues early in the NEPA

process.
il{odifying the Federal Power Act and other laws to require Federal agencies,

upon ieqùest, to participate as a cooPerating agency to a FERC NEPA review
wbutd eñsurethat agenóies fully participate in the preparation of FERC NEPA

documents. Agency participation as a cooperating agency' however, would not
impede that agency'é aUitity to file comments to the FERC docket for the

relävant proceiding nor impede the agency's ability to defend any requested

conditions in court.

Authorize Federal Agencíes to Accept Funding from Non-Eederal Entities to Support

Environmental and Permítting Reviews

Currently, some legal authority exists for project proponents to contribute
funds to Federal agencies to support such reviews and decisions. This includes
authority for public entities to iupport Federal agencies, State agencies, and

Indian tíibes þarticipating in enviionmental planning and review processes for
transportation projects (49 U.S.C. 3o7), as well as authority fol USAçE to accept

fundifrom non-fé¿eral public entities to provide priorityreview of permit
applications (33 U.S.C. 452). However, there is no universal authority to accept

fuñaing from non-Federal entities for infrastructure projects.

this fiñits the ability of Federal agencies to obtain additional resources tohelp
with the permitting ánd review pròcess, thus causing further delays in project

development.
lmending the law to provide broader authority for Federal agencies to accept

funds froñr non-Federal entities to support review of permit applications and

other environmental documentswould provide additional resources to
streamline project delivery and would help defray the costs of the
environmeñtaÍ review. This provision would include appropriate controls for
potential conflicts of interes[ and would maintain the Federal agencyts

iesponsibitity to conduct its review independentþ.

l+l

D43

a

o



C. Protecting Clean TVater with Greater Efficiency

1. Eliminate Redundancy, Duplícation, and Inconsistency ín the Applicatíon of Clean

Water Provisions

These provisions would make the following reforrns to create greater efficiencies in
the application of clean water provisions:

a. Authorize Federal agencies to select and use nationwide permits without
additionat USACE reliew. Currently, Federal agencies are required to submit
permit applications to USACE for some projects that meet nationwidg permit

ÌfrWpl requirements, includÍng general and regional conditions. Federal

agencies employ staff who are environmental experts and_reviewthese
piojects befóre submitting the application to determine whether they meet the
äritêria for the applicable l.lWp. Eliminating the additional USACE review and
allowing federaiãgencies to move fonn¡ard on NWP projects, subject to permit
conditiõns, woulditreamline the process and allowUSACE to focus on projects

that do not qualify for NWPs, which have greater environmental impacts. 
-

USACE woulä retáin the right to reinitiate its reviewfor any agency that it fínds
has incorrectly determined that NIWP criteriawere met.

b. Consolidate authority to make jurisdictional determinations fot 4atrpermits.
Under current interpretation of the Clean \[Iater Act, the EPA Administrator,
not the SecretaryoftheÆ*y, has final authorityto construe the jurisdictio¡al
term(rnavigable waters" under Section t+ol+of.the Clean\üaterAct. USACE has

decades of ãxperience and expertise in jurisdictional matters, providing the
public approximately 59,ooo written jurisdictional determinations peryear.
ÈstabüsÎúng the Secietary of the Army's authority to make jurisdictional
determinations under thé CleanrffaterActwould eliminate duplication of work
and streamline permit decisions. EPA and USACE would continue to coordinate
on rulemaking tb ensure consistency in the definition of ttwaters of the U'S."

under the Cleãn TrÃ/ater Act and to reconcile differences in determinations under
other sections of the Clean Water Act.

c. Eliminate duplicative oversight by removing EPA's authority to veto a 4oh
permit under Section 4o4(c). fhe Secretary of the {r*y, acting through the
ðni.f of Engineers, has authority to grant permits for the discharge of dredged

or fill mateiial under Section trotrof.the Clean \üater Act. EPA can exercise veto

authority prior to, during, and after permit decisions. The threat of the veto

creates significant uncertainty and delays permit decisions, because project
proponents and USACE address perceived concerns to avoid elevation orveto.
hemoving EPA's authority to veto a 4o4permit would make the permitting
process more efficient and predictable.

d. Allow use of one NEPA document for both Section tro4 and Section 4o8 actions.
Section 4o8 authorizes the Secretary of the Army to grant permission for the

42

D-44



e.

2.

J:,

a

a

a

a

alteration, occupation, or use of a USACE civil works project if the activity will
not be injúriousìo the public interest and witl not impair the usefulness of the
project (i¡ U.S.C. 4o8). To make this determination, Sectíon 408 requires a very
iimitar ènvironmental review to the review required for a Section t+o4permit.
For actions where both Sections 4o4 and 4o8 aPPlY, two independent
environmental reviews are required, creating unnecessary duplication of work
and delays in issuing permitting decisions.

Eliminate duplication in environmental documentation for authorized USACE

projects pursïed by non-Federal interests. Under current law, if a non-Federal
äntíty íniends to implement an authorized USACE civilworks projectwithout
an eiecuted projectþarhership agreement, the non-Federal entitywould need

a permit from the Dðpartment of the Army prior to construction (33 U,S.C. 4o3
un¿ ¡f U.S.C. ß4rr). To authorize the same civilworks project, the USACE also

would prepare an environmentaÌ review and compliance document. Allowing
the noñ-fèderal interest to use the completed USACE environmental
compliance documentation and decision (e.g., ROD or FONSI) as the
enviionmental review for the Federal permit decision would reduce duplication
without removing environmental protections.

Ctarify Time Erames and Reduce Delays for Section 4or Certification Decisions

Current law requires receipt of a State Water Quality Certification (Section 4o1

Certificatíon) prior to USACE issuing a Department of the Army (DA) permit
(Section +o4indsection ro) decision. Under current law, a State is givel a

period not to exceed one year to issue Íts Water Quality Certification, or the
requirement is waived.
In ipite of the statutory time frame, States increasingly do not issue-_permits

witliin the applicable time frames, or they require applicants to re-file príor to
the one-yeariapse, which produces a loop of repeated lack of issuance and re-
filing.
Ame"nding the Clean rüilater Act to change the time period for issuance of a State

4or Certiflcafion by addressing the time periods for making a completeness
determination and the time for a State decisionwould reduce this delay.

Stabílize Utility Investments by Lengtheníng the Term of a National Pollutant

Discharge nlímínation System Permít and Providing for Automatic Renewals

Currently, the Clean\trater Act places a fíve-year limitation on the term of
permits granted.
ttris timitation serves as a disincentive to public and private investments in
investor-owned and publicly owned utilitþs when major investments typically
are financed over ZO [o 30 years. Moreover, administrative resources in
granting permit renewals èan significantly impact the timeliness of permit
renewal requests.

43

Ð-45

a



a Lengthening the permit time limit frorn five yegs to fifteen yeârs and

p;didi"¿ foî autärnatic renewals of such peúnits, if thewater guality needs do

,rot r.quìie more stringent permit limits, would bringmore stability to such

Ínvestments.

Reducing Inefficiencies in the Magnuson StevensAct

Require Timelines to be Met under the Magnuson Stevens Act or Allow Agency to

ProceedwithAction

The Magnuson Stevens Act allows forboth an abbreviated consultation process

iÑatiotä Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) must respond within 3o days) and

àn àxpanaed consultation process (NMFS must respond within 6o days) when

evaluãting effects to Essential Fish Habitat.
Even with these relatively short time frames, consultations tend to take much

lo"g.t to complete, and thus impact the delivery of infrastructure projects.

neq:uiring NMFS to respond to ail consultations within 3o days in-all cases

ir*i.ir a"3o-day r.qu.it for extension is received from NMFS and approved by

ìtrãããtiofagenóy) vüould improve time frames and eliminate delays' -If no

response were received fromNMFS within the required time frame, the action

agency could then move to final agency action.

Reducing Inefficiencies in Protecting Clean Air

Eliminate Confusionby Clarifying thathetropolítanPlanning OrganizatíonsMeed

o nl¡ Còn¡or m'to the ttio st Recen{ ¡t at¡onal Ambient Air Qualíty Stand ar d

Currently, the Clean Air Act requires EPA to establish National Ambient Air

Quality stândards (NAAqs) for certain pollutants. It also requires EPA to

pìriodicatly review and, if necessary, update these standards.

lhis creatós a problem every time ÈPApromulgates newly updatedNAAQS

U.fãt" ptior ständards are rãvoked. State DOTs and metrop-olitan planning

;ú;d;iitns (MPOs) may be required to demonstrate conformity to both the

oläand new standards foithe same pollutant, creating redundancy ald
un.ãituinty, and causing State DOTJand MPOs to spend their limited resources

unnecessarily.
Anñãi"ã if* Ct."tt Air Act to clarify that confgrpity.legYirernents apply only

to the latest NAAqS for the same po[iutantwould avsid this confusion and

reduce legal challenges.

Reduce :Jncertainty by Estoblis hing Motor vehícleEmíssíons Budgets beþre.

náqili¡ng Inítialfrontportotíon ionformity Determinations for Newly Designated

Areøs

Currently, the Clean Air Act requires a newly designated area to comply with
.otrfottnity requirements one year after the effective date of the final

D.

1.

o

a

a

E.

1.

a

a

a

44

D-46

2.

a



1.

F

2.

a

a

a

nonattainment designatio n (42U. S. C. 7 5o 6 (c)). Conf ormity typically is

à.*onrtrated by shõwing that an areats transportation plans will not exceed

the motor vehicie emissiõns budget established for that area.

This creates a problem for newly designated areas_because the emissions

budget usually takes longer than a year to establish and for EPA to approve.

itrãiefot., in ôrder to demonstrateconformity, MPos in newly designated

areas have to use other less suitable tests, such as 
((an interim emissions testt'

or a test based on emissions budgets developed for a previous standard for the

iã*e foff"¡¿nt. These requiremãnß have created confusion and uncertainty.

ailowing transportation conformity to apply one year after EPA approv-es or

finds the emissions budgets adequåte foi èonformity purposes would eliminate

confusion and give MPO¡ certainty in meeting Federal requirements'

Reducing Inefficiencies in Presenring Publicly û¡vned Land and Historic
Properties

Remove Overlapping DOL,USD4, and HUD Revíews from Individual Section 4ff)
Evaluatíons

Under current law, DOT is prohibited from using parklands or historic sites

unless it determinês that tñere is no other prudent and feasible alternative.

ðuii.nt law requires consultation with DoÍ, USDA, and the Department of
Hñtttrg;nd Uiban Development (HUD) in making these determinations. The

FHWA/ËTA implementing iegulations for Section A$) of the DOT Act (23 CFR

77 4.5) reqvire 
-section 

a(f") ddierminations to be sent to DOI, USDA' and HUD for
iévié* anã provide a minimum of 45 daysfor the agencies to comment'

Current law also provides for an additional r!-day period after the comment

deadline for DoIiuSDA, and HUD to transmit comments before FFIWA may

assume no objection (49 U.S.C. 303 and 23 U.S.C. 138).

The DOI, USDA, and HUD reviews can delay projectdellvery even thoug.h the

ièui.* gãn.r"tty does not produce any changesin the determinations, because

the agelcies hale had littte direct involvement in a project.

Remõving DOI, USDA, and HUD responsibilities to review individual Section

¿(f) deter"minaiions would reduce delays in the groject development process

*iií1. not reducing protections to parklands and historic sites.

Eliminate Duplícatíve Reviews of Hístoric Property Impacts for Transportation

Projects

Under current law, potential impacts of transportation projects on historic sites

must undergo 
" 

,evi.* under bóth Section 106 of the NHPA and Section ¿(f).
These two lãws are different in approach (Section /'(f) results in a substantive

determination and Section ro6 iià process resulting in an agreement), butboth
ãre designed to protect the same hiétoric resources. The FAST Act added an

optionaiprocesõ for historic preservation reviews to address this issue, but it

a

45

D47



3.

4.

a

a

a

o

a

added new steps and concurrence poínts that do not exist ín the current
regulatory process.
Coíductiñd t*o reviews to protect historic properties is redundant and creates

substantialadditional work-. It is also inconsistent with requirements for other

infrastructure projects, which only need to comply with Section 106. Because of
the additional õonôurrence points, the optional process included in the FAST

Act is a more cumbersome process and has notbeen used.

Specifying that an action táken pursüant to a Section 106 agreement does not
cõnstiiutõa 'ruse" under Section 4(Ð, and thereforewould not require a

different analysis, would reduce duplication and delay, without reducing
protections for the historic properties.

Elimínate Redundancy in Conversion RequirementsWhen Land Purchased with
Land andWater Consewation Fund Money ls Impacted

Currently, parks and other sites that have been the subject of Land and ÏVater

grants oí âi.V type cannot be converted to other than public outdoor recreation
ises withoul apþroval of the NPS. This includes approval of equivalent
property to suúititute for the converted area. This requírement appligs !o
infiastrúcture projects that might use parks or other recreational facilities that
were funded by Land and rvVater grants.
Consultingwiih the NPS and obtãining its approvalfor equivalent subslitution
property c"an be a lengthy process leadþg to detaye-d project detivery. The work
äf tire Nþs often dupiícales the work of tñe lead Federal agency ín identifying
equivalent substitute ProPertY.
Eliminating the requiiement ior the NPS approval in identifying and procuring

replacemeãt ptopeitywould eliminate duplicative work and speed project

deiivery (inctudiñgwhere authorityhas been delegated to States).

Reduce 1Jncertaínty by Estabtishing Reclamation Title Transfer Authorization

Currently, there is no blanket authorization for Bureau of Reclamation to
transfer iitle to certain federally ovrnred facilities currently operated b-y non-
Federal partners, who are the primarybeneficiaries. Congress provides title
transferauthority with respect to individual facilities.
Obtaining authority from iottgress to transfer title for each facilityindividually
is arduou-s and very time consuming, often taking several years. De1ays in
obtaining title negâtively impact the ability of non--Federal partners to obtain
private flnancing to performrequired major rehabilitation and replacement

needs. As a result, eñtities may need to request funding frorn the Federal

Government to perform required work'
Establishing new transfer authority in the Bureau of Reclamation would
streamline íh. pto."rs and reduce delays for executing titte tr,ansfers. This also

would facilitatónon-Federal partners' abílity to seekprivate financing for
major rehabilitation and replãcement needs. Additionally, this would give non-
Federat partners greater flexibility in setting operating criteria.

46

D-48

a

a



5. Reduce Uncertøínty by Authorízing the Secretary of the lnteríor to Review and Approve

Permíts for Pipelines Crossing tands edministered by the Natíonal Parl<s Service

. Current law delegates to the Secretary of the Interior authority to review and

approve rights-oif-way across lands adrninistered by the NP!, but only for
.ié.tri., t"ãter and communications facilities. For pipelines (natural gas and

oil) and facilities necessary for the production of energy, specific_congre-ssional

auihorization is needed for each pròposed project crossing one of these lands.

r Obtaining congressional approval for each pipeline crossing a-nd facilities
necessarf for ihe productiôn of energrT is time consuming,and delays

construciion of néeded natural gas pipeline facilities. It also is inconsistent
with the process adopted for other types of facilities.

o Authorizing the Secrãtary of the Interior to approve rights-of-way for pipelin-es

and facilitiãs necessary fõr the production of energy across NPS-administered
land in a manner ideniical to that for other facilities would reduce the delays

and uncertainties caused by requiring congressional approval.

II. DELEGATION TO STATES

These provisions will streamline and expand existing procedures to entrust
environmental review and permitting decisions to States. These provisions also

would help avoid duplicatiõn by facitúating reliance on State and local reviews and

documentation.

A. Expand Department of Transportation NEPAAssignment Program to Other

Agencies

r Using current authority, DOT has successfully assigned its NEPA

respõnsibilities to six States under certain conditions and contingent upon the
Stales signing a memorandum of understandingwith tþe DOT.

. However, tt ið authorization to assign responsibility is limited to FH\IIA and

FTA.
. Authorizingother agencies to assign NEPA responsibilities to States would

extend the úenefit oî this programlo other types of infrastructure agencies and
projects, under requirements similar to those in the DOT NEPA assignment
program.

B, Allow States to Assume FHWA Responsibilities for Approval of Right-of-I[Iay
Acquisitions

, . Currently, there is no specific authorization for States to assume FHWAts

responsibilities for approving right- of -way acquisition transactions. In
add-ition, FFIWA regulãtions iequire States to obtain authorization before
proceeding with ariy real propeity acquisition using Federal-aid highway funds.

47

D-49



. \Jtlaiting for FH\üA can delay the project delivery process for Federal review of
what hãs become a routine activity for States.

. Providing States with authority to assume some, or {f , of FHWA's

reiponsiËifides for approval of right-of-wayacquisitions (subj.egt,to the same

legäl protections thai ðurrently a[pþ to the right-of-way acquisition process)

wõulá eliminate these delays. DOi would retain the right to terminate a

delegation if a State improperly carries out its responsibilities for approving

right- of -waY acquisitions.

C. Broaden N¡PAAssignment Program to Include Other Determinations

. Currently, the Surface Transportation Project Delivery Program (((NEPA

assignmênt programt') allows States to fully assume Federal responsibilities
under NEpAfor"highway and transit projects. However, it prohibits DOT from

assigning, and Shîes fróm assuming responsibility for' any-project- level

conf"ormlty determination required under the Clean Air Act for the same

projects (42 U.S.C. 7 jo6). It also does not authorize States to assume

iesionsiùiliti.r fordeterminations regardingfloo{ plain protection and noise

poli.iut, which would affect determinátions rnade by States during the

ènvironmental reviewprocess (23 U.S.C. rcg and3z7)'
. This inconsistent treatment diminishes the effect of the NEPA assignment

program. It causes the environmental review process assumed by a State to be

inte"rrupted or impacted by Federal approvals or determinations during an

environmental review thal otherwise has been fully assumed by the State.

. Allowing DOT to assign, and States to assume, project-level transportation
conforrñity determinations and determinations regarding flood plain
protections ãnd noise policies as part of the NEPAãssignment program-would

create a more efficient NEPA assignment program. It also would provide an

incentive for additional States to partícipate in the NEPA assignment program.

Consistentwith the requirements of the NEPA assignment program' States

would need to demons[rate the technical capacity to make these

determinations. This provision would not change EPA's responsibilities under

the CleanAirAct.

ilI. PILOT PROGRAMS

These provisions would create pilot programs to experiment with newways toaddress

environmental impacts while aãUveiing projects in a more timely and predictable

way.

Performance-Based Pilot

This pilot program would experiment with using environmental performance

*""rites instãad of an environmental review process to address

.n*rirontttental impacts of an infrastructure project. Up to ro projects would be

48

D-50

A.

a



a

a

selected to participate in the pilot based on project size, national or regional

significancä, and õpportunitiès for environmental enhancements'

tñe project tpotttotior a selected projectwould agree to design its p.roiect to

rn..i p.rfor*arr.e iian¿ar¿s and ferriitting par,ameters established by the lead

F;ã.;åi"gency. the tead Federal ågency-ould develop the¡e standardswith

Ñbü¿i"pît an¿ itt.ootãittation *ätr oitt.t cooperating Fed_eral agencies. The

i-¡..irponsor's agreement t9 megt the performance standards and

þ.rittittiñg pur"*.i.rs would be in lieu of complying with NEPA and relevant

þermits or other authorizations.
ihe performance standards would result in design elements and enhanced

*iiiã.tion that address the impacts of the project and meetpermit _- .

r.quir.*.nts. Thã pilot would support the goils and objectivesof NÏ'PA and

*Ë.i pãi*ii òUng"tiotts without Uein-g constrained by its procedural

requiiements. It"would focus on goodlnvironmental outcomes rather than a

lengthy environmental review process.

Negotiated Mitigation PilotB.

This pilot program would experimentwith negotíation of mitigation to address

environmõntal impacts of transportation projects'

ThÍs pilotwould aüthorize the Sècretary of Transportation (or other

infrastructure ageniies) to establish an alternative decision-making p-rocess in

ii*u òf ÑepA, baõed on negotiated mitigation:agreements and support[g
iriiugãim" náàrt<ets itt"iuä¿t*ss anticiþatedprõject impacts for a speeific set of

projects.
iùiotiated mitigation strategies could include purchase of offsets, avoidance of

anficipatea impãcü, ãn¿ in-iíeu-fe_e dedicatedìo an advanced mitigation fund.

ittir pitot also woulå establish conditions and limitations for the DOT authority

under this pilot.

IV. IUDICIAL REFORM

These provisions would reform judiciat review standards for environmental reviews to

å"ããöi"ttr.t.¿ litigation and io make court decisions more consistent. These

ftãuiriottr also wouid narrow the scope of judicial review by exempting certain

áctions or issues from challenge.

A. Limit InjunctÍve Relief to Exceptional circumstances

. Currently, a legal challenge to a project under NEPA can delay the start of a

project, áú. toift. uncertãinty if créates about whether the project will be able

to proceed.
o This creates unpredictabitity regardíngtime f,rames for projects, which at the

outset.utt ãir.óurage potential-investõrs, and in the end can postpone the

public benefits of needed infrastructure projects'

a

a

a

a

49

D-51



B

a

a'

o

Limiting injunctive relief to exceptional circumstances would allow for
environirental concerns to be adãressed without unduly delaying needed

infrastructure Projects.

Revise Statute of Límitations for Federal Infrastructure Permíts or Decisions

to r5o Days

Currently, for many infrastructure project-s, the statute of limitations allows

piåi"iirfr io file legal challenges to_Federal permittin_g and authorization
ãecisions for up tJsix years a?er the decisións have been issued. In addition,

under the program inwhich States can substitute comparable State laws for

ÑfpA (,,NnpdsuUstitution program"), the statute of limitations is two years

(z¡ u.s.c.33o).
inirastruCture projects require significant investment in time and resources.

Delays and uncertáinty caûsed bylegal clrallenges to environmental and

p.i*itti"g decisions iirtriUit investlñent in proþts andimpede_the delivery of

úbh. bd.fits from improved infrastructure. These delays and uncertainties

ãiã ã*"..tUated by long statutes of limitations, creating uncertainty well after

decisions have been made.
Èstablishing a uniform statute of limitations of r5o daysfor deciqions and

p.t-itr on ínfrastructure projects would reduce uncertainty and prevent

äuUit"trti"l delays in project dehvery, while still affording affected parties an

adequate opporiunity toinitiate leg-al challenges. {-r5o-day statute of

fi*iìãäã"r'*outa Uã consistent wit-h the statute of limitations congress already

has enacted for surface transportation projects. In addition, rwising the

statute of limitatíons for the ÑBpR subÃtitution program to 15o days would

remove abarrier to States usíng this program.

provide Certainty in Claims on Currentness of Data in Environmental Reviews

and Permíts

Environmental reviews and permitting decisions requíre in-depth studies and

data. These reviews can be cãsily and time consuming. Project sponsors and

fà¿erat agencies are expected to use current data in conductíng their

environmental and permitting reviews.
With projects tp"ttttitg severãl years' a project sponsor may need to conduct

muftilpfe studiei tá S;;.tate daia on [tre saire iszue. \ilhile u!¡19 complete and

"p-;;:¿; da¡¿ is ñ"..tttry to make an informed decision,litigation risk

should not be the prirnary diiver in decídingwhether to conduct a new study.

uir..tit g Federal ägenciés to establish guidlfines regarding when new studies

and datiare requirädwould clarify requirements and create more certainty in 
-

the NEPA process. Courts would be precluded from reviewing any claims based

on the currentness of data, so long ás agencies were in compliance with their

ãriuUiirtt.d guidelines. lnã case*lhereãgencks' guidelines for the same data

conflict, the-guidance for the lead agencywould prevail.

c,

a

a

a

5o

D-52



PART 4 -I'TTORKFORCE 
DETfELOPMENT

These provisions are dedicated to theAmericanworkforce and to policies thatwill
help americans secure stable, well-payilg jobs. The Americanworkforce is an

important national asset, and thus should be included ín legislation aiming to

strengthen and invest in our countryts infrastructure.

Currently, there are almost seven million individuals looking for work and lougtt[li*
*ittion úáfin.A jobs. past Federal policies have left too many Am.-t."H behind. This

Administration is committed to heÎping more individuats access affordable, relevant,

quality education and skills-devetoþmõnt that leads to full-time work and long-term
.at..ir. These provisions also will ñave the important benefit of helping more

companies find skilled workers to fill open jobs.

An infrastructure bill will generate new projects that directly increase employrnent ín

the construction industryias well as boost the demand for labor more broadly as 
-

additional infrastructure investment spurs economic growth. The provisions outlined

below will ensure our country has enoúgh skilted worliers to perform not only existing

work but also fill the new jobs created by the bill.

I. ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND \IIORKFORCE DEVETOPMENT PROGRAMS

A. Expand Pell Grant Eligibility to High-Quality, Short-Term Programs

The Federal Government spends tens of billions of dollars each yea-r in-grants

for postsecondary educatiõn. However, the vast majority of the_se funds are

ã"ãíf.Uf" only to Írelp pay for courses that meet certain time and/or length

i.q"ii.*entá. ttris inã¿el isbecoming outdated given the expansio-n of short-
t.r* education and worKorce development programs that teach relevant skills

and help individuals secure well-paying jobs. For example, PellGrants afe

eeneraliy available only to students whó do not yet have a bachelor's degree

ãnd who are enrolled iñ institutions of higher education offering degree

programs of at least 6oo clock hours or r5 weeks in length'
Þeil Crants are not available for individuals pursuing shorter-term
certifications, including persons who are in skilled trades andwho are

;¿hË;ñt ceriifications-ás part of an apprenticeship proqqm. The \Ã/orkforce

in"ãu"tiõn and Opportunity Act (WOÃt can fund some of these ty-pes oj-
àducation, but its funding is broadly distributed across a variety of worKorce

development efforts.
n*p"nåing Pell Grant eligibility to high-qqality, short-term pfograms would

ailäw indii¡iduals to use Þeil Ciants tõ pay for short-term programs that lead to

a credential or certification in an in-dãmand field. There is no "one size fits
ãti; ápptoach to postsecondary education. Rather, there are multiple pathways

to ruiCes for stuients, and Federal law should enable students to explore and

access these pathways. It is of utmost importance that, as Pell recipjents are

giuãn gr."tei flexibiíity itr spending grant dollars, measures are undertaken to

a

a

a

5t

D-53



B

ensure students receive quality education. Additionally, efforts should be taken

to ensure high-quality, short-term courses and programs are available in fÍelds

where there are shortages of qualified workers.

Reform Career and Technical Education

Equipping Americans with the education needed to do the jobs available in our

moaãin eionomy does not just require changes to our postsecondary education

and workforce development policies; it requires changes to our secondary

education policies as well. One Federal program related to skills-development
and career readiness - the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
(CTE) program - is in dire need of reform. CTE funds are spread thinly.and
Àuppôit a6road, fragmented range of activities, many of which are unlikelyto
imþove studeni ouicomes and ale often not aligned to local worldorce needs.

toõ often, CTE programs do not successfully prepare students for jobs in high-
demand fíelds or toiat industries. In the 2ot5-2o16 school year, the most
common CTE field for secondary CTE concentrators - those who specÍalize in a

single CTE field - was arts and design, followed by business and health.

Ena"cting a modified version of the Perkins CTE reauthorization bill passed by

the Houãe in Iune zorT (H.R. 4ß)would ensure that more students in
Americats seðondary and postsecondary institutions have access to high--

quatity technical edúcation that teaches them practical hrowledge.and skills
rieedeâ in today's technology-driven economy. There are several important
opportunities tb amend n.n-zlslto improve the legÌslation and advance the

Aãministrationts goals. Needed amendments include:
; Oirecting the rãajority of funding to high schoolsto promote strategies such

as appreirticeship, work-based learning, and-dual-enrollment.
o Authõrizing activities to promote and expand apprenticeships.
o IncreasingÉigh-quality CfE programs in high schools by plomoting STEM

CTE offerings and other offerings related to in-demand industry sect-ors

(determineãusing the\Ã/IOA definition as a starting point and expanded

based on input frõm the private sector) and requiring that-they are

evidenced-Lased (as defined by the Every Student Succeeds Act).

o Allowing States topool funds to support regional centers and consortia that
ruppoti*ultipte districts in partnership with local businesses and other
community stakeholders.

o Strengthening the bill's emphasis on the use of evidence-based research.

o Autho"rizing fúnding for fasl-track programs that prepare high school
graduates fõr iobs rebuilding America' s infrastructure.

Strengthen Tíes to thellVorkforce for College Students

The Federal rr¡r/ork Study program (FWS) currently is not well-suited or targeted

to support students puisuing career and technical education, especially for
low-income and low-skilled students seeking to enter or return to the

workforce quicldY.

52

D-54

o

I

c.

a



o

a

FWS funds are disproportionately distributed to four-year non-profit and

flagship public institútions, leavíng out quality two-y-ear programs, many of
wfiictr ñave a uniquely strong focus on workplace readiness.

Enacting FWS refõrrns to better distribute the aid to schools and students who

can mos"t benefit would ensure that more participants obtain relevant
workplace experience, includingby participating in an apprenticeship. This

could include:
o Revamping the funding formula to send funds to schools with a strong

recordin enrolling Petl students and putting them on a pathway to success.

o Limitingeligibility to undergraduates.
o Using piogrãm doilars to fuñd career-related internships or expanding

apprenticeship and career pathway programs.

A. Reform Licensing Requirements for Individuals Seeking a Iob on an

Infrastructure Proiect

In many cases, States accepting Federal funding to -supportinfrastructure
frojecté do noi allowworkers with out-of-State skilled trade licenses to work
on those projects.
preventing oît-of-State professionals frornworking-on infrastructure projects

ãan: (r) t.ãu." the speed õf these projects, delaying the effect of the economic

Ueneiii they provide; and (z) increase the cost of the projects by artificial]Y
limiting thá iupply of professionals available to work on those projects' These

provisións also iul Americans who live in rural States or other areas at a

ãi*¿u"t tage since they frequently need to relocate (often temporarily) in order

to securework.
Requiring that States accepting Federal funds for infrastructure projects accept

*oik ts loith o,rt-of-State licenses to work on those projects would speed

project delivery, reduce project costs, and provide flexibility to workers with
out-of-State skilled trade licenses.

II. EMPOÏTIERING \]TTORKERS

###

53

D-55

o

a

a



March 12,2018
Prepared by: T. Bonkovysþi/M. Cortez
Submitted by: K. Burto@
Approved by: Paul lr. Cr.)/Q.

CONSENT CALENDAR

CULVER DzuVE RECYCLED V/ATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT
CONSULTANT SELECTION

SUMMARY:

Due to recent pipe failures, the Culver Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement project will
replace 1,250 feet of eight-inch asbestos cement pipe in Culver Drive between University Drive
and Ethel Coplen V/ay. Staff recommends that the Board:

Authorize the addition of project 10588 in the amount of $717,000 to the FY 2017-18
Capital Budget, and

Authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement in the
amount of $149,850.50 with RCE Consultants to provide design engineering services for
the Culver Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement.

BACKGROUND:

The existing eight-inch recycled water pipeline currently located behind the westerly curb of
Culver Drive and north of University Drive provides recycled water to the Rancho San Joaquin
Golf Course and the landscaped parkway of Culver Drive. The pipeline was originally installed
in 1976. The pipeline is asbestos cement pipe (ACP) and ultimately connects to a polyvinyl
chloride (PVC) segment approximately 700 feet south of the street intersection of Culver Drive
and Ethel Coplen/Sandburg Way. The ACP segment is approximately 1,250 feet and has had

several repairs. During a recent repair, a sample portion of the ACP was removed and staff
retained HDR to perform a forensic analysis on the pipe sample. HDR's analysis concluded the
pipe exhibited corrosion of the interior or leaching of the lime component of ACP, which is
likely caused by high pH levels in recycled water from the Michelson'Water Recycling Plant
(MWRP), and recommended replacing the pipeline. Several years ago, the distribution pipeline
system in Blue Lake in the Woodbridge area was composed of ACP and required replacement
due to this issue. Hydraulic modeling of the Zone Arecycled water system reflected a need to
increase the segment's pipe diameter from 8 inches to l2inches to meet maximum velocity
criteria.

Consultant Selection:

Staff issued a Request for Proposal in December 2017 for engineering services to four
consultants: Infrastructure Engineering Corporation, RCE Consultants, West Yost Associates
and'Woodard & Curran. Staff completed a thorough review and evaluation of the four
proposals received and recommends awarding the design contract to RCE Consultants. While
each firm presented a broad depth of experience and expertise relative to pipeline replacement
design, RCE made suggestions to effect an expedited design schedule, and proposed work-
hours consistent to meet project milestones. A Consultant Selection Matrix with the results of

6tb - Culver Dr RW ACP Pipeline Replacememt Consultant Selection.docx



Consent Calendar: Culver Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement Consultant Selection

March 12,2018
Page2

the evaluation is attached as Exhibit'oA" and a copy of RCE Consultants' proposal is attached

as Exhibit "B".

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 10588 is not included in the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget. Staff requests the addition of
project 10588 to the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget as shown in the following table. Funding will
be provided by the replacement fund for Recycled V/ater.

Project Current Addition
No. Budeet <Reduction>

Total
Budeet

10588 $ -0- $717,000 $717,000

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and in
conformance with California Code of Regulation, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15302 provides

exemption for the replacement of existing facilities where the new facility will be located on the

same site as the facility replaced and will have substantially the same purpose as the facility
replaced. Additionally, State Guideline 15282 provides exemption for the installation of new
pipeline as long as the project does not exceed one mile in length (i.e. 5,280 feet). A Notice of
Exemption for the project will be prepared and filed with the County of Orange.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE ADDITION OF PROJECT 10588 IN THE AMOUNT
OF $7I7,OOO TO THE FY 2OI7-18 CAPITAL BUDGET AND AUTHORIZETHE GENERAL
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT IN THE
AMOUNT $149,850.50 WITH RCE CONSULTANTS TO PROVIDE DESIGN
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CULVER DzuVE RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE

REPLACEMENT, PROJECT 1 0588.

TOF

Exhibit "A)' - Consultant Selection Matrix
Exhibit 6'8" - RCE Consultant's Proposal and Fee Schedule



EXHIBIT *A'
Consultant Selection ñllatrix

Culver Drive RWACP Pipeline Replacement

Itêm Ooscr¡pt¡on vtr€tghts lntraslrudure Engln€êring Woodard and Cufl€n vlþ8t Yost RCE

A TECHNICAL APPROACH 40%

,1 overall Proj€ct UndsEtendlng / Approach 40% 4 3 2

2 Scopo of Proposal 1Oo/ì 4 3 2 1

3 Men HÕur Ësllmelâs 2Oo/þ
1 4 3 2

l¡1¡qlôhl.d f¡cófþ fTrôlrrlturl Aôû¡rodr¡ 3.4 L4 23 1.6

B ol.lA¡lFlCÀÎON At lÞ Þ(PERIÊNCË 60%

1 F¡m/Team 30% 4 3 2 I

2 Projec{ Menagtr 4ry/o

4 3 2 1

3 Projod E¡glnear 3go/o

3 4 2 1

Wþbilþd.Scot¿ tEroerþnoi 3.7 3.3 2.0

COMBINED VT'EIGHTED SCORE 3.6 2.9 2.2 1^2

Ranking of Gonsu¡tantr 4 3 2 1

c SCOPE OF WORK

TASK Tæk Hours FEE Task Hours FEE fask Houn FEE fa8k Hours FEE

t Finel Dåsign 327 s105,608 526 $r ss,51r 390 $1¡13,775 471 $149,851

TOTAL FEE 327 ¡10ã,608 528 ¡15õ,t11 390 ,1lt,775 47'l ¡l¡09,8õl

D OTHER

Joint Venture No No No No

DIR Regl$alion 10000013452 100000467¡14 10000028848 r0m0055180

ExæDlions tek6n {o lRl rD Sld- Conlract No tâ NO t

lnÊurânca (Professlonel & Generel Llebility) Yeg Low Ye8 Yes

1-0

a1312018 tb-Culv OR ACP RW P¡poline Exhlblt A xlsx



EXHIBIT ó'B''

f¡Rç9
SCOPE OF WORK

We will provide the following scope of services. Our sepanate fee proposal is based on this

scope of services.

1 . Review of Baekqround Material. We will review the record drawings provided by IRWD

to understand the details of the existing facilities and the opportunities and constraints
for the proposed design.

2. Topoqraphio SurveY. Our sub-consultant Towill lnc. will provide topographic ground

survey. This will include the entire right-of-way of Culver Drive plus ten feet (10') on
each side and fiftyfeet (50') beyond the connection points on each end. Traffic control

and permitting for survey is included. This task will provide an accurate base map for
the preliminary and final design of the project. Manholes and catch basins will be

dipped during the field survey work.

3. Utilitvand Recod Drawinq Researoh. RCE will contactthe utility purveyors and inform

them of the proposed prcjects' intent and timeline. Existing and proposed utility
information will be requested from each company.

4. Construction Documents.

a. tsase Sheet Freoaration -We will use the field survey to provide a topographic
base map for the project site, with one-foot contour interval. RCE will utilize the
utility research and record data collected above to prepare project base sheets.

b. 60Vo tonstrucüon Ql:awings - RCE will prepare 60% improvement plans based

on the conceptual alignment. We will include profile of the proposed recycled

water main and connection details.
c. 1000râ Csn$n¡cüon Ðnawings - RCE will prepare final improvement plans and

specifications based on IRWD review comments. Traffic Control plans will be
provided as required by the City of lrvine.

d. Final Plans - We will incorporate any final comments into the drawings. The
finalbid documents will be stamped and signed by a Califomia Registered Civil
Engineer.

We anticipate the drawing set to include the following improvement plans:

r Title Sheet
o List of Drawings, Abbreviations, Location and Vicinity Maps, Legend, General

Notes, Recycled Water Notes, Construction Notes and Quantities (2 drawings)
r Culver Drive l2-inch Pipeline Plan and Profile (2 drawings)

B-1



f¡ßçg
. Construction Details, Pipeline Connection Detiails, New 8" Meter configuration

detail (2 drawings)
r Traffic Control Plans (2 to 3 drawings)

We will submit four (4) sets of the full size plans (24" x 36") to IRWD for review at each

of the 6}o/o, 10}o/o draft and final completion levels. We will also submit the final signed

and seaþd m/ars after all comments have been ineorporated. We will submit the final

electronic fileé on two (2) separate compact disks, one containing the AutoCAD files,

the other containing a single pdf of the entire oonstruction drawing set,

e. Proiect Manual. We will submit four (4) sets of the Project Manual to IRWD for

rev¡ew at thef 00% completion level, in standard IRWD color coded format. At

final submittal stage, we will submit one copy of the Project Manual along with

two (2) compact d¡sks, one with the electronic files in Microsoft Word format,

the other containing a single pdf of the Project Manual.

5. pothole lnvestiqation. Our sub-contractor AIRX Utility Surveyors, lnc. will provide

@pertheRFPtoverifythelocationsanddepthsofexisting
undeigròund pipes and conduits. This includes traffic control, City encroachment

permit for potholing and cold patch restoration of pavement.

6. Geotechnical Research. Our sub-consultant Sladden Engineering, lnc. will provide

gteôtechn¡cal investigation and recommendations as follows:

L Underground Utilig Clearance and Project Coordination - We will visit the

s¡e to perform an onsite reconnaissance and to maÉc the proposed

subsurfáce exploration locations. We will coordinate with the City and utility

companies for underground DigAleil as required by law. We will also

coordinate with the project team and the City to coordinate our subsurface

exPloration.

¡t. Field Exploration - Our field (subsurface) explorat'on will consist ol 2
borings to depths of approximately 15 to 20 feet with a hollow-stem auger

drill ri! along the alignment of the 1250-ftJong, 12-inch diameter recycled

waterþipel¡nL. We will log alt surface and subsurface conditions, determine

the thickness of existing pavement and sub-pavement road sections, and

obtain bulk and relatively undisturbed soil samples for geotechnical

laboratory testing. The dritl holes will be immediately backfilled with native

soi6 that are capped by at least 12 inches of Perma Patch asphalt or quick

set concrete.

lll. Laboratory Testing - Laboratory testing, which will include the determination

of in-situ moistureãnd density, maximum drydensityand optimum moisture

B,-2



f¡Rç,9

tv.

content, particle size distribution, Atterberg Limits, soil conosivity, and the

determination of shear strength characteristics, will establish relevant

engineering properties of the in-situ soil materials.

Data Compilation and Geotechnical Analysis - All collected data will be

compiled and geotechnical engineering analysis will be performed on all

information obtained from the field exploration and laboratory testing.

V. Geotechnical Report Preparation - A geotechnical report presenting our

findings, conclusions, recommendations, and supporting datra will be

prepared and submitted. This report will include but not be limited to:

a. A description of the site geology and subsurface soils that are

expected to be encountered during construction.
b. An evaluation of the depths to groundwater or seepage, if any.

c. Anticipated trenching conditions and recommended pipe bedding
materials.

d. Analysis of the temporary stability of the pipeline excavations and

recommended earth pressures for shoring design, as necessary'
e. Excavation and compaction requirements, including suitability of the

onsite soils fortrench backfill.
f . Pavement design re@mmendations'

7, Permits: We will identiffthe permits required, prepare the applications and secure the

ærmits w¡th the City of lrvine. The permit fees are not included in our fee estimate and

will be reimbursed by IRWD separately (without surcharge).

L Opinion of Probable Costand Submlttal Loo. We will prepare and submit an itemized

op¡n¡on of pioþaOIe construction cost at each of the 60% and 100o/o design completion

levels. We will also provide the submittal log at final submittal on standard IRWD

template.

g. CEQA Documentation. We will provide IRWD w¡th relevant data regarding

environmenta¡ ¡mpact of construction activities and a location map for the Notice of
Exemption (NOE), so that IRWD staff can complete and file the final CEQA document.

10, Project Meetinos. We will attend four (4) meetings (including the kick-offmeeting and

three plan review meetings) at IRWD offices during the design phase of this project'

We will schedule the meetings; prepare agendas, meetings minutes and a summary

of action items for each meeting.

11. Proleot Scüedüte. We have included an overall project schedule that should get this

replacÆment p¡pè ¡n tne ground faster than initially anticipated. We will update it as the

work progresses. This schedule shows the design, bid and construction phases'

B-3



f¡ßçg
l2.Liouidated Damaoes Calculations: We will assist with the calculation of liquidated

damages based on IRWD's standard liquidated damage calculation form.

13.Bid Period Assistance. We will provide information and clarification of the bid

docr¡rtents tô tne bidders. We have included the preparation of one (1) addendum

during the bid period if requested by IRWD.

ASSUMPTIONS & EXCLUSIONS:

o IRWD to provide existing facility record drawings of IRWD owned facilities.
o Hydraulic modeling is excluded from this proposal.

B^-4



f¡ßç,9
PROJECT TEAM

Firm Overview

RCE Gonsultants, lnc., is a civil engineering firm specializing in providing design and

construction management services to Cities and Special Districts, as well as residential
community land development. Started in 2004 by two civil engineers, who combined have

over 60 years'experience serving the Soufl.rern Califomia region, the company is built on the

strong foundation of their collective experience.

The mission of RCE is to focus on specialized areas of expertise by providing each of our

clients the same excellent service, constant communication, and quality product that they
have come to expect from our firm, Princípal involvement on every assignment is the
foundation by which the company operates.

Combined with our focus on responsiveness, providing services that meet and exceed our
client's expectations, forms the core of our company. We have built our individual reputations
on these same values and have assembled a team of like-minded professionals.

A list of major services in which RCE specializes follows:
o Water/transmission and distribution systems
o Roadway design
. Ut¡l¡ty master plans
¡ ConstructionEngineering
r Residential/Commercial Land Development Engineering
r Survey

Within each of these specialties RCE has developed a team of skilled professionals to find

effective solutions to complex issues. Their professionalism, pride of ownership, and attention
to detail is brought to bear on each and every project.

B-5



f¡RCe
CONgULTÀNTS, ;NC.

Primary Stafi

RCE has assembled a team of uniquely qualified and highly talented professionals to assist
IRWD with this project. The members of the team have recent and relevant experience having
completed projects of similar scale and complexi$ for several Water Districts and Cities
throughout Southem California. The team is comprised of RCE staffmembers that have been
working togetherfor the last ten years. We have analyzed our contracted backlog as it relates
to the individual team members for this project and can therefore apply the appropriate staffing
resources to this project as required to effectively expedite the design and permitting of these
improvements over the coming months,

u

l

I
I

t-

IRWD
PROJÊCÎ I/IANAGÊR

¡t¡RC€

PROJCCÏ TAÍ{AGER
FR t{r( cAHLL, P,Ê

TTÜYIII
Ð a&rr .rG .,

¡.rRce
PRIf{CIPAL

RlcHll? | cLAR'(- j'.É.-.

r'tRCê

: SUBCONSULTÀNTS ,

; 'tþrarnr"rrø4

oAroc
RCE STAFF

I4ANAO€RICONS''FUCTAEILTY REV|Ews
i

i
I
1

j

V'ry,
PqnoÛr0

SRANDON I¡IILLNËCK€R. P,Ê.

ÞROJECT ENGI,|EÊR: VlCrOn¡¡ W¡|IAKER, p.E

DËg6N ENOINEÉÈ JOHN MCFAALAND, ÊJ.Î.
t¡tiDt¡rivEill¡o

i3,Wæ¡

ln^Fnc co}{tiol

ocorEcHt{lcAL

B-6



$fldr F..

"ola r¡Àer.

,""1. I ?ml)

^.1 
. mm

Srô
Cæil¡nb¡
Olñr O¡¡ct

Coat¡

h
P¡wrld
Il¡rSlFr
çnr0¡hl.lcro

rllm

t8-0

a-o

^o

ElSdr
Dü¡r

t tlm

1,0

40

tl

PE ft!¡d
Co.nffi
t tta-o

ot

lô

OJ

t Æ-ú

o¡

Drqüoo

R.!¡b Mdrd trl8toriet

Êú.&Þh
Ef3Ë

Tlbsm
gËa?tll'g l.l¡of E;r.frr, lùùtEl* tocürö
ßùi¡r¡ù.ühd.ô.flflÉe
Sffi¡[rd5:PffiÞFEl
$åña a lrcl8t Dd
ffiItld

tütDrúArtr
Iæ SII€I
stæ* 2 ¡¡d 3: ÛEt dfteifEû, ÁDualírm, t dfon E
ffihl#âl#.tr

$æ3tsegilæÌOand
Sù*7:Ddb

Fr*d¡&rù¡l

ffi züù ueüãtìe4 tõülærR w É
vl*nlhrræ¡- ttrLrüa ú.

slE€'3 A & 9: Tråñ'E Cor¡ùtÈ PBr!

Oàdråìô Pl-

GrùcllriélEEaslß

hffifMeCd.x¡lbc

RCE Gon$¡læ Fee for lRllD Guhrer Dr¡Ye ACP Recycled lrueter P¡pel¡rc RePlâoetænt

' 9l ,0fi1 ¡Ehld€d por súmiüãl ñr printlr€ eÍd æpling

pþæNo.€úathisFæb€|c¡€lâl€dbassdonæ6timáeolfÉhôuFr€quiBdbr@hbslc B6edonlRllrD6Hiflandlnprtreaæo9úlod!æ¡nganyline[emadHltûgttÞñelf
æsfy^

B.-7

12sr2018t2:¡12 PM



March 12,2018

å;'ffiï,11ü; åYii:'@
Approved by: Paul 1,. Co{ 

k
CONSENT CALENDAR

MICHELSON V/ATER RECYCLING PLANT
BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES

CT

SUMMARY:

Filanc/Balfour-Beatty (FBB) is constructing the Michelson V/ater Recycling Plant (MWRP)
Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities (Biosolids Project). Contract Change Order (CCO)

No. 73 includes costs for additional electrical conduits and circuits for control of the dewatering

centrifuges. Staff recommends that the Board approve CCO No. 73 inthe amount of
5150,755.29 with FBB.

BACKGROUND:

Construction of the Biosolids Project was awarded to FBB in March 2013 inthe amount of
5163,465,940. The Biosolids Project will provide biosolids digestion, dewatering, energy
production, and on-site sludge drying. The project includes excavation for subsurface structures;

installation of foundation piles; three egg-shaped digesters; a state-of-the-art odor control
system; a biogas conditioning system and power generation using microturbines; a fats, oil and

grease (FOG) receiving station; and new utility services. These facilities are being constructed

on the land north of IR'WD's Operations Center, maintenance shops, water quality laboratory,

and warehouse.

CCO No. 73:

Staff negotiated with FBB and agrees to the labor and material costs contained in CCO No. 73,

in the amount of $150,755.29, which contains the following item:

a Additional Circuitsfor Control of the Dewatering Centrifuges - During the submittal
process it was discovered that the centrifuge manufacturer required additional conduits

and circuits for control of the three dewatering centrifuges. Conduits and circuits were

added from the dewatering centrifuges to the local control panels located adjacent to the

centrifuges as well as to the electrical panels on the ground floor in the electrical room.

This item is for labor and material to provide the additional electrical circuits required by
the centrifuge manufacturer.

Staff recommends that the Board approve CCO No. 73 in the amount of $150,755.29, which is

attached as Exhibit "A". Items that do not claim or grant additional time are considered full
compensation for those items. If items require additional time, the items included in this change

order are considered full compensation except for time impacts. The Contractor reserves the

right to claim time impacts, but the Contractor must show any time impacts to the project's

critical path and how IRWD is responsible for these time impacts. Resolution of these time

7sm mwrp biosolids change order no 73.docx



Consent Calendar: Michelson'Water Recycling Plant Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities
Contract Change Order No. 73

March 12,2018
Page2

impacts is scheduled for a later date. CCO No. 73 does not extend any of the milestone

completion dates.

The construction change order summary is attached as Exhibit "B". The following is a summary

ofthe categories ofthe change orders:

Category Total Amount

o/o of
Original
Contract

A - District Convenience/Initiation - Project Related

B - Differing Site Conditions
C - Design Oversight
D - District Convenience/Initiation - Non-Project Related

E - Contractor Convenience/Initiation

F - Contractor Requested Inspection Overtime

s 2,778,773.60

$12,438,424.40
s 3,224,803.13
$-
$ 98,302.54

$ (262,020.00)

1.70%

7.61%
1.97%

0.00%
0.06%

-0.16%

TOTAL (All Items A - F) srq.278.283.67 11.18%

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The MV/RP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities Project 04286 is included in the

FY 2017-18 Capital Budget. The existing budget is sufficient to fund the change order.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE :

The MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities is subject to the Califomia Environmental

Quality Act (CEQA) and in conformance with the California Code of Regulations Title 14,

Chapter 3, Article 7, a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SEIR), SCH # 2011031091,

was certified by IRV/D at its October 22,2012 meeting. The City of Irvine Planning

Commission approved a conditional use permit for the IRWD Biosolids Project at its

December 6, 2012 meeting.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 73 IN THE AMOTINT
OF $ 150,7 55.29 V/ITH FILANC/BALFOUR BEATTY FOR ADDITIONAL ELECTRICAL
CONDUITS AND CIRCUITS FOR CONTROL OF THE DEV/ATERING CENTRIFUGES
FOR THE MICHELSON WATER RECYCLING PLANT BIOSOLIDS AND ENERGY
RECOVERY FACILITIES, PROJECT 04286.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit ßA)) - Contract Change Order No. 73 with FBB
Exhibit 6rB'r - Construction Change Order Summary



CONTRACT CIIAIYGE oRDER EXIIIBIT "4"

lrvine Ranch Water District
15600 sãnd Canyon Avenue
P.O. Box 57OOO
lrvlne, CA 9261gtOoO
(949) 4s3-5300

C.O. No,

ü Final
73

ProjectNo. 44286

M\I,RP Biosolids and Enerry Recovory
Projcct Title Date: nil1tr¡1

DAYS t

We hereby agree to make thc above change subject to thc terms of this change order for the sum of:

-----------------------Oûe Hundrcd FjOv Thous¡¡rd Sðvcn t{und¡ld Fiftv-Fivc snd 29ll0O 
---.-*.----*-"--Dollats

Filenc/Balfour-Beattv

Principal Engíneer Datc

Department Director Approval Required

Executive Director Approval Required

Ceneral Manager Approval Required

Board Approval Required X

Excoutivc Director ofEngineering & tlVater Quality Date

Cene¡al Ma¡ager Date furchasc Order No.

NOTEj The documents support¡ng this Change Order, lnclud¡ng âny drawings ând estlmates of cos! lf requíred are attached hereto and made a pðrt hereof. This

Change Order shall not be considãred as suih untll it has been s¡gned by the Owner end the Contractor, Upon f¡nãl approvâl, d¡stribution ôf copies wlll be made as

r"quired. ThepartiesmutuallVagteethepricingsetforth¡nth¡sChangeOrderarecompfeteandfaírcompensationfortheentiretyoftheworkautho¡izedunder
this Change Order ¡nd that no addltional compensation ls warranted nor shell lt be allowed.

CHANGES: All workmanship and matertals called for by th¡s change Order ¡hall be fully in accord with the or¡ginal Contract Documents ¡nsofar as the same may be

applled without conflict to the conditions set forth by this Change Order. lhe tlme for completlnB the conträct will not be e¡tended unless exprersly provlded for In

this Change Order.

csc-02

THE FOLLOWING CHANGE TO CONTRACT, DRArr¡fINGS
AND SPECIFTCATIONS TS PROPOSED.

$ ADDITIONS $ DELETIONS DAYS +

1. Additional Circuits for Control of the Dewatering Centrifuges

{CR-3868) PR 0428ó Task 5.30

Notes:
l. For all ifems noted above, the Conftastor r€serves the rigltt to
compensablc and/or excusable time extensions provided that time
impacts to the Pryjeof's critical path are demonstrated to be beyond the

Contraçtor's control,
2. Contractor re$erves any and all rights it has and otherwise does not
waive or release any olaims it may have for additional compensation

relafed to impact, including but not limited to the cumulative effcct of
the number, nature, or extent ofany changes or design slarifications,
3. The project completion date of October 37,2017 per CCO No. 45 is
unchansed bv this Chanse Order.

$150,755.29 s0.00 See Notes

TOTAL $150,755.29 $0.00 0

I. NETAMOUNT THIS CHANGE ORDER $r 50.7s5.29 0

2. ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOI'NT s163.465.940.00 t,2'78

3. TOTALPREVIOUS CHANGE ORDERIS) $18,127.s28,38 6{

4 THIS CHANGE ORDER $181.593,468.38 l.(
5. PROPOSED REVTSED CONTRACT AMOI'NT TO DATE (1+4) = stït.744.223,67 1.646

APPROVAL LEVEL REQUTREDDATESIGNATURE



MWRP Biosoli& ud Energy Recovery F¡cilities
PR 21146 (42rO

Construction Ch¡nge Order Summrry

EXHIBIT'8"

Contætor: F-Contr¿c-torRequest-OvertimeHom
Design Enginer; Blæk& Vatch

Oricinal
Completion

Date:

r0l2E/2016

Rwised

Date

1012812016

10t28t2016

10/28t2016

10D8t2016

10128/2016

10/2E12016

Contract Days

Orisiml Davs: 1-278

Revised
Total

Contract
Days

1,278

t,278

t,2'78

r,278

1,2'18

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. dalr

0

c

0

0

0

Previous

Chmge
Orden

0

0

0

0

0

Chmge
O¡dø
Days

(

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

c

0

Contact Amomt

Revised Contæt
Ammt

s163486,142.42

$ 163,498,617.50

$1&,244,120.50

sr64,267,149.72

s164,292,001.45

sl64,323,816.45

o/o of
Original
Contract
Amout

0.01o/o

0.02%

0.48%

4.49v.

051%

o.520/.

Cmulative Total

of Chmge Ordøs

$20,202.42

$32,677.50

$77r,180.s0

s801,209.72

s826,061.45

$E57,876.45

Previou Chuge
Orde¡s

$0.00

s20,202.42

s32,677.50

$778,180.50

s801,209.72

$826,061.45

Chmge Ordø
Amomt

s20,202.42

$12,475.08

$745,503.00

s23,029.22

s24,8s1.'t3

$3 1,815.00

Chæge @üLine
IlmÀmout

g 20,202.42

$ 12,475.08

$ 745,503.00

$1 1,047.81

s2,97'l.Et

$9,003.60

sls,22s.7s

$8,270.86

$1,355.12

$3 1,815.00

IRWD or
FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

Cat€gory

A

B

B

A

c

c

B

c

c

B

Desüiption

Approved by Exe. Director of Enginedng md Waia Quality
Approved on October 24, 2013

Modifications to Road to Development Area - Delete AC to Triügle, add AB to
Michelrcn (CR404)

Approved by Exe. Dirætor of Enginuing md Watt Quality
Approved on Novmbq 13,2013
Steet Light Conduit Modifications (CR-007)

Approved by Bord ofDirectoß
Approved on Mæch 10, 2014

Bid Qumtity Adjwtnflt of Bid Itffi 8.6 Pre-Dri[

Approvedby Exe Dir ofEng & Vr'ater Quality
ApFoved on Milch 14, 2014

tretallation of Five Additional Gromdwatq Wells ad Monitoring - (CR-006)

PR 21 146 (4286) Tsk 3505
Brue BayModifretions at the FOG Statim - (CR-015) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk
3505

Grouding Exteroion at Nitrogen md Minæl Oil Systm (CR-025) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3s10

ApprovedbyExe Di¡ of Eng & Wat€r Qulity
Approved on Mach 14, 2014

Unidartified Utility - Meler Shop Dischrge (CR408) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk
3505

Comætion BemModifications at Solids Hmdling Fæility (CR-014) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 323s

Inørued Gmtiug Thicl¡ess at Solids Hmdling Fæility (CR-041) PR 21146

(a286) Tõk 3505

ApprovedbyGaenl Mmag*
Approved on Mæch 20, 2014

Additional Costs to Install Piles to the Desþ Tip (CR433) PR 21146 (4286)
I¡<k ? {O{

Chmge Ordu

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

1

2

3

4

5

6

^ 
- Di!ùid Cffiiaernili¡tim - kdd eld€d

B - Difdilg Sfc C@dilid
C-ki!!eæi¡ùt
D - Dirü¡d CoHi6ffiiâdd - N@hjdR€l¡red
E- C@úC4@i4úitidio
F - CffidúRqùdêd hsFdid offiiD. B-1

E:\Rn's Stuff, lRWDVl2m$\krd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChånteRequellq Page 1 d 29 2l13l21ß 9136 AM



MWRP Biosolids ånd Energt Ræovery Facilitim
PR2tt46 (42t6)

Construction Change Order Summrry

Contrætor: F- ConEactor Request - Ovtrtime Hom
Design Engineø: Blæk & V€atch

Original
Complaion

Date:

1¡tzgD,Ol(

Revised

Completion
Date

10/28t2016

t0128D016

t0/2ED016

rot28t2016

Contract Days

Orisiml Davs: 1.278

Revised
Tot¿l

Conûact
Davs

1,2't8

1,2'18

t,278

1,278

Cm
Total

C.O. då)^

0

0

Previous

Chmge
Ordæ

0

0

Chmç
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

)

c

Contmct Amout

Contact Amout:

Revised Contræt
Arcut

$164,348,541.45

$164,298,551.4s

slil,323,391.62

sl64,3M,790.61

Vo of
Original
Contract
Amout

0.54o/o

0-5lYo

0-52o/a

0.540/,.

Cumulative Total

of Chmge Ordøs

$882,601.45

$832,61 1.45

s8s'1,451.62

$878,8s0.61

Previou Chæge

Ordqs

$E57,E76.45

$EE2,601.45

$832,61 l.4s

s857,451.62

Chmge Ordü
Amomt

s24,'725-00

(s49,990.00)

ï24,U0.1'7

$2r,398.99

Chmge Ordr Line
Ifm Amout

$2,s42.00

$14,059.00

s8,124.00

($14,61 1.00)

(s2,70o.oo)

($3,86s.00)

(s15,579.00)

($9,167.00)

($4,068.001

$ 1,187.49

$4,605.30

$19,047.38

$8,s80.62

$12,81 8.37

IRWD or
FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD
IRWD

IRWD

IR\ryD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IR\ryD

Category

B

c

c

A
A

A

A

c

c

c

c

c

Desøiption

ApprovedbyExe Dii of Eng & Wattr Qu¿lity
Approved on April 21, 2014

Mettr Shop Dischüge Pipe Leak Investigation md Repair (CR413) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3s0s

Additional Reinforcment ad Lifting Eyes for Removable Slabs ¿t Solids

Hmdling Building (CR-021) PR 21 146 (42E6) Task 350s

Inømed Gnting Thicknæs at Solicls Hmdling Facility (CR-041) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3505Additional Conductance Probe Matqials for Relay Level
Switch6 for Vüious Smps l-cated åt the Miqotubine As PR 21146 (4286)

Tæk 3510

ApprovedbyGmeml Mmagø
Approved on April 21, 2014

Cost Shffing for Project Partndng (CR-

Credit for Primvqa 7.0 Project Portfolio Mmagmmt Softwæ (CR-002) PR

¿1146 (4286)Tacr3235

Deletion of Condete Pad nø Development ñea (CR-0044) PR 21146 (4286)

Iæk 3235

Deletion ofGrcund Test Device (CR-034) PR 21 146 (42t6) Tæk 3210

Deletion of Existing T-4 Switchgtr læreI Indiøting Switch (CR-035) PR

21146 (4286rTæk3210
Chæge toNEMA4XPmels mdModifietion to NEMA 4X B{ GmphDisplay
(CR-046) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3210

Approved by Exe. Dirætor of Eng. & \ry'atq Qulity
Approved on May 3 l, 2014

Additionat Circuits fo¡ Gæ Moniton æd Re-route of Conduits in Solids

Hudling Fæility (CR-028) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk 3sl0
Cmtilevqed Bem Support Modific¿tions in the Solids Htdling Fæility (CR-

049) PR 21146 (4286) Tßk 3505

Additional Ethemet Switches (CR-062) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Approved by Exe. Dircctor of Eng. & r¡r'ater Qulity
Approved on May 31, 2014

Additional Gnce Ports for Vüious PLCS (CR-030) PR 21 146 (4286) T6k 3510

P¡ovide H-20 Raæd Hatches åt WÀS Pmp Station md Valve Vault (CR-061)

PR 21 146 14286ì Tsk 3505

Chmge Ordu

7.1

7.2

7-3

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

9.2

9.3

l0.l

10.2

'1

8

9

l0

A - Di!!i6 Cúv6iacêr'Iri¡idiú - hojd Rr¡red
B - Difgtlg Slc C@ditid
C - Ibif! ùæi¡ôt
D - Þirrlr c@aidri.i{id. N6hjd R€hred
E - coMüc6qi4¿¡¡biri6
F -Cúú6RqdêdbsdidMie B-2
ElRm's stuf 

^lRWDV12G0$\hrd{ommHee\02-2018\ChanseR€quelLq

Paæ2 d 29 2/73120ß 9136 AM



Ii{WRP Biosolids ùd Enerry Recovery Frcililies
PR 21146 (4286)

Construction Chrnge Order Summrry

Contætol: F- Contâctor Request - Ovstim Hous
Design Engineo: Blæk & Vætch

Original
Completio¡

Dâte:

tot28t20t(

Revised

Completior
Date

ßn8DÙtÍ

Revised

Total

Conbæt
Davs

#REF!

Cm.
Totat

C.O. d¿ys

#REF!

Previous

Chaç
Ordm

Contact Days

Orisinal Dax: 1-278

Chmge
Order
Days

#REF!

0

0

ReYised Contact
Amut

$164,369,530.37

o/o of
Original
Contæt
Amout

o.550/.

Cmulative Total
ofchege Ordeß

$903,590.3?

Previou Chmge
Ordm

$E7E,E50.61

Chmge Ordu
Amomt

824,739.76

ContÉct Amout

Oricinal Cont¡actAmomt: S163-465-940.00

Chmge Order Line
Itern Amoüt

$12,905.49

$11,834.27

ÌRWDor
FBB

IRWD

IRWD

Category

c

c

Desøiption

Approved by Exe. Dûector of Eng. & Water Quality
App¡oved on Jue 4, 2014

Wæte.A.ctivated Sludge (WAS) Purp Statiotr Stuctual Modifrcations (CR-

023)PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3s05
Rmovable SLab Modifications on the Second Floor of Solids Hmdling Building
ICR-0641 PR 2 I 146 142861 Tæk 3505

1 1.1

11.2

Chmge Order

ll

t2.t Bid
onJuly 21,2014

Qumtity Adjutnmt for Bid ltem No. 5.2 - Undmmqted Fill
- Rmedial Grading - Rmove md Re{ompact a net inøeæe of

B N/A

8,104.7 CY from 51,700 CY to 59,804.7 CY ¿t Ss/CY. PR 21146 (4286) Tæk

12.2

12.5

Final Bid Qumtity AdjNt¡nÐt for Bid Item No. 5.5 - Undæmqted Fill (not

Bid Qudtity Adjuüîilt fo¡ Bid Item No. 5.8 - Undommted Fill - Deep

B

B

B

B

B

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
Rmedial Gmding - Remove md Export Offsite, a net inæöe of 60

åom 1,800 CY to 1,860 CY at $25 /CY. PR 21146 (4286\"1æk3505

12.3 Bid Qumtity Adjuünmt for Bid ltem No. 5.6 - Geotextile Fabric -
Gnding a net decreæe of5,414 SF, from 181,500 SF to 176,086 SF

$0.40/SF. PR 2l l¿t6 (4286) Tæk 3505

Bid Quiltity AdjNtnmt for Bid Iþm No. 5.6 - Geotextile Fabríc -
Gmding a net decme of 5,414 SF, ftom 181,500 SF to 176,0E6 SF

$0.40/SF. PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3s0s

Removaf a net increæe of 966 CY, from 21,650 CY la 22,616
at $s.so/CY. PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3505

Bid Qmtity Adjutnmt for Bid Item No. 5.9 - Alluvim - Remedial
Removal md Export Offsite, ¿ tret inæse of 2,076 CY, from28,l54

to 30,230 CY at $35 lCY.PR2ll46 (42E6) Task 3505

t2. BidQumtity Adjutnmt for Bid Item No. 5.10 - Undæmted Fill Deep B N/A
Corpaction of stocþiled. mtøials, a net inme of 3,I l7 CY,

ftom 1 l,¿100 CY to 14,517 CY at $15/CY. PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3505

Final Bid Qumtity Adjwtrrent for Bid ltmNo. 5.1I - Undocmmted Fill

s40,s23.3',1

$1,500.00

$s,31 3.00

972,665.98

$46,75s.00

B N/A ($30,1

Fomdations - Exlþrt excess offsite a net dffiæe of 2, I 5 1 CY, from
10,250 CY to 8,099 CY PR 21 146 (4286) Task 3505

A . Ditid C@ai*¿,I¡irirtiú - koj€ Rrldd
a - Ditrãirg sfc Cddiriß
c - D€ifû e6i8ùt
D - Diiûb c@6iàú.lf¡i.idie - Ncpreid Rel¡úad
E-CffiCoMi.n r'Iliridid
F - ffiR4d¡!Adi{¡ O6iæ B-3

s164,526,11 1,278 t0/28DOl

E:\R6's Stufl IRWDVl2HS\hrd{ommfr ee\02-2018\Chân8eRequelLq Page 3 of 29 2l!3no1a 936 AM



MWRP Biosolids üd Energlr Recovery Facilities
PR 21146 (4280

Construction Change Order Summary

Contætor: F- Contr¿ctorRequest- Overtirc Hom
Design Engineæ Black& vatch

Original

Date:

Revised

Completion
Date

10n8DO1(.

t0/28t20t6

10t28t2016

10t28n0ß

t0lzE/2016

10/28/2016

Contract Days

OrisinalDavs: 1,278

Revised

Total
Contæt

Dåvs

1,2'tE

1,278

1,2'18

1,2't8

1,27E

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. <la¡n

0

0

0

c

Pr*ious
Chmge
O¡dm

c

0

0

0

Chmge
Ord$
Days

0

0

0

0

0

c

0

C

0

0

Contract Amomt

163.465.940.00

Revised Contact
Amout

sr64,536,239.77

$164,5E0,782.96

9164,62s,997.36

$164,688,034.46

s164,s81,792.41

$164,689,880.02

Oriqinal Contact Amout;
o/. of

Original
Contact
Amout

o.6so/.

0.68%

0.710/a

0.750/¿

o.68%

0.75o/o

Cmulative Total
ofChmge Ordas

81,070,299.77

s1,114,842.96

s1,160,0s7.36

$1,222,094.4Á

$1,1 15,852.4t

sl,223,940.02

Previous Chmge
Ordere

$1,060,170.59

$1,070,299.77

sl,1t4,u2.96

$1,160,057.36

$1,222,094.46

$1,1 15,852.4?

Chmge Orcler

Amoüt

$10,129. l8

s44,543.r9

845,2t4.44

$62,037.10

(s106241.99)

$108,087.55

Chmge Ordr Line
Item Amout

$5,s30.80

$23,09s.00

$10,129.18

s44,s43.t9

s27,543.19

sl,200.41

$1,184.83

$15,285.91

s62,037.10

($106,24 l.Ð

$108,087.ss

IRWD ol
FBB

N/A

N/À

FBB

IR\ryD

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IR\ryD

FBB

IRÏr'D

Category

B

A

À

c

c

B

c

B

A.

A

Desdiption

Final BidQumtityAdjufrmt forBidltemNo.5.12 - GætextileFabric - Deep

Foud¿tions, å n€t inææ of 9,218 SF, from 51,500 SF to 60,71E SF ¿t

$0.60/SF. PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3s05

Final Bid Qwtity Adj$tnñt for Bid ltem No. 5.13 - Äggregat€ Bæe - Deep

Fomdations, a net inææe of 513.2 CY, ftom 2,860 Cy to3,373-2CY sl
$4slcY. PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3s05

ApFoved by Exe. Director of Engineoing & Watq Quality
Approved on July 10, 2014

Modifi@tions to Switchgpd I 6 (CR-070) PR 2 I 1¿tó (42E6) Tõk 35 I 0

Approved by Gmeral Mæger
Approved on Jme 24, 2014

Slide Gat6 CldifiÉtion Regrding Actuatoß (CR439) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk
3520

Approved by Gøeral Mmaga
Approval on July 31, 2014

Prcvide Mæonry ShelfAngle at Digestø contol Building (CR-031) PR 21 t4ó
(42E6) Tæk 3505

Bm Size Incruse for Monomil Ruway in Solids Hildling Building - (CR-

074)PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3s05

Upsiæ Odor Control Circulation Purp MotorDiscomects (CR482) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3510

Additional Deck Support for the Solids Hmdling Building Ræf (CR{,{4) PR

I 146 (428ô Task 3505

Àpproved by E&O Comitiee
Apprcved on Àugust 19, 2014

lmtallation of lævel 3 Diesel Pa¡ticulate Filter (DPF) on the Standby Gøætor -

'CR473\ PR 2l 146 142861 Task 3520

Approved by Bord ofDirectoß
Approved on Augut 25, 2014

Modifications to Switchgeæ l6 (CR-0704) PR 2l 146 (42E6) Task 3510

Approved by Boud ofDirectors
Approved on Augwt 25, 2014

Stmwatü Dminage Systm Modificatiou (CR4l7) PR 21146 (4286)

Chmge Ordu

12.9

12.lC

13.1

t4.l

l5.t

15.2

1s.3

15.4

i6.t

l't.t

l8.l

t3

14

l5

l6

17

t8

A - Diñidcwði*dûitidiñ - kdd elæd
B - Difirbg Slc C@dtlid

-ÈifrMiE!¡
- DLùid haió..Âtrítiáiü - N6Prcjd

c
D R4ldÞd
E - C@CffiLæ/bi¡itid
F - ffiüR4c{rd¡¡wi6Or6iæ B-4

E.\Ro's stúñ\RWDU120{38\hrd-&mmft ee\02-2018\chan8€Requellq Påæ 4 of 29 21131207A936 
^M



MWRP B¡osol¡ds ¡nd Energr Ræovery Facilitic
PR 21146 (4286)

Construction Chuge Ord€¡ Summ¡ry

Confætor: F- Contractor Request - Overtime Hom
Design Engineø: Blæk & Vætch

Orignal
Completion

Date:

10123/2016

Revised

Completion
Date

rc/28n016

10/2812016

t0l2E/2016

Contact Days

OrieinalDaYs: 1,278

Rwised
Total

Contract
Davs

r27E

1,2'78

1,2'18

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡æ

0

0

P¡evious

Chmge
O¡dm

0

0

0

Chage
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

)

0

Cont¡act Amout

Contæt Amort:

Rwised Contract

Amout

sr64;1624s2.88

$164,816,93E.51

gt6/.,915,444.70

%o of
Original
Contract
Amout

o;190/.

O.83o/o

0.8901

Cmul¿tive Total
ofChmge Ordøs

$1,296,5 12.88

$1,3s0,998.5 I

st,449,504.7A

Previous Chæge

0rde¡s

sl,223,940.02

$1,296,512.EE

$1,350,998.51

Chmge Orda
Amout

s'72,5'Ì2.86

$54,485.63

$ 98,506.19

Chmge Ordd Line
ItmAmout

$1,r25.75

s14,140.00

98,323.99

s2,62s.12

$46,358.00

$24,85s.80

$3y'12.13

s3,863.22

$12,843.50

$9,510.98

s92,367.44

$6,138.75

IRWD or

FBB

IR\ryD

N/A

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IR\ryD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

CàlÊgory

À
B

c

A

B

A
A

A

A

A

B

c

Desciption

Approvedby Executive Director of Enginedng & Wâttr Quality
Approved on Septanbq 30,2014
Modification to Switchgeu 16 (CR-0708) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Alluvim Remrel Due to 36-inch Stom Drain Installation (CR-085) PR 21146

þ286) Tæk 3s20

Additional Structrual Support for Fats, Oils, md Greæe (FOG) Grindus (CR-

081) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk 3505

Portable Lift Trck for 4E0v ABB Bskss (CR-10E) PR 21146 (4286) Task

3510
Ret¿ining Wall North md West of Biosolids Site (CR-010) PR 21146 (4286)

Tæk 3505

ApprovedbyExæutive Dùector of Enginedng & r¡r'ater Qu¿lity
Approved on Novmbø 19, 2014

Nitrogm Slab ModificatioN (CR-052) PR 2l l,t6 (42E6) Tæk 3505

Additional Conduits md Cirruits for the Acæs Cmtrol Systeffi fo¡ the Solids

Hmdling Building md the Dig*til Control Building (CR-082) PR 21146

ôidái P;; M;* Chmge for swcR-I4 ad swGR-l s (cR-l 09) PR

21 146 (4286) Task 3510

Truck Unloading Pmel Modifi catiore (CR-l I 5) PR 2 I 146 (a286) Tæk 35 l0

Switchgeü SWGR-l4 Modifiøtions (CR-l 1ó) PR 21146 (42E6) Task 3510

dpproved by General Mmagø
Approved on Jæuary 30, 2015

Additional Anchomge for Methme Digesters (CR-05 lA) PR 21 146 (a286) Tæk
,520
Additional Inpuloutputs Reviry ofMætø VO List (CR-136) PR 21 146 (4286')

Iask 3510

Chmge Orda

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

20.1

20.2

20-3

20.4

20.5

21.1

21.2

l9

20

2l

^ 
- Ðirid@tadrftiaiú - k(*s eldcd

B - Dif.rû8 Slc Codiliß
c - kif! ù6¡fúi
D-Dirtdc@ia.dlri.irlr -N*hjdR€l*d
E - cG.ørc@i.sr[!&idk¡
F-CffiRAæd bÐdi6Miæ B-5

E:\Ron's Stuff, lRWDU12m38\hrd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChangeReque$tq ?aæ5ú29 zl13l2o1a936 AM



MWRP Biosolids ùd Energl Ræovery Facilifæ
PR 21146 (42rO

Construcdon ChaDge Order Summary

Contrætor: F- Contractor Requst - Overtirc Hous
Design Engineæ Blæk &Vætch

OriSmal
Cornplaion

Date:

10t28t201Í

Rwised
Completion

Date

10/28t2016

ConÈæt Days

OrisinalDavs: 1,2'78

Revised

Tot¡l
Contæt

D¿ys

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. days

0

PHious
Chæge
Ordss

Chmge

Order
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amut

Contæt Amout:

Revised Contact
Amùt

st6s,8't9,769.21

o/¡ of
Original
Contact
Amoet

1.48o/¡

Cmrfative Total
of Chæge Ordes

$2,413,829.21

Previou Chmge
O¡dm

srA49,so4.7o

Chmge Ordø
Amoüt

s9øj24.51

Chmge Orda Line
Itsn Amowt

$485,250.28

6333A17.s0

s71,Q10.74

$s6,882.30

$2,0M.98

($s,5?3.42)

($5,032.00)

923,269.6r

$1,384.47

(s9,771.72)

$2,156.20

s9,265.5'l

IRWDo¡
FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

FBB
IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

Category

c
B

A

c
c

A

c

A

A

A

Desøiption

Approved byBoæd of Ditætors
Approved on February 9, 2015

Electical Conduit Overfill (CR-055) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk 3510

HearDrytr Equipmmt Esalation Cosrs (cR45'r)PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3520

Glass-lining Sludge Dtrity Mettrs (CR-06nPR2ll46(4286) Tæk 3510

Switchger-16 Encl6w (CR440) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Prcpme Gæ Tank Fomdation Dmlition (CR-084) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk

3505

Credit for tr¿vel costs related to inspection of cmtrifugæ in Gemy (CR-091)

PR 2l 1¿16 (4286) Tæk 3520

Deletion of MMC Swiæhgeu-l4 Breakø (CR-092)PR2ll46 (4286) Tæk 3510

Inü6e of Fibr Optic Conduit Siæ (CR-097')PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Ovøtime to perfom wqk in the Solids Hædling electrical ræm (CR-103) PR

21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Credit fo¡ modifiøtion to the Unintqruptible Porer Systm (CR-l 18) PR 21146

(42E6) Tæk 3s10

Addition of I¡w voltage CorprüEnt in SCE Switch "c'(CR-160) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3s10

Addition of inpuf/ouÞut poi¡Îs relating to su¡ry purrys l@ted at the Solids

Hmdlins Buildine (CR-161) PR 21 146 (428ó) T¿sk 3510

Chmge Ordu

22.1

)t)

22.3

22.4

22.5

22-6

22.7

22-8

22.9

22.10

22.11

22-t2

22

B-6

A - DitidC@tulc.t¡iliúioo- k id kld
B -Ðfti4 siþcddiriü
C - D.rif! eæ¡8üt
D - Di*id Cø€ia.d¡¡i idi@ - NÉhid kl&d
Ê - Cffi C@i{sct¡iiinid
F-MRffiEdh4diñHiæ

E:\Ron's stuf^IRWD\112m38\krd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChangeReque$tq Paæ 6 of 29 211312O1a936 AM



MWRP Biosolids ud EneÌS¡ Recovery Facilities

PR 21146 (4280
Construcdon Ch¡nge Order Summary

Conbactor: F- Contractot Request - Ovqtime Hous
Design Elginm Blæk&Veatch

Original
Completion

Date:

10/28n0t6

Revised

Completion
Dâte

10/28/2016

10128/2016

r0t28t2016

ConÍæt Days

Clrisinal Das: l-278

Revised
Total

Contæt
Days

1,278

1,278

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. da)^

0

0

Prwious
Chæge
O¡dæ

0

0

Chmge
Orda
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amout

Conaæt

Rwised Contâct
Amut

$165,976,774.31

sr66,07s,897.26

s166,356,473.23

o/o of
Original
Contract
Amout

t.s4%

1.60%

t;t1yo

Cmulative Total
of Chmge Ordas

s2,5 10,834.3 I

s2,609,95'7.26

s2,890,s33.23

Previou Chmge
Ordm

92,413,829.21

$2,510,834.31

s2,609,957.26

Chmge Order
Amoùt

$97,00s.10

s99,122.9s

$280,57s.97

ChÐge Order Line
Item Amout

$5,514.57

s2,s35.33

$7,552.1 1

$30,535.94

$l 1,1 39.25

$2Q,671.61

$1,109.42

$5,516.45
$2,286.29

$10,1,14.13

s99,r22.9s

$15E,259.68

$r22,316-29

IRWD or

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD
FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

Category

B

A
A

A

A

Ä

c

A
c

A

c

B

Desdiptioû

Approved by Gaeral Mmagø
Approved on February 26, 2015

Additional Steel Reinforcmüt the Pellet Stonge Silos A¡chü Bolts (CR4%)
PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3s05

DiffsmtialP¡essreTmsmitter (CR-09) PR 211a6 (4286) Tæk 3510

Additional Aluinm Tmch Gnting in Digesta Control Building (CR-107) PR

21146 (4286)Tæk3520

Light Weight Concrete for Elætricâl Conduits Undemeath the Solids Hmdling

Building Elætrical Room (CR-1 13) PR 21 146 (4286) Tãk 3510

Adding Entrgjets Wei¡Plates to Dew¿tdng Centrifuges - (CR-124)PR.21146
(4286) Tsk 3520

Provide Angle Supports fo¡ the Rmovable Slabs at the Solids Hmdling
Building - (CR-137) PR 21 1,1ó (4286) Tsk 3520

Struchmt Modifi@tion at Solids Hmdling Building - (CR-140) PR 21146

(42E6) Tæk 3s20

Inuæe of Fibr Optic Conduit Siæ (CR-097) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Steel Joist Fming Modiûcations at Digestü Control Building (CR-151) PR

21146 (4286) Tæk 3505
WAS Valve Vault md Piping Modifiøtiore (CR-100) PR 2l146 (4286) Tõk
1520

{pprovedbyGmenl Mmagu
Approved on Much 6, 2015

Coatiug of WAS/Primary Sludge Purlp Statiom & Sludge 
'Wetwells per RFI-

)6124 (CR-127) PR 2l t46 (4286) Tæk 3505

Approved by Boud ofDirectoß
Approved on Mæh 23, 2015

Lighhing prctection for the Methme Digcters (CR-121) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk

1505

Deflagration Qumch Tubes outside of lhe Dryu Ræm (CR-143) PR 21146

(4286) Tsk 350s

Chæge Ordø

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

23.6

23;7

23.8
23.9

23.10

24.1

25.t

25.2

23

24

25

A - Diûid C@ierd¡it¡¡toh - kdd Rrldêd
B-Þitui¡A*Codlid
C - D.riF kif¡t
D - Dffitukæ/bAi{in -N@Pqid R€hed
Ê- tuCffii{æ[¡iliakþ

B-7F - CffiRq6odIædir Oqiæ

E\Rd's Stuff !RWDU12G038\&ard-6mmft æ\02-2018\Chan8eRequê$Log Paæ7 dæ 413/20189t36 AM



MWRP Biosolids ¡nd EtrerS¡ Ræovery Faciliûs
PR2tt46 (42t6)

Consûuction Chânge Order Summ¡ry

Contractor: F- Contractor Requñt - Overtirc Hom
Design Engin€ü: Btæk & Vetch

Original
Completion

Date:

l02E/2014

Revised

Completio¡
Date

tot28Dot6

t0/28t2016

Contract Da's

Reviwd
Tot¿l

Contræt
Days

1,278

t,27E

Cum.
Total

C.O. days

0

Orip

Previous

Chuge
Ordæ

0

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Conh¿ct Amomt

OrisinalContractAmoüt: $163165,940.00

Revised Contact
Ammt

816643r,289.02

$166,538,542.28

o/o of
Origin¿l
ConFact
Amoüt

t.8t%

1.88%

Cmulative Total

of Chmge Ordffi

s2,965,349.02

s3,0'12,602.28

Previou Chmge

Orclers

$2,890,533.23

s2,96s,349-02

Chæge Orda
Amomt

$74,815.79

st01,253.26

Chmç OrdøLine
Item Ämomt

s3,646.82

s6,489.00

$20,297.16

$18,093.6r

$1,s93.10

$6,E92.40

87,114.r'1

$1,163.2(

s4,204.N

$3,03s.2i

$1,286.99

$1,000.0(

s29,744.43

$3s,771.81

$13,697.51

$9,s22-81

$ 18,5 16.70

IRWD ot

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWI)

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

Categpry

c
c

A

A
A

A

A

c

c

B

A

A

A

c

A

A

Desøiption

Approved by Exe. Dir. Of Engineøing & Water Quality
Approved on April 14, 2015

UPS udPowaFailAlm perRFI 357 (CR-056)PR21146 (42E6) Tæk 3510

I/O Points for Methæe Dig€ster Smp Purps ptrRFI-356 (CR-077)PR21146

(4286) Tsk 3510

Ipss ofPowa Alm to the SCADA Network per RFI-03938 (CR-093) PR

ñbõiffi;ins *ù úi rrap Modifications per RFI-0534 (cR-101) PR 211'ló

Instatl Gromding Pig Tails in Solids Hüdling Building Arca Electrical Room
paRFI 0s94 (CR-105) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Additional Pushbuttom, Light ed Rel¿ys fo¡ the FOG Ræeiving Control Pmel
(CR-l t4) PR 2l 14ó (4286) Tæk 3510

Chügs to the HMI Enclosws at the Sludge Receiving Area (CR-133) PR

21 146 (4286) Task 3s10

Proyide Stonge Shelf fo¡ Keyboud md MoNe to the HMI Enclosres at the

SludgÞ Ræeiving Area (CR-135) PR 21 146 (4286) Task 3510

Dewatting Feed Purp Station Guadrail Additiom (CR-142) PR 21 146 (4286)

Tæk 3520
Additional VO Points for PIÆ4300 (CR-1s6) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Shoring Rwision to Ræf Slab of Dewaæring Feed Pmp Station (CR-189) PR
2l 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Coating ofthe Sludge Receiving Bins (CR-199) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3520

Chmge Orda

26.1

26.2

26-3

26.4

26.5

26.6

26;l

26.8

26.9

26-10

26.11

26.12

26

27 by Boüd of Directors

A¡ril27,2015
2't.t to Hm-Mæhine Inærface (HMI) for the Mimtwbine Ara

(CR-078) PR 21 146 (4286) Task 3s10
to the Piping md Automtion Føtues åt Fats, Oils, md Grme

Fæilþ (CR-129) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk 3s10

27-3 Sqrport to the Mononil at the DMtqing Feed Pmp Station (CR-

27

PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3505

Additional Magnetic Floweteß at Polymer Feed System (CR-158) PR

1146 (4286) Tæk 3s10

2'7 to PLCs at Sludge ReceivingAæa (CR-lE0) PR 2l 146 (4286)

3510
A - Diûi€cmiaM¡ituir - kid R.ld
B - Diftfb8 sik c@dliß
c-hbû6iÈt
D - DiGit Cffiia.Élb¡li{ib - NGåCll kl¡æd
E - CffiCñim{Ditidi[
F - CffiRAæd¡Sqi6 CHiæ B-8

E\Rd's Stufi \lRWDU12G038\&ard-ømmft ee\02-2018\Chan geRque*bg Pege 8 of 29 211312't89t36 AM



MWRP Biosolids ud Ener$¡ Recovery f,'¡ciliti€s
PR 21146 (4280

Construction Ch¡nge Order Summrry

Contrætor: F- Contracto¡ Requ6t - Overtirc Hom
Design Engine*: Blæk& V€tch

Origtnal
Conpletioû

Date:

10t2812016

Revised

Completion
Date

l0/28/2016

r0t28/2016

Contæt Days

Orisinal Daq: l-278

Revised
Total

Contræt
D"Ys

1,278

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡n

0

0

Previous

Chmge
Ordere

0

0

Chæge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

)

)

Contract Amout

OriÈinâlContrætAmout: 3163-465-940-00

Revised Contæt
Àmout

$166,613,092.63

$166,839,064.40

o/¡ of
Original
Contract
Àmout

1.93o/o

2.060/.

Cmulative Tot¿l

of Chmge Ordqs

93,147,1s2.63

s3,373,r24.4Q

Previou Chmge

Orders

93,072,602.28

$3,147,r52.63

Chmge Ordu
Amomf

$74,550.35

$225,971.7'l

Chuge Ordu Line
ItmAmout

s22A51.01

912,028.44

$1,433.86

$16,033.5E

$3,454.91

s1 1,013.75

$1,7 15.20

$6y'19.60

$1 19,937.87

$106,033.90

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

Category

c
c

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

A

Dæcription

Apprcved by Exe. Dir. Of Eng & \¡¡åtr Qulity
Approved on May I 5, 2015

Deøter Contlol Pãel Modifi€tioß (CR-215) Tæk 3520

Additional Structml Support in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR-075) Task

3505

Additional Sump Pmp Dnin Line in the Bulk Polymr Stongþ Aræ (CR-l19)
Tæk 3520

Irot¿ll Three 5-inch conduits on Southwest Side ofthe Bioplids Site (CR-I20)
Tæk 3510

Prcvide Powa to Sevffil Ißt¡ments l¡@ted at the Solids Hildli¡g Building
üd Dig€sta Control Building (CR-154) Tæk 3520

INlall Fom Sepætor Drain at Digester Cmüol Building (CR-167) Tæk 3520

Imtall Support for 14-inch Plug Valve at Cmtrate T@ùnmt WetweU (CR-197)

Tæk 3520

Tmch Modific¿tioN at the Sludç Cake Inad4ut Area of the Solids Hodling
Building (CR-123) Task 3505

Approved by Boæd ofDirectm
Approvedon Jme 22, 2015

Foul Air Pipe Supports in the Solids Hmdling Building Bsænt (CR-106) PR
21146 (4286)Task3s20

Sæmd¿ry Circuit Breakq for Tmfom T-14 (CR-I85) PR 21146 (4286))
Tæk 3510

Chmge O¡da

2E.t

28.2

28.3

28.4

2E.5

28.6

28.7

28.8

29.1

29.2

28

29

A - Diûid cú6iMi.i{ioo - kid Rddd
B - Dif.riûg siË cdiriü
c -DGrign k¡!tr
D - Dirnif C@i¿ldl¡iridbo - N*PrCid RelÍed
E- C@Cff€íæll¡h¡.ir
F -C@¡@R@d fsqi6 OEtiEc B-9
E:\Ron's $uff, lRWDUl2æS\kd{onmfr ee\02-2018\Chãn8e8equelLq PaF9d29 2l13l201e9s6 N



MWRP B¡osol¡ds üd Energy R€covery Frcilitis
PR 21146 (42tO

CoDstruction Change Order Summary

Contractor: F- Contractor Requst - Owrtim HoEs

Design Enginø: Blæk & Vætch

Original
Completion

Date:

r0t28/2016

Revised

Completio¡
Date

10t28t20t6

Contræt Days

Orieiml Davs: 1.278

Reviæd

Toøl
Contæt

Days

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. då]^

Previous

Chmge
Ordæ

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amomt

Revised Contæt
Ammt

$r66,791,087.81

Vo of
Original
Conbact
Amomt

2-03%

CM¡lative Total

ofchmge Ordffi

$3,325,t47.81

Previou Chmge

Orders

$3,373,r24.40

Chmge Ordu
Amomt

(947976.s9)

Chmge Ordø Line
Itm Amomt

($1,890.92)

$1 18,335.54

î12,s79.20

($81p48.33)

($2,s05.7e)

($200,000.00)

$363,978.41

(823e2.66)

($6t3.39)

$l 1,191.41

$9,960.55

($39r,571.00)

$88,076.01

8',t3,997.23

(s38,102.8s)

IRWD ol
FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB
IRlryD

IR\ryD

IR\ryD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

C¿tegory

A

B

A

E

A

c
E

B

A

A

A

A

c

E

Description

Approved by Bord of Directors

Approved on July 27, 2015

Credit for Chilging Stom D¡ain line from Ductile lron to PVC (CR-042) PR

2l 146 (4286) Task 3520

tmtallation ofAdditional Digæter A¡chonge (CR-0518) PR21 146 (4286)

Iæk 3505

Hubs Sqms I/O Modiñcations pø RFI-039 I md RFI-05254 (CR-068) PR

21 146 (a286) Task 3510

Credit forFBB's Portion ofPaúidng (CR-090) PR 2l la6 (a286) Task

Deletion of Watestops at Methæe Digester Corrylex (CR-102) PR 21146

(42E6) Tæk 3s0s

Deletion of Bid Itm No. 1 E.4 - Corputffi md Networking Hædwãe for the

Control Systan (CR-138) PR 21 1,+ó (42E6) Tæk 3510

Electrical md Gæ Modifiætions (CR-146) PR 21 146 (4286) Task 3510

Credit for Chæging H@t Dryer wet Material Mixq from 424 Steel to 436
St€el (CR-157) PR 21146 (428Q'ræk3520

Credit for Travel Cost ofOn-Sit€ Inspætion for Àcid Phæe Digeste¡ (CR-I75)

PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3520

Heat Dryr VO Modifi@tions per R¡I-0626 (CR-179) PR 2l 146 (4286) Tæk
3510

Demt Trough I/O Modifications pu RFI-0979 (CR-202) PR 21146 (4286J

Tæk 3510

Deletion oflntaior Coating ofMelhme Digesters (CR-188) PR 21146(4286)
Tæk 3520

Piping Modifiætions md Addition of Ca¡üon Cmisl€ß (CR-218) PR 21 146

(4286) Tæk 3s20

PicKing md Pæsivation of Sludge Mixere (CR-248) PR 21 146 (a286) Tæk
3520

IRWD Costs Assciatedto RepaiÌing the Pile md Imtalling Couplere (CR-139)

PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3505

ChmçOrd*

30.1

30.2

30.3

30-4

30.s

30.6

30-'l

30.8

30.9

30.1

30.1 l

30.12

30.13

30-t4

30.15

30

A - Diûid cmíãdriridi(h - kid tuld.d
Ê -Dfdq SilèCdfiú
C - DcrilD Ovæitùt
D- Di*idcdøidhiridid - N@hjd R.H
E - C@dC@i¡s&iridiú
F-cffiRsst dl!Ðdioordiæ B-10
E:\ßon's Stuft\lRWo\112m38\hrd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChangeRequestq PaF 10 of 29 2/13/2o189t36 AM



MtryRP Biosolids ùd Energy Recovery F cilitis
PR 21146 (4280

Construction Ch¡nge Order gummary

Confrætor; F- Contractor Request - Ovqtire Hous
Design Enginø: Blæk & Veâtch

Oricinal

Date:

Reviæd

Completion
DalÊ

10/28/2016

10/2812016

1/0n900

Contæt Days

Revised
Total

Conhæt
Dåys

1,278

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. days

0

0

0

Prwious
Chæge
Ord6

0

0

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amout

OrisinatContætAmomt: $163,465,940.00

Rwised Contact
Amout

$166,866,087.s5

$166,940,770.5t

$ 166,999,01 8.26

%o of
Original
Contrâct

Amout
2.O80/.

2.130/"

2.16o/a

Cmulative Total
ofchoge Orders

$3y'00,147.s5

$3y'74,830.51

$3,533,078.26

Previou Chæge

Ordeß

s3,325,147.81

$3,400,147.55

$3,474,830.51

Chmge Orda
Amoüt

$74,999.74

$'14,6E2.96

ss9,241;t5

Chmç Order Line
It€m Amout

s4,296.86

$893.78

ss1,916;11

$ I 1,892.39

$2t,63't.57
$1,809.77

s25,153.79

$s,690.83

s2,220.r2

sl4,602.41

$3,56E.47

s24,0t7.48

s32,399.41

$1,830.86

IRWDoT
FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD
IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

Cat€gory

c

c

A
c

A
A

A

A

A

À

B

c

c

Desüiption

Approved by Exe. Dir. Of Eng, & Watü Quality
Approved on July 28, 2015

Prcvi& Circuit üd Breaker for Stândby Genætor in the Miüohrbine Ae
(CR-170) PR 2114ó (4286) Task 3510

Additional Pipe Support for 14-inch Ai¡ Line at the Cqtrate Facility (CR-226)

PR 21 14ó (4286) Tæk 3520

Addition ofE-stops (CR-128) PR 21 146 (42E6) Tæk 3510

Strütunl Support of Jib Cme at Dwatering Feed Pump Station Staimell (CR-

243)PR2tt46 (4286) Tæk 3520

Approved by Exe. Dir. Of Eng & Watr Qulity
Approved on August 3 1, 2015

Additional Conduits md Circuits for Fire Alm in the Solitls Hmdling Building

Additional Davit Bæes åt ciltate THtnmt Fæility (cR-11 1) PR 21 146

þ2E6) Tæk 3520

Additional Fire AlmPmel in Digester Contol Building (CR-169) PR 21146

(a286) Tæk 3s10

Modiñcatims to FOG Surp Pur¡ps Controls (CR-177) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk

3510

Additional Trock l¡adout Conveyor þut md Output (CR-201) PR 21146

(42E6) Tæk 3s10
Additional Spæ Conduits in the Miüotu¡bine Aru (CR:229)PR2ll46 (4286)

Tæk 3510
Co¡duits for Elætrical Discomect Switch for Roll-Up Doon of the Digestø
Control Buildine ICR-230) PR 21 146 (42Eô Tæk 3510

Approved by Executive Director of Enginedng & ¡ü¡ater Qulity
Apprcved on Septernbt 30, 201 5

Raligmt of E-inchReclairedW¿tet Line at Gate 2 (CR-225) PR 21146

(4286) Tæk 3s20
Additional Conduits md Wires for Lighting Circuits to Minimiæ Voltage Dlop
(cR-22E) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Cable md Conduit Chmges at Solids Hmdling Building md Dewatering Feed

Purp Station (CR-231) PR 2t 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Chmge Orda

3 t.1

31.2

31.3

31.4

32.1

32.2

32.3

32.4

32.5

32.6

32.7

33.1

33.2

33.3

31

32

33

A - Di!ùidh€iættrfifiú - hid RrlåLd
B - DiÍ&rilg Slc CdiliG
C - kif! Ovæig¡t
D ' D¡ûir Cddidrfiâir -NGPKid Relræd
E - ffiúC@imlt¡iti4kþ
F - CffiR@csdl@limMiG B-11

E:\Ron's stuff\l RWDU12ñ38\&ard{ommnee\02-2018\chenseRequeslq Pege 11 of 29 2/1320189:364M



MWRP Biosolids aDd Ener$/ Ræovery Frcilit¡$
PR 21146 (42t6)

Consfuction Chrnge Order Summ¡ry

Contrætor: F- Contractor Requæt - Overtirc Hom
Design Engineu: Blæk & Vatch

Original
Completio¡

Date:

t0/28/2016,

Rwised
Completio¡

Date

rcn8/2016

t0/2812016

10/28/2016

Contact Days

O¡isiml Davs: 1-278

Revised

Total
Contæt

Days

1,27E

1,278

t,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. days

0

0

Previous

Chmge
Ordæ

0

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amomt

Contract

Revised ConÍæt
Ammt

$167,t63,793-s4

st67,261,774.11

sl67 ,347 ,78r .6r

o/" of
Original
Conhact

Ämomt

2.26%

2.32%

2.37o/a

Cmulative Total

of Chmge Ordffi

$3,697,E53.54

$3,79s,834.1 1

$3,881,841.61

PrevioB Chmg€
Ordqs

$3,s33,078.26

$3,697,853.s4

$3,795,834.1 I

Chmge Ordu
Amomt

s164,77s.28

$97,980.57

$86,007.50

ChÐge Ordq Line
Item Amout

($39,s02.50)

(s80,8s0.00)

($27,500.00)

s27s,954.94

(s1,978.00)

$38,650.88

$9,027.03

$3E,999.08

s36,772.78

$13,181.68

$21,1 17.50

s64,890.00

IRWD o¡

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IR\ryD

FBB

FBB

Category

B

F

A

E

A

B

E

E

A

A

A

B

Desøiption

Approved by Boud ofDirectoß
Approved on Octob€r 26,2015

Credit for Thtud Submittal Review Through 05/31/2015 (CR-08E) PR 21 146

(4286) T6k l06s

Credit for Overtirc Inspection Hous Thrcugh 05/31/2015 (CR-089) PR 21 146

(4286) Tæk 3520

Credit for Spæial hspectioß fol Structml Anchors md Geotecbniml

Investigation (CR-295) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 1065

Chmge in Knife Gate Valve Mmufachrer (CR-1t7) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk
3520

Credit forChmges in IowVoltagr SWGR-l4 CircuitBreaktr (CR-163) PR

211216 (4286) Tæk 3510

Chmge to Addressable Smoke Deæctore (CR-220).PR2ll46 (4286) Tæk 3510

ApprovedbyGaenl Mmagc
Approved on Novmbû 25, 201 5

Chmç in Nming Convmtion fo¡ Stom Water Pmp St¿tion (Atea 1 500)

SCADÀPrcgrming (CR-l81) PR 21146 (4286) Tæk3510

Valve Status Ovmide Fmctionalþ (CR-IE2)PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Confol ChmgÞs for Prima¡y Sludge ud wste Activated Purry Stations (Area

1900) SCADA Progrmming (CR-l84) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Motq Protection Relay (CR-239) PR 2l l¿ló (4286) Tæk 3510

Approved by Gmeml Mmagø
Approved on Decembú 3, 2015

Light Weight Condete for Undmlab Conduits at Miüotubine Area (CR-253)

PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Outstanding CB&I Itqns (CR-0994) PR 211,16 (4286) Tæk 3520 - This chuge
o¡dø includç: CR-09E (Gwd Rail at Biogæ Stonge Tank); CR-099 (Tube

Steel Supports); additioml Off-Site Stonç Costs; md sedit for Use of SS 308

in Liæ of SS 3 I 6L Welds.

Chæge Ordø

34-l

34.2

34.3

34.4

34.s

34.ú

35.1

3s.2

35.3

35.4

36.1

36.2

34

35

36

A - Di$in cffiiæ€r¡itilid - kid R.l.ilod
B - Ðifdht Slc Cddíli*
C -Déi!D Ov4iglt
D - Dirtsid cdEia.dbiltid - NFllojd R¿leted
E- C@dCffiiæcttriføio
F -C(ffiúRsácdhlFdi@Offi. B-12

Paæ12úæE\Rm's $uf 

^lRWDvl2m$\hrd-bmmft 
€€\02-2018\ChanSeRequesLq 2lt3l20ß9t36 M



MIVRP Biosolids ùd EnùS¡ Recovery Faciliti€s
PR 21146 (42rO

Construction Change Order Summary

Contætq: F- Conhactor Request - Overtiæ HoN
Design Enginea: Blæk & Veatch

Original

Date:

Revised

Completion
Date

10/28t2016

Contæt Days

Orisinâl Das: 1,2'78

Revised

Total
Contact

D"Ys

t,2'78

Cm.
Total

C.O. days

0

P¡evious

Chæge
Ordm

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

Contract Amout

Contæt

Revised Contract

Amout

st6't,395,228.10

%o of
Original
Contract
Amout

2.40%

Cmulative Total
ofChoge Ordus

$3,929,2EE.1

Previox Chmge
O¡dm

s3,881,841.61

Chæge Ordø
Amout

$47,446.49

Chmge Order Line
Itsn Amout

sl,065.72

$4,rs7.60

s2430.59

$16,E14.00

$8,410.00

$s,382.19

$5,91 1.61

s3,274;18

IRWD or

FBB

IRWD

IR\ryI)

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

Category

c

c

c

A
A

A

,A

A

Desøiption

Approved by Exe. Director of Enginøing æd Water Quality
Approved on Jmuary 21, 2016

Additional P¡essue ReliefValvs in the Digestu Contol Building Slab (CR-

112\PR21146 (4286) Tæk 3s20

Chmge FædEr Circuit Bskq Siæ in MCC4102 (CR-165) PR 21146 (4286)

Iæk 3510

Chmge Feedø Circuit Breaks Siæ for the Prinury Sludge Purp Vriable
F €quøcyDrive (CR-233\PR2I146 (4286) Tæk 3510

SCADAPrcgaming Chmges Du€ to Chmge to Schwei&erPowq Quality
Additional L¿beling of Pællel Conduits md Cables (CR-262) PR21l46 ø2e6)
Tæk 3510

Chmge in Sludç Reæiving Entrance Bæm Opætion CR-263) PR 21146

(4286) ræk 3s10

Anodiæ Alminml.ight Fixtw Stanchioru/Su Shades (CR-283) PR 21 146

(4286) Tæk 3s10

Hot Tap 8-Inch ACP Potabte water Line (CR-31 l) PR 21 146 (4286) Tsk 3520

Chmge Ordø

3'7.1

37.2

37.3

3'7.4

3't.5

37.6

3'7;l

37.8

37

A - Diltid CúEiacer'Iûiliaim - koid R.¡.il€d
B - Ðifiqiq sLc@dfid
c - tÞi!! oæi8ùt
D - Dieüid covaiaGr¡úidiø - N6P¡ojd ReLil€d

€ - Cdddd Cffi ie.r'biti¡ri@
F - Cffidlìqudêd lBpdio OffiiEc B-13
E\Ron's stuff\l RWD\I12m38\&ard-6mmfr €eþ2-2018\Chan geRqqesbg Påæ 13 of 29 2/131201a936 M



MWRP Biosolids ¡nd Energr Ræovery Facilitie
PR 21146 (4286)

Construction Changp Order Summ¡ry

Contractor: F- Contlactor Request - Ovøtire Hous
Design Engineø: Blæk & Vætch

Original
Completion

Date:

1012a12016

Revised

Completion
Dåte

10t28t2016

ßn812016

10t28120t6

Contræt Dâvs

Orisinâl Dax: l -27A

Revised
Total

Contract
Days

1,278

1,278

1,278

Cm
Total

C.O. da¡

0

0

Previous

Chmge
Ordæ

0

0

0

Chæge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

)

)

)

Contnct Amout

OriEinalContætAmout: S163-465.940-00

Revised Contæt
Amout

816't,4'18,573.1

$t67,s76,s79.63

$ 167,673,866.68

o/o oî
O¡iginal
Contract
Amout

2.450/a

2.5toÁ

2.5'toÁ

Cmul¿tive Total
ofChange Ordus

$4,012,633.1

$4,1 10,639.63

s4,207,926.68

Previou Chmge
Ordæ

$3,929,288.10

$4,012,633.17

$4,1 10,639.63

Chmge Ordu
Amout

$83,345.07

$98,006.46

$97,287.0s

Chæge Ordø Line
Itêm Amout

$18,908.76

s4't,274.54

99,654.54

s5,499.9',7

92.007.26

$7,809.s1

$3,479.81

s34,274.40

$9,569.15

s24A96.55

$1 8,377.04

s40,216.76

$4,818.64

ss2,2s1.6s

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

Category

c

c

A

B

A

A

E

A

c
B

c

D6c¡iption

ApprovedbyGmeml Mmagu
Approved on Febnæy 29, 2016
Softwùe Control Blæk Revision for A¡ea 4300 - Dwatüing (CR-21 1) PR
4286 Tæk 3510

Revised Mættr List of SCADA Terplatæ (CR-247) PR 4286 Tæk 35 10

Additional Overflow Alm at Sludge Holding Tanks (CR-280) PR 42E6 Tæk
3510

L€ak Detection ¿t Sulturic Acid Fæility (CR-290) PR 21 146 (4286) Tæk 3510

Iroulation for Äcid Phase Gs PiDins (CR-2184) PR 21 146 (428ô Tæk 3520

Approved by Gaeml Mmagu
Approved on Mæch 7, 2016
SCE Installation - Final Acæmting of Work Item Betwem Negotiated Chmge
Orda mdActual'Work (CR-146E) PR 4286 Task 3510

Imtallatim of Southm Califomi¿ Gæ (SCG) Boxes (CR-146F) PR 428ó Tsk
3s10

Schweita SEL735 Powã Monito¡s for Centrifuge Pmels (CR-207) PR 4286
Tæk 3510

Hißchlllm Ethmet Switchc for Cmtrituge Pmels (CR-20E) PR 4286 Tæk
3510

Addition of Sample Purp Vriable Frequacy Drives for Thickming
Centrituçs (CR-237) PR 4286 Task 3520

Upgrade of Exit Signs md Ceiling Lights in the Gæ Ræmof the Digñter
Contol Buildins to NEC Clæs 1 Division 1 (CR-3 13) PR 4286 Tæk 352

ApprcvedbyGmenl Mmagc
Approved on April 20, 2016

Brue Plates in Solids Hmdling Building (CR-069) PR 4286 Tæk 3505

Relmtion of RIO-50 Pmel (CR-l86) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Addition of Two Dæ¡s at the bæes of the stairuays at Methme Digñters Nos.
1 md No. 2 (CR-232) PR 4286 Tæk 350s

Chmge Ordc

3t.l

38-2

38.3

3E-4

38.s

39-l

39.2

39-3

39.4

39-5

39.6

40-t

40-2

40.3

38

39

44

A - Di¡trCdvdiðúituiø - Èojd Rderd
B - Dtrsb! SLc@dirid
C - Dedg! Ov4ifùt
D - Difkr Cúv6iac.úlitirtid- N*hjæt R€Lt d
E- C@&ddC@iæclhitidio
F - C@d Rqucsted ¡n Fdiø MiEc B-14
E:\Rm's Stuf^lRWDV120{S\hrd{ommfreeþ2-2018\ChângeR€quelLq Pag€ 14 d 29 zl13l20ta 936 AM



MWRP BiGolids and Energ¡ Recovery Facilides
PR 21146 (4280

Construcdon Chsnge Order Summâry

Contætor: F- Conf¿ctor Request - Overtire Hom
DesignEngineø: Blæk& Vatch

Original

Date:

Revised

Completion
DatÊ

tot28/2016

Contract Days

Reviæd
Total

Contact
Davs

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. då]^

0

Orir

Previous

Chuge
Ordere

0

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contlact Amout

OrisinålContactAmout: $163,465,940.00

Revised Cont¡æt
Arcmt

$168,777,s1'1.24

o/. of
OriCrnal

Contact
Amout

3.250/0

Cmulative Total
ofchmge Ordffi

85,3r1,577.24

Previow Chmge
Ordtrs

s4,207,926.68

Chæge Ordø
Amout

$1,103,650.56

Chmge @üLine
ItmAmout

$51,238.69

$36,706.57

$61,73i.96

$154,592.0E

$13,730.06

s178,879.46

s2s4,941.66

$14,33E.94

s68,714.34

s71,379.N

$s0,s40.23

$19,'734.51

s25,550.24

$30,603.14

s70,969.6(

IRWD or

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IR\ryD

IRIVD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD
IRWD

IRWD

IRWD
IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

Calegory

B

B

B

B

A

A

c

A
A

A

B
c

c
A

Desciption

Approved By Bodd ofDirectoK
Apprcved on May 23, 2016

Addition¿l SCE md SCGModificatiore (CR-1464) PR42E6 Tæk3510

Additioml Potholing Due to SCE æd SCG Realigrent (CR-1468) PR 4286

Iæk 3510

Additional Cæru ât the Unlæding/loading A¡€ of the Solids Hmdling
Fæility (CR-l6a) PR 4286 Tæk 3s05

Fire Sprinklø SysternModifrcations - Mechmical (CR-174) PR 4286 Tæk
3520

Fire Sprin*Itr Systêm Modifications - Electrical (CR-166) PR4286 Tæk 3510

Fib€r Optic System Modificatims (CR-17UCR-306/CR-314) PR 4286 Tæk

3510

T-15, T-16, mdT-17 SæondaryBreakm (CR-1854 CR-1858, ildCR-185C)
PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Cable md Conduit Chmges at the Sludgp Ræeiving Area of the Solids Hmdling
Building (CR-203) PR4286 Task 3510

Conæte Süfæe TMtnrcnt (CR-222) PR 42E6 Tõk 3505

HeatiugWatü Boils Cmtrol Modifications (CR-246) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

SCADA Control Modificatiom forthe AcidPhæe Digesttrs, Methme
Digesteß, md Sludge Holding Tank (CR-252) PR 4286 Tæk 35 I 0

Ambient Gæ Analya Wiring Modificatim (CR-264) PR a286 Tðk 3510

Discomect Switches for Flow Valves in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR-272)

PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Cqtriñ¡ge Pedestal Modifications (CR-301) PR 4286 Tæk 3505

SCADA, Instnmmtation, md Electriæl Modificatiom (CR-287, CR-294, ild
CR-322) PR 42E6 Tæk 3510

Chmge Ordu

41.1

4t.2

41.3

41.4

41.5

41.6

4l;1

41.8

41.9

4t.t

41.11

4t.t2
41.13

41.14

41.15

4l

A - Di.ùid Cd6i6dûiddiú - kojd Re¡ded
B - Dfiqiq slê cdditiñ
C-Ddi8tMifùt
D - Di3ûid covdiodriiidim - NGtujd R€l¡led
E - Cøt!ffi Colmi*ar'I¡itidi@
F - Cffio.RãIHdt8Fdim O6in. B-15
E:\Ron's Suf^lRwD\112m38\hrd{oññnee\02-2018\ChangeReqüef bg Paæ g of29 211312O1a936 N



Ii{WRP Biosolids ¡nd Ener$¡ Recovery Í'acil¡ties
PR2tt46 (4286)

Construction Change Order Sümmrry

Contætor: F- Contnctor Reqwst - Ovettire Hous
Design Enginø: Blæk & Veatch

Original

Date:

Revised

Cor¡pletion
Date

tot28ø0t6

1ot28t2016

10/28/2016

Contact Days

Orieinal Daw: 1.27E

R*ised
Total

Contract
Days

1,278

t,278

1,278

Cm.
Total

C.O. day

0

0

P¡evious

Chmge
Ordm

0

0

Chæge

Orda
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

)
c

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amout

Orisinal ContætAmomt; $163y'65,940.00

Revised Contræt
Ammt

$168,577,746.r

9168,652,477-84

sl68,72'1,390.E3

Yo of
Original
Contract
Amoüt

3.13o/o

3.17%

3.22%

Cmulative Total
ofChange Ordøs

$5,1 I 1,806.15

$5,1 86,537.84

$5,26 1,4s0.83

Previous Chmge
Orders

s5,311,577.24

$s,l I 1,E06.15

$s,1 86,s37.84

Chmge Order

Amout

($19e,771.09)

s74,731.69

s74,912.99

Chmge Order Line
Item Amout

($4t,549.90)

(8e7,14r.14)

($10,ss7.2r)

($1,74E.17)

($24,oer.00)

($l7,7lo.oo)

$18,843.39

$1,775.13

849,6't9.02

s4A34.15

$3E,E82.06

s9,294.71

$9,195.86

s4,783.14

$3,830.95

s8,926.21

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IR\ryD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

Category

E

E

A

A

A

F

E

c

E

B

c

A

Ä

B

c

B

Desøiption

Approved By Boud of Dùecton
Approved on May 23, 2016

Value Engineøing ofChemical Pump System (CR-054) PR42E6 Tæk 3520

Chmge in Lightring Prctection Installation for Egg-Shaped Digestels (CR-

1214) PR 4286 Tæk 3s10

Deletion of Seal !ùy'ater StatioN üd Sel Wate¡ Piping (CR-214) PR 4286Tæk

3520

Deletion ofl¡w Prssre Switch€s fo¡ Cf,tl¿te Puntps (CR-257) PR 4286 Tæk

3510

Cmtrituç Seismic Restaint Design Costs (CR-345) PR 4286 Tæk 1065

Credit for Overtime Inspection Hous From 6/1/2015 to Through 12131/2015

(CR-0898) PR 42E6 Tæk 1065

Approved by Exe. Dùector of Engineting md rùr'ater Quality
Approved on May 3 l, 2016

conbustible Gas Detection systm (cR-234) PR 2l 146 (4286) Task 3510

Additional Wires md Cables Betwem MCC4102 ñíPLC4000 (CR-278) PR

21146 (4286) Tæk 3s10

SCADA Prcgrming Modificatiom (CR-2EZ)PR21146 (4286) Tõk 3510

Chmge of Wæte Gæ Bmr Feedq Circuit Breaka (CR-3,14) PR 21146 (4286)

Tæk 3510

lApproved by Exe. Director of Enginering ild Wat€r Quality
lApproved on Jue 29, 2016

,Ø.1 lEtectical æd Telephonic ModificatioN fo¡ Elewtors for Solids Hædling

lBuildi¡g æd oig*tø Control Building (CR-0374) PR 4286 Tæk 3510
,f4.2lodor Contol necirculation Pump Selector Switch SCADÀ Modifiøtions (CR-

l3a3) PR 4286 Tsk 351 0

44.3 SCADTA Valve Matrix Tables A¡imtion Cluifiøtion for Milætone I (CR-353)

PR42E6 Tæk 3510

44.41Prc Status Object Update (CR-234) PR 42E6 Tæk 3510

¿¿.Sl¡tewør Safety Bem in the Digesttr Control Building (CR-302) PR 4286 Tßk
l¡sos

,ø.61Mæonry chmges to the North Ret¿ining wau (cR-365) PR 4286 Tõk 3505

Chmge Ordu

42.1

42.2

42.3

42.4

42.5

42.6

43.1

43.2

43.3

43.4

42

43

44

^ 
- Di¡tr cúvaiaffr'Ioitidiø - Èojd tuldd

B - Difidirg Sf. Cøditi*
c - kifû ùæ¡eùt
D - Di!ùicr cdvdiacrr'¡¡iti{¡oo - Nehþt Rêlaêd
E - Coûfr@ CmiæGr'Itri¡i4iø
F _ C@ü R@€Sd ¡rffiim OrdiEê B-16

Paæ 16 of 29E\Ron'5 Stufi \l RWDUum3S\&ard-Commft ed02-2018\Chan geRequêsbg 211312018936 N



MWRP B¡osolids ud Energy Recovery Fac¡lities
PR 21146 (42tq

Construcdor Ch¡nge Ordêr Summ¡ry

Contrætor: F- Contractol Request - OveñimeHous

Design Enginø Blæk & Veatch

OriCrnal
Complaion

Date:

10t2812016

Revised

Completion
Date

1013UZ0t1

lot3l/2017

Contræt Dalß

Revised
Total

Contæt
Days

1,646

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. d¡]Ã

36E

368

Previous

Chæge
Ordæ

0

368

Chmge
Orcler

Days

368

36E

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

L'

Conûact Amomt

OriginalConüactAmout: $163,465,940.00

Revised Contact
Ammt

st7't,97't,390.E3

9178,072,08'1.59

o/o of
Original
Contâct
Amout

8.880¿

8.940/.

Cmulative Total
of Chmge Orders

$r4,s l 1y'so.83

$14606,14

Previou Chmge
Ordæ

$5,261,450.E3

$14,51

Chmge Ordr
Amowt

$9,250,000.00

s94,696.76

Chmge OrdaLine
Itan Amout

$9,250,000.0(

sr457.22
$6,081.90

$5,568.E3

$1,227.96

$5,939.45

$4,824.29

$1,834.60

$692.72

$8,508.46

s'|63-62

$2,316.03

923,720.61

$2,316.03

$24,092.32

s1378.19

$1,290.10

$1,286.63

$1,297.80

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

IRWD
IRWD
IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

TRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

Calt$ory

B

c
A
A

A

c

A

c
A

A

A

B

B

B

A

A

B

B

c

Description

Approved by Boæd of Directo6
Approved on July 25,2016/Decenbq 20,2016
Ræovery Plan PR 4286 Tæk 3510

46.1

46.2

46.3

46.5

46.

46.

46.11

46-12

46.13

46.

46.

Chmge Orda

45.1

45

46 byGm@lMdagq

onJnwy27,2017
Mæonry Anchor in the Solids Hmtlling Building (CR-200) PR 428ó

Auto Dialq (CR-2344) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

md Hmdrail Modifietio$ ¿t Bulk Polymü Storage Platfom (CR-300)

4286 Tæk 3505

scADA IP Add¡ess Update (cR-309) PR42E6 Task 3510

Modifications at Solids Hmdling Building Stairuell (CR-324) PR

Tæk 3505

in Valve Oprator at the Cfltate Treatnflt Fæility (CR-329) PR 42E6

3520

wæh Lading Addition (CR-349) PR 4286 Tæk 350s

Valve Aralog SCADA Tmplate (CR-354) PR4286 Tæk 3510

Lisht Fixtms md Lamps (CR-3554) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

of Rebate Angle in the FOG Unloading Sunp tuÉ (CR-363) PR 4286

3505

Hot Watq Circulation Pump Breaken Chmge (CR-366) PR 4286

3510

Cake Trmsfer Pmp Breakæ Chmge (CR-370)PR4286

Breaker Chmge (CR-374) PR 4286 Task 3510

Prcgming Modiñc¿tioN Duing B€nchtæt No. I for ,{ros I 900

(CR-376.) PR 4286 Tæk 3s10

Light Fixtre Above Dær in Digester Contol Building Gæ Room

PR 4286 Tâsk 3510

in Siæ of Disømect Switches for Digest€d Sludge Mixers (CR408)

Tæk 3510

Thickñing Feed Grinde¡ Control Pmel Circuits (CR438) PR 42E6

3510
(.'hmge for Windows (CR438) PR42E6 Tæk 3510

M

l0

B - Þi6.riûE Sirc C@dili$
c - kig! Ovei8hr
D - Dùrid Covæidûit'(id - NñIbjÉl R€lúed
E- cdmddcffiiftúiddiú

B-17F - cffiorR4á.d Ispdi@ Ordie

E\Ron's stutr\lRWDUl2ms\hrd{ommft ee\02-2018\chan geR€qü€*[4 Paæ 77 ó 29 211312o189t36 N



MWRP Biosolids ed Euer$¡ Ræovery Faciliti6
PR 21146 (4280

Construction Change Order Summary

Contætor: F- Contractor Requ€st - Overtime Hom
Design Engineø: Blæk & Vatch

OriCrnal
Completion

Date;

10t28t2016

Revised

Completion
Dâte

rcl3tn0l7

Confæt Days

OrisinalDays: 1,278

Revised

Total
Contæt

Days

t,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡n

368

P¡evious

Chmge
Ordm

368

Chuge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amoüt

Contæt Amout:

ReYised Contract
Amout

$17r,168,501.9s

Vo of
Original
Contåct
Añomt

8.99o/¡

Cmr¡lative Total
of Chmge Orders

$14,702,561

Previou Chmge
O¡dm

$14,606,147.59

Chmge Order
Amout

$96,414.36

Chaç OrdrLine
Item Amomt

$2,312.08

$s,500.74

$ 1,070.3E

$4,986.21

s3,892-M
s6,924.69

$s,093.87

s6,824.3s

913,794.95

$ 1,336.13

$3,300.1 3

$7,4t8.s2

$2,250.6'7

sE,947.37

$10,9s0.14

$4,500.00

$1,601.36

s5,710.33

IRWDo¡
FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD
IRWD
FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRIilD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

Category

B

c

c
c

À
B
c

A

c

A

B

B

c

A
A

c

c

.Description

Approved by Gmeral Mmagø

Approved on February 28, 2017

Relmtion of Neutruliation Tæk Dnimge Piping PR 4286 Tæk 3520

Modifications to Digester Control Building Door md Piping Due to Heating

Water Expmion Tæk Pad Adjustnflt (CR-221) PR 4286 Tæk 3505

PI,c-3100 Chuges (CR-284) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Additiona¡ Angle Support to Acid Phße Dig€str Bridges (CR-298) PR 4286

Isk 3505

Additional Pot¿ble Watu Gate Valves (CR-332) PR 4286 Tæk 3520

I-4 Ki* Key Interlock Imøllation (CR-335) PR4286 Task 3510

Solids Hmdling Building Durpster Room Chmel Fmes Modificatiom (CR-

338) PR 42E6 Tæk 3505

PCS Swr Configmtion Cluifiøtion (CR-352) PR 4286 Tßk 3510

Additional Anchonge Support for lædgers ofthe Dig€stø Control Building

Roof(CR-361) PR 4286 Task 3505

Chage of MCC4103 Hot Watel Cimlation Punp Breakm (CR-3668) PR
4286 Tæk 3510

Cfltate Trutænt Fæility Pull Boxes Duct Bank Settlmtt (CR-383) PR 4286

Tæk 3510

Modiñ@tions to the MCC410014101141024103 (CR405) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Cake Stonge Hoppu Modifications (CR42l) PR4286 Tæk 3510

Rmoving hstalled Lighting in the Solids Hadling Building (CR427\PR4286
Tæk 3510

Elætriøl Chæges for Gmmtor MPC (CR-430) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Elætri€l Modifications to MCC4I00 md 4103 (CR431) PR4286 Task 3510

Occupmcy Sqsors in the Solids Hmdling Building Showa Areæ (CR444) PR

42E6 Tæk 3510

Digester Gæ Pre-Treatnflt In-Slab Conduit Size Chmge (CR454) PR 4286

Tæk 3510

Chmge Order

4',1.1

47.2

47.3

47.4

4',7.5

47-6

47.7

47.E

47.9

47.10

47.11

47.12

47.13

47.14

47 -t5

47.16

47.11

47.18

4'7

A - Di!ùkicú€iac€/tdridid - kqd tul.dd
B - Difiêiq sie C@dfiñ
c - D6i!! ovdi¡ùt
D - D¡!ûkt CdËiédriri.lid - NùPfoj6l Rêl]ed
E- hMdCñiæ.r'hif8i@
f -CffiüRqßEdlwdi@o!db. B-18
E:\Ron's Stuff \lRWÐ\112m38\hrd{ommft ee\02-2018\Chan geReque$bg Paæ 18 of 29 2113/2O7a936 N



MWRP Biosolids ¡nd Ener$/ Ræovery FaciliflA
PR 21146 (42rO

Construcdon Chângs Order Summary

Contætor: F- Contractor Reqwst - Ovqtime Hous
Design Engineæ Blæk & Vætch

Orig¡nal
Completion

Date:
1012RD,O16

Revised

Cor¡pletion
Date

10/3U201't

Contræt Da)Æ

Revised

Total
Contract

Days

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡

368

Previous

Chmge
Orden

368

Chmge

Ordq
Days

c

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contræt Amomt

Contæt Amomt:

Rwised Contact
Ammt

$t78,896,739.69

Yo of
OriCinal
Coufact
Amout

9.4401

Cmulative Total
ofChmge Ordm

stsA30,799.69

Previou Chmge
Ordqs

$r4,702,561.95

Chmge Ordu
Amomt

s't28,237.74

Chmç OrdøLine
ItmAmout

$5E,705.90

$23,685.14

$39,622.6s

$38,978.?0

$41,246.71

s27,889.74

$18,280.62

$13,261.60

$102,503.,16

$54,982.68

$128,000.00

s128,052.94

s53,027.60

IRWDoT
FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IR\ryD

IR\ryD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRIVD

IRWD

Cúegory

B

A

c
A

A

A
A
A

B

c

A

A

D6cription

Approved by Boud of Directors

ApplovedonMdch 13,2017

Stuctml Modificatioß of the Elevator Shafts (CR-037) PR 4286 Tæk
3505200) PR 4286 Tæk 3505

SCADÀ Prcgraming Upd¿le of Polymç Feed md Stonge Systsn (CR-I4EA)
PR42t6 Tæk 3510

Staiæ md Platfom at SHB l¡ad-Out Arca (CR-149) PR 4286 Tæk 3505

Additional Poly¡m¡ Dilution Flow M€tffi üd Aswiated Conduits üd Cables
(CR-ls9B) PR 42E6 Tæk 3510

Misællaneous Andritz ltm (CR-205) PR 4286 Tæk 3520

RIO-4001 Chmg* (CR-286) PR4286 Tæk 3510

RIO-3102 Chagæ (CR-310) PR4286 Tæk 3s10

Mini Powø Cqter - Additional Outlet md D¿t¿ l¡øtions in the SHB (CR-419)
PR 4286 Tæk 3510

New Lighting in the SHB Fiñt Floor Aæa (CR427A) PR 4286 Task 35 I 0

Additionål Conduits md Cables for Thmocouples for Several Pum¡rs (CR-424,

CR424A through CR424F) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Additional wall Pmel Fmewo¡k at the sHB (cR445) PR 42E6 Tæk 3505

Chages in Unintemrptible Power Su¡rply Units (CR-16?CR-I624) PR 4286
Tæk 3510

Addition of Ciræit Breaks at Trmsfomq T-14 (CR474) PR 4286 Tæk 3510

Chmge Ordø

48.1

48.2

48.3

48.4

48.5

48.6

48;l

48.8

48.9

48.10

48.11

48.12

48.13

48

Â - Di!ùid CoEiaceû¡il'diú - bd tuId
B - Di&riry SnG Cdil¡G
c-ki8nhi¡!!
D - Diltid cmiee/¡¡ilidio - NæIhjdRetfd
E- CffiCd€iæ/Ioitisio
f -C@dRqE4d¡Wdi@Mi@ B-19
E\Ron's Stuff\l RWDU12m38\eard-6mmkee\02-2018\Chan geR€queslot Pâæ 19 of 29 2/131201a936 N



IVIWRP Biosolids nd Energ¡ Reovery Fac¡liûes

PR 21146 (42rq
Construction Ch¡nge Ordcr Summary

Contractor: F- Contracior Reqwst - Ovttime Hous
Design Engineø: Blæk & Vetch

Original

Dåte;

10/28t20

Revised

Completior
Date

10/3t/201'7

10t3y201'7

tot1u20t7

Conhæt Days

Orisinal Daw: l-278

Revised
Toial

Contæt
Dåys

I,646

1,646

1,646

Cm.
Totâl

C.O. days

368

368

368

Èevious
Chmge
O¡dm

368

368

368

Chuge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Conaact Amout

ReYised Contract

Amomt

8178,849,6/'0.49

$t78,921,791.38

$178,79sy'o1.38

Yo of
Original
Contract
Amout

9.4t%

9.460/0

9.380/0

Cmulative Total
ofChage Ordas

$1 s,383,70049

$15,45s,8st.38

$t 5,329,461.38

Previo$ Chilge
O¡dm

sl5,430,799-69

$15,383,700.49

s1s,455,85 1.38

Chmge Ordø
Amomt

($47p99.20)

$72,150.89

(s126390.00)

Chmç Order Line
Itsn Amowt

($23,897.73)

($9,000.00)

(s4l2e.0e)

(s4,047.43)

($5,724.9s)

s6,614.77

$9,826.09

$13,346.01

s35,1'10.26

s7,193-76

($97,s?o.oo)

($28,820.00)

IRWDoT
FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IR\ryD

FBB

FBB

IR'IVD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWT)

Caúegory

E

E

A

A

A

A

c

A
A

c

F

E

Desøiption

Approved by Boud of Dimtors

Approved on Milch 13, 2017

Relaæd Mæhmical Piping Modifications Due to Chmge in Chemical Pumps in

CCO No. 42 (CR-0544) PR 4286 Task 3520

Chmging the Solids Hildling Building Roofing from EPDM to PVC (CR-255)

PR4286 Tæk 3505

Net Reduction of Scope of Work in CR-353 - SCADA Valve Mahix Tables

Animtion Cluifiøtions (CR-353B/353C) PR 4286 Tßk 3510

Chæge in Stætrs for MCC4100/4101 Cake Tmfu Pmp Breakæ (CR-

3704) PR 4286 Tsk 3510

Deletion of Imulation for the Solids Hmdling Building Foudation (CR-393)

PR 4286 T6k 3505

Approved by Executive Dirætor of Engineüing & Watq Quality

Approvedon Mæh 31, 2017

Electrical Modifications to FOG l¡cal Conhol Pmel 70-LCP-0710 (CR-304)

PR4286 Tæk 5.30

Condenete Modifications åt Digestã Gæ P¡e-Tstnat AH (CR-312) PR

42E6 Task 5 .3 I
tnstallation oflindapten lßteåd ofEye Bolts (CR413) PR 42E6 Tæk 5.29

I-5 Cmection to Biosolids Switchl4 (CR480) PR 4286 Tæk 5.30

Polymq Feeda Blendil Skids Flow Elmnt Gromding Conductor (CR-4E2)

PR 4286 Tæk 5.30

Approved by Executive Dùector of Enginesing & Watel Quality

Approved on Mæh 31, 2017

Credit for Overtire l¡spection Hom From l/1/2016 to Tlrcugh 12131/2016

(CR-089C) PR 42t6 Tæk 4.0

Credit for Overtime Inspection Hows From 1/1/2017 to Thrcugh 03ß1/2017
(CR-089D) PR 42E6 Tæk 4.0

Chmge Orcler

49.1

49.2

49.3

49.4

49.5

50.1

50.2

50.3

50.4

s0.5

51.1

51.2

49

50

5t

A - Di<ùii cGE¡@dl¡tuiaie - @ tuld€d
B-Dif.ri¡gSiæcffi
c - D6i!D O6itùl
D - DiûicrcdÞiM¡ti{i@- NFIbj*t R€liúd
E - C@ñû Cmiedlliriúi@
F - c@üR@d.d lwdioo\diG B-20
E\Ron's Stuft \lRWDU12m38\hrd{ommft ed02-2018\Chan geRque*tq Pâæ 20 d 29 2h312o189136 N



MWRP Biosolids and Energr Ræovery Facilidæ
PR 21146 (4286)

Construction Ch¿nge Order Summâry

ConÍætor: F- Contnctor Request - Overtirc Hom
Design Engineã: Blæk& V€tch

10t31/201'7

r0ß1t20t'l

OriCinål
Completion

D¿te:

10/28/2016

Date

Revised

Complaion

10131/2017

r,646

1,646

1,&6

Revised

Total
Contæt

Days

368

368

Cum.

Total
C.O. dj¡)^

368

368

368

Previous

Chæge
Ordæ

368

0

)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Cotrtæt Days

Orisinal Days: 1,278

Chmge

Order
Days

$ 178,936,025.s0

$178,980,236.01

Rwised Coníact
Amout

$178,893,743.54

9.46%

9.49%

9.44%

o/o of
Original
Contact
Amout

$15,514,296.01

$1s,470,085.50

Cmulative Total

of Chuge Ordæ

s1s427,803.s4

$ 15y'27,803.54

$1s,470,085.50

Previou Chmge
O¡dm

sts,329,461.38

s44,210.51

s42,281.96

Chmge Order

Amoüt

$98,342.16

$44,2r0.51

$33,814.80

s8A6't.16

Contract Amout

Contract Amout:

ChmgÊ OrdtrLine
Item Amowt

s3,564.32

$14,090.39
gt3,76s-20

$9,382.01

s27,620.21

$16,023.s0

g6;t36.46

$5,710.32

s1,449;75

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IR\VD or
FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD
IR\ryD

c

c

c

B

A
A

c

A

c

A
A

A

Category

Approved by Gmenl Mmagø

Apprcved on Jue 19, 2017

Modifications to Thickming md Dewtring Platfom (CR-195) PR 4286 Task

5.29

Approvedby Gmaal Mmga
Approved on April 28, 2017

Rmoval of Unsuitable Alluvim (CR-146H) PR 4286 Tæk 5.29

Polymtr Dilurion w¿ttr Flometñ (CR-1594) PR 4286 Tõk 5.31

Alminm Hmdrail md Guard¡ail Modiñcations at Liquid Chmical md
Polmø Areæ (CR-171) PR 4286 Tæk 5.30

Modifi@tions Due to Solids Hmdling Building Etætrical Rmm Equipmt
Cløece Issues (CR-196) PR 4286 Task 5.30

Data md Telephone Outlets in Solids Hildling Building (CR-261) PR 4286

Iæk 5.30

tryAC Duct Modific¿tions in Dewattring Feed Purp Station (CR-268) PR

4286 Tæk 5.31

Coating of 8 Roll-up dærs (CR-358) PR 4286Task5.29

Upsizing Wire Siæ of Dewâtøing Feed Purp Station Main Breakq Light Pmel

LP-3501 (CR-390) PR 4286 Task 5.30

Modifietions to the R@fs of the Solids Hadling Building md Dig€ster Control

Building (CR-528) PR 4286Tæk5.29

Exe. Director of rùy'atq Quality md Eûgineering

Approved on Jme 5, 2017

Modiñ€tions toRegqqative Thml Oxidiær (RTO) Dminage mdUtility
Water Piping (CR-267) PR 4286 Tæk 5.31

Modifications to Liquid Chmical Feed Contol Pmel Wiring (CR-396) per RFI
1 602 PR 4286 Tæk 5 .30

Desuiption

53.1

53.2

54.1

52.1,

s2.2
52.3

52.4

52.s

52.6

52.7

s2.8

52.9

53

54

Chage Ordü

52

55 byGflenlMegq

on July 3, 2017

Pipe Supports of 54-Inch Fiberglæs Reinforced Air Drct (CR-1064) FBB

4286Tæk5.29
55.2

55.3

Gæ St€p Dom Mmifolds md Gæ T¡msition Piping (CR-146G) PR IRWD
IRWDto the West End Stair lÆding of the Solids Hmdling Building

s94,3s2.43 $15,514,296.01 $1s,608,648.,14 $179,074,s88.,14 1,646 t0t3U20

c

B
B

$14,21 1.18

s20A89.32
$s,622.11

A - Di!ùidcú@iacdlliddiú-ktd kLdd .29
B - DiE6i¡g Sil. CdiliG
C-kif¡()mifàl
D - D¡sid CøEiadriùrid - NGh.id Re¡d.d
E - cdmdC@i@&'ridiø
F - CffiqRqdêd hÐdio Ordi& B-21
EÀRø's Stüñ\RWD\112m38\ead-ømmfr æ\02-20l8\Chan8eRequellq Paæ 21 d 29 zla3l2ora936 N



MWRP B¡Gol¡ds üd Enerry Recovery Facilides
PR 21146 (42tO

Construct¡on ChrDge Order Summary

Contætor: F- ContractorRequest- Overtime Hom
Design Enginea: Blæk & Vøtch

Original
Completion

Date:

1îD,SD,O16

Revised

Completion
Date

10ßu20r'1

10/31/20t7

Contræt Days

¡al Davs: 1,278

Revised

Total
Contact

Davs

1,646

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡

368

368

Or

Previous

Chmge
O¡dm

368

368

Chmge
OÌdr
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contact Amomt

Contract Amout:

Revised Contæt
Amüt

s179,276,332.'17

s179,37s,219.67

To of
Original
ConFact

Amomt

9.67%

9.730/.

Cmulative Total

ofchmge Ordæ

$1s,810,392.77

$1s,909,279.6'l

Previou Chmge

Ordqs

$15,608,648.,M

s15,810,392.77

Chmge Ordu
Amoüt

s201,744.33

$98,886.90

Chmge Ordû Line
Item Amout

$8,471.16

$36,874.10

$8,684.56

s101,'144.33

{rfìrì rìofì oo

s2,522.47

$4,083.12
$696.66

$8,563.72

sr,94s.62

$64,19s.1s

$16,880.16

IRWD or

FBB

FBB

IRIVI)
FBB

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

IRWI)
FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

C¿tegory

c

A
c

A
B

c

c
c
B

c

c

c

Description

ss.4lRegmmtive Thermal Oxidizer (RTO) Pad Modifiætions (CR-400) PR4286

lræt s.zr

55.5 Addition of Thin Climt at the Drys Fæility (CR485) PR 4286 Tæk 5.30

55.6lChüge in Siæ to 2 Check Valves in the Diçstu Contol Building (CR-514) PR

l¿z¿o ræt s.¡t

ApprovedbyBo*d

Approved on July 24, 2017

Addition Of Stais ad Platfom to RTO (CR-266) PR 4286 Tæk 5.29
Mimhrbine CLC IESC CÐstone) Dq RFI 1141 ICR-27î PR 4286 Tæk 5.30

Approved by Gmeral Mmaga

Approval on August 5, 2017

Additional Support atDigester Control Building (CR-342) PR 04286"ræk5.29
Pip€ üd Duct Hmgq Modifi@tioN (CR-362) PR 04286 Tæk 5.29

Inøæe Wire Siæ of Main Breaktr PP-3501 (CR418) PR 04286 T6k 5.30

Roofvenl at DCB E¡evato/Stai¡ Towq (CR-437) PR 04286 Tsk 5.29

T-14 Fixed Type Mmual Opsator pq Submittal 16,f43-00164 (cR-540) PR

04286 T6k 5.31

Area Clæsification ¿t Methme Digestas to meet NFPA Table 6.2(a) - PIW
Valves Limit Switch€s (CR-557) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Ar€a Classifiøtion at Methüe Digesteß to meet NFPA Table 6.2(a) - Sump

Püry Cable Retofit PR 04286 T¿sk 5.30

Chmge Ord*

56.1

\6t

57.l

57.2

57 -3

5'7.4

5't.5

57.6

5'7;l

56

57

A - DitrC@iaúiridiø - kcid Rclúd
B - Difi.li¡¡ SiE Cditiru
c-Þ¡gtrMÈht
D - Diitid coËiae/¡¡ir¡.d@ - Nehjd Reh€d
E - Cdffi coouiæÂ¡iti.ri6
F. cñü R@d.d l¡{die Ordb. B-22

Pzæ22ú 29E:\Ron's Stuff \IRWD\112m38\hrd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChenBeRquenbg 2113120189t36 AM



MWRP BiGol¡ds md Ener$¡ Rsovery Fåciliti6
PR 21146 (4216)

Construction Chùge Order Summary

Contrætor: F- Cmtnctor Reqæst - Overtime Hous
Design Engineø: Blæk &Vætch

Oricinal
Completion

Date:

t0/2E/2016

Revised

Completion
Date

't0/3U20r7

r0ß1/201'7

t0t31/201'1

Contræt Days

ml Days: 1.278

Revised
Total

Contact
Days

1,646

t,646

1,646

Cm
Total

C.O. day

368

36E

368

Orie

Previous

Chmge

O¡dæ

368

368

368

Chmge
Ordq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

D

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amount

Coûtract Amowt:

Revised Contæt
Amut

$ 179,558,158.61

s179,65't,14'1.29

s179,622,607.29

To of
Original
Contr¿ct
Amomt

9.84o/o

9.90%

9.88%

Cmulative Total
ofChange Ordøs

$16,092,2r8.61

st6,191,207.29

st6,rs6,667.29

Previous Chmge
Orders

$15,909,279.67

$ 16,092,21E.61

$16,191,207.29

Chmge O¡dû
Amout

s182,93E.94

$98,988.68

($34,s40.00)

Chæge Ordø Line
Item Amoüt

$7,923.00

$8,355.32

$1s,7s8.38

s24,238.65

$41,436.09

$s2y'84.50

s32,743.00

$26,s00.00

$1,946.70

$6310.M

$2,595.60

$1,574.86

ss4,736.73

s5,224.75

($34s4o.oo)

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

Category

B

c

A

c

B

A

A

E

c
c

A

A
c

c

F

D*cription

Approved by Boæd of Dimtors

Approval on August 28, 2017

Conøet€ Cap over Shallow Pþ Cmsings (CR-348) PR 04286 Task 5.3 t

Addition¿l Conduit md Wiring for Sludge Süem Moisture Sruoß (CR-381)

PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

SCADA Prcgraming Modifietions (CR-43314'l 6/5461 54'l /551) PR 042E6

Tsk 5.30

Polymü Stonge Powr Pilels Wire md Brqkã Modifications (CR456) PR

04286 Tæk 5.30

odor control st{tü Modiñætiom (CR-466) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Odor Control Fæ Remote Terqp@tE D€yice Revisions (CR-522)PR042E6
Tæk 5.30

Re-lmtion of Digestd Contol Building Gæ R@m Læal Control Pmels (CR-
534) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

ApFovedby Exe. Di¡ætor of Wattr Qülþ md Engineming

Approval on September 6, 2017

Modifi€tions to Building loi (CR-212) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Chage in Conduit Siæ in Area 20 (CR-292) PR 04286 Tæk 5.10

Cmtrifuge Dischage Cake Conv€yors Schemtic Modifications (CR-422) PR

04286 Tæk 5.10

Powã Monitor Progming Modificatioß (CR-539) PR 04286 Tæk 5.10

SCADA PrcgIa¡ming Modificatiom (CR-5474) PR 042E6 Tæk 5.10

Chmge in Ara Clæsification at Methae Digestas to meet NFPA Standãds

MOVS (CR-5578) PR 04286 Tæk 5.10

FOG Hating Discomect Switch Relæation (CR-559) PR 04286 Tæk 5.10

Approved by Exe. Dirætor of Water Qulity æd Engineering

Approval on Septenber 5, 2017

Credit for Overtire Inspection Hows From 4ll/2017 "Í\rough6130/2017 (CR-
089E) PR 04286 Tæk 4.0

Chage Ordø

58.1

58.2

s8.3

58.4

58.5

58.6

58.7

59.1

s9.2

59.3

59.4

59.5

s9.i

59.1

60.1

58

59

60

A - Ditid Comidúiaiú - k¡jd R.¡l€d
B - Dif.ricg Sit Cdiiiru
c-Þ¡gDMigbt
D - Dùtr CoÞiðc.tlûfi.lio - N*hþì Rel¡ü.d
E - C@ûGC@ic.r'hhiiid
F - C@üRw6úd ¡¡qdiú O6t@ B-23
EÀRon's Stuff\lRWDUUm38\bard-Commfr æ\02-2018\ChangeRequeslog Paæ 23 of 29 2/131201a936 N



MIVRP Biosolids ùd Energ¡ Recovery Fscilitis
PR 21146 (4280

Construcdon Chânge Order Summ¡ry

Conûactor: F- Con&actü Request - Overtire Hom
Desþ Enginø: Blæk& Veatch

OriCrnal

Date:

rcl2a/2016

Revised

Date

t0ß1t201'7

t0ßu201'l

Contact Days

Orieinal Daw: 1-278

Revised
Total

Contæt
Davs

t,&6

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. day

368

368

P¡evious

Chmge
Ordæ

368

368

Chaç
Order
Days

(

0

(

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Cøtract Amout

Amoüt:

Revised Contract

Amout

$179,620,8s4.90

$180,329,017.62

Yo of
Original
Contact
Amoüt

9.88%

10.32%

Cmulative Total
of Chuge 0rders

$16,1s4,914.9(

s16,863,077.62

Previore Chmge
O¡dæ

616,1s6,667.29

$16,1 54,914.90

Chmge Ordq
Amout

($1,752.39)

s70t,162.72

Chmge Orda Line
Itqn Amout

($1,752.39)

$s2,t'14.90

$52,51E. l l

920,60'1.t4

$8,859.9s

s376,674.08

$50,13s.26

s16,s5l.27

$12,822.26

$22,78s.74

s49,908.43

924,567.89

$t 3,05s.18

$7,502.51

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

IR\ryD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

C¿tegory

A

A

A
c

c

A

B

A

A
A

A

A

Desøiption

Approved by Exe. Director of Water Qulity md Enginffiing

Approved on Septmbq 6,2017
Credit for Bulk Pollmq Stonge Chmges per RFI-0863 od Submittal 15140-
)138 ICR-168) PR 04286 Tæk 5.16

Approved by Boud ofDiæctore

Approvedon Octobtr 9, 2017

Fats, Oil, ud Greæe (FOG) Modifrcations (CR-2234) PR 04286 Task 5.30
Dtrity Metø Conduit md Cabling ModificatioN (CR-326) PR 042E6 Task
t.30

Fibø Optic Modifications (CR-356) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Sludge Scm Pnemtic Control Pmel Conduit ed Cabling (CR-380) PR
04286 Tæk 5.30

Additional Circuits for Control ofthe Thickaing Cmfifuges (CR-386) PR
M2E6 Tæk 5.30

Upsiæ ofPowu Pmel PP-8001 Circuit Breâks (CR414) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Electical Powq Feede$ to El€ctric Watü Heater (CR426) PR 04286 Tæk 5.3C

Chmical Smp Pump Control Pmel Spæe Heter'Wiring Modifiøtions (CR-
461) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Relæate Electrical Feedæ to GÐemtor Bü (CR462) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Electrical md Instrmmtation Related Corifþnñts for the Inst¿llation of Thin
Climt at Dryr Fæility (CR485A) PR 04286 T6k 5.30

Polyma Ræm Eye Wæh Station Flow Switches (CR-535) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Chemical Stonç æd Feed Modificatiorc (CR-563) PR 04286 Task 5.30

Prc Redudmcy Hot Stedby St¿tus Register (CR-568) PR 04286 Task 5.30

Chmge Orda

6l.t

62.1

62.2

62.3

62.4

62.5

62.6

62;7

62.8

62.9

62.n

62.11

62.'12

62.13

61

62

A - Di!ùidcmiÉMüiridiù - kqd klúed
B - ffii¡f Siþ Cødùitu
C - D6i!¡ OB¡e¡t
D - Disùict CoEiaer¡iliÍio - N@kojd R.lúêd
E - C@C@:æ.r'I¡ildi6
F - CffidRæúdhætia O6iuc B-24

Pâæ24 ú 29E:\Ron's Stuff, lRWOU12m38\hd{ommfr ee\02-2018\ChangeRequentq 2Ê3120189:36M



MWRP Biosolids ud Energr Recovery Facilities
PR 2U46 (4280

Construct¡on Change Order Summary

Contætor: F- Contactor Requst - Overtire Hous
DesþEnginm Blæk&Veatch

Original
Completio¡

Date:

10n4t201(.

Revised

Completion
Date

r013112017

t0ßu2017

Confæt Days

Orisinal Days: 1,2'18

Revised
Total

Contæt
Days

t,646

1,646

Cum.

Total
C.O. days

368

368

Prwious
Chæge
Ordqs

368

36E

Chmge

O¡dq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amut

Contræt Amout:

Revised Contact
Amut

$ 180,420,783.71

$1E0,651,883.93

o/o of
Original
Contact
Amomt

10.376/a

to.5to/"

Cmulative Total

of Chæge Ordets

$16,9s4,843.71

$17,1Es,943.93

Previou Chmge
Ordm

s16,863 ,Ù't't .62

s16,9s4,U3.71

Chmge Order
Amomt

$91,766.09

s231,r00.22

Chmç OrdaLine
Itan Amomt

$30,563.4E

$14,563.39

s2,394.s4

$3,958.91

940,285.77

$9,758.16

s9,537.05

$21,678.83

s22,154.53

$s3,090.84

$47,61 1.1 I

$37,826.s8

s23,694.13

$5,748.99

IRWDoT
FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

1RWD

FBB

Category

c
c
B

c

A

B

c

B

B

A

c

c

Desøiption

Approved by Geneml Mmaga

Approved on October 2, 2017

Elætriæl Modifications to RIo-2001 (cR-269) PR 0a2t6 Tðk 5.30

Modifications to RIO4002 (CR-2t5) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Cap for l2-Inch StomDnin (CR-351) PR 04286 Tæk 5.16

Accæ Hatch for Regilmtive Theml Oxidia Pþ Chæe (CR-473) PR

04286 Tæk 5.31

Electri@l Upg¡ades to RIo4002 (CR447) PR 04286 Tsk 5.30

Approved by Boad ofDirectoË

Approved on Octobø 23, 20 I 7

Modifiøtions to Centate Treatnüt Fæility Staiß (CR-379) PR 04286 Task

5.29

Modiñcations to Duc¡ryork in Solids Hmdling Building (CR401) PR 04286

fæk 5.31

Elecaical Conduits md \üi¡es for Additional Bridge Breakæ for Cake

Receiving Pumps (CR4l6) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Hmdnit Modificatiom at the Methme Digstfls (CR-472) PR 042E6 Tæk 5.29

ElætriÉl üd lNtmentâtion Related CorÐonmts fo¡ the Install¿tion of Thin
Climt at Drys Fæility (CR485B) PR 04286 Tõk 5.30

Electrical Modificatims ¿t the Motor Contol Cmters fo¡ the Acid Phæe Sludge

Heating Recirolation Punps (CR-517) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

FOG Receiving Pmps Thmouple md Thmostat Wiring (CR-525) PR
042E6 Tæk 5.30

SCADA Progrmning Chmg6 (CR-537/570/5'13 1573A) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Chmç of Limit Switchæ for Buied Swice (CR-560) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

ChmgÞ Ordr

63.1

63.2

63.3

63.4

63.5

64.1

64.2

64.3

64.4

64.5

64.6

64.7

64.E

64.9

63

64

A - Diridc@iacer'¡dddiú - kid Rêldd
B - Diffüi¡g Sie Coldfiru
c - kig¡ OBi€ùt
D - Di!ûif CoËiaúi¡ifid- N@hjæ! Reht d
E - C@û C()Ñi4dl¡iri$io
F - C@øRqdd I'wliû MiDc B-25
E:\ßon's Stuff \lRWoU12m38\hrd{ommft ee\02-2018\ChengeReque$tq PaSe 25 of 29 2ll3lZOtA 936 AM



IUWRP Biosolids ud Enerry Remvery Facilities

PR2ll46 (4286)

Corstruction Chrnge Order SummarY

Contractor: F- Contracto¡ Requ$t - Overtime Hom
Design Enþea: Blæk &Vætch

Origiml
Completio¡

Date:
10t2Àt20tt

Revised

Completion
Date

10/3U201'l

l0ß1/2017

rcßtn0l7

Contæt Dals

Reviæd

Toøl
Contæt

Days

1,646

1,646

t,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. dâys

368

368

368

Previous

Chmge
Ordqs

368

36E

368

Chæge
O¡da
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Conaad Amout

Contact Amout:

Revised Contæt
Amwt

s1E0,801,475.07

s180,899,676-27

$180,846,049.,14

Yo of
Original
ConÍact
Amoet

10.600/.

t0.67v.

10.630/.

Cmulative Total

of Chæge Ordæ

$17,335,535.07

st7,433,736.27

$17,380,109.44

Previou Chmge

Ordæ

$17,185,943.93

$17,335,53s.07

s17,433,736.2'l

Chmge Orda
Amout

$149,s91.14

s98,201.20

(s53,626.83)

Chmge Ordu Line
Item Amomt

$100,000.00

sl 3,641.00

$35,950.14

$61,734.78

s17,228.56

$1 1,003.8s

$6,368.21

s1,865.80

($19,1¿10.00)

($13,591.t3)

($20,res.00)

IRWD or
FBB

FBB

FBB

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

IRWD

FBB

FBB

IRWD

Category

c

B

B

A

A
B

B

B

F

E

A

Description

Approved by Bord of Dircctots

Approved on Octõbq 23, 2017

Additional Conduits æd Wiræ for the Engine GenüatoÎ, Switchger-16, æd

swirchgtr-16 Plogramble l¡gic cmtolltr (cR-204) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Modifications to Spiræ Conveyor in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR409) PR

04286 Tæk 5.31

Additional Metal Bridge Walkway Structrml Support A¡gles (CR420) PR

04286 Tæk 5.29

by Gmeral Mmagø

Novembq 30, 2017

Prcgrmning Modific¿tions md Updates (CR-247 NCId469 /CI¿'
PR 0428ó Tæk 5.30

of Smp Punp Floats (CR452) PR 04286 Tæk 5.31

Work Assæi¿ted with Air Hmdling/Høting Udts, Recycle Biû Feed

mdRecycle Bucket Elevator in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR-

PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Wir6 ild Conduits for FOG Ræeiving Valves (CR-565) PR 04286

5.30

Dml Covd Plates for MCC4l01

Approvedby Exe. Dir of Engineaing ædWata Quality

Approved on Novmbt 30, 20 l7
Credit for Overtime l¡spection Hous ñom 07ll/2017 to 09130/2017 (CR-089F)

PR 04286 Task 4.0

C¡edit fo¡ Additional Conduits md Wires fo¡ the Engine Güaator, Switchgeu-

16, md Switchgø-16 Programbte hgic Controller (CR-2044) PR 042E6

Tæk 5.30

Deletion of Pavmt Prime Coat (CR-33ID) PR 04286 Tæk 5.29

Chmge Orda

65.1

65.2

6s.3

66.1

66.2

66.3

66.4

66.i

67.1

67.2

67.3

65

66

67

A - DifficøEi6erûiriÍi6 - ry Re¡{d
B - Dif¿¡ilg Stu Cddilid
C -D6ip ùæi8àt
D - Disùit cñþiaer¡liatid - NÈPÞjd Retúed
E- C6ÞûC@i4úitidi6
F - CffiüRq@Gd hsFlio OrÉi4 B-26

EIRn's stüñ\tBWDU12m38\hrd-tunmfr æ\02'2018\ChangeRêque*bs Pðæ 26 of 29 211312O7e936 N



MIVRP Biosol¡ds Ðd Ener$/ Ræovery Faciliti6
PR 21146 (42tq

Construction Ch¡nge Order Summary

Contætor: F- Cmtructor Request - Ovtrtime Hous
Design Enginea: Black & Veatch

Original

Date:

Revised

Complaion
Date

10ßU20t7

10131/2017

Contact Days

Clrisi¡al Davs: l-278

Revised
Total

Conbæt
Days

t,u6

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. dâys

368

368

Previou
Chmge
m6

368

368

Chmge

Ordil
Days

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Contract Amout

Contract Amowt:

Revised Contæt
Amut

$181,415,602.63

$181,506,449.32

o/o of
OriCinal

Contact
Amo6t

10.98%

11.M%

Cmrfatíve Tolal
of Chmge Ordm

st'l,949,662.63

$l 8,0lr0,s09.32

PrevioN Chmge
Ordm

$17,380,109.44

sr7,949,662.63

Chæge Ordr
Amout

$s69,553.19

$90,E46.69

ChmgE Ordaline
Item Amowt

$83,648.47

$44,054.83

$55,414.03

$386,435.86

$10,96s.90

$8,046.52

$2,389.56

s3'1,744.12

$ 16,228.03

$7,830.90
s7,641-66

IRWD or

FBB

IRWD

IR\ryD

IR\ryD

FBB

IRWD

IRWD

IR'WD

IR\ryD

IRWD

IRÏVD
IR\ryD

Category

A
A

c

B

A
c

B

c

c

A
À

Desøipiion

Approved by Bord of Directors

Approved on Dæember 11,2017

Fats, Oil, md Gææe (FOG) Modifications (CR-223) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Additional Elect¡ical Outlets md Circuits in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR-

453) PR M286 Tæk 5.30

Control Pæel Modific¿tions in the Methme Digestel Cotrplex (CR-545) PR

042E6 Tæk 5.30

Additional Elætrical, Instnmtation, md Cmtols for the Heat Dryer System

(CR-270 md CR-4?1A' tbrough CR-471G, CR-496, md CR-555) PR 04286

Te<k 5 3O

ApprovedbyGmeml Maagc

Àpproved on Decembet 20,2017
Powa Supply Failue A1¿m fo¡ Acid Gæ Boostffi (CR477) PR 04286 Tæk

Addition of Wæte Gæ Bmq Insfumilt Air Corpressor Systøn (Electriøl)
(CR484) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Circuit Breaker for MOC-2034 (CR-541) PR 04286 Task 5.30

Chmge in Limit Switchd lræted in the MethÐe Digssts Conplex Due

Electrical Clæsifietion Chmge (CR-557D) PR 042E6 Tæk 5.30

Chmge in Limit Switches IÆated in the Methane Digester Corplex Due

Elætiel Clæsification Change (CR-582) PR 04286 T6k 5.30

SCADA Prcglaming Chmçs - Totalizm (CR-590) PR 04286 T6k 5.30

Control Pmel Modifiøtions in the Methæe Digssttr Corplq (CR-592) PR

04286 Task 5 30

Chæge Ordq

ó8.1

68.2

6t.3

68.4

69.1

69-2

69.3

69.4

69-5

69.6

69;1

68

69

Ä - Di!tr Cd€iacrr'¡¡ildiú - Èdd klúd
F - Diftrirg siþ C@dittu
C - DesiSû odignr
D -Diûid Covoiaffiifid- NGIbjd Rêhed
E- Cdüfrcmi@úftiri@
F -CffiüRqdcd lßpdi6 Mbc B-27

E\Ron's Stuff, IRWD\112m38\hd{onmffi êe\02-2018\ChanSeReque*tq Pa*27 of 29 2/ß/2018 9:36 M



MWRP Biosollds ârd Ener$¡ Ræovery Fsciliti6
PR 21146 (¡1280

ConsFuction Ch¡nge Order Summâry

Confætor: F- ContractorRequest- Ovtrtime Hom
Design Enginer: Blæk& Vøtch

OriCmål
Completion

Date:

1012E/2016

Revised

Completion
Date

t0ßu2017

t0ßr/201'1

1013112011

r0ßlt20t7

Contæt Days

inal DaYs: 1.278

Revised
Total

Contract
Davs

r,&6

1,646

1,646

1,646

Cm.
Total

C.O. da¡

368

368

368

36E

O¡

Previox
Chuge
Ordæ

368

368

368

36E

Chmge

O¡dq
Days

0

0

0

0

0

f)

0

0

0

0

Contract Amout

163.465.940.00

Revised Contæt
Amüt

$181,580,422.09

$l 81,568,212.09

$181,s93,468.38

$l81,744,223.67

Orisinal Contræt Amout:
Vo of

OriCinal

Conaact
Amoüt

ll.08o/o

11.07%

11.09o/o

ll -l8o/o

Cmulative Total

of Chmge Ord6

$18,1 14,482.09

sri,102,272.09

$l 8,127,s28.38

s18,278,283.6'1

Previou Chmge
Orde¡s

$l 8,0,10,s09.32

$18,1 14,482.09

$18,102,272.09

$ 18,127,528.38

Chæge Orda
Amomt

s73,9't2.77

($12,210.00)

s25,256.29

$150,755.29

Chmge Orda Line
Item Amomt

$'t7,367.32

$24,018.04

s27,479.58

6r,204.20

s3,903.63

($12210.00)

s25,256.29

s't50,755.29

IRWDor
FBB

IRWD

IR\ryI)

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

IRWD

FBB

Category

A

c

c

A

A

F

B

Desciption

App¡oved by Exe. Dir of Engineuing md Wattr Qulity
Approved on Jauary 23, 2018

Addition of Limit Switchæ on Gæ Dryø Heat Exchmgû (CR-303) PR 042E6

Iæk 5.30

Chmge of Electrical Clæsifiøtion of Valve Limit Switches at Acid Phæe

Digestø Corrylex (CR415) PR 04286 Tæk 5.30

Powø Souce to the Sotids Hmdling Building Bridge Cmes (CR-574) PR

04286 Tæk 5.30

tnvestigation of Steet Lights, South side ofBiosolids Sile (CR{I3) PR 04286

fæk 5.30

Additional Switchæ in the Solids Hmdling Building (CR-625) PR 04286 Tæk
5.30

Approved by Exe. Dir of Engineaing ad Watü Quality

Approved on Jmuary 31, 2018

C!€dit for Overtire Inspection Hom from 1011/2017 to 12/3112017 (CR489G)
PR 04286 Task 4.0

ApprovedbyGmml Mægu

Approved on Jmuay 25, 20 I 8

tßtallation of Breakm for Pows Pæel PP-8001 (CR414A) PR 04286 Tæk
5.30

Pmding Approval by Bo{d ofDirectors

Pmding Apprcval on February 27, 2018

Additional Ci¡oits for Contol of the Dewtqing Cøtriftges (CR-3868) PR
04286 Tæk 5.30

Chage Ordø

70.1

70.2

70.3

't9.4

70.5

71.1

72.1

73.1

70

71

72

73

A - Di!tr C@i6dri¡idio - Èdd tuldd
B - DifiÊriDg SilG Cdititu
c -Þifû eæi€ùt
Þ - DbtidCovaiad¡itilid - NGhjd R.lded
Ê- CffiCffii*ir'I¡ilÉiE
F - Coûdü lþqwscd ¡¡ædiú CMiDc B-28
E\8on's Stuff\lRWDU12m38\hd{ommfr €€\02-2018\ChðngeRequelLq Page 28 d 29 2þ3120ß9,36 AM



lìfIVRP Blosol¡ds and Energt Ræovery Facilldc
PR 21146 (42t6)

Construct¡on Ch¡Dge Ordet Summsry

ConÈætor: F- Contractor Reqæst - Overtire Hoüs
Design Engine* Blæk & V€atch

Original
Completion

Date:

t0128n016

Rwised
Cornpletion

DalÊ

Contæt Days

OriginalDavs: 1,278

Revised

Total
Confæt

Days

Cum.

Total
C.O. dra)^

Previous

Chmç
Ordæ

Chmge

Orde¡
Days

Contr¿ct Amout

OrisinalContract Amout: $163y'65,940.00

Revised Contræt
Arcut

To of
Original
Contact
Amout

Cmulative Total
of Chuge Ordere

PrevioN Chuge
O¡dm

Chmge Order
Amoet

Chmç OrduLine
Item Amomt*-r",1'"s'"01

DesqiptionChmge Ordu

% oforiginal
Contract

1.70o/o

7.610/o

1.97%
0.00o/.

0.06o/n

-0.16%
ll.18o/.

Total Amount

2,778,773.60
12438,424.q
3,224,803.13

98,302.54

Q62,020.00)
s 18.278.283.67

CateEorv

- District Convenience/Initiation - Ptoject Related

- Differing Site Conditions
- Desþ Oversight
- District Convenience/Initiation - Non-Project Related
- Coûüactor Convenience/Initiation
- Contractor Overtime

lA+B+C+D+E+F)

% ofOriginal
Contract

2.27o/o

8.80%
O.l0o/o

ll.l8o/o

Total Amount

I 3,716,062.42

$ 14,391,501.03
g 170,720.22
s 18.2'.78-283.67

lateEorv

TOTAL

B-29

A - DirtrcdEiød¡ftiai(ñ - kiël Rddd
B - DiÊdÁt siÈ cdditir
c - Dqif! O6itbt
D - Ði!ùid Cú€iacer'birùli4 - N*kojd Relú.d
E-McoMi!æ/Iriridid
F - CffidRqwcdl¡adim O6i@

E\Rn's Stuf lRwoul2m$\þrd&mmfre€\02-2018\ChângeReque*Lq Paæ 29 of 29 211312018 9136 M



March 12,2018
Prepared by: J. Dayer
Submitted by: K. Drake
Approved by: Paul A. C"rt / &,

CONSENT CALENDAR

MICHELSON V/ATER RECYCLING PLANT
ASPHALT REPLACEMENT CT AWARD

SUMMARY:

The majority of asphalt paving at the Michelson Operations Center is over 20 years old and in
need of replacement. Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to
execute a construction contract with Sanders Paving, Inc. in the amount of $376,133.35 for
replacement of approximately I27,350 square feet of asphalt.

BACKGROUND:

The asphalt in and around the Michelson Operations Center is original to the construction of the

building. Despite regular crack repair and slurry sealing, much of the asphalt is cracked and

weathered and requires replacement.

Much of the asphalt in the treatment plant area was replaced as part of the MWRP Phase II
Expansion Project. The condition of the remaining areas of asphalt was evaluated in the fall of
2016 and approximately I27,350 square feet was identified as requiring replacement. The areas

included in the scope of this contract award are presented as "Exhibit A" and will be completed

in three phases. Capital projects were added to the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Capital Budget to fund

this replacement.

Staff conducted a job walk with four qualified paving contractors in January of 2018. The

responsive bidders were: Sanders Paving, Inc., Hardy &,Harper,Inc., Quickel Paving, Inc., and

GM Sager Construction, Inc. Sanders Paving, Inc. was the apparent low bidder with a bid of
5376,133.35. A list of bid results is included as Exhibit "B". Sanders Paving, Inc. has

satisfactorily completed many projects for the District and is considered well qualified. Work
will be performed outside of the normal District working hours, primarily on weekends, to

minimize impact on operations.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Capital Projects 07117,071 18, and 07II9 are included in the 2017-18 Fiscal Year capital

budget. The existing budget is sufficient to fund the project.

Ijd MWRP Asphalt Replacement Contract Award.docx



Consent Calendar: Michelson Water Recycling Plant Asphalt Replacement Contract Award

March 12,2018
Page2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This activity is not subject to the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized

under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14,Chapter 3, Section 15060 (cX1) Preliminary

Review. An activity is not subject to CEQA if the activity will not result in a direct reasonably

foreseeable indirect physical change to the environment.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018

RECO ATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT V/ITH SANDERS PAVING,INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF

$376,133.35 FOR REPLACEMENT OF APROXIMATELY 127,350 SQUARE FEET OF

ASPHALT AT THE MICHELSON V/ATER RECYCLING PLANT.

EXHIB

Exhibit "A' - MV/RP Asphalt Replacement Aerial
Exhibit '6F^)) - MV/RP Asphalt Replacement Bid Summary



EXHIBIT 664''

1

I

I)

j¿

¡^tËrl
Jis

ú

)=.

i

ir-l
f ,r I

,rl

t
'1

Bldg 60

MWRP Asphalt Replacement "Exhibit A' @
lô-:.è

{-:¡rr.¡'t}. ¡l ..¡
I ¡ r¡

I

tr
I

i
I

\ç- t rí g d
.'.ô- i - -t -! 3f¡Ãji[ Ð.S

,1

F
lufil

E
@h's

t

@
Á

Ftãl-
I

_l

,;'3 tqe
$'

ù

I

- I ;¡
I

r.r.L Êr T:T

I

D
¡

!,

ff=

aÉl

14,

.)
,1 !. \-b

t!$
F¿ir1¡l



EXHIBIT ''8"

MWRP Asphalt Replacement Bid Summary

s376,133.35Sanders Paving, lnc.

S4o5,8oo.ooHardy & Harper, Inc.

s449,995.00Quickel Paving, lnc.

5920,559.55GM Sager Construction, lnc.



March 12,2018
Prepared by: A. MurphylM. Cortez
Submitted by: K. Burton
Approved by: Paul A. Cooy' 6,fZ .

CONSENT CALENDAR

REHABILIT

SUMMARY:

The2017 Sewer Rehabilitation project is complete. The District's contractor, Insituform,
completed the required work and all punch list items. The project has received final inspection

and acceptance of construction is recommended.

BACKGROUND:

This project rehabilitated approximately 3,500 feet of gravity sewer pipeline between eight and

15 inches in diameter at 11 locations including four in Irvine, six in Lake Forest and one in
Newport Coast. The sewers were rehabilitated with cured in place pipe lining.

The District's engineering firm, Psomas, completed the design in August 2017 and Insituform
was awarded the construction contract on October 9,2017. Insituform mobilized in November
2017 and completed construction of all improvements on January 20,2018.

Project Title:

Project No.:

Design Engineer:

Construction Management by:

Contractor:

Original Contract Cost:

Final Contract Cost:

Original Contract Days:

Final Contract Days:

201 7 Sewer Rehabilitation

07100

Psomas

IRWD Staff

Insituform

$238,300

s252,057.06

130

130

Final Change Order Approved on: February 2I,2018

9am 2017 Sewer Rehabilitation-Final Acceptance



Consent Calendar: 2017 Sewer Rehabilitation Final Acceptance
March 12,2018
Page2

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 07100 is included in the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget. The existing budget is sufficient to

fund the final payment for the project.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized

under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15301 which provides

exemption for minor alterations of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical

equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that

existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. A Notice of Exemption for the project

was prepared and filed with the County of Orange on May 26,2017.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE 2017 SEWER REHABILITATION,
PROJECT O71OO, AUTHORIZETHE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF

COMPLETION, AND AUTHORIZETHE PAYMENT OF THE RETENTION 35 DAYS
AFTER THE DATE OF RECORDING THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

None.



March t2,2018
Prepared by: S. Toland/R. Mori
Submitted by: K. Burton
Approved by: paul n. cool/ ?¿.

CONSENT CALENDAR

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT
FINAL ACCEPTANCE

SUMMARY:

Construction of the Baker 'Water Treatment Plant project is complete. The District's contractor,
PCL Construction, completed the required work and all punch list items. The project has

received final inspection and acceptance of construction is recommended.

BACKGROUND:

The construction contract for the Baker Water Treatment Plant project was awarded to PCL on
January 6,2014. The construction schedule was extended over the course of the project to
account for various unanticipated conditions, additional work, and to accommodate the extensive
testing, startup, and commissioning activities, including the required six-month membrane test
period. The Plant was placed into service in January 2017 and has produced high quality
drinking water ever since.

Project Title:

Project No.:

Design Engineer:

Construction Management by:

Contractor:

Original Contract Cost:

Final Contract Cost:

Original Contract Days:

Final Contract Days:

Final Change Order Approved on:

Baker Water Treatment Plant

05027

RBF Consulting lCarollo Engineers

IRV/D Staff

PCL Construction

$77,520,613

$80,045,439.68

820

T,5I4

February 13,2018

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 05027 is included in the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget. The existing budget is suffrcient to
fund the final payment for the project.

st Baker WTP Final Acceptance.docx 10



Consent Calendar: Baker Water Treatment Plant Final Acceptance
March 12,2018
Page2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and an

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared in conformance with California Code of
Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7. The Final EIR was certified and adopted by the
Board in April 2011. Addenda No. 1 and No. 2to the EIR were prepared in accordance with
Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines and were approved by the Board in February 2012,
and March 2013, respectively.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was not reviewed by a Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ACCEPT
CONSTRUCTION OF BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT, PROJECT 05027,
AUTHORIZETHE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION, AND
AUTHORIZETHE RELEASE OF RETENTION 35 DAYS AFTER FILING OF THE NOTICE
OF COMPLETION.

None.



March 12,2018
Prepared by: J. Corey/K. Welch
Submitted by: F. Sanchez/P. Weghorst
Approved by: Paul 1,. Cooll Ø

CONSENT CALENDAR

ADDENDUM NO. 3 TO THE BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

SUMMARY:

IRWD proposes minor modifications to the Baker'Water Treatment Plant Project. The proposed
modifications include the addition of a solar photovoltaic (PV) power generation system and an

energy storage system within the existing boundaries of the Baker Plant. These additional
systems will supplement electricity provided by Southern California Edison (SCE) to reduce the
cost of power at the Baker Plant and to reduce stress on SCE's electrical distribution grid.
Environmental review has been completed for the proposed modifications. Staff recommends
the Board approve Addendum No. 3 to the Baker'Water Treatment Plant Project Final
Environmental Impact Report (FEIR).

BACKGROUND:

In April 2}ll, the IRWD Board certified the Baker Plant FEIR. The FEIR analyzed the
environmental effects of constructing and operating a potable water treatment facility at the
location of the former Baker Filtration Plant in Lake Forest. The Baker Plant project enhances
water supply reliability in south Orange County and provides redundant treatment capacity to
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California's Diemer Treatment Plant by treating 28
million gallons of raw water per day. The project provides treated water to IRIVD and four other
water agencies in south Orange County: El Toro Water District, Moulton Niguel V[ater District,
Santa Margarita'Water District, and Trabuco Canyon 'Water District.

Previous Addendums:

In March 2012,IRWD approved Addendum No. 1 to the Baker Plant project FEIR. Addendum
No. 1 evaluated the environmental effects of modifying the alignment of the treated water
pipeline that connects the plant to the South County Pipeline and changes to the mechanical
design of the product water pump station. In March 2013,IR\4/D approved Addendum No. 2 to
the Baker Plant Project FEIR. Addendum No. 2 evaluated the environmental effects of adding
residuals handling facilities to the Project. Addendum No. 2 also included two new electrical
conduit alignments necessary for SCE to serve the project.

Addendum No. 3:

Addendum No. 3 to the Baker Plant FEIR has been prepared pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act. This addendum analyzes the environmental impacts associated with
installing a PV power generation system and an energy storage system at the plant. The purpose
of the additional systems is to supplement electricity provided by SCE to reduce the cost of
power needed to operate the plant and to reduce stress on SCE's electrical distribution grid. The
proposed modifications that are analyzed in Addendum No. 3 are described further below.

jac Addendum No. 3 Baker W'TP FEIR.docx tt



Consent Calendar: Addendum No. 3 to the Baker Water Treatment Plant Project Final Environmental
Impact Report
March 12,2018
Page2

Solar PV System:

The proposed solar PV generation system would generate approximately 1.25 megawatts of
alternating current. The components for the solar PV generation system would include solar PV
¿urays and ancillary equipment, which includes inverters, solar panel boards, a switchboard and a
telemetry panel. The solar PV arrays would be constructed atop the two existing 16 million
gallon buried reservoirs that are located at the Baker Plant. Electrical interconnection of the
solar system to the existing plant electrical system will be required. The solar power system
would not provide backup power during a utility outage. In the event of a power outage, backup
power for the plant would be provided via the three existing on-site diesel generators. A site
map showing the location of the proposed solar arrays is attached as Exhibit "4".

Energy Storage System:

The proposed energy storage system would include an approximately one-megawatt, six-hour
battery storage system. The batteries would be located as shown on Exhibit "A", either on the
west side of Reservoir I with the auxiliary equipment associated with the solar PV generation
system or on the west side of the existing treatment building. The batteries would charge during
off-peak hours and then discharge during on-peak times. The six-hour battery storage system is
expected to have approximately two hours of power dedicated to demand management at the
Baker Plant and approximately four hours dedicated to SCE's Demand Response Energy
program to reduce stress on SCE's electrical grid. Ancillary equipment including a switchboard,
inverter and a telemetry panel would be required to connect the battery system to the existing
Baker Plant electrical service.

Acoustical modeling of the energy storage system facilities will be conducted during design to
identify components that will be needed to attenuate operational noise below the City of Lake
Forest noise ordinance thresholds. Similar to the PV generation facility, the energy storage
would not provide backup power during a utility outage.

Findings:

The proposed modifications to the Baker Plant project as described above would not change the
regulatory framework, impact discussion, mitigation measures or significant conclusions as

described in the FEIR. Environmental review has been completed for the proposed
modifications to the Baker Plant project as described above and Addendum No. 3 to the IiEIR
has been prepared. Based on the information and analysis in the proposed Addendum No. 3, the
Determination section of the Addendum sets forth the proposed determinations by the District
that no conditions described in CEQA calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have
occurred. A copy of Addendum No. 3 is attached as Exhibit "8".

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The cost for the environmental review of the proposed solar PV power generation system and
energy storage system at the Baker Plant is included in project 07153 in the FY 2017-I8 Capital



Consent Calendar: Addendum No. 3 to the Baker Water Treatment Plant Project Final Environmental

Impact Report
March 12,2018
Page 3

Budget. Capital budget requirements for the implementation of the proposed modifications to

the Baker Plant Project will be reviewed with the Board at a later date.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE :

Section 15164 of CEQA Guidelines provides for the preparation of an addendum to a previously

certified Environmental Impact Report (EIR) by a lead agency or a responsible agency if some

changes or additions to the project are necessary but none of the conditions described in CEQA

calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Based on the information and

analysis in the proposed Addendum No. 3, the Determination section of the Addendum sets forth
the proposed determinations by the District that none of such conditions have occurred.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item has not been reviewed by Committee. Addendums to EIRs typically are not taken to

Committee prior to submittal for Board approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD APPROVE THE PROPOSED ADDENDUM NO. 3 TO THE BAKER
WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT,

INCLUDING THE DETERMINATIONS SET FORTH IN ADDENDUM NO. 3, AND
AUTHORIZE STAFF TO POST AND FILE A NOTICE OF DETERMINATION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit '(A" - Baker'Water Treatment Plant Proposed Energy Facilities Site Map
Exhibit 6'8" - Addendum No. 3 to the Baker'Water Treatment Plant Project Final Environmental

Impact Report



SOURCE: ESA,2O18

r ESA
)

EXHIBIT ''A''

IRWD BakerWTP EIR Addendum No. 3

Aerial View of BakerWTP & Available Space for Proposed Modifications

F---lj Alternative Battery Storage Locations

E Available Space for Solar Modules

A-1



EXHIBIT ''B''

Addendum No. 3 to the

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT

Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 201005L055)

Prepared for:

Irvine Ranch Water District

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue

March 6, 2018

r ESA
./

B-1



¡
!
i
I

t
:
!

Ì
!
i
i

I

i
I
i
;

'

:

Addendum No, 3 to the

BAKER WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT

Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2010051055)

Prepar.ed fori
Irvine Ranch Water District

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue

Iruine, CA 92618

March 2018

626 Wlfrhlre Boulenard

S¡rlte 1100

tos Ang€le¡, CA 90017

213,599,4300

wwÚ.wa¡soc.com

O¡kl¡nd

Orl¡ndo

Palm Splngr

Pel¡lum¡

Portl¡nd

Sacr¡¡iento

rsrn o¡eeo

.San tranclsco

Sânio Cmt

Ssåttlç

Tampa

Woodt¡nd Hlll¡

ot¡og{0¡¡

B-2



TABLEOF

I

,'

I

;

:'

:
1

ì
:

t

!
¡
:

¡

¡
t

I
i

¡

t
!

:

Addendum No. 3
Baker Water Treatment Plant Project
Final Environmental lmpact Report

Proposed Modiflcatlofls........r......
4,1 Description of Proposed Energy Facilities......,,'.,..,.,..',...
4,2 rConstruction Characteristics .....,....,........
4,3 Operation Charaeteristics.............. r. r !.... !........ i.
4,4 Froject Phasing and Schedulê..............,.

7.0

8.0

lncorporation by Reference.

Analysis of Potential Environmental lmpacts Associated with the
Prop-osed Modifications...............
6.1 Aesthetics........... .........',.,..'....'.,.9
6.2 Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions '.'.'.'..'....'.'11
6.3 Noise and Vibration.... ..'.'..'.'...13
6.4 Pubtic Services and Utilities.r...r¡..i..¡'¡¡,...r....¡¡.'..¡.;'.i".¡..i'..'¡.';'.""".'.¡¡.¡ii¡i'i,.'.',".1S

Summary of Envlronmental Effects ...,.....-..-....-16

Determ lnatlon,,...,-.-..

List of Figureq

1. Proposed Modifications - Detailed Site Plan.,..:....:..:...,:.
2, Aerial View of BakerWTP and Available Space for Solar Modules .,..,..,..6

Bek€r Wálár Tt€âtmsnt Plânt Proiscl

Flñâl EIR Addônduft No,0
i

B-3

ESA/D130940,05
M€fcn 2{)18



BAKER WATER TREATTUENT PLAHT PROJECT

Final Environmental lmpact Report Addendum No.

1,0 lntroduction
Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) proposes to modiff the Baker Water Treatment Plant (W'TP)

Froject (Project). The proposed modifrcation includes construction and operation of a solar

photovoltaic (PV) power generation system and energy storage system within the existing

boundaries of the Baker WTP. The purpose of the solar system is to supplement electricþ

provided by Southem California Edison (SCE) with solar energy captured onsite to reduoe the

cost of power at the Baker rüTP. The purpose of the enerry storage system is to charge the

batteries from the grid during off-peak hours and then discharge them during on-peak times to

reduce the cost of power at the Baker WTP ¿nd reduce stress on SCE's electrical dishibution

grid. The potential environmental cffects ofthe proposed modification to the Project are

addressed in this Addendum No. 3 to the Baker WTP Project Final Environmental Impact Report

(EIR) (SCH # 2010051055). All other planned Baker WTP facilities and project objectives

outlined in the Final EIR and Addendum No. I and No. 2 remain unohanged. tT Ot:Po1._d

modification does not affect the changes to the Project that were analyzed in Addendum No- 1

and Addendum No. 2.

IRWD has prepared this Addendum pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act

(CEQA) Guidelines Section Lil64,to describe the modifîcations to the Proj¡9t a_4d to evaluate

whether the modifrcations present any new signifïcant impacts not identified in the previously

certified Final EIR, Addenàum No. 1, and Addendum No. 2 that would require preparation of a

subsequent or supplemental EIR. As documented in the anatysis presented below, the proposed

modifications would not result in substantial changes that warrant preparation of a subsequent or

supplemental EIR pursuant to Sections I 5 I 62 and I 5 I 63 of the CEQA Guidelines.

2.0 Project Background
In April of 201l, IRWD's Board of Directors certified the Baker WTP Project Final EIR. The

Final EIR evaluated the environmental effects of constructing and operating a new potable water

treâment facility in the City of Lake Forest at the location of the former Baker Filtration Plant

(BFP). The Project included other requisitê offsite components, such as the Raw Water Pump

Station loc¿ted in the City of Orange. The Baker WTP Project enhances watet supply reliability

in southem Orange County and provide redundant treatment capacity to Metropoliüan Water

District of Southern California's (MVID) Diemer Treatment Plant by treating raw water at a

normal operating capacity of 43.5 cubic feet per second (28 million gallons per day). The Project

does not increase the oapacþ of regional ffeated water distribution pipelines, but:rather improves

BakerWstêr Treatment Plqnt Projôct

Final EIR Addendum No.3

B-4

ËsA /D't 00s40,05
March 2018



¡

I

!

I

i

l
:

l

regional potable water system reliability and operational flexibility. The Project provides treated

water to four partnering water agencies in southern Orange County: El Toro Water District

(ETWD), Moulton Niguel Water Dishict (MNWD), Santa Margarita Water District (SMWD),

and Trabuco Canyon Water Distriot (TCWD).

ln March of ZIIZ,IRWD's Board of Directors certified Addendum No. I to the Baker WTP

Project Final EIR. Addendum No. I evaluated the environtental-1lfe.cts.of 
Todiô/jng 

the_

alignment ofthe treated water pipeline that connects the Baker WTP to the South County Pipeline

and changes to the mechanical desigrr of the product water pump station.

In March of 201 3, IRWD's Board of Directors certified Addendum 
]rlo. 

2 to the Baker WTP

Prgject Final EIR. Addendum No. 2 evaluated the environmental effects of including an

additional üoatment process to the Baker WTP and two new electrical conduit alignments

necessary for Southern California Edison (SCE) to service the Project. The teatment process at

the Baker WTP was modified to include new residuals handling facilities to allow residyls
processing to occur onsite at the Baker WTP rather than at Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant

(LAWRP) as previously planned,

3.0 Purpose of Addendum

Under CEQA, the tead agency or a responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a

previously-certified Final EIR if some changes or additions are necessary to the prior ElR, but

none ofthe conditions calling for preparation ofa subsequent or supplemental EIR have occurred

(CEQA Guidelines $$ 15162, 15164). Once an EIR has been certified, a subsequent EIR is only

required when the lead agency or responsible agency determines that one of the following

conditions has been met:

(1) Subst¿ntial changes are proposed:in the project, or substantlal changls occur with-respect to

the circumstances under which the project is u-ndertaken, which require major revisions of the

previous EIR due to the involvement of new signiflrcant environmental effects or a substantial

increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects (CEQA Guidelines

$lsl62(aXl), (2));

(2) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been

known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as

oomplete, shows any of the following:

â¡ The project will ha.¡e one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR;

b. Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in

the previous EIR;

c. Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be

feasible and would substantially roduce one or more significant effects of the project, but

the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or

d. Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed

in thã previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the

environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or

alternative (CEQA Guidelines $ I 5 1 62(aX3)).

Baker Wst€rTrêâtmont Plant Prcject
Fingl EIR Addêndum No 3

2

B-5

ESA /Dl 30940.05

MErch 2018



4.0

4.1

If one or more of the conditions described above for a subsequent EIR exist, buf only minor

additions or changes would be necessary to make the previous EIR adequately apply to the

project in the changed situation, then the lead agency may prepaxe a supplement to an ElR, rather

than a subsequent EIR ICEQA Guidelines $15163(aD.

CEQA recommends that a brief explanation of the decision to pr€pare an addendum rather than a

subsequent or supplement¿l EIR be included in the record (CEQA Guidelines $l5l6a(e)). IRWD

has evaluated the potential environmental impacts of the proposed modifications as set forth

below in Section 6 of this Addendum No. 3. IRWD, acting as the Lead Agency, has determined

that none of the above CEQA conditions apply and that Addendum No. 3 to the adopted Final

EIR is the appropriate environmental documentation for the proposed modifications and fully
complies with CEQA, as described in the CEQA Guidelines.

An addendum does not need to be circulated for publio review, but rather can be attached to the

Final EIR (CEQA Guidelines $1516a(c). Frior to initiating the modified Project, IRWD's Board

of Directors will consider this Addendum No. 3 together with the adopted Final EIR and previous

addendums (i.e., AddendumNo. I and Addendum No. 2) and make a decision regardingthe

modified Project (CEQA Guidelines $15164(d).

Proposed lUlod ifications

Description of Proposed Energy Facilities

The Baker WTP Project Final EIR assumed power for the facility would be provided solely by

SCE via existing grid infrastructure. The Final EIR further assumed no oËsite improvements to

the existing grid infrastructure would be necessary to provide enough energy to operate the WTP

at fulI capacity. The proposed modification to the Baker rrlVTP Project involves construction and

operation of an on-site solar PV power generation system and an energy storâge system. The

purpose of the additional solar system is to supplement electricily provided by SCE with solar

energy captured onsite to reduçe the cost of power at the Baker WTP. The purpose of the enerry

storage system is to charge the batteries from the grid dwing off-peak hours and then discharge

them during on-peak times to reduce the cost of power and reduce stress on SCE's elecJrical

distribution grid. One or both of these additional systems would be constructed. The 4dditional
systems could be constructed at different times. In order üo assess the worsi-case scenario, this

Addendum âssumes both the solar PV generation system and the energy storage system would

both be constructed at the same time. A detailed site plan showing the locations of the solar PV

generation system and enerry storage system is included as Figure 1. Each system is described

further below.

$glariV Gêncrqtion,$ystem: The solar PV generation system wout! ItTtl.,up-t:_
approximately 2.0 megawatts alternating curent (MWac) and would include the following

components: solar PV arrays; ancillary equipment including inverters, solar panelboards,

switchboard, and telemetry panel.

Båk6r Wâtâr Troatment Pl€nt Prcj€ct

Finêl EIR Addsndùm No, 3

3

B-6

ESA/0130940.05
MårÒh io18



t

2&

f".t
'9.

.¡

TD
I
{

SOURC€: lr¡dr€€l:Bakef lrìternatiònat, 2û17

:/- u$a
I/

lBtìlD Baker WTP EIR ¡{ddendum No,3

Figure I,
Proposal Modifications- Detailed Site Plan



Fixed-tilt, ground-mounted solar PV arays would be constructed atop two existing l6 million

gallon (MG) buried reservoirs (i.e., Reservoir I and Reservoir 2), totaling up to approximately 3

acres for solar panels (Figure 2). Solar arîays would be approximately 6 feet in height and would

be mounted to maintain the integrity of the buried reservoirs, likely using a ballast racking

system. The layout of the solar arrays would altow sufficient space for operations staff to access

and maintain the underlying reservoir equipment using a small pick-up truck. A woven ground

cover and 4-inch aggregate base would be installed under and around the sola¡ PV anays 
J,o

maintain a clean site. Ancillary equipment would be located adjacent to the solar anays, likely on

the west side of Reservoir I (see Figure l).

Electrical collection and interconnection of the solar PV generation system to the existing WTP's

electrical system will be required. Interconnection would be achieved through SCE's Rule 2l

Generating Facility lnterconnections process. The State of Califomia requires that all inverters

installed in 2018 shall cömply with UL l74l SA standards, meaning the solar system would not

provide backup power during a utilþ outage. Thus, in the event of a utiliff outageo backup power

would be provided via the three existing on-site diesel generators'

Preliminary solar prodlction estimates presented in the Baker rüater Treatment Plant Solar

Project Constraints Memorandum, prepared by Michael Baker Intemational, show that the site

can support about a 1.25 MWac solar facility that would produce approximately 2,250,000 kilo-

watt-hours per year (kWh/yr). The final capacity and production of the solar facility will be

determined during final design and could be greater'

When operating at its design capacity, the Baker WTP will be capable of consuming all of the

solar energy produced at the site. A Non-Exporting interconnectiort agreement with SCE may be

pursued that will make it eligible to receive incentives through SCEIs Local Capacity

Requirement program. The selection of a Non-Exporting or a Net Enerry interconnection

agreement will be made in consultation rwith SCE as part of the project's final design and

permitting process.

:Enerw StoraËle-Fvstern: The enerry storage system would include up to approximately a l-
megawatt or not significant greater, 6-hour battery storage system. The batteries would be located

either on the west side of Reservoir 1 with the auxiliary equipment associated withfhe so_$ PV

generation system or on the west side of the existing WTP's treatment building (refer to Figure

l), In general, the batteries would charge during off-peak hours and then discharge during on-

peak times. The 6-hour battery storage system is expected to have about_2-hours.dedicated to

demand management at the WTP and about 4=hours dedicated to SCE's Demand Response

Energy Storage program to reduce stress on SCE's electrical grid. Ancillary equipment including

" 
,*ii"hbour¿, ¡nu"rrcr and telemetry panel would be required to connect the batüery system to the

WTP's existing eleohical service. The battery components of the energy storage system would

produce a humming sound during operation, However, during the design phase, acoustic

modeling of the energy storage facilities will be cond¡cted 
10 1:termin:1: 

d"_tiql parameters

required to attenuate operational noise below the City of Lake F'orest's Noise Ordinance

thresholds.

Bak€r WÊtêr T¡eåtmgnt Plant Projecl

F¡nal EIR Addondum No, â

ESA /Dt90340.05

March 2018

B-8



SOURCE: ESA, 2018

r ESA
)

lRlÄiD BakerWTP EIR Addendum No. 3

Figure 2
Aerial View of BAKER WTP and Available Space for Proposed Modifications

B-9



I

!
a

I

;
I

t

i

.

:

Electrical collection and interconnection of the batteries to the existing I#TP's electrical system

would be required. Similar to the solar PV generation system, the enerry storage system would

not provide backup power during a utility outage. Thus, in the event of a utility outage, backup

power would be provided via the three existing on-site diesel generators.

4.2 Construction Characteristics
The construction equipment that is expected to be present onsite for the duration:of construction

is described on page 2-14 of the Final EIR, along with the expected number of construction

workers.,The proposed modifications would require similar equipment as described in the Final

EIR, and the workforce would be well below the 60 workers assumed for construction of the

WTP in the Final ElR. Construction of the solar PV generation and enerry storage systems would

specifically require pickups, forklifts, backhoe (for trenching), a small crane, and roughly 3-5

construction workers. Construction best management practices, including but not limited to

construction activities being restricted to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., excluding

Sundays or federal holidays, and use of use noise control ûechniques (e.g., mufïlers, use of intake

silencersn ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds) on

construction equipment and trucks, would be implemented to reduce noise levels during

construction.

Construction of the solar affays atop ofthe two buried reservoirs would not require substantial

excavation or trenching. A ballast racking system for mounting the solar anaVl allgws for

installation with minimal ground penetration. Small footings may be required for the racking

system; however, excavated soils for the footings would be b¿ckfÌlled and there would be no

change in soil export or input quantities reported in the Final EIR.

Both the solar PV generation and energy storage systems would require trenching for electrical

conduits. Trenching would be performed consistent with techniques described in the Final EIR on

pages 2-14 and 2-15, although trenching depths would be shallower than the maximum l0- to l2-
foot depths assumed by the Final EIR. As described in the Final EIR, trenching would utilize a

conventional cut and cover consffuction technique which would include fench excavation,

conduit installation, electrical cable installation, backfill operations, and re-surfacing to the

original condition. All electrical conduits would be buried, inctuding any vault structures and

boxes. Once installed, the disturbed areas would be retumed to pre-construction conditions along

the entire length of the alignments.

The energy storage system and other ancillary components of the solar and energy storage

systems may be installed on new concrete pads, which would require minimal quantities of
concrete. The amount ofconcrete previously used for the concrete pads for the energy storage

system and ancillary components would not exceed the quantity of concrete assumed for

construction of the Baker WTP in the Final EIR.

4.3 Operation Characteristics
Operatíon of the on-site solar system would not change work force or equipment requirements

associated with the Project. Panel washing may be required to clean solar PV panels. Panel

Baker Water Tr6ôtment Plsnt PrcjÈcl

F¡nål EIR Addsndum No. g

B -10



wâshing is expected to be minimal (e.g., semi-annual basis) and would be performed using a

pickup-mounted water trailer. Water for panel washing would be obtained from an on-site source

and no chemicals would,be used. Maintenance of vegetation around the solar panels would not be

required ss woven ground cover and 4.inch aggregate base would be installed under and around

the solar PV anays to maintain a clean site. Operational activities associated with the energy

storage system would consist of routine maintenance occurring periodically and as necessary.

4.4 Project Phasing and Schedule

Construction of the Baker WTP was completed in January, 2017 andthe ÏVTP became

operational in March, 2017. Conshuction of the proposed modifications would begin in summer

2018 and the duration of the construction modifìcations would be approximately six months. The

solar and energy storage systems could be construcûed at different times'

5.0 lncorporation by Reference

Consistent with Section 15150 of the CEQA Guidelines, the following documents were used in

the preparation ofthis Addendum and are incorporated hercin by reference:

¡ Baker Vy'ater Treatment Plant Project Draft Environmental Impact Report, January 201 I
(State Clearinghouse No. 20 1005 I 055).

r Baker Water Treatment Plant Project Finat Environmental Impaot Report, April20l I (State

Clearinghouse No. 20 I 005 I 055).

o Baker Water Treatrnent Plant Project Final Environmental Impact Report Addendum No, 1,

February 20 I 2 (State Clearinghouse No. 20 I 005 I 05 5).

e Baker Water Treatment Plant Project Final Environmental Impact Report Addendum No. 2,

March 2013 (State Clearinghouse No. 2010051055).

r Baker Water Treatment Plant Solar Project Constraints, September 2017, Prepared by
Mich¿el Baker International for lrvine R¿nch Water District.

These documents are available forreview during regular business hours at IRWD located at

15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California 92618-3102.

6.0 Analysis of Potential Environmental lmpacts
Associated w¡th the Proposed llllodifications

The proposed addition of the sotar PV generation and an energy storage systems would not

change the regulatory framework, impact discussion, mitigation measures, or significance

conclusions for the following topic areas, as cungntly described in the adopted Final EIR:

Agricultural and Forestry Resources; Biological Resources; Cultural Resources; Geolory, Soils,

and Mineral'Resources; Hazards and Hazardous Materials; Hydrolory and Water Quality; Land

Use, Planning, and Recreation; and Transportation and Traffic. Therefore, these topic areas are

not analyzed in this Addendum. Construstion and operation of the proþosed solar PV generation

and energy storage systems at the Baker rüTP site could, however, affect the following

environmental issues previously described in the adopted Final EIR: Aesthetics, Air Quality and

Eâkff Wal€r Tr€alm€nt Plsnt Froject

Finâl elR Addendum No 3

B -11



Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions, Noise and Vibration, and Public Services and Utilities. Each

of these topic areas are addressed in the following subsections.

6.1 Aesthetics
The Final EIR (Chapter 3.1) concluded that potential impacls to aesthetics in the vicinity of the

Baker WTP site would be less than significant after mitigation. This section provides an analysis

of the potential aesthetics impacts associated with the construction and operation ofthe solar PV

generation and energy storage systems on the Baker WTP site'

6.1.1 Setting

At the time of the preparation of the Final El& the Baker WTP site was characterized by the

existing treatment facilities associated with the BFP. Howevero construction of the Baker WTP

was completed in January 2017 and, is now the existing condition on the site. Surrounding land

uses primarily consist of low density residential, pubtic facility, and community park/open space.

Existing n¿tural features in the vicinþ of the Baker WTP site include Serrano Creek and Serano

Creek Trail. The City of Lake Forest has not designated any soenic roadways or scenic

vistas/viewpoints in the area surrounding the Baker WTP site.

The proposed solar FV arrays would be constructed atop the buried Reservoirs I and 2 and

ancillary equipment would be located adjacent to the solar arrays, likely on the west side of
Reservoir l. The energy storage system would likely be located either on the west side of
Reservoir I with the ancillary equipment associated with the solar PV generation system or on the

west side of the existing WTP's treatment building. The preliminary locations of the facilities are

shown in Figure 1.

6.1.2 Summary of Potential lmPact

As analyzed in the Final EIR, the original Project introduced new treatment facilities onsite at the

Baker WTP site that would be visible from surrounding streets, including hilltop residential units

located east of the Baker WTP site. There are no scenio highway corridors or City-designated

scenic vistas in the vicinity of the Baker ÌWTP site; thus, impacts to these nesources did not occur.

The proposed Baker IWTP replaced existing water treatment facilities within the same general

footprint of the previous Baker Filtration Plant, and aboveground facilities were designed to be

similar to and compatible with existing buildings onsite. In addition, Mitigation Measure AES-l

was provided by the Final EIR to ensure that a landscape plan is implemented to screen Projecr

facilities from neighboring streets and that landscape vegetation was maintained onsite to the

extent feasible to screen Project facilities from scenic views from hilltop residences. The Final

EIR concluded the Project would not introduce a new contrasting feature that would affect scenic

vistas or alter the visual character of,the site.

The proposed modificatíon would add fixed+ilt, ground-mounted solar PV anays atop the buried

Resçrvoirs I andl;ancillary equipment associated with the solar PV generation system to the

west of Reservoir l; and an energy storage system either on the west side of the existing WTP's

treatment building or on the west side of the existing treatment building on the Baker WTP site.

The PV arrays would be designed to industry standards and would be approximately 6 feet in

Éåker Wat€rTreotmsnt Plant Prcject

F¡nal EIR Addsndum No 3

B -12
Mârch 2018



height. All of the PV arrays would be u¡iform and would have a similar industrial style as the

other industrial buildings currently located on the Baker tiVTP site. Further, a woven ground cover

and 4-inch aggegate base would be installed under and around the solar PV arays to maintain a

clean site, which would maintain the visual quality of the Baker WTP site. Installation of the

proposed solar PV generation and energy storage systems would not substantially change or

degrade the existing visual character of the Baker WTP site. Additionally, installation of the

proposed systems would not impede existing public views or scenic vistas. The installation of
Iandscape vegetation to soreen the facilities would not be necessary and Mitigation Measure

AES-I would not apply for the proposed modifrcations. Impacts to aesthetics would be less than

significant.

Construction of the underground facilities would involve trenching and excavation activities to

install the conduit, electrical cables, vault structures and boxes. However, these activities would

be temporary in nature and would cease once construction is complete. All disturbed areas would

be back-filled and re-surfaced to the pre-construction conditions along the entire length ofthe

alignments. Operation of the underground facilities would not affect the visual quality of the site

as all of these facilities would be below ground and not visible from sunounding viewpoints.

Therefore, visual impacts assooiated with the underground facilities would be less than

significant.

The Final EIR also analyzedpotential light and glare impacts resulting from permanent security

lighting at the proposed Baker WTP. The Final EIR included Mitigation Measure AES-3 to

ensure lighting would be shielded and directed downrvard away from neighboring properties and

land uses. The Final EIR concluded that with incorporation of Mitigation Measure AES-3,

impaots related to light and glare were reduced to less than significant.

Operation of the proposed solar PV generation and enerry storage systems would not require

additional permanent securþ lighting beyond what is already installed on the Baker WTP site

and thus, Mitigation Measure AES-3 would not apply for the proposed modifications. While there

is the potential for the PV arrays to result in glint (a momentary flash of bright light) or glare, the

amount of glint a¡d/or glare produced by solar PV panels is relatively low. Solar PV panels are

constructed of dark-colored materials, usually blue or black, and are covered with an anti-

reflective coating, where the main function of the PV solar panels are to absorb solar radiation

rather than reflect it (Meister Consultant Group 2014). Funher, modern PV panels reflect as little

as two percent of incoming sunlight, which is similar to water and less than soil and even some

wood-based materials (Meister Consultant Group 2014). For these reasons, impacts related to

light and glare produced by the solar PV panels would be less than significant'

6.1.3 Applicable Mitigation Measures

None required.

6.1.4 Conclusion

The proposed modifications would not result in a new significant impact or substantially increase

the severity of an impaot identified in the Final EIR. No mitigation is required beyond the

10Bak€r Wst6r Tr€simênt Plsnt Prciect

Final EIR Addendum No. A

B -13

ESA ¡D130940 05

March 2018



existing commitments contained within the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

(MMRP). Impacts to aesthetics would be less than significant.

6.1.5 References

Meister Consultant Group, 2014, Solar and Glare. Available at: http://solaroutreach.org/wp-

contenVuploadsl2}l4/06/Solar-PV-and-Glare--Final.pdf. Accessed January 24,2018.

6.2 Air Quallty and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Final EIR (Chapter 3.3) concluded that potential impacts to air quality and GHG emissions

during construction and operation of the original Project would be less than signifioant after

mitigation. This section provides an analysis of the potential air quality and GHG emissions

impacts assooiated with the construction and operation of the solar PV generation and an energy

storage system on the Baker WTP site.

6.2.1 Setting

The Baker WTP site is located in the City of Lake Forest, which is within the boundaries of the

South Coast Air Basin (SCAB). SCAB, which is a subtegion of the South Coast Air Quality
Management District's (SCAQMD) jurisdiction, is bounded by the Pacific Ocean to the west and

the San Gabriel, San Bemardino, and San Jacinto mountains to the north and east. The

topography and climate of southern Califomia combine to make the Basin an area of high air

pollution potential. The air quality in the SCAB had exceeded thresholds for Ozone and

Particulate Matter (PM) l0 and 2.5 in 2008, which was the latest reporting year used in the Final

EIR.

The proposed modifications would be constructed and operated on the Baker WTP site and thus,

would also be located within the SCAB. The proposed modifications are required to oomply with

the same air quality and GHG emission plans, ståndards and thresholds as the original Project.

6.2.2 Summary of Potential lmPact

As described in the Final ElR, the original Project would neither conflict with applicable air

quality management plans nor violate any air quality standard by exceeding any SCAQMD

thresholds during construction and operation of the Project. Additionally, the Final EIR

determined that while the original Project would not result in significant impacts to sensitive

receptors from carbon monoxide (CO) or toxic air contaminants (TACs), IRWD will implement

best management practices, as outlined in AQ-l through AQ-4, to further decrease CO and TACs

emissions during construction. Finally, the Final EIR concluded that the original hoject would

have less than significant impacts related to GHC emissions during operation of the Project,

where GHG emissions generated from the original Project would be approximately 2,097 metric

tons of CO2e per year less than the 10,000 metric tons of CO2e per year threshold.

Construction of the proposed modifications would specifically require pickups, forklifts, backhoe

for trcnohing, a small cråne, and roughly 3-5 construction workers, which is well below the 60

construction workers assumed for construction of the original Project. Construction of the

Baksr WBIê. Trêatmsnt Plant Projocl

F¡nat E¡R Addendum No.3

E$A /0r30940,05
MÉr$ 2018

B -14



proposed solar PV generation and energy storage system would occur over an approximately six-

month period starting in Summer 2018. Since the size and extent of construction activities

required for the proposed modification are substantially less than those required for the original

Project, it is reasonable to assume that air quality emissions generated during conshuction of the

proposed modifications would also be less than those generated during construction of the

àrijinat Project. Since the air quality emissions generated during construction of the original

Project did not exceed the construction thresholds established by SCAQMD, it is logical to

assume that air quality emissions generated by construction ofthe proposed modifications also

would not exceed these thresholds. For these reasons, construction of the proposed solar PV

generation and energy storage systems would not confliot with applicable air quality management

plans or violate any air quality standards.

Furtheç since t}re Final EIR determined that the original Project would not exceed thresholds for

CO or TACs during construction, it is rational to assume that construction of the proposed

modifioations would also not exceed CO or TACs thresholds. IRWD will continue to implement

the air quality best management praotices est¿blished in the Final EIR, as applicable, for the

proposed modifications. The best management practices require the consffuction contractor to

implement a fugitive dusl control program, properly maintain all construolion equiRmen!,_

minimize exhaust emissions, and prohibit idling in excess of ten minutes both on- and off-site.

Implementation of these best management practices woutd further reduce impacts associated with

CO and TACs to a less than significant level'

Operation of the proposed solar PV generation and energa storag€. system would not generate

local air quality or GHG emissions as the proposed systems would oapture solar enerry to be

stored and used for operating the Baker,TüTP site. Therefore, operâtional impacts to air quality

and GHG emissions would not occur.

With respect to nearby, related past, present and/or foreseeable future projects (either overlapping

conshuction periods or on.going operation), it is possible that emission íncreases for,certain air

pollutants could exceed the SCAQMD's emission thresholds. How€ver, per CEQA Guidelines

bection 15064(hX4), the mere existence of significant cumulative impacts caused by other related

projects alone shall not constitute substantial evidence that the proposed project's incremental

effects are cumulatively considerable. Since construction and operation of the proposed

modifications would not generate air quality and GHGemissions which exceed SCAQMD

thresholds, impacts associated with the proposed modifications would not be considered to be

cumulatively oonsiderable.

6.2.3 Applicable Mitigation Measures

Best Management Practice AQ-l: General contractors shalt implement a fugitive dust control

program pursuant to the provisions of SCAQMD Rule 403.

Best Management Practice AQ-2: All consFuction equipment shall be properly tuned and

maintained in accordance with manufacturer' s specifications.

BÊk6r wâlêr Trôâtmont Plañt PrcjBct

F¡nål EIR Addêndum No. 3

ESA /O'130940,05
Mârch 201 B

B -15



!

¡

t

:

¡

Best Management Practice AQ-3: General contractors shall maintain and operate construction

equipment so as to minimize exhaust emissions. During construction, frucks and vehicles in

loading and unloading queues would turn their engines offwhen not in use to reduce vehicle

emissions. Construction emissions should be phased and scheduled to avoid emissions peaks and

discontinued during second-stage smog alerts.

Best Management Practice AQ-4: All construction vehicles shallbe prohibited from idling in

excess of ten minutes, both on- and off-site.

6.2.4 Conclusion

The proposed modifications would not result in a new significant impact or substantially increase

the severity of an impact identified in the Final EIR. No mitigation is required beyond the

existing commitments contained within the MMRP. Impacts to air quality and GHG emissions

would be less than significant.

6.3 Noise and Vibration
The Final EIR (Chapter 3.10) assessed potential impacts to sensitive receptors due to Project

noise and vibration and concluded that construction and oþeration of the Project would have a

less than signifioant impact with incorporation of mitigation. The following discussion addresses

potential impacts from the proposed solar PV generation and enerry storage systems'

6.3.1 Setting

Residential land uses are located to the east, south, and west of the Baker V/TP site. The nearby

residences qualiff as noise sensitive receptors and would potentially be exposed to noise

generated from Project activities. Construction activities at the Baker WTP site would get as close

as 100 feet to residential units located on Wisteria and Forestwood.

The proposed solar PV generation system would be constructed atop and adjacent to the buried

Reservoirs I andZ,which are located in the middle portion of the Baker ÌWTP site toward the

northern site boundary. The energy storage system may also be constructed to the west of
Reservoir l, ifthat option is selected. The closest residential uses to the buried reservoirs are

approximately 0.15-miles to the south but are separated by a densely vegetated corridor. If the

energy storage system is constructed on the west side of the existing WTP's treatment building,

tlre nearest residential uses would be adjacent to the Baker WTP site, approximately L57 feet to

the west.

6.3.2 Summary of Potential lmPact

As described in the Final ElR, construction activities were antioipated to create a temporary

increase in ambient noise levels in the immediate vioinity of the construction zone. Table 3.10-l

of the Final EIR shows that the greatest noise levels were anticipated to be associated with

excavation and fïnishing and were estimated 89 A-weíglrted decibels (dBA) at a distance of 50

feet. Accordingly, attenuated at 100 feet, the closest residences to the Baker WTP site would

experience noise levels up to 83 dBA Leq (average dBA) during excavation and finishing, tho

't3Båksr Wat6r lreÈtmônt Plant Projåcl

Fln€l elR Addåndum No 3

B -16

ESA/O130940.05
Mârch 2016



I

i
I

i

i

!

ì

'

loudest construction activities that would occur. The Final EIR concluded_that with 
;

implementation of Mitigation Measures NOISE-l and NOISE-2, potential construction noise

impacts on sensitive receptors would be mitigated to less than significant lev€ls. Mitigation to be

implemented includes restrictions on days and times for construction activities in accordance with

the City of Lake Forest?s Noise Ordinance and use of noise control techniques'

The proposed modifications would construct solar PV generation and energy storage systems at

the Baker WTP site. For the purposes of this analysis, it is assumed that both the solarPV

generation system and energy storage system would be constructed simultaneously. Construction

of the solar arays atop of the two buried reservoirs would not require substantial excavation or

trenching and all excavated soil would be backfilted onsite. Trenching would be performed

consistent with techniques described in the Final EIR on pages 2-14 and 2-15, although trenching

depths would be shallower than the maximum 10- to l2-foot depths assumed by the Final EIR.

The energy storage system and other anoillary components may be installed on nelry concrete

pads. Construction noise impacts would be similar or less than those already described in the

Final EIR. Construction of the solar PV generation and energy storage systems would not require

additional or different equipment or methods than those already desoribed for the original Project

in the Final EIR; Construction best management practices, including but not limited to

construction activities being restricted to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., excluding

Sundays or federal holidays, and use of use noise-control techniques.(e.g., mufilers, use of intake

silencers, ducts, engine enclosures, and acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds) on

construction equipment and trucks, would be implemented to reduce noise levels during

construction. Therefore, impacts relatedlto oonstruction noise would be less than significant.

Operation of the solar PV generation system and underground facilities would not generate noise

during operation. The battery ûomponents of the energy stbrage system would produce a

humming sound during operation, which could cause a nuisance to nearby sensitive receptors.

However, the batteries of the enerry storage system would be housed within an enclosed unit,

which would be designed to attenuate operational noise levels below the thresholds established by

the Cþls Noise Ordinance. For these reasons, impacts associated with operational noise would

be less than sigrificant.

6.3.3 Applicable Mitigation Measures

None required.

6.3.4 Conclusion

The proposed solar PV generation and energy storage systems would not result in a n1y

significant impact,or substantially increase the severity of a previously identified signifìcant

impact as previously described in the adopted Final EIR. No mitigation is required beyond the

existing commitments contained within the MMRP, Impacts to sensitive receptors associated

noise and vibration would be less than significant

Bsk6r Watêr Treatment Plant Proj€ct

Flnâl ÊlR Addendum No. 3

B -17

ËsA iD130940.05

March 20'16



6.4 Public Seruices and Utilities

The Final EIR (Chapter 3 . I I ) assessed potential impacts to public services and utilities and

concluded that construction and operation of the original Project would have a less than

signifïcant impact with incorporation of mitigation. The following discussion addresses potential

impacts from the proposed solar PV generation and enerry storage systems'

6.4.1 Setting

As desqibed in the Final EIR, the Baker WTP site is located in southern Orange County in the

City of Lake Forest. Fire and police protection services for the City are provided by the OynS¡

County Fire Authority and Sheriff s Department, respectively. Lake Forest Elementary School is

the closest school to the Baker:WTP site, approximately 1,25 miles to the south, ¿nd the closest

hospital is Saddleback Memorial Medical Center, approximately five miles away in the Cþ of
Laguna Beach.

Utilities in the City of Lake Forest:are provided by the following providers based on the type of
utility:

¡ IRWD, El Toro Water Disffict, and Trabuco Canyon Water District provide water service to

the city;

¡ Los Alisos Water Recycling Plant treats wastewater that is generated within the city;

¡ Orange County Flood Control District provides for the planning, development, operation, and

maintenance of the flood control facilities on a Countywide basis;

r Orange County Integrated lrlVaste Management Deparhnent owns and operates the Prim¿

Deschecha Landfill, which primarily serves the City; and

r SCE provides electricity to the City, and the Baker WTP siæ'

The proposed solar PV generation and enerry storage system,s would be relatively small additions

to the Baker WTP site a¡d would not increase the need for additional public services to serve the

site. All utility providers and services would remain the same as described in the Final EIR,

except for enårgy use. Thereforen implementation of the proposed modifications would not

change the regulatory framework, impact discussion, mitigation m€asures, or significance_

conclusions for public services and utilities as currently desoribed in the adopted Final EIR" with

the exception ofenerry use.

6.4.2 Summary of Potential lmPact

As described in the Final EIR, the facilities inpluded under the original Project would increase

energy demand by approxim ately 2,6,700 mega-watt hours per ye1. The Final EIR assumed SCE

would provide electricity to the Project through the existing grid infrastructure, The Final EIR

concluded that the original Project would treat water at the Baker WTP instead of the existing

Diemer Treatment Plant and would effectively redistribute the cunent energy used to treat the

water. The Final EIR concluded impacts to regional enerry capacity would be less than

significant.

gakar W€t€r Tm6tmonl Plant Prcjèct

F¡nal EIR Addåndum No,3

15

B -18
March 20'18



The purpose of the solar PV generation system is to supplement electicity provided by SCE with

solar energy captured onsite to reduce the cost of power at the Baker WTP. Based on the

preliminary solar production estimates included in the technical memorandum prepared by

Michael Bakerlntemational (201,7), the Baker WTP site can support about ¿ 1.25 MWac solar

facilþ that would produce approximately 2,250,000 krühlyr. 
fol.ab" 

pYlp:t:t ofthis analysis, it

is assumed that the site could support up to a 2.0 MWac solar facility within the same

approximately 3-acre site. The puþose of thç enerry storage system is charge the batteries from

thÁ grid during ofÊpeak hours and then discharge them during on-peak times to reduce the cost of
power at the Baker WTF and reduce stress on the SCE?s electrical distribution grid. The energy

storage system would include up to an approximately l-megawatt or not signifïoantJV-er9ater,6-

hour battery system. In the event of a utility outage, backup polver would be provided via the

three existing on-site diesel generators. Therefore, implementation of the prongled 
rydifications

would reduce reliance on electricity supplied by SCE. Thus, the proposed modifications would

reduce impacts to the regional energy capacity compared to the original Project.

6.4.3 Applicable Mitigation Measures

None required.

6,4.4 Concf usion

The proposed modifications would not result in a new significant impact or substantially increase

the severity of a previously identified significant impact. No mitigation is required beyond the

existing commitments contained within the MMRP. Impacts to energy use are less than

significant.

6.1.4 ReJerences

Michael Baker International, 2017, Baker ïVater Treatment Plant Solar Prqject Constraints.

Prepared for lrvine Ranch Water District. September 2017.

7.0 Summary of Environmental Effects

As discussed in this Addendum No. 3, the proposed addition of the solar PV generation and

energy storage systems would not change the conclusions of the certifred Final EIR and

Addendum No. I and Addendum No. 2. While construction and operation of the proposed solar

PV generation and energy storage systems do not directly meet the same objectives of improving

water reliability to,areas of south Orange County, providing a reliable local water supply in the

event of emergency conditions or scheduled maintenance of the MWD delivery system; and

increased operational flexibility by creating redundancy within the raw water:ippl{ system, the

proposed modifications,allow IRWD to supplement electricity provided by SCE with a renewable

"n".gy 
source to operate the Baker WTP. By utilizing solar energy, the operation of the Baker

WTP site would be more sustainable and help to reduce air qualþ and GHG emissions, both of

which are beneficial.

The proposed addition of'the solar PV generation and an energy storage system would¡ot result

in a new significant impact or substantially increase the severity of a previously identihed

Bâker Wet€r Tr€aimênt Plånt Proj€ct

Finâl EIR Addondum No, 3

16 ESA lD'130S40.05
M€rôh 20'lg

B -19



significant impact. No mitigation is required beyond the existing commitments contained within

the MMRP for the adopted Final EIR. The proposed addition of the solar PV generation and an

enerry storage system to the previously-approved Project do not meet any ofthe conditions that

would require the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental EIR as set forth in Sections l5 162

and 15163 of the CEQA Guidelines.

8.0 Determination
Section 15164(a) of the CEQA Guidelines states the following:

The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a

previously certìfied EIR íf some changes or additions are necessary but none of
-the 

conditiow descríbed in Section 15162 callingfor the preparatíon of
subsequent EIR høve occurred.

The proposed modifications to the original Project would not result in new signifìcant

environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant

effects. Furthermore, new information associated with the proposed addition of the solar PV

generation and enerry storage systems does not indicate that: the Project will have one or more

significant effects not discussed in the adopted Final EIR; sigrrificant effeots previously examined

will be substantially more severe than shown in the adopted Final EIR; mitigation measures or

alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible; ot mitigation measures

or alternatives which are considerably different from those alrnlyzed in the adopted Finat EIR

would substantially reduce one or more significant efects on the environment, but the Project

proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measures or alternative. Accordingl¡ an addendum

has been prepared as opposed to a supplement¿l or subsequent EIR. IRWD is adopting this

Addendum No. 3 in accordanee with the CEQA Guidelines Section 15164.

lrvine Water District

"//,,

.Io Ann

Þate

Environmental Compliance SJecialist
TitlePrinted Name

Bel(or wåtêr frsatmånt Plânt ProJEct

Flnâl ÉlR Addendum No, g
17

B -20

EsA lD'130940,05
Mârch 2018



March 12,2018
Prepared by: J. Smyth I M. Cortez
Submitted by: K. Burton
Approved by: Paul A. CooÇ,/ k .

ACTION CALENDAR

SEAWATCH RECYCLED WATER MAIN REHABILITATION
CONSTRUCTION AWARD

SUMMARY:

The l0-inch Seawatch recycled water pipeline has had 17 leaks repaired since its installation
in 2003. This project will install 4,500 feet of cured in place pipe (CIPP) and 140 feet of
PVC pipe to rehabilitate the pipeline. Staff recommends that the Board:

o Authorize a budget increase in the amount of $640,000, from $720,500 to $1,360,500;
o 'Waive the requirement that T.E. Roberts shall not award work to subcontractors in

excess of 50Vo of the contract price without prior written approval of the District;
and

r Authorizethe General Manager to execute a construction contract with T.E. Roberts

in the amount of $1,071,100 for the Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation,
project 07099.

BACKGROUND:

The lO-inch Seawatch recycled water pipeline, as shown in Exhibit "4", supplies the Crystal

Cove development in Newport Beach. It is the sole supply for Zones E through G in the

community. A total of 17 leaks have been repaired on the pipeline since its installation in 2003;

the failures have consistently been crack-type failures occurring on the PVC pipe bells.

A failure analysis was performed and determined that the contributing causes of the pipe bell
failures consisted of:

1) Long-term stress intensification on the pipe joints due to excessive deflection in both
sag/side directions,

2) Over-insertion of the pipe spigots into the pipe bells, and

3) lV'ater pressure surges.

Although the individual pipes within this pipeline may be in satisfactory condition, it is likely
that a number of the remaining pipeline bells are in a similar condition due to the damaged joints

Based on these findings, the District retained design engineering firm GHD to evaluate pipeline
rehabilitation alternatives including CIPP, slip-lining the existing pipeline with a smaller

diameter pipe and pipe bursting; GHD also evaluated the alternative of replacing the pipeline
with new pipe via open trench. Though costly, GHD recommended CIPP rehabilitation since it
would be the least intrusive method and quickest to install, thus returning the pipeline to service
more expediently for these customers. The District's previous experience with CIPP has only
been with gravity sewer pipelines (e.9., sewer rehabilitation projects in2014 and 2017); this
project will be the District's first installation of CIPP in a pressure water pipeline.

js Seawatch Pipeline Rehab Construction Award,docx 12



Action Calendar: Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation Construction Award
March 12,2018
Page2

Construction Award:

GHD completed the design in January 2018 and the project was advertised for construction
bidding to a select list of 17 pipeline and CIPP specialty contractors. Five contractors attended
the pre-bid meeting; the bid opening was held on February 27,2018 with two bids received from
Paulus Engineering and T.E. Roberts. Due to the specialized CIPP process of lining pressure
pipelines, many contractors elected not to bid. T.E. Roberts is the apparent low bidder with a

bid amount of $1,071,100; the engineer's estimate was $1,245,000. The Bid Summary is
attached as Exhibit "8".

In the District's contract, General Provisions Section 6.6.2 states, "CONTRACTOR shall not
award work to Subcontractors in excess of fifty (50) percent of the Contract Price without prior
written approval of DISTRICT." However, in the Statements by Bidder sections of the contract
documents, both T.E. Roberts and Paulus Engineering noted that their CIPP subcontractors
would perform more than 50Vo of the work. With the concurrence of legal counsel, staff
recommends waiving this requirement and awarding the construction contract to T.E. Roberts in
the amount of $1,071,100.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Project 07099 is included in the FY 2017-18 Capital Budget. Staff requests a budget increase in
the amount of $640,000 to fund construction of the project as shown in the following table:

Project
No.

Current Addition Total
Budget <Reduction> Budget

07099 $720,500 $640,000 $1,360,500

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and in
conformance with California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, 15301. Section 15301
provides exemption for minor alterations of existing structures, facilities, mechanical equipment,
or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the
time of the lead agency's determination. Additionally, State Guideline t5282 provides
exemptions for projects that involve the installation of new pipeline or maintenance, repair,
restoration, removal, or demolition of an existing pipeline as set forth in Section 21080.21of the
Public Resources Code, as long as the project does not exceed one mile (or 5,280 feet) in length.
A Notice of Exemption for the project was filed with the County of Orange on May 18,2017 .

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Construction awards are not routinely taken to Committee prior to submittal to the Board.



Action Calendar: Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation Construction Award
March 12,2018
Page 3

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE A BUDGET INCREASE IN THE AMOUNT OF $640,000,
FROM $720,500 TO $1,360,500, FOR PROJECT 07099; WAIVE THE REQUIREMENT
THAT T.E. ROBERTS SHALL NOT AWARD WORK TO SUBCONTRACTORS IN EXCESS
OF 50Vo OF THE CONTRACT PRICE WITHOUT PRIOR \VRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE
DISTRICT; AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH T.E. ROBERTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,07I,100
FOR THE SEAWATCH RECYCLED WATER MAIN REHABILITATION, PROJECT 07099.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit 6'4" - Location Map
Exhibit 618" - Bid Summary



EXHIBIT ''A''

I
frÞ6E PARK RD

SAI,IJOAQUIN êol

Y

SEAWATCH 10"

RECYCLED WATER MAIN

IFt-

(

(

LOCATION MAP

N

NOTTO SCALE



Bid Opening: Tuesday, February 27,2018 @ 2:00 p.m. Irvine Ranch Water District Bid Summary For
Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation

PR 07099, Code7032

EXHIBIT *B'
Entered By: L. Gates

.,

Paulus Engineerins. Inc.
Anaheim. CA

Total

Amount

$60,000.00

s16,000.00

$r,062,000.00

$40,600.00

$2,450.00

$9,720.00

$32,000.00

$r 1,396.00

$6,070.00

$9,202.00

$4,623.00

$2,6ó0.00

s7,982.00

$8,000.00

$10,400.00

s4,746.00

LJnit

Price

$60,000.00

$16,000.00

$23ó.00

$290.00

$2,450.00

$4,8ó0.00

$32,000.00

$5,698^00

$6,070.00

$9,202.00

$4,623"00

$2,6ó0.00

$7,982.00

$8,000.00

$260.00

$0.42

I
T.E. Roberts. Inc.

Orange. CA
Total

Amount

$16,400.00

$8,200.00

$864,000.00

$45,s00.00

s2"800.00

$9,200.00

$24,500.00

$14,000.00

$r2,400,00

$15,400.00

$8,100.00

$2,000.00

$4,100.00

$16,400.00

$4,200.00

$9,040.00

Unit

Price

$ r 6,400.00

$8,200.00

s t92.00

s325.00

$2,800.00

$4,ó00.00

$24,s00.00

$7,000.00

$12,400.00

$ t5,400.00

$8,100.00

$2,000.00

$4, r 00.00

$1ó,400.00

$105.00

$0.80

Engineer's Estimate

'l'otal

Amount

$62,300.00

$ 15,300.00

$900,000.00

$8ó,800.00

$3,100.00

$13,000.00

$47,0û0.00

$ó,200.00

$7,100.00

$11,700.00

$9,200.00

$28,600.00

$r 5,300.00

s12,300.00

$8,000.00

$ r r,300.00

Unit
Price

$62,300.00

$ l 5,300.00

$200.00

$ó20.00

$3,100.00

$6,500.00

$47,000.00

$3, r 00.00

$?,1 00.00

$r r,700.00

$9,200.00

$28,600.00

s l 5,300.00

$12,300.00

$200.00

$r.00

Unit

LS

LS

LF

LF

LS

EA

LS

EA

EA

EA

EA

LS

LS

LS

Ton

SF

Otv
I

I

4,500

140

I

2

I

2

I

I

I

40

r r"300

Description

Mobilization, demobilizarion and clean-up (nor to
exceed 57o)

Site Demolition

CIPP rehabilitation on existing lO-inch recycled
water pipeline

Fumish all labor and materials to construct l0-
inch restrained DRl4 C900 PVC recycled water
pipeline

Remove spools and install blind flanges af Reef
Point Drive PRV
Fumish and ínstall 10-inch Butterfly Valve per

IRWD Sld. Dwg. W-22 a¡d W-23
Furnish and install all labor and materials to
construct 8-inch Temporary Jumper Connection

Fumish and install all labor and materials to
construct 2-inch Temporary Service Connection

Furnish and insrall 6-inch Fire Hydrant per

IRWD Std. Dwg. W-8
Fumish a¡d install 4-inch Blowoff/Bottom Drain
Assembly per IRWD Std. Dwe \il-14

Fumish a¡d install 4-inch Temporary Flush-out
Assembly per IRTVD Std. Dws lY-12
Fumish a¡d install excavation safetv measures

TrafTic Control
Perform Utility Locating prior to any excavations

as required 1o complete the work as identifìed in
the construction plans

Pavemenl Replacement at CIPP access pits and
open trench construction in accordance with the

Construction Documents and the City ofNewport
Beach Std. Dwg. STD-105-L-B
Asphalt Seal Coat Patches along Fire Access
Road and Seawalch

Item

No.

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

t0

il

t2
t3
t4

t5

t6

B-1



Bid Opening: Tuesday, February 27,2018 @ 2:00 p.m. Irvine Ranch Water District Bid Summary For
Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation

PR 07099, Code 7032

Entered By: L. Gates

t

Paulus Eneineerins. Inc.
Anaheim. CA

Total

Amounf

$r5,000.00

$800.00

$1.303"649.00
$10.000.00

$ 1.313,649"00

Manufacturers:
Insituform Technoloeies, LLC

Subcontr¿ctors:

Lining - Insituform Technologies, LLC
Slurry Seal - All American Asphalr

Unit

Price

$r5,000.00

$800.00

I
T.E. Roberts. lnc.

Oranse. CA
Total

Amount

$15,000.00

$700.00

$1"071.940.00
$0.00

$r,071,940.00

Manufacturers:
Niedner

Subcontractors¡

CIPP - Sanexen Water, Inc.

Unit
Price

$15,000.00

$700.00

Engineer's Estimate

Total

Amount

$3,100.00

$4,800.00

$1.245.100.00
s0.00

$1.245.100.00

Item
CIPP

Unit
Price

$3,100.00

$4,800.00

Unit
LS

LS

Qtv

I

Description

Street and drainage features restoration along

Seawatch including, but not limited to: curb and

gutter replacement, V-ditch replacemenq cuch
bæin replacement, complete in place, and in
accordance with the Consfruction Documents and

the City ofNewport Beach Specifications.

Final Record Drawings

Subtotal
Adiustment (+ or - )

TOTAL AMOUNT OF BII)

Item

No.
t7

l8

B.-2



March 12,2018
Prepared and .-\
Submitted by: K. BurrctW
Approved by: Paul t'. C"{Çr/?

ACTION CALENDAR

V/ITHDRAWAL FROM SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY V/ASTEV/ATER AUTHORITY
12

SUMMARY

The IRWD service area overlies portions of both the Santa Ana (Region 8) and San Diego
(Region 9) Regional V/ater Quality Control Boards. South Orange County Wastewater Authority
(SOCWA) currently administers the Recycled'Water Master Permit for Region 9 for its member

agencies. As of May 2018 IRV/D's recycled water deliveries within the Region 9 boundary will
be regulated under IRWD's existing Region 8 discharge order and IRWD will have no

continuing financial obligations to SOCV/A for recycled water permitting. Staff recommends

that the Board authorize the General Manager to notify SOCWA of its intent to withdraw from
the Recycled'Water Master Permit (Project Committee 12) effective July 1, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

SOCWA is a Joint Powers Authority with 10 member agencies consisting of local retail water

agencies and cities that provide water service. It operates three wastewater treatment plants and

two ocean outfalls, in addition to multiple programs to meet the needs of its member agencies

and the requirements of the Clean Water Act and applicable National Pollutant Discharge

Elimination System permits. SOCWA was created on July 1,2001when the Aliso Water

Management Agency, South East Regional Reclamation Authority and South Orange County

Reclamation Authority consolidated. SOCWA has no taxing authority and all of its funding

comes directly from the rates and charges of the member agencies. The ownership of capacity

by member agencies in each facility or Project Committee (PC) serves as the basis for the

allocation of operating and capital costs. IRWD is currently a member of three PCs as follows:
Recycled Water Master Permit for San Diego (Region 9) Regional Water Quality Control Board

(PC lz),Effluent Transmission Main (PC2l), and Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall (PC24).

'Withdrawal from Project Committee 12:

The IRWD service area overlies portions of both the Santa Ana (Region 8) and San Diego
(Region 9) Regional Water Quality Control Boards. IRWD has been producing and delivering

recycled water within the Region 8 and Region 9 boundaries for many years. Until2015,
SOCWA administered the Region I master recycled water permit on behalf of IRWD. At the

request of Region I staff, IRWD applied for and secured an individual permit for recycled water

production and delivery in Region 8 thus relieving SOCV/A of any further effort associated with
the Region 8 permit. The Region 8 recycled water discharge permit unique to IRV/D was issued

directly to IRWD, effective July 2015.

kb SOCWA PC 12 Withdrawal
13



Action Calendar: Withdrawal from South Orange County Wastewater Authority Recycled
Vy'ater Master Permit (Project Committee 12)

March 12,2018
Page2

SOCV/A currently administers the Region 9 master permit for recycled water deliveries within
the Region 9 boundary on behalf of PC 12. In2017,IRWD received an accommodation from
both Region 8 and Region 9 that will allow IRWD's recycled water deliveries within the
Region 9 boundary to be regulated under IRV/D's existing Region 8 discharge order. Once
IRWD's new Region 8 discharge order is issued, anticipated by May 2018,IRWD will have no
coverage requirements regulated by the Region 9 discharge order administered by SOCWA and
therefore no continuing financial obligations to PC 12.

In preparation for SOCWA's Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget preparation cycle, staff has prepared a

letter, attached as Exhibit ooA",to notify SOCWA of its intent to withdraw from PC l2 effective
July 1,2018.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

V/ithdrawal from SOCWA's PC 12 is anticipated to save IRWD approximately $25,500 per
year. IRWD's cost to include the Region 9 recycled water monitoring requirements into its
Region I permit are negligible because the information is aheady collected by IRWD staff and
provided to SOCWA for reporting purposes.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This item is not a project as defined in the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as

authorized under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO NOTIFY THE SOUTH
ORANGE COUNTY V/ASTEWATER AUTHORITY OF ITS INTENT TO V/ITHDRAV/ FROM
THE RECYCLED WATER MASTER PERMIT (PROJECT COMMITTEE 12) EFFECTIVE
JULY I,2OI8.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit ((A)) - Letter to SOCWA for V/ithdrawal from Project Committee 12



EXIIIBIT "A''

lrvine Ranch
w at: R D l3 ¡ n I c 1

MarchXX,2018 DRAFT

South Orange County rJV'astewater Authority
34156 Del Obispo Street
Dana Point, CA92629

Attn: Ms. Betty Burnett

Re: Irvine Ranch Water District Request to Withdraw from Project Committee 12

Dear Ms. Burnett,

The lrvine Ranch Water District (IRUID) service area overlies portions of both the Santa Ana

(Region 8) and San Diego (Region 9) Regional \Mater Quality Control Boa¡ds. IRWD has been

iroãucing and delivering recycled water within the Region 8 and Region 9 boundaries for many

y.*r. Uãtil 2015, SOCV/A administered the Region 8 master recycled water permit on behalf of
inWn. At the request of Region I staff,IRWD applied for and secured an individual permitfor

recycled water pràduction *d d"lirr"ry in Region I relieving SOCV/A of any further effort

assôciated with the Region I permit. Order No. R8-2015-0024, the Region 8 recycled water

discharge permit unique to IRWD, was issued directly to IRWD, eflective July 2015.

SOCV/A administers the Region 9 master permit (Order No. 97-52) for recycled water deliveries

within the Region 9 boundary on behalf otyC tZ (formerly PC2-SO). ln2017,IRWD received

an accommodation from both Region I and Region 9 that will allow IRWD's recycled water

deliveries within the Region 9 boundary to be regulated under IRV/D's new Region 8 discharge

order, which is anticipated to be effective by May 2018.

IRWD has confirmed with Region 9 staff that there will be no on-going monitoring or reporting

requirements on the part of SOCWA associated with the IRWD recycled water system. The IRWD

recycled water system therefore contributes to no costs associated with PC 12. PC 12 neither owns

noi maintains any facilities that would obligate members to on-going fixed or capital expenses'

therefore, IRWD should have no continuing financial obligations to PC 12.

IRWD therefore is hereby notifying SOCWA of its request to withdraw from PC 12 and hereby

requests SOCTWA staff mbdiS, ttre lg¡tq fiscal year budget to remove any costs allocated to IRIWD

associated with PC 12.

IRWD sincerely appreciates efforts of SOCWA staff over many years to facilitate the coverage of
IRWD's Region 9 recycled water deliveries under socwA's permit.

lrvlne Ranch W.t€r Dlitrlct . 156O0 Sancl Canyon Ave,, lrvlne, CA 92618 ' Malllnc Address: P'O, Box

A-1

57OOO, lrvlne, CA 92619-70OO . 949-453-5300' wr¡vwlrwd'com



Please contact me at (949') 453-5590 if you have any questions or require any further inforu¡ation.

Sinoerel¡

Paul A. Cook
General Manager

.1560O Sr[td Carryon Aw,, lrvlne, cA tr1618. Mrlllng Äddr.3¡: P.O, Bot s?þoQfvhc

A-2

lrvln€, CA 9Í16197üþ r 9¿l$45i1-5¡lo0 . www.Fwd.com



March t2,2018
Prepared by: J. Dayer
Submitted by: K. Drake
Approved by: Paul A. Cooy' ç(

ACTION CALENDAR

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION CONTRACT
TWO-YEAR CONTRACT EXTENSION

SUMMARY:

The landscape and irigation contract for the District's properties expires on March 31, 2018.

The contract allows for two one-year extensions at the discretion of the District. The current
contractor, Tropical PlazaNursery, Inc., submitted a proposal for two additional years of service
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to award a two-year landscape

and inigation contract extension to Tropical PlazaNursery, Inc. in the amount of $985,856.28
effective April 1, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

On April 1,2015, Tropical PIaza Nursery, Inc. was awarded a three-year landscape contract for
maintenance of 146 District properties. This contract was executed at cost of 5414,672 for the
first year. The contract allowed for two one-year extensions, to be executed at the discretion of
the District.

In its first year of this contract Tropical Plaza's performance has been excellent. At the
suggestion of the Engineering and Operations Committee, staff requested that Tropical submit a

proposal for a two-year extension of the existing contract. In response to this request, Tropical
submitted a proposal with two one-year extensions as follows: $480,766.20 for the first year (a

7.4Vo increase); and $505,090.08 for the second year (a 5.0Vo inqease). The increases primarily
reflect increased labor costs, but are still less than the increases in minimum wage expected to
occur over the term of the contract. Details of Tropical's proposal are included in Exhibit "4".

Since the scope of work for the 2015 contract was defined, the District has added nine locations
which require regular maintenance: l) San Joaquin Reservoir Standby House, 2) Peters Canyon
Pump Station, 3) Bee Canyon Pump Station,4) Hidden Hills Pump Station, 5) Cienega Pilot
Site, 6) Baker \üater Treatment Plant, 7) Bonita Canyon Pump Station, 8) Operation Monument
Sign, and 9) Dyer Road Well 16. Tropical has maintained these sites on a month-to-month basis

and this work will be included in its new proposal with an annual cost of $35,758.20 for 2018
and $37,546.08 for 2019. Staff considers these costs to be reasonable and competitive. A
summary of the costs associated with each site is included in Exhibit "A".

FISCAL IMPACTS:

Sufficient funds for the first three months of the contract were included in the approved Fiscal
Year 2017-18 Operating Budget. Funds will be requested in the District's 2018-19 Fiscal Year
and 2019 -20 budget processes.

jd landscape and Irrigation Contract - Two Year Extension .docx

T4



Action Calendar: Landscape and lrrigation Contract - Two-Year Contract Extension
March 12,2018
Page2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This activity is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized
under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15060 (cX1) Preliminary
Review. An activity is not subject to CEQA if the activity will not result in a direct reasonably
foreseeable indirect physical change to the environment.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A TWO-
YEAR CONTRACT EXTENSION WITH TROPICALPLAZA NURSERY, I..{C. FOR A
TOTAL OF $985,856,28, EFFECTryE APRIL I,2OI8.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit *4" - Irrigation and Landscape Contract - Two-Year Extension Bid Summary



EXHIBIT ,.A,,

Tropical Plaza Nursery Contract Extension Proposal Summary

s.0%Ss,sao.oo 81% S5,863.00Area l. 55,164.00
5.0%S¡,roo.oo 8.!% S3,259.00Area2 S2,868.00

s3,ss8.00 5.0%S3,r.28.00 s3,383.00 8.2%Area 3
Sz,gsg.oo 5.0%St,qts.oo 5t,stq.oo 1,.3%Area 4

Sg,sgz.oo 5.0%58,722.0o Sg,¿zg.oo 8.O%Area 5
s6,338.00 5.0%ss,s89.00 s6,035.00 8.O%Area 6

Sz,ogs.oo 5.0%Sr,oro.oo s1,e89.00 235%AreaT
5.0%7.3% $qal,sqq.ooAnnual Cost $qtq,alz.oo S4+s,oog.oo

ii'Iìriii:ìl

MonthlyMonthly Monthly
8.O% 5e0.72 5.0%s80.oo ss6.40Dyer Well Site 16 - Additional Areas
8.O% $113.40 5.0%s100.00 s1o8.ooBee Canyon Pump Station
8.0% S170.10 5.0%Hidden Hill Pump Station $1so.oo s162.00

5.0%8.O% $361.88Operations Center Monument Sign 53r.9.12 s344.6s
5.0%8.0% 590.72Cienesa Pilot Site 5so.oo s86.40
5.0%Sao.¿o 8.O% sso.72Bonita Canvon Pump Station $so.oo
5.O%s432.oo 8.0% s4s3.60San Joaquin Houses s40o.oo
5.0%s486.oo 8.0% $s1o.30Peters Canyon s4s0.00
5.0%Sr,rss.oo 8.0% St,z47.4oBaker Filtration Plant S1,1oo.oo

8.O% s37,s46.08 5.0%s33,109.44 S35,zsg.2oAnnual Cost

,rïìirlì1r ìi'ìrir,jllì:r.,i{ìi]i::"ì lttìi iir'tittljì1 I i ;l'triir l l'rr,i' lìl¡(rìirr:Ì¡Í:Í':

TotalAnnualCost (AllAreas + New

Sitesl
s447,78t.44 5480,766.2O 7,4% $505,090.08 5.O%



March 12,2018
Prepared by: I. Swift
Submitted by: J. Tnpeda
Approved by: Paul 1,. Coo/ (/( .

ACTION CALENDAR

SAN JOAQUIN MARSH AND NATURAL TREATMENT SYSTEM FACILITIES

SUMMARY:

Current operation and maintenance needs within the San Joaquin Marsh, San Joaquin Marsh
Campus, Peters Canyon V/ater Capture and Reuse Pipeline (Peters Canyon), and Natural
Treatment System (NTS) facilities require landscape maintenance contract services to control
and remove native and non-native vegetation along with landscape and irrigation maintenance.
The contract includes 10 new NTS sites that the District acquired since the previous contract. A
total of 32 sites will be covered encompassing a total area of 523 acres. Staff initiated the
competitive bid process in November of 20t7 and based on the bids received, staff recommends
that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the landscape maintenance contract
with LandCare for 62,616,874.33 for three years for the NTS and the San Joaquin Marsh, and
with Habitat Restoration Sciences for $42,792 for Peters Canyon.

BACKGROUND:

Seven landscape maintenance companies were invited to participate in the Request for Proposal
(RFP) process in November of 2017 based on their experience with the District and their
experience with projects involving natural habitat restoration, especially wetlands. This included
a walk-through at the San Joaquin Marsh and three NTS sites that were typical of the system as a

whole. Of the seven companies, two did not participate in the walk-through (Chambers Group
and Nakae); Park West did not respond to the RFP. Of the four firms that submitted bids, only
Tropical Plaza and LandCare responded with formal proposals for all contracts, while two other
firms submitted bids on two of the four contracts. A summary and scoring of each firm is
attached as Exhibit "4". For all contracts, with the exception of the Marsh, the lowest bidding
firm was chosen. For the Marsh, the lowest bid did not provide for an acceptable level of labor,
based on past experience, and therefore was not chosen. A summary of each firm's bid is
attached in Exhibit "4".

The previous contracts (from 2015), which included 23 NTS sites and the San Joaquin Marsh
(and Marsh Campus), totaled $2,003,904. The new three-year contract will include 32 sites,
Peters Canyon, and the San Joaquin Marsh (and Marsh Campus), an increase of 10 sites at a total
cost of fi2,659,666.33. Although the number of sites has increased by 437o, the District has kept
the cost increase down by reducing the maintenance frequency from weekly to monthly at most
sites. The new contract also lays out provisions for the addition of new NTS sites as they are
acquired by the District during the term of the contract.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

First-year funds for this contract are available in the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Department 515
NTS Operations Budget.
is SJM and NTS Three-Year l¿ndscape Maintenance Service Contract

15



Action Calendar: San Joaquin Marsh and Natural Treatment System Facilities Three-Year
Landscape Maintenance Services Contract
March 12,2018
Page2

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

The landscape maintenance activities performed under this contract will be in accordance with
provisions of the San Joaquin Marsh Enhancement Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and
the NTS Master Plan EIR.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on February 20,2018

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH LANDCARE IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,616,874.33 AND WITH HABITAT RESTORATION
SCIENCES IN THE AMOUNT OF 642,792 FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT
SERVICES FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A" - Summary of Bids for NTS and SJM Landscape Contract



EXHIBIT ''A"

Natural Treatment m Landsca Maintenance

Nature's lmage

ss2,749,068
Tropical Plaza

S1,600,986

Habitat Restoration
Sciences 52,276,676Weight

Landcare

$1,391,596Category

7.754.75 9.0030% 6.13
Qualifications and Technical

Expertise
4.63 6.385.38 6.0030%Approach to Work

3.008.00 5.0040% 9.00Cost
6.09 5.447.O5 6.43OverallWeighted Score

43t, 2FinalRanking

San uin Marsh Landsca Maintenance

Nature's lmage

$897,984

Tropical Plaza

Nursery

53,640,7s2

Habitat Restoration

Sciences 5L,244,oo0Weight
Landcare

$1,121,090Category

7.754.50 9.0030% 6.75
Qualifications and Technical

Expertise
4.634.256.25 7.t330%Approach to Work
9.001_.00 7.OO40% 8.00Cost

6.78 7.tt7,lo 3.89OverallWeighted Score
14 32Final Ranking

Peters n [andsca Maintenance
Nature's lmage
(no bidl

Habitat Restoration
Sciences 542,792

Landcare

Sgo,szS

Tropical Plaza

s59,4ooCategorv Weight

8.505.7530% 6.13
Qualifications and Technical

Expertise
6.6330% 5.63 6.50Approach to Work

5.00 9.0040% 1.00Cost
8.143.93 5.58OverallWeighted Score

2 L3Final Ranking

San Joa uin Marsh Cam us Landsca Maintenance

Nature's lmage
(no bid)

Tropical Plaza

5lg4,9zg

Habitat Restoration
Sciences (no bidlWeieht

Landcare

$1041S7Category

30% 6.38 6.75
Qualifications and Technical

Expertise
5.25 6.0030%Approach to Work

40% 9.00 1.00Cost
4.237.O9OverallWeighted Score

1 2FinalRanking



March l2,2}l8 În
Prepared by: D. JoÈn"son / K. Welch
Submitted by: F. Sanchez / P. Weghorst
Approved by: Paul A. Cook Z Ç¿.

tkr

ACTION CALENDAR

CALIFORNIA WATERFIX PARTICIPATION
THROUGH DUDLEY RIDGE \'VATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY:

IRWD owns approximately 883 acres of land within Dudley Ridge Water District (DRWD).
Associated with this land, IRWD has the right to the use of 1,748 acre-feet per year (AFY) of
State Water Project (SWP) Table A water. DRWD has requested that its landowners make a
selection of their desired level of participation in the proposed California WaterFix (WaterFix),
which will upgrade infrastructure associated with the SWP. DRWD will use the selections made
by its landowners to negotiate DRWD's multi-level participation in the project. Staff has
prepared a hydrologic and economic analysis of the various options that arc being offered to
DRWD landowners for participation in the WaterFix. At the Board meeting, staff will present
the results of the analysis for IRWD'S participation in the WaterFix. As a result of this analysis,
staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to submit an election to fully
participate in the California WaterFix through Dudley Ridge Water District at the l00%o level.

BACKGROUND:

The California'WaterFix is the state's plan to upgrade outdated infrastructure in the Sacramento-
San Joaquin Delta (Delta) to secure California's water supplies and to improve the ecosystem in
the Delta. The current Delta water system is outdated and unreliable, and has been subject to
environmental restrictions that have significantly reduced the ability to divert water to the SWP
contractors south of the Delta. Furthermore, the system relies on levees that are vulnerable to
earthquakes, floods and rising sea levels. IRWD's access to water supplies from the SWP would
be severely restricted under a Delta levee failure scenario.

IRWD Access to SWP:

IRWD receives water from the SWP through annual imported water purchases from the
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. To augment IRWD's water supplies during
a Delta levee failure and other supply interruptions scenarios, IRWD constructed its Strand and
Stockdale Integrated Banking Projects (IRWD Water Banks) in the Kern Fan area of Kern
County. In 2010, IRWD purchased the 883-acre Jackson Ranch that is located within DRWD
for the purpose of providing a water supply to the IRWD Water Banks. IRWD has the right to
the use of I,748 AFY of SWP Table A water through its ownership of the Jackson Ranch.

The Table A water that IRIVD receives every year through DRWD is stored at the IR\,VD Water
Banks, or in reservoirs owned by Metropolitan, on aZ-for-l unbalanced exchange basis, with
half of the water being available to IR\ryD as Extraordinary Supply through an existing
agreement with Metropolitan. The other half of the water is used by IRWD for agricultural
purposes on the Jackson Ranch. IRWD also has access to Article 2l water from the SWP that
under certain circumstances can be stored on the IRWD Water Banks.

kw Cal WaterFix Participation.docx

T6



Action Calendar: California WaterFix Participation Through Dudley Ridge Water District
March 12,2018
Page2

Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project:

Recently, IRWD and Rosedale-Rio Bravo'Water Storage District submitted an application to the
California Water Commission (CWC) for $86 million in Water Storage Investment Program
grant funding for the proposed Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project. The Kern Fan Project
would be a major expansion of both IRWD's and Rosedale's water banking capabilities in Kern
County. The project would include the construction of a new 500 cubic feet per second (cfs)
canal that would significantly increase the ability of both IRWD and Rosedale to divert
additional Article 2l water into storage. This availability of Article 2l water is expected to be
substantially greater with the implementation of the WaterFix. The Kern Fan Project would
allow IRÏYD and Rosedale to benefit from this increased availability of Article 2l water.

Need for WaterFix:

The levees in the Delta are predicted to experience one or more failures within the next 25 years.

When a failure occurs, water will rush into the lower-than-sea level islands behind them, pulling
in salt water from the San Francisco Bay, impairing the quality of water such that it cannot by
delivered to Southern California, the Bay Area, and Central Valley farmland. In addition,
powerful existing state and federal pumps are strong enough to cause nearby rivers to flow in
reverse. This reverse flow traps migrating and endangered fish, leading to declines in native fish
populations. These endangered fish problems have resulted in significant restrictions being
imposed on the SWP for the diversion of water out of the Delta. These restrictions are expected
to increase in the near future if the WaterFix is not implemented.

Proposed WaterFix Facilities:

The WaterFix would modernize the decades-old Delta-based delivery system through the
construction and operation of three new water intakes, which are located further from the
habitats of endangered fish species, and two 4O-foot diameter tunnels that would be located 150
feet below ground. These tunnels would cary up to 9,000 cfs of diverted water by gravity under
the Delta to existing pumping facilities south of the estuary. Water would be lifted into existing
conveyance and storage facilities for delivery to DRWD and the other SWP contractors,
including Metropolitan. A paper published by Metropolitan on modernizing and improving
California's water system through the construction and operation of the proposed WaterFix
infrastructure is provided as Exhibit "4".

It has been proposed that the cost of the $16.7 billion WaterFix project would be split between
the SWP contractors paying 557o and participating Central Valley Project (CVP) contractors
paying 457o. The operations and maintenance costs would be $64.4 million per year.

Two-Stage Wa.terFix:

In February 2018, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) announced that, based
on response by SWP and CVP contractors, the construction of the WaterFix would occur in two
stages. In the first stage, one tunnel would be constructed with 6,000 cfs capacity. In the future,
a second stage of the project would include the construction of another tunnel that would
facilitate federal participation.



Action Calendar: California WaterFix Participation Through Dudley Ridge Water District
March 12,2018
Page 3

The capital costs associated with the first stage facilities would be $11.1 billion. The operations
and maintenance costs for the first stage would be $49.6 million per year. Following DWR's
announcement of WaterFix project being implemented through the staging of the tunnels,
Metropolitan announced that it was evaluating whether to advance funds to build both pipelines
as originally planned.

Project repaynxent:

The SWP share of the WaterFix cost would be paid by the SWP contractors in accordance with
the long-term State'Water Contract that each contractor has with DWR. Currently, the State
Water Contract is the mechanism for DWR to recover the SWP share of the WaterFix costs from
all contractors downstream of the Delta. Costs are assumed to be recovered in proportion to each
SWP contractor's baseline Table A contract amount. DRWD is currently involved with the other
SWP contractors and DWR in negotiating details on an amendment to the State Water Contracts.
Through the amendment, the term of the State'Water Contract would be extended from
December 3t,2035 to December 3I,2085.

The ultimate source of funds for planning, preconstruction activities and the construction of the
SWP share of the WaterFix would be revenue bonds. The bonds would also fund the
reimbursement of costs incurred for project planning, in the amount of $240 million, which was
previously contributed by various state and federal contractors, including Metropolitan. The
management of the financing and construction of the WaterFix is expected to occur through a
joint powers authority, in which Metropolitan will be a member.

Benefits of 'WaterFix:

The WaterFix would provide significant water supply benefits to the S\üP contractors who
choose to participate in the project. The following table depicts the benefits of the WaterFix as

recently reported by DRWD associated with the construction and operation of the first stage of
the \ù/aterFix with one tunnel at a 6,000 cfs capacity.

Average Annual Water Supply Benefits to
State Water Project Contractors

With and Without First Stage of California WaterFix

Item
Current Conditions
With 2025 Climate

Chanee

Future Without
WaterFix

Future with WaterFix

Average Table-A
Allocation

62 Vo 5I7o 63Vo

Afücle2l
Occurrence

1-in-10 years 1-in-10 years 4.5 in 10 years



Action Calendar: California WaterFix Participation Through Dudley Ridge Water District
March 12,2018
Page 4

DRWD Landowner Participation in the WaterFix:

On February 26,2018, staff received a letter from DRWD providing current information on the
WaterFix including a request that its landowners indicate their desired level of participation in
the WaterFix. The letter request is included as ExhibitooBo'. DRWD will use the selections made
by its landowners in negotiating with DWR and the other SWP contractors, on behalf of its
landowners, DRWD's multi-level participation in the project. A description of the options being
offered to participate in the project is provided below.

O pt ions fo r Wate rF ix P art ic ip ati on :

DRWD is offering its landowners the opportunity to choose between four separate options for
participation in the WaterFix. These options are being offered based on the assumptions
contained in DRWD's letter that is included as Exhibit'oB'0. The four options are as follows:

Option 1: Partially opt out and pay l1%o of the WaterFix costs while retaining the
WaterFix benefits of:

a. Additional Article 21 water, and
b. Access to transfer capacity through the WaterFix facilities.

Option 2: Partially opt out and pay l57o of the WaterFix costs while retaining the
WaterFix benefits of:

a. Additional Article 2l water,
b. Access to transfer capacity through the lVaterFix facilities, and
c. Emergency protection from a Delta outage through the WaterFix facilities.

Option 3: Fully participate and receive l00%o of the proportional costs and benefits of the
WaterFix including:

a. Increased Table A amounts,
b. Additional Article 2l water,
c. Access to transfer capacity through the WaterFix facilities, and
d. Emergency protection from a Delta outage through the WaterFix facilities.

Ootion 4: Fully opt out of participation in the WaterFix with no costs and benefits.

Hydrologic and Economic Analysis:

Staff has prepared a hydrologic and economic analysis of the four options that are being offered
to DRWD landowners for participation in the WaterFix. At the Board meeting, staff will present
an overview of each of the options available for participation. Staff will also present the results
of the hydrologic and economic analysis of the options.

The findings of the analysis indicate that 100Vo participation in the \üaterFix through Option 3
would provide the greatest Extraordinary Supply benefit to IRWD at a substantially reduced cost
as compared to the alternative of securing water from Metropolitan during a major water supply
intemrption. In addition, the cost of water through full participation would not be significantly
greater than opting out of participation in the project. The amount of water available to IRWD



Action Calendar: California WaterFix Participation Through Dudley Ridge Water District
March 12,2Al8
Page 5

would be approximately 307o greater if IRWD fully participated in the project versus opting out.
The proposed Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project would allow IRWD to maximize the use of
this additional water.

Based on the findings of the hydrologic and economic analysis, staff recommends that IRWD
express to DRWD its interest in fully participating in the WaterFix as a landowner in DRWD
through selection of Option 3. DRWD has indicated to staff that IRWD would have the
opportunity to revise its selected option for participation at a later date. IRWD's selection is
therefore considered preliminary in nature and subject to change in the future based on the
availability of new information.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

At the Board meeting, staff will present an economic analysis of participating in the WaterFix
under each of the options currently be offered to landowners by DRWD.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Code
of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378.

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Due to DRWD's response deadline of March 15, 2018, this item was not reviewed by the Supply
Reliability Programs Committee.

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORTZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SUBMIT AN
ELECTION TO FULLY PARTICIPATE IN THE CALIFORNIA WATERFIX THROUGH
DUDLEY RIDGE WATER DISTRICT AT THE TOOTo LEVEL, WHICH WILL BE SUBJECT
TO CHANGE BY IRWD AT A LATER DATE BASED ON NEW SUBSTANTTVE
INFORMATION.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit "A" - Modernizing the System: California WaterFix Physical Infrastructure, provided by
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

Exhibit "8" - Dudley Ridge Water District California WaterFix Information and Required
Landowner Response



EXHIBIT ''A''

MODERN IZING TH E SYSTEM:

CALI FORN IA WATERFIX PHYSICAL I N FRASTRUCTU RE

The first ln a series of three policy papers prepared for the consideration of Metropolitan's

Bcr¿lrtl tll Dlrectors ltl ¿lciv¿ìnt;e o1 plarlrle;rJ sLlrnrner nleetlrlqs and clr,;clslc-ltls In Fall '2o1;

1

Modernizing and improving Catifornia's water system is essentiat for the retiabte detivery of water suppties to much of the state.

About 30 percent of the water that flows out of taps in Southern Catifornia homes and businesses comes from Northern Catifornia

watersheds and ftows through the Sacrarnento-San Joaquin Delta. But the Delta's dectining ecosystem and 1100 miles of tevees

are increasingly vulnerabte to earthquakes, ftooding. sattwater intrusion, climate change and turther environmentat degradation.

Catifomia WaterFix is the product of more than a decade of review, planning, and rigorous scientific and environmental anatysis

by water experts, engineers and conservationists, as we[[ as unprecedented pubtic comment. The proposed project witt improve

the security of our water system by fixing aging infrastructure and constructing new state-of-the art facilities using innovative

technotogies and engineering practices. Significant ptanning work for the design and construction of the project has been

performed by the state, water agencies, and construction and engineering firms, which have determined the project is buitdable.

Detaits of the project features, actions to address pubtic comment, risk managernent, schedute projection and cost estimates are

addressed in a new white paper and summarized betow.

CAL IFO RN IA
WATER FIX

An extensive ptanning process evaluated
various alignments, facility confi gurations
and system opt¡ons.

. The system woutd be capabte of diverting
up to 9,000 cubic feet-per-second from the
Sacramento River and capturing additionat wet
period water suppties after att environmentaI
flow and water quality criteria are met.

. Proposed construction ptans, inctuding the
use of dual 40-foot diameter tunnets, is welt
within common practices in the engineering
construction industry and witt provide

operationaI redundancy.

Specific steps were taken during the design effort to
reduce or eliminate the impâct of the new facilities
on the environment and Detta communit¡es. As a

result of input during the environmental planning
process, the following changes were made:

. Reduced size of overalt project

. Expanded use oftunnels for conveyance

. Revised tunnel alignment

. Reduced size and tocation of intermediate forebay

. Reduced pumping requirements

. Reduced construction impacts along Sacramento River

Approach
to Design &
Construction

RELIABLE. CLEAN. WAIER.

A-1

T H E M Ef RO P O ITf AN WAT EN, D IST N C:T
OF SOUTHERN CJ{,UFONNIA



Key
Project Features a
DUAL CONVEYANCE:
A ftexibte dual intake system wilt detiver water to state and federal
pumping ptants in the south Detta. New intakes farther upstream

wit[ reduce overall adverse environmentat impacts on the Detta and

provide higher quatity water to water contractors' service areas.

MODERN IZED FACI LITI ES:

The existing system witt be modernized with new facitities, equipment
and technologies. State-of-the-art fish screens and intake structures
will reduce harm to fish.

OPERATIONAL FLEXI BI LIÏY:
The new intake facitities will work in conjunction with the existing

south Delta intake system, detivering water from just one system or
both, depending on fishery and water quatity conditions, Dual intakes

witt provide greater flexibility to protect fish when they are present.

OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY:
Gravity-fed tunnels will move water more naturalty and efficientty.
This witt simptify overall operations and reduce long-term system and

maintenance costs.

MAXIMIZES THE USE OF PUBLIC LANDS:
The project atignment uses more pubtic tands, reducing the impact to
private property and agriculture.

REDUCED ENVI RONMENTAL FOOTPRI NT:

The proposed water facilities and operations have a greatty reduced
project footprint compared to eartier proposa[s. This witt reduce

community impacts.

OTH ER ENVI RONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:
The plan allows for a more natural ftow direction in the Detta during

criticat fish protection periods and increases water suppty reliabitity with
greater ftexibitity to divert water in ways that protect sensitive fish species.

WATER SU PPLY RELIABI LITY:

A modernized system can more retiabty capture water from peak storms

and flood ftows to refill reservoirs and replenish groundwater basins.

EMERGENCY PREPAREDN ESS:

A modernized system wi[[ ensure that water is availabte for drought and

emergency needs and hetp protect suppties from earthquakes or other
naturâ[ disasters that coutd disrupt the current system.

CALIFORNIA
WATER FIX

"a.;:::-::::i::: SAC RA M E N TO R I V E R :1:í.:,-,ä=

I

z
o
a

Iãt
ID
ln

3
c.
5
og
o,

d
5to
ø

¿

'\Jos
g
OJ

N)
0q

I
OJ

aos
o3
üE

=.ot

lntake No.2

to
o.

FJ
Ë.9rü

õ'
f

lnt'ake No. 3

Utos
o3
üE

e.
o

lntake No.5

lntermediate Forebay
40-Acres

èq
o
s

Þc
o
õ'

àI
o
õ'

NORTH CLIFTON COURT FOREBAY

Combined Pump Ptant

SWP
PUMPING

PLANT
lBanksl

CVP
PUMPING

PLANT

lJonesl

RELIAÐLE. CLEAN. WATER.

A-2

THE METßOPOLTIAN WATER DISTNCT
OFSOUTHEßN C¡UFONN'À



Construction Management

;ñd

ffil'Tì-fMinimizing Risk
CRITICAL ISSUES RELATED ÏO DESIGN,

CONSTRUCTION AN D OPERATIONS

HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED DURING THE

PLANNING PROCESS:

Tunnels: Extensive work and surveys to identify
best practices of targe tunnel projects with simitar

design, construction and project management

confirmed that the proposed Catifornia WaterFix

tunnel boring machines are wetl within the
existing industry knowtedge and experlence.

Leakage: The tining system witt be designed

to withstand the maximum internal pressure

catculated for the conveyance system, resulting

in negtigibte teakage.

Ground Vibration: Tunnets witt be constructed
at teast 100 feet betow ground. Materiat over the

tunnets witt dampen and absorb any energy
generated during tunneling activities.

Surface Setttement:The project witt use
geotechnicat information, monitoring and

structure projection methods to mitigate the
risk of settlement effects and structural damage.

Seismic Mitigation: Because the proposed

tunnet alignment does not cross any major fautt

rupture or creep zones, the deep tunnets witt
not be subject to tiquefaction potentiat. The

tunnet design uses precast segmentat tining

systems which have been successfutty used in

seismica[y active areas around the wortd.

Geotechnical Considerations and
Mitigations: At proposed tunnet depths, dense
layers of silts, sands and clays are anticipated.

This materiat witt be suitabte for the ptanned

tunneting activities.

Ftood Protection: Facitities witt be engineered
and designed to withstand water [eve[ rise resulting
from both a 200-year storm event and from sea

levet rise of 18 inches in the Detta.

CA L IFO RN IA
WATER FIX

The Department of Water Resources is working with the State Water

Contractors to resolve the finat detaits of how the construction of
Catifornia WaterFix witt be managed to guarantee the project's safety

and construction integrity and to ensure the project is delivered on

time, on budget and in accordance with approved specifications,
while managing risk prudentty.

i:::,

Cost estimates were determined through a rigorous anatysís by

industry professionats and witt be updated as additionat information
becomes avaí[ab[e.

Program management, construction management
and engineering

Tunnels/shaf ts construction

Remaining construction

Contingency þ36% br tunnel/shafts and
remaining construction)

Land acquisition (includes 20% contingency)

S 1.91 B

S 6.82 B

S 2.68 B

S ¡.¡e e

S o.1s B

Program Estimate in 2014 Dollars

*Significant additional fishery habitat restoration will occur through California
E co R e sto re ht t p : // reso u r ce s. c a. g ov / e core sto re /

Environmentat Mitigation (inctudes 55% contingency)" s 0.80 B

RELIABLE, CLEAN, WATËR,

A-3

THE MEIROPOITIAN WATER DISTNCT
OF SOUTHERN øUFORNIA



Sch ed u le

The current schedule estimates it witt take 12 to 15 months to futly staff the

project, up to four years to complete the design phase and approximatety

13 years to complete construction.

California WaterFix - Program Summary Schedule
Note: Years shown next to bars indìcate task duration

L.4

0.8

Perm¡ts

L.¡drrship Ståffrng

RFO Process

DESIGN

Land Acquisition

Ut¡tit¡es ând Site Work

Pumping Plant

lntakes

Tunnels

Ctifton Court

lntermediate Forebay

CONSTRUCTION

Utitities and Site Work

Tunnel

Ctifton Court

lntãkês

lntermediate Forebay

Pumping Ptant

coMMtsstoNtNG

1

4

5.9

2.8

2

2.4

2.8

3

3

5.8

Sta*f I
0 2 4

I
810

Years from project start

10.8

6.8

7.1

4.3

2.3

I I
18T614L26

OUR MISSION

The mission of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California is to provide its

service area with adequate and reliable supplies of high-quality water to meet present

ancl future needs in an environmer-rtally and ecor-romically responsible way.

ABOUT METROPOLITAN

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California is a state-establisheri cooperat¡ve

ol 26 member agencies - cities arnd public water aç¡errcies - that serve nearly 19 million
people in six counties. Metropolitan imports water from the Colorado River and Northern

Califorrria to supplement local supplies and helps its members tjevelop increased water

co¡rservation, recyclíng, storage and other resource management programs.

o0@@

BE INFORMED, BE INVOLVED

www.mwdh2o.com

@mwdh2o

Plr()tos (:or illesy (ìA [)e¡rantnettt of W¿ìt{]r Resotlr(ìes

7 /12/17

CALIFORN¡A
WATER FIX
RELIABLE, CLEAN. WATER.

A4

THE MÊTROPOINAN WATER
OF SOUTHERN o¡,UFORNIA

DtsTRtcr



:

:{j""
fi

r:t,r "

MODIRNIZING THE SYSTEM

O¿l I itlrrr ir-l Wal e;r Fr i,x

I n f ril ll I rLt (-ìI t-l rp-r

.,uLY 201 /

A-5



Modernizing the System: Ca lifornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

Contents

lntroduction

Summary....

Why California WaterFix...
The Current Situation in the Delta.
The Dual Conveyance Solution
Project Features and Benefits.

California WaterFix Facílities
Major Components and Faci1ities..................

Supporting I nfrastructure ..

Approach to Design and Construction
Environmental Considerations ..............

Cost Estimate and Schedule
Estimate
Estimate Methodology ......,.,,
Project Schedule

Key Risk Areas..........

Delta Conveyance Design and Construction Joint Powers Authority
Organ izational Structure
Project Governance .......

Risk Management and Mitigation
Risk Management Process.............,....

Environmental Mitigation

3

3

6

6

7

7

9

9

L2

L3

t4

......16

,'',',.,,.17
L6

18

t9

20

20
22

Design, Construction and Operation .................

22

22

23

26

26

29Conclusion

Table 1: Delta Conveyance Studies and Proposals Timeline
Table 2: Key Risk Areas and Mitigation Tools

Table 3: Cost Comparison, Risk Adjusted Cost at 75% Confidence Level vs. lnitial Cost Estimates

Figure L: Overview of the Delta and California WaterFix Facilities

Figure 2: System Configuration of California WaterFix Facilities.........
Figure 3: California WaterFix Facilities
Figure 4: Clifton Court Forebay, lncluding Proposed Modifications..................
Figure 5: Proposed Pumping Facilities at Clifton Court Forebay.................
Figure 6: Large Diameter Tunnel Boring Machine (TBM) Projects ................

Figure 7: California WaterFix Program Estimate

Figure 8: California WaterFix Program Summary Schedule.....
Figure 9: Organization Chart......
Figure 10: Risk Management Process......,...........

Figure 1L: Confidence Curves Showing 75% Confidence lnterval
Figure 12: Annual Construction Expenditures for Base, Risk and Escalation

5

19

28

4

I
10

L2

13

L4

L6

18

20
23

27
28

2The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, JulV 2OI7
A-6



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

lntroduction
This is the first of three policy white papers prepared for the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California's

Board of Directors on the proposed California WaterFix. The overall objective of these papers is to provide

relevant information for the Board before the Board considers decisions on the project.

This initial paper focuses on the project's planned infrastructure improvements. lt presents the key project

features, including proposed facilities, governance structure, current cost estimates and implementation

schedule, as well as the planned approach to managing and mitigating project risks. The remaining two policy

white papers will focus on operations and financing/cost allocation.

Specific objectives of this paper are:

t. To review the physical infrastructure of California WaterFix, with a focus on the key project facilities (see

Figure 1);

2. To outline the State's approach to managing and implementing the project through a proposed Delta

Conveyance Design/Construction Joint Powers Authority, designated the Design and Construction

Authority, or "DCA," and Metropolitan's potential role in the new DCA;

3. To outline the project's planned approach to risk management and present key risk-related issues,

including steps being taken to mitigate potential risks to keep the project within cost and schedule

targets.

Summary
Water from the State Water Project (SWP) flows through the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta to the Bay Area,

San Joaquin Valley, Central Coast and Southern California. Metropolitan and the 28 other State Water Project

contractors rely on the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to deliver water from the State Water Project

(SWP); 24 of the contractors, including Metropolitan, would directly benefit from receiving water via the Delta

through California WaterFix facilities. The other five water contractors receive water further upstream in the

watershed or from the North Bay Aqueduct.

As Metropolitan's Board and the state Legislature have recognized, the current water delivery system in the Delta,

with its 700-mile web of waterways, sloughs, canals, and islands, supported by about 1,100 miles of earthen

levees, is unsustainable. Threats of earthquakes, floods, subsidence, climate change, rising sea levels, and

increasing regulatory constraints on water operations, as well as other risks and uncertainties in the Delta, are

contributing to a decline in water supply reliability and in the ecosystem. The Delta's ecosystem and water supply

reliability will continue to decline unless action is taken.

Delta conveyance has been studied extens¡vely, and many solutions have been proposed over the last 50 years' A

summary of these efforts is presented in Table 1.

ln 2007, Metropolitan's Board adopted its Delta Action Plan (DAP) and Delta Conveyance Criteria as policy

direction. The Delta Conveyance policy established six specific criteria for comparing Delta conveyance options:

providing water supply reliability, enhancing the Delta ecosystem, improving export water quality, allowing

flexible pumping operations in a dynamic fishery environment, reducing seismic risks to the water supply and

reducing long-term risks from salinity intrusion associated with rising sea levels. As proposed, California WaterFix

addresses each ofthese criteria.

3The Metropolitan Water D¡str¡ct of Southern California, July 2OL7
A-7



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

W¡tcrFix Frolllllsg
I Cl¡fÌonGourt Forsbay Pump P¡¡nt

I lntrk

o ll/þin Comúuotion Sh¡ñ
. 'r-, Tunneb

l¡mdn

ßh

.: r'
' ¡t¿ /-

lhtakes

lnterm¡diaþ

B¡con
Erdr¡rùrd

lCin
¡

i

T,

f

r

eI

ì'

'. úrÍhd

ô¡¡

.)

q

a

''-f'

+iu

'¡*ínå
I
ln

i
I

'I.

'a-
ì: l¡er 'i't iri;' '

.. :l

Jt
i

v{[aio

$
ê
å

:i

li¿trÐ

f,ÍÑlÈ lleroÍõ 
!r!

lùì¡¡nð.:

+:

''4-.
Gllflon Courl For¿b¡y

Pumping.- r¡t*':. Ìr& Fi¡i

Clifton
Sôn

Franclsco Banke Pump¡ng

Jones Pumping

fìril) uu.,
.ltuttn

''.¡ 'lrrra,ø

!r. ,

'i, 't .\l.lr l:,1 . ì

[lltUs
/5,"..

{na;tu{e¡@r.&rsitl@ 0ffiìer dþFUFM

Exlst¡ng Facllltles

Â Aqueduot'Pur¡pingÞl¡r¡ts

1, Wärsr Suppfy Pathwåy

1./ SllltÊ l ¡at r ProJrÉt

t# s"ot"r"nto€ân Jorquln Oêltâ

FIGURE 1: OVERVIEW OF THE DELTA AND CAIIFORNIA WATERFIX FACILITIES

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2017
A-8

4



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

1960s California Department of Fish and Game, now known as the California Department of Fish and Wildlife,

biologists publish an article in American Fisheries Society Special Publication #3, showing that the best

protection for native fish populations, and solution to the Delta's environmental problems, is

abandoning sensitive river channels for water transport.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service backs the Peripheral Canal proposal, calling it the only engineering plan

that would not have detrimental effects on fish and wildlife while offering the biggest opportunity for
fish enhancement.

lnteragency Delta Committee completes its report recommending various Delta facilities, including the
Peripheral Canal

Bay Delta Accord is signed, authorizing "CALFED," a joint state and federal agency process to develop

water quality standards, coordinate operations of the SWP and CVP and work toward long-term Delta

solutions.

1994

1998 CALFED "Diversion Effects on Fish Team" finds that an isolated facility would substantially reduce

entrainment and predation effects on the Delta's native fish populations.

2000 CALFED Bay-Delta Program releases "California's Water Future, a Framework for Action." Among the
list of comprehensive actions, it identifies the need to evaluate a screened diversion facility on the
Sacramento River to improve water quality in the Delta and at the export facilities. Construction would

begin by late 2007.

2007 Delta Vision Blue Ribbon Task Force recommends an assessment of dual conveyance, saying new

facilities for conveyance and storage, and better linkage between the two, are needed to better
manage California's water resources for both the Delta and exports.

2008 Public Policy lnstitute of California states a peripheral canal is the best Delta conveyance option for
meeting the coequal goals of a healthy Delta ecosystem and water supply reliability.

2009 The Governor enacts the Delta Reform Act, which includes the coequal goals of providing a more

reliable water supply for California and protecting, restoring and enhancing the Delta ecosystem in a

way that protects the Delta's unique characteristics. The law directs state and federal officials to
examine a reasonable range of ways to change Delta water project diversions, including isolated

conveyance

2010 The first administrative draft Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP) was released.

20t2 The second administrative draft Bay Delta Conservation Plan was released.

2013 Release of Draft BDCP and Draft EIR/EIS in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEaA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for formal publíc review and comment.

20L4 Announcement of further refinements to the water delivery facilities to reduce impacts to Delta

communities, minimize disturbances or dislocation to Greater Sandhill Cranes and improve the long-

term reliability and operation of the proposed infrastructure.

2015 Announcement of a modified preferred alternative, Alternative 4A, known as California WaterFix

2015 Release of Partially Recirculated Draft Environmental lmpact Report/Supplemental Draft
Environmental lmpact Statement on the Bay Delta Conservation Pla ifornia WaterFix

2016 Final BDCP/CA WaterFix and EIR/S

Year Activity

TABLE 1: DELTA CONVËYANCE STUDIES AND PROPOSATS TIMELINË

The information from the 1960s to 2009 is from "The History of Water Project Conveyance in the Delta,"

which is a publication from the California WaterFix website. The following link is to a PDF version of this

document: http://cms.caoitoltechsolutions,com/ClìentDota/CalifornioWaterFix/uploods/43mv6 FIX FS ConvevanceHistorv.odf

The information from 2010 to 2016 is from the Bay Delta Conservation Plan (BDCP) website at the link:
http://bavdeltoconservotionplon.com/Librarv/BDCPLibrarv/BDCPPlanninaProcess/BÐCPPlanninaProcessHistorv.ospx.

Sou rces

t.

2.

5The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, luly 2017
A-9



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

California WaterFix aims to provide the facilities necessary to support Delta water exports through dual-

conveyance operation, Dual conveyance would divert water from the Sacramento River in the north Delta under

certain hydrologic conditions using new facilities, while retaining current south Delta diversions through existing

facilities. To divert water from the north Delta, three new screened intakes would be constructed along the

Sacramento River, along with associated tunnels and pumping facilities. The new facilities would allow water to be

delivered directly from the Sacramento River intake locations to the existing south Delta export pumps located at

the State Water Project's Banks and Central Valley Project's Jones pumping facilities. Under appropriate south

Delta conditions, north Delta diversions can be appropriately modulated, and water from the north Delta can be

diverted through the existing south Delta facilities. This dual conveyance capability would potentially allow for

diversions from both north and south Delta locations while taking into account the presence and needs of fish

species. As part of the planning process, potential impacts of the proposed system facilities have been identified

and appropriate risk management measures have been incorporated into the project as mitigation.

Dependent on the approval of Metropolitan's Board and other public water agencies, a new special purpose

Design and Construction Joint Powers Authority (the Design and Construction Authority, or "DCA") composed of
public water agencies, including Metropolitan, would design and construct California WaterFix, subject to DWR's

oversight and ultimate decision-making authority. The DCA would be responsible for day-to-day implementation

of all project aspects. This includes the management, design, construction and commissioning of California

WaterFix facilities; managing the overall project budget of S1a.9 billion, plus about 5800 million for project

mitigation (both in 2014 dollars); and ensuring that the project is completed within the proposed schedule, which

currently estimates project completion 16 years after authorization. The DCA is expected to employ an active risk

management strategy that identifies and takes action to address potential issues that could pose significant risk to

the project's overall scope, schedule and budget. Subject to Board approval, Metropolitan, as the largest

contractor for State Water Project water, would play an important and direct role in the DCA and overall

governance of the project team.

California WaterFix has undergone an unprecedented level of public outreach, review and comment, along with

extensive scientific analysis as part of the environmental planning process. Significant changes and refinements to

the physical configuration and operational characteristics were made to address issues raised during the

environmental planning process and to address the outcomes from the biological assessment/opinion processes'

Taken together, these revisions have refined and improved the project and have reduced environmental impacts,

while maintainíng the underlying core capabilities of the proposed system. The planning process has been

completed, and the federal and state lead resource agencies for California WaterFix *the California Department

of Water Resources (DWR) and the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation)- have completed the

environmental review process under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental

Policy Act (NEPA). ln addition, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)

have issued biological opinions on the project.

Based on the information available to date, it is staffs view that the facilities as currently proposed would meet

Metropolitan's adopted policy direction and, under the guidance of the DCA, the facilities could be completed

within budget and on schedule with a high degree of confidence'

Why California WaterFix

THE CURRENT SITUATION IN THE DELTA

The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is where California's two largest rivers meet, an area where saltwater from the

Pacific mixes with freshwater from the rivers, Water flowing through the Delta supplies water to about 25 million

Californians and about 3 million acres of agricultural production. Some regions of California are 100 percent

dependent on Delta diversions for their water supplies'

6The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 20t7
A-10



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Current operations of the State Water Project (SWP) and Federal Central Valley Project (CVP) rely on a series of

channelized waterways to convey water through the Delta to state and federal pumping facilities located at the

south end of the Delta. The pumping facilities then lift the water into the SWP aqueduct and Federal CVP canal.

There are many stressors affecting the Delta. The 1,100 mile levee system was developed beginning in the late

1800s to support agricultural activities, which changed the tidal wetland environment of the Delta. The levees and

other Delta infrastructure are increasingly vulnerable to failure caused by continued subsidence, natural

degradation, earthquake risks, flood conditions and sea level rise. The current water delivery system in the Delta

is also increasingly affected by regulatory constraints on water project operations, salinity intrusion due to sea

level rise, the presence of non-native species and the presence of endangered fish near the southern export
pumps at certain times of year, which limit when or at what rate the pumps can export water. The continued

decline of the Delta's ecosystem has led to severe restrictions ¡n water supply deliveries, resulting in the need to
improve California's water reliability and restore the Delta's fragile ecosystem.

The Bay Delta Conservation Plan/California WaterFix Final EIR/Final EIS states that improvements to the water

conveyance system are needed to respond to increased demands on the system and risks to water supply

reliability, water quality, and the aquatic ecosystem. lmprovements are also needed because sea water intrusion

from sea level rise causes more need for Delta outflow, which results in impacts to water supply. Operational

flexibility can be increased to provide improved water supply reliability and minimize and avoid adverse effects on

listed species. DWR's fundamental purpose in proposing the proposed project is to make physical and operational

improvements to the SWP system in the Delta that are necessary to restore and protect ecosystem health, water

supplies of the SWP and CVP south of the Delta and water quality within a stable regulatory framework,

consistent with statutory and contractual obligations. (Bay Delta Conservation Plan/California WaterFix Proposed

Final EIR/Final ElS, 20L6, Chapter 2).

THE DUAL CONVËYANCE SOLUTION

To address these curent and potential threats to the existing Delta conveyance system, California WaterFix

proposes a new dual conveyance system that would allow water from both the north Delta and south Delta to be

delivered to the Banks and Jones pumping plants. The new north Delta facilities (see Figure 1 and Figure 2) could

divert up to 9,000 cubic feet per second (cfs) from the Sacramento River, improving water supply reliability and

export water quality, Retaining the current south Delta water exports under California WaterFix ensures an

additional avenue to deliver water to the south Delta pumps when water quality and other environmental

conditions (e.g., absence of fish species) permit. Providing flexibility in how water is conveyed across the Delta to

the exist¡ng Banks and Jones pumping plants can avoid adverse impacts to sensitive fish species.

PROJECT FEATURES AND BENEFITS

California WaterFix would include the following features (see also Figure 2 and Figure 3):

A. lsolated Deliveries: Delivers water directly from the Sacramento River in the north Delta to pumping

plants in the south Delta. This allows water delivered by California WaterFix facilities to flow to state and

federal pumps without commingling with in-Delta channel water, thereby providing greater flexibility to
protect fish when they are present.

B, Operational Flexibility: Works in conjunction with the existing south Delta delivery system. lf desired,

diversions from the Sacramento River in the north Delta could take place simultaneously with diversions

from the existing south Delta facilities, or from one system or the other'

C. Operational Efficiency: Allows for water deliveries to occur entirely by gravity flow under certain

hydraulic conditions. The remainder of the time, water would flow by gravity through the tunnels to the

south Delta, where a new pumping plant would lift water into the North Clifton Court Forebay. Using

gravity to make deliveries simplifies overall operations and reduces long-term system operation and

maintenance costs.

7The Metropol¡tan Water District of Southern California, July 2OL7
A-11



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Exrstinq
Facilitres

Ma¡n Dr¡al
'[r¡¡¡nel.:;Nr:rth'lturlrels

o
È
o-
E)c
g
c)

ã
E

L)

L6

gûl

u3
fr
Eo

o
-oo

l!
q)

.9

ts

0)

c

.,
Ðl
;l

?\

s.l
S;

.ç\r'
ü\¡'
È,

Øt
\

ciz
o
a
ç

s

N

ctz

o
c

I
ã

t
&
e
ã
.Þ

å
ss
q

5
*
e
É
Ë

EX
å
6.

6
d

àI

$

N

a
t

c
Ê.
c
!

'This ls only a schematic d¡agram end elements ere not to tcale'

H

CVP
Pumprrtq

Planl
l-l¿rntu )

SWP
Purnptttg

Planl
fa¡nksl

F¡GURE 2: SYSTÊM CONFIGURATION OF CALIFORNIA WATERFIX FACILITIES

D, Modernized Facilities: Upgrades a decades-old system with new facilities, equipment, and technologies

that would improve and modernize operations. State-of-the-art fish screens and intake structures would

allow for more efficient delivery of water from the new facilities, even when endangered species of fish

are near the new intake structures.

E. Use of Public Landsr Maximizes the use of public lands, reducing the impact to agriculture and other
resources. This reduces the t¡me and cost associated with purchasing private property, easements or

rights of way.

F. Reduced Environmental Footpr¡nt: Minimizes above-ground facilities by 1) using tunnels instead of canals

to convey the water through the system, and 2) incorporating a number of refinements made during the
design phase, such as eliminating the pumping stations at each of the three new intakes and reducing the
size of the intermediate forebay. This represents a smaller footprint in comparison with other alternate

intake facility proposals, reducing project impacts and mitigation costs.

G. Other Environmental Considerations: Considers the environment and incorporates refinements resulting

from the environmental review process to reduce impacts to the environment. This approach was used

throughout the design process, from the alignment chosen, to the conceptual design of the fish screens at

the intake facilities, to the extensive environmental commitments, avoidance and minimization measures

incorporated into the project, Mitigation measures also would be incorporated where potentially

significant impacts cannot be avoided. As stated, the current configuration would minimize adverse

environmental impacts by:

¡ Allowing for a more natural flow direction during fish-sensitive periods in the Delta to protect and

benefit sensitive native fish species; and

r Providing the flexibility to divert water while complying with state and federal laws and

regulations that protect sensitive fish species.

IThe Metropol¡tan Weter District of Southern California, July 20t7
A-12



Modernizing the System: Ca lÍfornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

H. Water Supply Retiability: Safely and reliably captures water during periods of heavy rain and high Delta

flows to refill reservoirs and replenish groundwater basins, with the flexibility to reduce pumping in dry

periods, which would reduce impacts to sensitive fish species.

l. Emergency Preparedness: Ensures that more water is available for drought and emergency needs,

including an earthquake or other natural disaster that collapses Delta levees or otherwise disrupts the

current system. The facilities would also enable diversions that would mitigate the impacts of temporarily
losing the ability to divert water from the south Delta'

Californ ia WaterFix Faci lities

MAJCIR COMPONENTS AND FACILITIES

Sacramento River lntakes

Three intakes, each with a capacity of 3,000 cfs, are proposed along the Sacramento River {see Figure 3). The

location of each intake was determined by extensive collaboration between DWR and state and federal fishery

agencies to identify locations that would minimize incidental take of listed species.

Each of the three intake facilities consists of on-bank screened intake structures; gravity-fed intake conduits; flow

meters and control gates; sedimentat¡on basins to allow suspended material from the river to be removed from

the water before the water enters the tunnel system; and a drop-shaft at the far end of the sedimentation basins

to connect the intakes to the adjacent tunnel network. The bottom-most portion of each intake screen would be

situated three to five feet above the river bottom in order to prevent large debris and other heavy suspended

materials from entering the intakes or becoming impinged on the screens'

A main factor in sizing and configuring the intake structures was the need to meet specific flow velocities for the

water moving past and through the screens. To meet recommended criteria set by state and federal fishery

agencies to protect Delta smelt and migrating salmon, the screen area has been set to ensure the approach

velocity of the water toward the screens would be no greater than 0.2 feet per second under design flow

conditions.

Tunnels and Shafts

The tunnel portions of California WaterFix have been divided into two general sections, the North Tunnels and the

Main Tunnels (see Figure 2 and Figure 3). The North Tunnels extend from the intakes to the intermediate forebay

and have been sized so water flows from the diversions could be equally split between any or among all of the

three river intakes that are in operation at any given time, The two Main Tunnels extend from the intermediate

forebay to the combined pump plant at Clifton Court Forebay and have been sized so that each tunnel would be

capable of delivering up to 4,500 cfs under design conditions. Dual parallel tunnels for the Main Tunnel reaches

are proposed to meet the total desired capacity of 9,000 cfs and ensure system reliability, allowing one tunnel to

be isolated for maintenance or major repairs while the second tunnel is kept in operation.

All tunnels would be excavated using tunnel boring machines (TBMs) instead of cut-and-cover construction.

Although the Ma¡n Tunnels span about 30 miles, the tunnels would be constructed in segments or reaches about

six to eight miles long, Each reach would be connected to subsequent tunnel reaches at shaft structures located

along the alignment, as shown in Figure 3. As the TBMs advance, soil would be removed from the tunnel and

concrete segments would be installed to form the tunnel lining system. This concrete segmented liner serves as

the final lining system for the tunnels. This approach is commonplace on construction projects throughout the

world and is used in both transportation and water infrastructure projects. The liner would be sealed with a series

of gaskets and bolted connections between the adjacent segments to avoid leakage.

9The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, )uly 2Ot7
A-13



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

t Çlillon OouÉ Fo¡obay Puno Ptant

t lnt¡l(¡

O Melnoomfucíon gñdl

rftf runnen

Plrnt

8r¡ rgr ir ¡ì,
n

È

¡'

j

ê!ð.,!r Irr.¡J

iL.t., j¡r;¿: ¡.r:i

2t{O:foot tunnel¡,-.''

€rl

llã¡td

Siocttóñ'

3.5 mile¡
North Tunnel¡

- -'-- rr- j

Main Tunirels
t30 mlles
2x40-foot tunnal¡

ÄC ñ¡iïlf rr tr} vrl ¡! f -
JI

lnlåkor

trrûf Ði

lntåñiiedlala Forebay
.4i

j
{tI

¡
¡
¡
¡

t F

Blètrlnôûd

¡lla¡

Cllion Courl.;#å
s

il¡b¡rrn*-
0 t5 I E

f$û .rËù us fþ.ñwû ¡k r'r uù{ ù&try f-rF E]¡

FIGURE 3: CALIFORNIA WATERFIX FACIIITIES

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Qt7
A-14

10



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Much of the Delta geology is covered with organic peat deposits. Although the peat deposits are very

advantageous for agricultural purposes, they present a significant risk of liquefaction in a seismic event. However,

the extent of the peat deposits is relatively well understood in the Delta, and ground conditions beneath the peat

are generally characterized as dense deposits of silts, sands and clay layers. These dense layers would be very

suitable for the planned tunnels because they would not be subject to liquefaction or settlement in the event of a

seismic event. The tunnels would be constructed at sufficient depth below the ground surface (about 150 feet

from ground surface to the bottom of the tunnel) to avoid existing surface infrastructure and liquefiable soil

materials like peat. lt ¡s not anticipated that any cut-cover pipelines in the challenging Delta surface geology

conditions would be part of California WaterFix facilities'

Deep shafts would be required along the tunnel alignments to facilitate construction, operation and maintenance

of the conveyance system. During construction, the shafts would be used to launch and retrieve the TBMs,

provide an access point into the tunnels for delivery of tunnel building supplies and labor, and provide a location

to join adjacent tunnels to the larger tunnel system. After construction, some of the construction shafts would be

modified and used to support long term operations and maintenance needs for the tunnels. Other shafts used in

the construction process, such as maintenance shafts, would be sealed and buried to a depth that would support

farm in g activities after constructio n conclud es.

A significant area for investigation during the design activities would be developing the connection of the tunnels

with the shafts. Special construction details would be developed through computer modeling to ensure that the

tunnel-shaft connection points would be well understood, and so that the interaction of these two structures

(tunnel and shaft) could sustain ant¡cipated movement during a seismic event.

lntermediate Forebay

The 3g-acre lntermediate Forebay allows for flows from the three separate intakes to be blended before entering

the two Main Tunnels. The forebay would also help dampen hydraulic surge waves that could occur in the Main

Tunnels if there is a power outage at the Clifton Court pump station. The forebay, along with flow meters and

control gates in the intakes, would enhance the ability for independent operation of each river intake and the two

Main Tunnels while providing for the overall operational stability of the system, The forebay would be comprised

of earthen embankments and tunnel shaft structures, with the shaft structures allowing water to enter at the

forebay's north end and exit at the forebay's south end.

Clifton Court Forebay

To achieve the dual goal of isolating delivery of water diverted from the Sacramento River to the pumps at the

south end of the Delta while maintaining south Delta export capabilities, the ex¡sting Clifton Court Forebay would

be separated into the North Clifton Court Forebay and the South Clifton Court Forebay (see Figure 4). Water from

the new conveyance system would be pumped or flow from the tunnels into North Clifton Court. South delta

diversions would enter South Clifton Court through the existing Old River gate structure.

The new South Clifton Court Forebay would be expanded by creating an additional storage area to the south of
the existing levees, as shown in Figure 4. Separating the existing forebay into two sections allows fish-screened

water from the north Delta intakes to be isolated from other waters throughout the delivery system. Additional

new canals, gate structures and flow meters would also be constructed so water from the North and South Clifton

Court Forebays can be conveyed to the existing Jones and Banks pumping plants. These canals and gates would be

designed to allow single-mode diversion or simultaneous dual-mode deliveries of both waters to the pumping

plants.

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-15

TT



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

SOUTH
CLIFÎON
COURI

COURT FORÉBAY
SOUTH

NORTH CLIFION
COURT FOREBAY

lü

.¡r- J
is

.\

-i€
CONFIGURATION
ülf*,ÞiL$'.,"0"

FIGURE 4: CIIFTON COURT FOREBAY,INCLUDING PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS

Pumping Station at Clifton Court Forebay

A 9,000 cfs pumping station would be constructed at the northeast corner of the Clifton Court Forebay to lift the
water from the Main Tunnels into the North Clifton Court Forebay. The pumping station would consist of two
pumping plants, each rated at 4,500 cfs capacity. Each pumping plant would be located directly above the end of

the Main Tunnel (see Figure 5). Water flowing south in the Main Tunnels would fill up a pumping well in the

bottom of each pump plant before vertical turbine pumps lift the water into North Clifton Court.

Under certain hydraulic conditions in the Sacramento River, water can flow by gravity from the Sacramento River

into North Clifton Court without using the pumping station. ln these conditions, the pumps would be shut off, and

water would flow by gravity directly from the tunnels through the surge channel in the pump plant and into North

Clifton Court. ln the event of a power outage at the pump plant, hydraulic surge waves would be dissipated at the

pump station by allowing water to flow over the surge channel and into North Clifton Court.

SUPPORTI NG IN¡ FRASTRUCTURE

ln addition to the major components of the project, construction of supporting infrastructure would be required

for the operation of the new facilities and as a prerequisite for construction activities. Some of the required

perma nent and temporary infrastructu re includes:

o High voltage electrical power lines to run the TBMs and operate the pumping facilities;

r lnitial site grading and site preparation work;

r Access roadways and barge landings at key work sites;

. lmprovements to existing municipal/private roads to support anticipated construct¡on traffic;

. Restoration of public and private roads used to support project activities to pre-construction conditions

once the project is complete;

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, Julv 2OI7
A-16

t2



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

. lmprovements around critical infrastructure, including levees, to ensure stability during subsequent work;

and

o Removal/relocation of existing gas and water wells that could conflict with tunnel or intake construction'

Completing these activities prior to the major construction work would help ensure that the overall program

schedule and budgets would be maintained.

FIGURE 5: PROPOSED PUMPING FACILITIES AT CLIFTON COURT FOREBAY

APPROACH TO DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

The proposed configuration of California WaterFix is the result of an extensive planning process that evaluated

various alignments, facility configurations and environmental considerat¡ons. The results of this conceptual

planning/engineering effort are documented in a series of Conceptual Engineering Reports, with the final draft

report being released in 2015, and in the EIR/EIS, which was released in 2016. As part of the environmental

documentation process, all alternatives received extensive environmental analysis consistent with CEQA, NEPA,

and the Delta Reform Act, which included consideration of comments received during initial scoping, and the

public review periods of the draft EIR/EIS (2013), partially recirculated draft EIR/supplemental draft EIS (2015) and

the proposed Final EIR/Final EIS (2016).

As mentioned earlier, having dual 4O-foot main tunnels ensures system reliability by providing redundancy, and

the construction approach would use technologies and methodologies that are well understood within the

construct¡on industry. Tunnels of this size have been successfully constructed, or are in the planning/design

phase, in many locations throughout the world (see Figure 6). As shown in this figure, the planned California

WaterFix tunneling machines are at the lower end of the range for large tunnel projects that have been

implemented.

During the planning process, an alternative to a twin tunnel configuration for California WaterFi& a single bore

main tunnel sized to convey up to 9,000 cfs, was also investigated. Preliminary analysis indicated that a single-

bore tunnel would require a tunnel with an inside diameter of about 56 feet. This tunnel size would require a TBM

size of 60 feet or more in diameter (assuming use of a 24-inch thick concrete segmental liner). Currently, the two

largest TBMs in the world are the Tuen Mun-Chep Lap Kok Hong Kong TBM at57.7 feet in diameter and the Alaska

[: I t'ctr¡ c¿r I Stt l.rstatl otl

tV1;l r n1 r:n.r rrce F3tt i lt1 i ng

3.*

(ì ravrty/stL r¡ie d r sr-ha rgt:

Purnp tll¡nl shatl

*- l'l\
I

I Prrnr¡r l)rsr lr¿ri1r' 
II --_ _.._- _*--J

North
Clif ton
Court

Fo rc bay

Vert¡r.i¡l It¡rbtttc
Purn¡.r lJrtrl

40 toot Marrr ïLlnnel

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-17

13



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Way TBM in Seattle, Washington at 57.3 feet in diameter. At the time, the TBM used in the Seattle project was

the largest TBM ever built, and the issues and multi-year delays experienced on this project are well documented.

A potential California WaterFix single bore TBM at about 60 feet in diameter would represent a machine that is

four percent larger than current technology experience, and a tunnel that large would set an engineering design

and construction precedent, increasing the overall project risk'

LARGE DIAMETER

TUNNEL BORING MACHINE PROJECTS

Fi
E.e
ËË3å

FIGURE 6: LARGE DIAMETER TUNNEL BCIR¡NG MACHINE (TBM} PROJECTS

ENVIRONM ENTAL CONSIDERATIONS

California WaterFix facilities have been planned and configured in response to comments and input received

during the environmental planning process to reduce the impacts of construction and operation of the facilities on

the ex¡sting Delta environment. Specific steps taken during the design effort to limit or eliminate the impact of the

new facilities on the environment include:

A. Reducing the Size of Overall Project: As originally configured in the BDCP, water conveyance facilities

consisted of five (5) screened intakes along the Sacramento River, each sized at 3,000 cfs, for a total

system capacity of 15,000 cfs. The overall capacity was eventually reduced to 9,000 cfs, requiring only

three of the originalfive intake locations.

B. Using Tunnels instead of Open Canalsl The original alignment consisted of a series of large canals to

convey water from the three intakes to Clifton Court. The main canal footprint was estimated to be

approximately 1,400 feet wide (including the embankments, spoil stockpiling, and access roads). This

project configuration would have caused significant impacts to surface features in the Delta. The surface

impacts alone of this alternative totaled more than 19,000 acres. The surface canal approach would have

split or eliminated many private property holdings, disrupted irrigation patterns, caused migration

barriers for terrestrial species, been subject to potent¡al deformation during seismic events and generated

substantial quantities of air pollutants associated with earthmoving during construction. The proposed all-

tunnel configuration reduces surface impacts by approximately 90 percent with the use of tunnels, a

majority of the tunnel construction equipment is electric operated, subsurface tunnel easements will

reduce disruptions to surface features and terrestrial migration patterns remain undisturbed.

w
70

60

50

Ë40
o

å30
E
Ë2û

10

0
ùa

6
!o
o
!

3,
ËE
Eã

r.!
ã*
E'ãur-

O=r-t
OGâ-õ

¡a
4
l¡
G
3

o
rfl

=
=!6
E

f!
t¡¡
Y
u
E ËË

gl
olt
o
1l
I
E

É

Êt
ÈÊtt

c

FE€;:Ë
E

The Metropolitan Weter District of Southern California, July 2ot7
A-18

L4



Modernizing the System : California WaterFix lnfrastructure

C. Expanding the Use of Tunnels lnstead of Pipelines: Early non-canal conveyance alignments relied on a

combination of open-cut high-head pipelines and tunnels to convey water from the intakes to the

intermediate forebay. Construction of the open-cut pipelines would have been very disruptive to local

communities because of the size of the pipelines required. Under those conditions, excavations suitable

for installation of double-barreled 16-foot high-head pipelines would be required in some locations, and

would potentially run for several miles. ln addition, it was anticipated that surface deposits of peat and

high groundwater tables could be encountered during construction. Engineering refinements during the

environmental process identified the use of tunnels as a preferred way to connect the river intakes to the

intermediate forebay. Relatively short tunnels significantly reduce disruptions to the local communities

and provide a way to efficiently address groundwater table conditions.

D. Revising Tunnel Alignments and Tunnel Contracting: As originally configured, the project's main 40'foot

diameter tunnels crossed under numerous rivers, sloughs and other waterways. At each of these

locations, additional construction activities would have been necessary to protect the levees that line

each of the waterways while the tunnel boring machines (TBMs) were being operated, potentially leading

to unnecessary project risks. Additionally, the original main tunnel alignment crossed under a number of

sensitive surface features, travelled under many private property holdings and would have required

nearly double the number of construction contracts when compared to the current revised plans'

Mitigation measures employed during the planning and conceptual engineering process attempted to

minimize as many of these issues as possible. The current alignment 1) reduces tunneling under most

sensitive surface features and private property, instead tunneling under publically held lands and avoiding

crossing Army Corps levees wherever feasible; 2) minimizes the number of water-feature crossings; and 3)

reduces the number of tunnel contracts to avoid unnecessary surface disruptions.

E. Revising the Size and Location of lntermed¡ate Forebay: The original forebay configuration consisted of

about 750 acres of water surface area, along with the area required for the forebay embankments'

Following input from local communities and reclamation districts, the size and location of this facility were

revised. Current plans call for an intermediate forebay site of about 100 acres, which includes the forebay

surface area, embankments and appurtenant facilities required for construction and operation'

F. Reducing Pumping Requirements for the Overall System: The original configuration of California

WaterFix facilities relied on pumping plants at each of the three river intakes to lift water out of the

Sacramento River and into the tunnel system for conveyance to Clifton Court in the south Delta' This

configuration did not allow the system to be gravity fed, even under extremely high water levels in the

Sacramento River. Based on input received during the planning process, and the need to address certain

technical tunnel design issues, the configuration was changed so the three individual pump stations at the

Sacramento River were consolidated and moved to a single pumping plant located at Clifton Court

Forebay. As currently configured, under some hydraulic conditions in the Sacramento River, and under

certain delivery scenarios, California WaterFix would operate as a fully gravity-fed delivery system that

can divert up to 4,500 cfs to Clifton Court. The remainder of the time, the pumps at Clifton Court Forebay

would be operated. This approach would reduce the overall conveyance system's energy consumption

when compared to the original concept.

G. Reducing Construction lmpacts along Saoamento River: Replacing the three river intake pumping plants

with a consolidated pump plant at Clifton Court and revising the construction methods for the intake

sedimentation basins would reduce temporary and permanent impacts to the communities that surround

the intake locations. Eliminating the pump plants at the Sacramento River would also significantly reduce

overall construction impacts at all three river intakes and avoids the permanent aesthetic impacts of the

pump plants at each location, including the need for permanent overhead high voltage power lines and

traffic impacts assoc¡ated with DWR's operation of the pump plants. ln addition, the design of the

sedimentation basins, originally configured as pile-supported concrete basins, was revised to the current

earthen configuration. This change would significantly reduce construction impacts at each intake site by

eliminating the need to drive thousands of foundation support piles and the construction work associated

with placing thousands of cubic yards of concrete in the basins'

The Metropolitan Water Distr¡ct of Southern California, July 2017
A-19

15



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

H. Opt¡mizing Location of Key Construction Sites: While located relatively close to major urban communities

such as Sacramento and Stockton, the Delta is considered a uniquely remote environment from a

construction standpoint because of its limited highway access. Two state highways cross the Delta in an

east-west direction, but north-south transportation routes though the Delta are generally limited to wâter

routes. The original configuration placed several of the key construction sites in areas that were

logistically difficult to access for major construction purposes. To access these sites, new roads, along with

the use of existing levee roads, or water access points, would have to be established, potentially

impacting local residents and agricultural interests. Based on comments received during the planning

process, some construction sites were relocated closerto majortransportation routes, reducing potential

disruptions to local communities and traffic patterns'

lncorporating these revisions and commitments into the overall project planning process has led to the

development of modernized conveyance facilities that are sensitive to the environment, landowners and public

use of the Delta, while retaining the operational features required to reliably and efficiently deliver water to the

state and federal water projects.

Cost Ëstimate and Schedule

í:::'C iívÊr'i t'iì

The current cost estimate for California WaterFix is summarized below in Figure 7. Allcosts have been adjusted by

the state to July 2014 dollars. The cost estimate will be updated periodically as additional information becomes

available, particularly with respect to environmental mitigation'

Alì4OUNT
(sBrLLroNs)tTEtr4

Program manâgement, corrstructiotr management, and engineertng s 1.91

s.6 82

S268

TunnelslShaf ts corìstruction

Remarning crnstr uction

Contrngency G36% fo¡ TunnetlShafts and Remaitring Construction) q 1<R

s015Land Acquisition {inctudes 20% contingency)

Program Estimate in 2AM Dolla¡s

írtù'{iltil i: í'l1i.ll:rlilil,JlJ:i. 1ñlii.ilìE::li:i}i i'Tlii.}{.iËìjriiiJi li:;}ðaJli\ií:

The resources used to develop the consffuction cost estimate include the items listed below:

L. Conceptual Engineering Report (CER), Modified Pipeline/Tunnel Option - Clifton Court Forebay Pumping

Plant, Volume 2- Conceptual Engineering Report Drawings, Final Draft: April L, 2015.

2. Wage and Workman's Compensation rates used by the consultant (5RMK) are Prevailing Rates as listed by

the California Department of lndustrial Relations, General Decision Number: C4140029 08/08/201'4 CA29'

3. Equipment Ownership and Operating Cost. 5RMK used US Army Corps of Engineers rates EP-l110-1-8,

Vol.07 published April, 2014.

The Metropolitan Wãter District of Southern California, July 2017
A-20

L6



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

ESTIMATE METHODOLOGY

The methodology used to prepare the overall California WaterFix estimate was as follows:

A. program Management, Construction Management and Engineering: The 51.9L billion cost is based on

the anticipated program organization, the program schedule and the Conceptual Engineering Report

(CER). For each organizational team, the number of full time equivalents needed to perform the functions

of the team and the expected duration consistent with the program schedule was established. The

program schedule accounts for staffing the organization in a sequential manner to allow for initiation,
planning and execution of the needed functions. Costs for various levels of managers and staff were

applied to the program schedule.

B. Tunnels/Shafts and Remaining Construction: The construction cost estimate for the tunnels and shafts

and remaining construction was prepared by a consultant, 5RMK. The construction cost estimate is a

detailed Class 3 bottoms-up cost est¡mate as defined by the Association for the Advancement of Cost

Engineering lnternational (AACEI). A Class 3 estimate requires a design definition between 10 to 30

percent complete; the des¡gn definition for California WaterFix currently is between 5 to 10 percent

complete. The common design definition between the Class 3 reguirement and the current design

definition for California WaterFix was 10 percent, and 5RMK was instructed to use this value to provide a

more detailed Class 3 estimate.

Cost estimators used the same basic approach that a construction contractor would use if bidding the

project. Based on information in the CER and past knowledge and experience, the cost estimators

developed a work breakdown structure for all project features (such as intakes, tunnels, forebays, pump

plants and utilities, etc.). Each feature was further broken down to components and systems to develop

detailed quantities of material, labor and equipment to construct the facilities. Cost estimators established

crews and equipment, production rates and assumed work schedules. Once these were established, the

cost estimators applied prevailing wage rates, material and equipment costs based on vendor and

su bcontractor q uotations.

The cost estimate for the tunnels/shafts and remaining construction also includes the following:

¡ Engineering, quality control and environmental staff time required to manage subcontracts;

¡ Construction contractor's management, supervision and staff along w¡th all support staff and

expendables (office supplies, communications, utilities);

o General automotive expenses for management and staff; and

o General plant expenses including offices, warehouse, site roads and other administrative costs.

Overhead, profit and General and Administrative (G&A) expenses were calculated as 12 percent

of the construction cost.

C. Contingency: Contingency as a percent of construction was established at 35.6 percent, which is
consistent with an AACEI design definition of 7.5 percent, and is consistent with the level of design

completed for California WaterFix to date.

D. Land Acquisition: The land acquisition cost of 5150 million was developed based on the number of acres

for the surface footprint, staging, borrow and subsurface easements required for California WaterFix,

multiplied by current market rate per acre. The costs include mineral rights, gas well relocation, due

diligence and transaction costs. A 20 percent contingency for unknown expenses related to land

acquisition is also included.

E. M¡t¡gation Cost: The project is carrying a mitigation cost estimate of 5800 million. This includes estimated

costs for environmental commitments such as natural community protection, channel margin

enhancement, tidal and riparian natural communities, grassland and non-tidal marsh restoration, natural

communities management, localized reduction of predatory fish, protections for cultural and biological

resources and air quality enhancements. The cost also includes program administration, monitoring of

The Metropolitan Weter District of Southern California, July 2017
A-21

t7



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

terrestrial and aquatic species, and property tax revenue replacement, ln addition, a 35 percent

contingency was added to account for unknown expenses/scope related to this project component.

PROJECT SCHEDULE

The current high-level program summary schedule is presented in Figure 8. The schedule is primarily based on the

information in the 2015 Conceptual Engineering Report as well as other available data for similar large-scale

construction projects. The schedule includes estimates of 12 to L5 months to fully staff the DCA, up to four years

to complete the design phase and about 13 years to complete construction. Once the DCA is established and the

design is advanced, the design and construction teams would look for opportunities to reduce the overall

schedule.

Upon project authorization, detailed schedules would be prepared for various project activ¡ties, based on the

detailed Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) and applicable project documents. These detailed schedules would

identify major milestones, time-sensitive areas and critical path activities. Any issues that have a real or potential

impact on the schedute would be highlighted and would include the source of the issue and any mitigation

measures taken to minimize or eliminate the impact. Schedule reports would be issued on a regular basis (at least

monthly), as determined during program start'up.

Permtts I r,¿

I o.a

Ir

Note

leadershlp Staffltg

ßFq Procaes

DES¡GN

Lånd Acqulsltlon

Utllltiesend Slte Work

Pump Phnt

lntekes

Tunnelg

cl¡ftoncourt

IF

€ofi¡gTRUCT|ON

Util¡t¡es end site Worl¡

Tunnel

clifton court

lntakes

Years shown next to bars lndicâtes task durat¡on

3.9

Ez.a
;æËË 2

I,z.s
I¿,4
Is
ffi3
i

13.1

Es'e
ro,a

6,8

7.r

IF ãffæm4.3
PumplngPlant

coMMtsstoNlN6

,æ2,3
I

gtert

0 4 6810t2
Yrrrs from p?ojoct Jtrrt

14 16 18

FIGURE 8: CAUFORNIA WATERFIX PROGRAM SUMMARY SC¡iEDULE

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2017
A-22

18



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Key Risk Areas
Two key risk areas related to design and construction have been identified during the planning process for

California WaterFix: the program's management structure -specifically, the ability of the program's management

team to control cost and schedule- and the overall constructability and operation of the infrastructure. Table 2

summarizes the risk areas and provides a structure that includes tools to mitigate the risk associated with each

a rea:

TABLE 2: KEY RISK AREAS AND MITIGATION TOOLS

Management for
Cost and Schedule

Containment

1.. Forming the DCA as a new and separate purpose-driven organization with
responsibility to implement the design and construction of California WaterFix.

2. Establishing key functions within the DCA structure that focus on critical areas,

including:

. rck_ryLg¡3gg¡1g!!: Would ensure that all program risks are identified, tracked and

mitigated throughout all phases of the program;

¡ QA/QC: Would ensure that all design and construction work is conducted in strict

accordance with program quality objectives;

. !-n1ry!¿g¡|j!: Would implement a continuous audit program to ensure that all

program participants adhere to program policies, practices and protocols;

o Proeram Controls: Would provide real-time budget, cost and schedule reports to

the program teams and to the auditor on an as-needed basis; and

o Cost Estimations Would provide new cost estimates on an as-needed basis and

review cost information prepared by project designers and change order requests

from contractors.

lnfrastructure
constructability
and Operations

L simplifying the configuration of the overall program infrastructure to utilize standard

design and construction methodologies;

2. Utilizing gravity-fed operations when possible to simplify long-term system operation

and reduce overall operational costs;

3. Where possible, locating key project features on publicly-owned properties to enhance

access during construction and operation;

4. Establishing key construction work sites near existing, well-established transportation

routes;

5. Utilizing tunnel boring machines consistent with current construction industry

standard practices to reduce overall construction risks;

6. Stockpiling material excavated from tunnel construction in such a manner that the

materialwould be potentially available for future Delta restoration projects;

7. Reducing the number of program facilities to be constructed near existing population

centers or in environmentally sensitive areas such as wetlands;

L Reducing the size of facilities and/or eliminating some facilities to reduce overall

system complexity and cost;

9. Consolidating three pumping facilities into a single combined facility at Clifton Court to
simplify construction and operational activities; and

10. lmplementing a well-planned and thorough geotechnical investigation program as part

of the preliminary and final design process for facilities'

Key Risk Tools to Mitigate the Key Risk

Thê Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, luly 2017
A-23

19



Modernizing the System : Ca lifornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

Delta Conveyance Design and Construction Joint Powers Authority
The design and construction of California WaterFix would be managed under contract with DWR through a

proposed Delta Conveyance Design and Construction Joint Powers Authority designated the Design and

Construction Authority, or "DCA." This approach was successfully used in the mid-1990s when DWR contracted
with the Central Coast Water Authority to design and construct a portion of the Coastal Branch of the California

Aqueduct. The Central Coast Water Authority was established as a public entity organized under a joint exercise of
powers agreement and constructed water treatment and conveyance facilities to bring State Water Project

supplies to Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties.

ln coordination with DWR, the DCA would design, construct and deliver completed California WaterFix facilities to
DWR upon completion of system commissioning. The DCA would be a public agency, organized as a special
purpose public agency pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, consisting of certain public water agency

members. A detailed agreement between DWR and the DCA would govern the roles and responsibilities of the
parties to carry out the design and construction of California WaterFix. The overall goal of the DCA would be to
safely design, construct and deliver the project on time, on budget and in accordance with approved

specifications, while managing risk prudently.

Recognizing DWR staff resources are stretched to an extreme level due to the necessary commitment to complete

significant repairs to the Oroville Reservoir spillways as a result of damage during heavy runoff in20t7, there is a

need to employ different but proven approaches to pool resources for the design and construction of California

WaterFix. Staff resources are needed for a period of about t3 To L7 years and would ultimately be reduced at the
end of construction. Pooling experienced expertise in a manner that avoids the need to hire significant additional
new staffat DWR is prudent. ln any major infrastructure process, there is a period of acquiring needed additional

staff, and then once the project approaches completion, there is a period of downsizing, Utilizing the DCA to pool

experienced resources to manage activities and contractors is preferable and can avoid the expansion and

contraction of staff at DWR. The DCA would sunset as California WaterFix is completed.

ORGAru IZATITN¡AL STRUCTU RË

The anticipated organizational structure is shown in Figure 9 and the responsibilities of the offices within the
structure are described below.

Note: The assumed organizational structure is based on a 2016 Draft Agreement Regarding Construction of
Conveyance Project between the Department of Water Resources and the Conveyance Project

Coordination Agency, which will no longer be executed. Nonetheless, it ¡s expected that much of the
organizational structure and functions described in that agreement would be adopted by the DCA.

STATE. DTTR

JPA B$erd

EXËCUTIVE
DIRECTOR

FIÌ.¡ANCE T
ACCOUIMNG

PUBUC
EDUC,ANON

INTERÀ¡AL PROGRAT¡|
AUOIT MA¡,¡AGER LEGATCOUNSEL SAFETY&RISK

IIiIANAGEMET{T

FIGURE 9; 0RGANIZATION CHART

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-24

20



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Executive Director

The Executive Director would be the single point of accountability to the Board of Directors for delivery of the
program design and construction. The Executive Director would set the overall direction of the program/

coordinate all program execution with the Program Manager and Chief Engineer and ensure activities are on

schedule, within budget and adhere to specifications. ln addition, the Executive Director would lead external

interactions and administrative support functions of the program organization and interaction with the DCA

directors and DWR.

Program Manager

The Program Manager would be responsible for all functions directly related to delivery of the facility. The

Program Manager would:

r Provide program leadership, management and direction to ensure the design is completed according to
the preferred project identified in the final EIR/EIS and consistent with mitigation requirements and plans;

r Establish and approve detailed program scope, schedule and budget activities;

¡ Be responsible for implementing team plans, staffing levels and setting team responsibilities;

¡ Ensure coordination and cooperation between teams; and

. Represent the program in interactions with the Board, DWR and external stakeholders as needed.

Finance and Account¡ng

The Finance and Accounting group would manage cash flow requirement forecasts, monitor program funding and

handle payments.

Public Education

A dedicated Public Education group would initiate, coordinate, monitor and report on local public outreach and

support DWR's Public Affairs Office on program related matters.

lnternal Audit

The lnternal Audit group would assure conformance with approved processes and procedures. lt would also

review the various team actions/documents, develop monitoring and audit reports, review corrective act¡on plans

and verify corrections.

Legal Counsel

The Legal Counsel would provide the program with legal direction and ensure compliance with applicable laws

and regulations. They would also review each Request for Qualifications (RFQ), entity agreements, contracts, task

orders and scope of services to assess compliance.

Safety and Risk Management

The Safety and Risk Management team would minimize program risks to control costs and schedule. ln addition,

the team would identify the program insurance requirements and enforce safety program requirements.

Workgroups

ln addition to the above organizations, it is antic¡pated under the DCA structure that multiple workgroups would

be formed from time-to-time to address specific aspects of the project. Workgroups would include a Technical

Review Workgroup for purposes of reviewing and resolving technical design issues at the staff level. The

workgroups would be focused in nature and may be formed and dissolved depending upon the subject matter

and project status.

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-25

2L



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

PROJECT GOVERNANCE

The DCA would be responsible for delivering the project in accordance with baseline specifications for the project,
including design specification, budget, schedule and mitigation obligations. As design work progresses, changes to
the baseline specifications would be requested by the DCA at its discretion for approval by DWR. ln addition,
certa¡n "material changes" on the project would require DWR approval. These include:

A. Cost: Any actions that cumulatively could cause more than a 5% increase in budgeted costs for each major
design feature or management item;

B' Schedule: Any actions that could cumulatively add 6 months to the approved project schedule;

C' Operation: Any actions that could impact the water delivery capability, reduce project life, or significantly
increase operations and maintenance costs of the project; and

D. Permits: Any actions that could be inconsistent with, or would require an amendment of, a major permit
for the project.

Coordination with DWR and Reporting

DWR's Delta Conveyance Office would be responsible for managing the agreement with the DCA on behalf of
DWR and be the DCA's primary point of contact within DWR for all matters relating to project design and
construction.

The DCA would provide detailed written reports at least monthly to DWR and the state and federal contractors
regarding progress made toward completing the project, including 1) actual and forecasted expenditures, 2) the
DCA's review of expenditures and forecasts against the approved budget and 3) progress relative to the approved
schedule. The DCA would prepare an annual report describing the DCA's activities during the immediately
preceding calendar year as well as project status. A draft of the annual report would be provided to DWR for
review and comment.

Dispute Resolution

A Technical Review Workgroup would be used to resolve technical and design-related disputes within the DCA
and between the DCA and DWR and material changes to baseline specificatíons, All other disputes would be
resolved at the staff level íf possible. lf the dispute cannot be resolved through the Technical Review Workgroup
or at the staff level, a defined meet-and-confer process would be used to consider options and determine
whether agreement can be reached on the matter, with ultimate escalation to the Director of DWR and Executive
Director for resolution.

At any time, DWR or the DCA may ¡nitiate a non-binding review process concerning the dispute. ln this process,
DWR and the DCA would form a three member panel of experts, with one panel member selected by DWR, one
by the DCA and a third by mutual agreement of the first two panel members. lf a dispute between DWR and the
DCA cannot be resolved, the Director of DWR would make the final decision after considering the
recommendations of the non-binding review panel, as well as any other relevant information concerning the
issue.

Risk Management and Mitigation

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The goal of the risk management process for California WaterFix would be to identify problem areas early. Each
identified risk would be evaluated for its potential impact to cost, schedule, quality and safety. Risks that have the
potential to have a significant impact on any of these items would be highlighted, The Risk and Safety
Management Team, in coordination wíth program staff, would develop a methodology to identify and quantify

The Metropolitan Wâter Distr¡ct of Southern California, )uly 2017
A-26

22



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

specif¡c risks to the project, determine their consequences and associated probability and develop mitigation

strategies. The overall risk management process is summarized in Figure L0'

)---, , , >--, ;,;;, ,

ldenlify Risks Assess Risks

Risk Mitigcied

^

Risk

Avoided

Update Risk

Register
Residuol

Risk
2

Risk

Acceploble

Allocoied
lde Conïrol Monilor

Meosures

F¡GURE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Safety and Risk Management Team would be responsible for initially identifying project risks, with input as

necessary from other groups and teams. The focus would be on risks that could impact project scope, schedule or

budget, with each identified risk being added to a Project Risk Register for further discussion and evaluation. The

Risk Register would be the basis for developing a "Risk Dashboard," which would provide a simplified list of high-

priority risks, a summary of the associated action plan and a summary of any known impacts. lf a risk moves from

"potential" to "actual," the risk would become part of the Project Change Authorization process and incorporated

into the project estimate.

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION

A number of critical issues related to the design, construction and operation of California WaterFix were

investigated and addressed through the course of the planning and conceptual engineering efforts. These issues

included the following:

L The ability to successfully design and construct large tunnels;

2. The suitability of facilities to withstand anticipated seismic events that may occur in the Delta;

3. The risk of flooding and future sea level rise in the Delta;

4. The potential for various tunnel-related issues, including leakage, surface settlement and tunnel induced

vibrations; and

5. The risks associated with levels of understanding regarding Delta geology.

Each issue and potential mitigation measures are described below'

large Tunnels: As part of planning and conceptual engineering for California WaterFix, the engineering team

performed a survey of large-diameter tunnel projects to determine if other large tunnel projects used TBMs

similar in size to the 45-foot diameter machines that would be used as part of California WaterFix. The survey

confirmed that numerous large-diameter (greater than 40 feet) soft-ground TBM projects have been successfully

performed throughout the world and that several more large-diameter tunnel projects are planned in the near

future. The survey results confirmed that the proposed California WaterFix TBMs are well within the existing

industry knowledge and experience.

Risk & pp0 Register

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-27

23



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

A separate survey was undertaken to gain a better understanding of recent challenges on large tunnel projects

and to identify best management practices to ensure project success. This survey attempted to identify tunnel
projects that were similar to Cal¡fornia WaterFix tunnels in key areas such as design, construction and project

management in order to anticipate and manage similar issues that could occur, A total of nine projects were

surveyed, including projects in the United States, Asia and Europe. Each of these projects is well documented by

media and industry coverage, and each has been recently completed or is considered substantially complete from
a tunneling perspective. The survey results provided valuable lessons-learned that would be evaluated as part of
the design process for California WaterFix, including the following:

o Extensive and high quality geotechnical information is the key for success on any tunnel project; and

o A proactive risk identification and management program is critical to success of large- or mega-projects.

Tunnel Leakage: The segmented lining system to be used for California WaterFix tunnels would be designed to
withstand the maximum internal pressure calculated for the conveyance system, which is anticipated to be

present in the northern-most reaches of the tunnel system, as well as all applicable static and ground loads. The

individual segments would be fitted with embedded gaskets that would be compressed against one another as

the tunnel rings are constructed. The installation of the tunnel segments, along with the compression of the
gaskets during the tunnel ring building process, would be designed and constructed to minimize inflows or
outflows from the tunnel under a wide range of operational and maintenance conditions.

An assessment completed in February 2O!7 of the potential leakage rates from the tunnels concluded that there

would be negligible leakage from the tunnels or inflow to the tunnels. ln fact, when taken as a complete system, it
is estimated that there would be a net inflow of 3 cfs to the tunnel over the roughly 73.5 miles of project tunnels,

or an inflow rate of 18 gallons per minute per mile of tunnel. lnflow to the tunnels and leakage from the tunnels

calculated based on anticipated conditions for filling, dewatering and operation are anticipated to be minimal and

well within typical ranges for tunnels of the size and length proposed for California WaterFix.

Tunnel-lnduced Ground Vibration: California WaterFix tunnel alignments pass under or near sensitive surface

structures such as historic buildings, levees, aqueducts and residential communities. ln these locations, it is

anticipated that the proposed tunnels would be constructed a minimum of L00 feet below ground. That depth

would ensure that material over the tunnels would dampen and absorb any energy generated during tunneling

and construction activities. lnduced vibration to structures should be minimal and would not likely be perceptible

to the communities on the surface and is not anticipated to have any impact on any of these structures.

Surface Settlement Along the Tunnel Alignment: California WaterFix would use the following to mitigate the risk

of settlement effects and structural damage:

r Detailed geotechnical exploration;

o Pre-construction surveys for critical and settlement-sensitive facilities, utilities and surface features;

o Development and implementation of acceptable tunneling protocols and permissible settlement criteria;

r Real-time sophisticated TBM control and monitoring systems;

o lmproved structure protection methodologies, including pre-excavation grouting; and

¡ Advanced ground settlement and vibration monitoring systems.

Seismic Considerations and Mitigation: Prelíminary modeling of active and potentially active earthquake faults in

the region was developed and evaluated as part of the Delta Risk Management Strategy (DRMS) study conducted
in 2007. The results of this study are summarized below.

A. Tunnel Alignment: The proposed Delta tunnel alignment does not cross any major fault rupture or creep

zones.

B. Seismic Sources: Potential seismic sources in the form of "blind" faults were identified. These blind faults

have no surface features and limited information or data is available to characterize these fault zones.

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 20t7
A-28

24



Modernizing the System: Ca lifornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

C. Ground Motion Estimates: Estimates of potential ground motion during a seismic event were developed

as part of the conceptual engineering studies based on a 1,000 year event (85th percentile) and adjusted

for buried tunnel lining systems.

D. Liquefaction: Liquefaction was investigated, primarily as it would potentially affect surface facilities such

as intakes, forebays, pumping stations and tunnelshafts. Studies indicate the deep tunnels would not be

subject to liquefaction potential because they would be constructed below the elevation where

liquefiable materials occur.

E, Lined and Grouted Tunnels: Studies indicate that lined and grouted tunnels, such as those utilized in

California WaterFix, perform better than unlined tunnels. Performance can be further enhanced by

improving the contact between the l¡ner and the ground (grouting of annular space between the liner and

the surrounding soil).

Based on the results of the studies already conducted, seismic mitigation would be addressed as follows:

a

a

a

For surface facilities and tunnel shafts, additional geotechnical investigations would be conducted on a

site-specific basis to gain a more complete understanding of the expanse and depth of liquefiable material

at each site. Based on the investigation results, appropriate design and construction methodologies would

be used to eliminate or minimize the impacts of liquefaction on surface facilities.

Additional field explorations and design solutions, including finite element modeling of the tunnels and

shafts, would occur in the design phase of the project. These measures would address any seismically

induced liquefaction or deformation potential at the specific locations where the tunnels connect to the

shafts.

The tunnel design concept includes the use of precast segmental lining systems, This system was selected

because the same concept has been successfully used on an extensive basis in seismically active areas

such as Japan, Puerto Rico, Taiwan, Turkey, ltaly, Greece and the United States since the 1980s. Results of
segmentally lined tunnel performance in seismic events show the tunnels would perform very well during

and after such an event.

Geotechnical Considerations and M¡t¡gations

The Delta is an arm of the San Francisco Bay estuary that extends into the Central Valley. The geology of the Delta

has been shaped by the landward spread of tidal environments resulting from sea level rise after the last glacial

period. Since the last glacial age, flood-borne deposits, supplied by the major river systems in the Delta, have

overlaid the region with sediment deposits and biomass accumulations. Taken together, the region, prior to the

advent of agricultural interests in the late-1800s, was largely a tidal wetland and alluvial floodplain consisting of

consolidated silts, sands and clays overlain with peat and peat muds'

During the development of the planning documents for California WaterFix, approximately 240 boring and cone

penetrometer tests were conducted at the intakes, forebays and along the various conveyance alignments. Most

of the investigations were conducted at depths between 100 and 200 feet, well within the foundational depth of

planned facilities, including the tunnels and pump plants. Based on these investigations, and the use of existing

historical information on the Delta, a preliminary geologic understanding of the Delta in the vicinity of California

WaterFix facilities was developed.

At tunnel depths ranging from 100 to 150 feet below the ground surface, dense layers of silts, sands and clays are

anticipated. This material would be suitable for the planned tunneling activities. At the ground surface, widely

varying depths of peat and other organic material are expected. Data indicates that depths of peat in the Delta

along the alignment vary from non-existent to about 40 feet deep, with the deepest deposits located in the center

of the Delta near Bouldin, Venice and Mandeville islands. Construction in peat conditions would require

specialized design approaches because of the unstable nature of the material.

ln some locations along the alignment, there are geotechnical data gaps of several miles, due to the inab¡lity to
gain access to pr¡vate property during the planning phase of the project for geotechnical investigations. To

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 2017
A-29

25



Modernizing the System: Ca lifornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

mitigate these data gaps and other known uncertainties related to geology along the alignment, the project would

rely on existing information, along with the implementation of a new two-phase geotechnical investigation

program. Under this multi-phased investigation plan, up to 2,000 additional investigations would be conducted,

consisting of borings, cone penetrometer and other physical data collection methods. ihe ¡nit¡al phase of the

effort would focus on determining if variations exist in what otherwise appear to be relatively consistent

subsurface conditions, Based on the findings from the first phase of work, additional investigations are planned to
fine-tune information and gather sufficient information so that accurate estimates of subsurface construction

methods and costs can be determined. Additionally, this information would be used to finalize methods to
successfully address constructing in ground conditions that are overlain with peat and contain high groundwater

levels.

Flood Protection Considerations

Flood protection for California WaterFix facilities would be consistent with DWR's Proposed Interim Levee Ðesign

for urbøn and lJrbanizing Area Stqte-Federol Project Levees (DWR 2009). The conceptual engineering completed

to date includes plans that the facilities would be engineered and designed to w¡thstand water level rise resulting

from both a 200 year storm event plus sea level rise of 18 inches in the Delta. This sea level r¡se estimate

corresponds with 55 inches of sea level rise at the Golden Gate that has been used in the State's long term

planning criteria over the next 100 years. Such protection would be provided by constructing the new facilities at

elevations above those identified for flooding or sea level rise through a combination of raising and strengthening

levees in all project construction locations, as well as other embankment and equipment pad layouts and

elevations.

ENVIRON M ENTAL MIT¡GATION

Upon project approval, DWR will adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) that includes

Avoidance and Minimization Measures, Environmental Commitments and Mitigation Measures to avoid or

substantially lessen construction and operational impacts of California WaterFix. Mitigation may also be required

to fulfill conditions in the biological opinions, CESA incidental take permits and other project permits.

California WaterFix is designed to mitigate its own construction impacts and for operations to not jeopardize any

species listed under the Federal Endangered Species Act. This project and its mitigation complement other

important state efforts to address the coequal goal of a restored Delta, including California EcoRestore, the Smelt

Resiliency Plan and the Salmon Resiliency Plan.

PROJECT CONF¡DENCE

As a component of the risk assessment process, and to assist with creating the budget contingency, the California

WaterFix project team evaluated the risks associated with the project budget to establish a baseline confidence

level that the project would be completed within the estimated budget. This is a common practice with large

construction projects, with the resulting confidence curves being used as one of the factors in determiníng overall

project risk.

For California WaterFix, Aldea Services developed confidence curves for a variety of different cost scenarios,

ranging from base cost, which does not consider mitigation costs or risk, to a total cost that includes the base

cost, risk, mitigation and inflation. The resulting confidence curves, which were based in part on the risk

assessment workshops and probabilistic analyses conducted by Aldea Service and the project team, are presented

below in Figure 11. The results of these analyses indicate a 75 percent confidence level that the project would be

completed within the budget estimate, based on information available at this stage of the project. A typical

confidence level for projects of similar scope and size is 60 percent; however, because of the size and complexity

of the program; a more conservative confidence interval of 75 percent was targeted.

At a 75 percent confidence level, the chart in Figure 12 shows how the base costs (blue) along with risk costs {red)

and inflation costs (purple) are distributed over the estimated construction period on a year-by-year basis. The

risk (red) costs are a direct calculation from the risk analysis and inflation is based on the average inflation rate

The Metropolitan Water Distr¡ct of Southern California, July 20t7
A-30

26



Modernizing the System : California WaterFix lnfrastructure

over 20 years prior to the analysis and applied to the scheduled construction period. The chart is consistent with

the risk adjusted cost estimate and schedule included in the conceptual engineering report. As funding is

available, additional information would be gathered, the program would be refined during design and the risk

management process would be adjusted to the charted confidence curves.

Table 3 shows the comparison between the risk adjusted cost at a 75 percent confidence level in the second

column and the 5RMK construction cost estimate in the third column. The table also includes the results of Class 3

bottoms-up construction est¡mate prepared by Jacobs Engineering as a check estimate. Jacobs Engineering

prepared its estimate independent of the 5RMK estimate. The 5RMK and Jacobs Engineering estimates include a

contingency of approximately 36 percent. Program Management (PM), Construction Management (CM), and

Engineering (ENG) costs are held constant at S1.91 billion and land acquisition costs at 5150 million. This table

used three separate estimates to show the program can be completed within the proposed budget of 514.94

billion.

I 000/o

90o/o

80%

70o/o

ffio/o

50Y,

I -._ , _t,-.-__ -¡¡à.t

7B $11.78 .r s13.68
+

s14.eB

-BaseCosl

-965s+ftisk
(no Mlt¡getlonl

r r. r rg¿59 +ftlsk
(with Mitlgatlon)

-Base 

+ R¡sk + Escålat¡on
(no Mltlgatlonl

. ....Base + Rlsk + Escaletion

{with Mitigationl

s9.88 ,;s10
f5%7

:s

€

:
o

.E

u

40Yo

30%

2Ùolo

10o/o

OYo

,po* €Þe *S dl& d,9a d*S d,o.9" u*e d.S oooo ".99+"

-i" '.-

Cost ${USD Bíllions)

FIGURE 1L: CONFIÞENCË CURVES SHOW|zuG 75% CtNF¡PENCË INTIRVAI

The Metropolitan Wãter D¡str¡ct of Southern California, July 2Ot7
A-31

27



Modernizing the System: Ca lifornia WaterFix lnfrastructure

s2.sB

s2.08

S1.58

s1.08

s.sB

S.oB

I Base C.ost

I Rrsk Cosl

I tiscdlâlro.ì

2
a
J!g
l¿1
ts
vt
ou

I I
2014 2015 2016 20t7 2018 2019 LOzô 2021 2022 2023 2024 2023 2026 2027 20¿8 2029 2010

YEAR

FIGURE 12: ANNUAL CONSTRUCTION ËXPENDITURES FOR BASE, RISK ANÐ ESCALATICIN

TABLE 3: CGST COMPARISON, R¡SK ADJUSTED C05T AT 75% CONFIDENCE LEVEL VS. lNlTlAL COST ËSTIMATES

(11

5RMK
Estimate {'),("'i

{Billions)

(2)

Ìacobs Eng

[5t]¡¡3{¿ {-ì,(")

{Billions}

(3)

Rísk Adjusted Estimate
with Mitigation at 75%

Confidence Interval {'X'"')

(Billions)

Item

Construction

Contingency

Construction Subtotsl

PM/CM/Ene

Land acquisltion

6rand Total

$g.so

53.38

$rz.ae

$r.gr

3o,ts

$t¿.9¿

38.s6

53.1s

$12.s1

Sr.gr

$o.rs

$r¿.oz

S10,66

s10.66

Sr.sr

$o.rs

iLz.7z

1') Pro¡;rarr Êrttn'r;¡res ir¡ .l(114 dollar:
i") 'j¡ru¡'(-$rrri¡Êen¡yrinr.,r'Ìi1l¡'.li{-rrfrìrlRMKartrl l.¡¡.trl¡LnSirrrleting.r!ti¡rl.}1F!

i''''' i 8;:;e¡l cl r ìsks knorrulr ¡.¡{ linr¿: ¡f ¿sseslrn,:n{

The Metropolitan Water D¡strict of Southern California, July 2017
A-32

28



Modernizing the System: California WaterFix lnfrastructure

Conclus¡on
Note: This is fírst of three policy white papers related to California WaterFix. The second white paper will

address the operationa¡ aspects of California WaterFix as well as potential water supply and risk

mitigation measures related to operational requirements and regulations. The third white paper will focus

on how California WaterFix can be financed through different funding mechanisms and the allocation of

costs between state and federal contractors and between the State Water Project contractors.

The reliable and continued supply of high quality water through the Delta faces many risks, including fishery

declines, earthquakes, floods and rising sea levels. Despite previous actions and efforts by local, state and federal

entities to address these issues, as well as other challenges in the Delta, the region's ecosystem has continued to

decline. California WaterFix addresses these long-standing issues by providing a pathway to reliable water

supplies with infrastructure that is designed to withstand earthquakes and adapt to flood and rising sea levels,

while protecting habitat, species and the Delta ecosystem'

The project has undergone an unprecedented level of public review, comment and scientific input. Extensive

analyses and risk assessments have been conducted to better understand and mitigate risks commonly associated

with infrastructure projects of this size. For California WaterFix, the key risk areas have been identified, and tools

to mitigate these risks have been incorporated into the project's risk management process.

ln addition to meeting the needs of the state, California WaterFix as presented meets all of the Delta Conveyance

Criteria adopted by Metropolitan's Board in 2007 '

Metropolitan's 2015 lntegrated Resources Plan Update, as adopted by Metropolitan's Board in 2016, includes a

goal to stabilize SWP supplies, to pursue a successful outcome in California WaterFix and to establish efforts for

long-term average supplies of about 1.2 million acre-feet. The proposed project is expected to achieve this goal'

The physical project meets the attributes of a potentially successful project based on staff analysis and

comparison to the Board's Delta Conveyance Criteria. The proposed program management has evolved in a way

to increase staff confidence in the ability to minimize and manage risks'

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, July 20t7
A-33

29



0tREcloRs

WLLIAM D. PHILLIMORE, PREsTDENT

LARRY RITCHIE, vce enestorrr

STEVEN D. JACKSON, sEcRÊTARY

JOHN VIDOVICH
BERNARD PUGET

EXHIBIT "B''

DUDLEY RIDGE WATER DISTRICT
286 W. CROMWELLAVENUE

FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 937 1 1 -6162

PHONE (559) 449-2700
FAX (55e) 449-2715

L

578

MANAGER.ENGINEER

DALE K, MELVILLE
ASSESSOR.COLLECÍOR.TREÀSURER

RICK BESECKER
LEGAL COUNSEL

JOSEPH D. HUGHES

CALIFORNIA WATERFIX INFORMATION AND
REQUIRED LANDOWNER RESPONSE

February 26,2018

DRWD Landowners,

After a decade of studies, environmental reviews, and regulatory actions, at this time
Dudley Ridge Water District ('DRWD'or "District") needs a strong indication from
landowners related to your participation in the California WaterFix ("CWF"). This letter is

intended to provide you, as a landowner within the District's water service area, with the
information currently available and request your desired level of participation in the
CWF.

First, some background. Although most of the State Water Project ('SWP") contractors
have funded about $240 million in CWF planning costs over the past several years, the
District board had decided not to participate in this up-front funding, based on the
representation that the District could "make-up" the deferred payments should the
District decide to participate in the CWF. Until about nine months ago, each SWP
contractor was allowed the option to opt-out of participation in the CWF; however, last
year the State withdrew this option for SWP contractors and the District (barring
litigation to the contrary) will require the District to participate in the CWF. ln other
words, if the District does nothing, we will be charged under our State contract for all of
the CWF associated costs. We dispute that intended action by the State, but until the
issue is resolved by a court, the State has made clear to us that the costs of CWF will

be charged to the District.

Earlier this month the State announced a staging of the CWF, proposing to construct
one tunnel ("pipeline") first and the second pipeline later, when federal participation is
forthcoming. Later this month, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California ("Mef'),
announced that they are evaluating whether to advance funds to build both pipelines as

originally planned. Clearly, there remains some flux in what facilities are proposed for
the initial construction, but indications are that the unit cost to the District would be
similar with either option.

At the same time, the District is negotiating with SWP urban contractors that would
provide options for District landowners to determine what level of participation in the
CWF is most appropriate for your business. For purposes of this request, the following

G:\Dudtey Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\50o\CAWaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltrto landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-1



2

assumptions are being made. Should these assumptions or additional information
become available that would materially impact the information herein, the District will
revise this request and provide you with the opportunity to revise your decision.

Cu rrent District Assumptions:
. CWF would be staged with one pipeline with a capacity of 6,000 cfs, capital cost

estimated at $10.9 billion, and annual operating cost of $49.6 million (2017 cost
basis).

o CWF would be able to maintain the SWP yield at near the current level of 62%
average supply as opposed to the projected reduction to about 50% average
supply without the CWF.

. CWF facilities, costs, incremental yields, and impacts to your water rates for
various participation levels would conform with the attached tabulations, including
an option to defer capital principal and interest payments until the CWF facility is
operational and unit costs not to exceed those shown.

¡ The Financing JPA and Design & Construction JPA would (1) be governed and
managed by highly qualified professionals experienced in large projects and (2)
allow a board position for one of the smaller ag contractors.

o The determinations of the State Water Resources Control Board ("SWRCB")
related to CWF would not adversely impact the current economics of the project.

o All modern contracting methods would be available for construction of the CWF.
. The SWP contract 2018 amendment would incorporate enhanced water

management provisions that (1) allow annual and multi-year transfers/sales
within the SWP and (2) a more etficient and timely approval process (public
negotiations on an amendment are underway between the SWP contractors and
the California Department of Water Resources ("DWR"), with the intent of having
an Agreement in Principle by June and executed contract amendments by
November 2018).

Currently, the District is faced with four options related to CWF participation; the first two
rely on successful completion of pending negotiations with urban SWP contractors to
transfer a significant portion of the CWF benefits and costs from the District to an urban
contractor(s).

1. Partial opt-out and payment of 10o/o ol the CWF costs, retaining the CWF
benefits of (a) receiving additional Article 21 water and (b) transfer capacity
through the CWF facilities.

2. Partial opt-out and payment of 15o/o of the CWF costs, retaining the CWF
benefits of (a) receiving additional Article 21 water, (b) transfer capacity, and (c)
emergency protection from a Delta outage through the CWF facilities.

3. Full participation with 100% of the costs and benefits of the CWF.
4. Full opt-out of the CWF costs and benefits. This option could restrict the District's

use of the enhanced water management provisions.

Options 1,2 and 4 would result in a reduced SWP water supply over time, likely
necessitating a reduction in cropped acreage. This illustrates where agricultural

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\5o0\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\tr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-2



3

investors differ from their urban counterparts in that ag entities have an ability to reduce

demand by farming less acreage while urban purveyors have no choice but to satisfy

urban demands. Also, negotiations to provide options 1 and 2 are not finalized, but we

are optimistic that they can be achieved.

As shown in the attached tabulations, the CWF is projected to:

o lncrease the current Table A supplies by 12o/o above the "without CWF' scenario,
o lncrease Article 21 supplies in the wetter years by almost I times above the

"without CWF" se,enario,
o Provide significant additional capacity for non-project water through the Delta

with no carriage losses, and
r Provide additional emergency protection for a Delta outage (earthquake, levee

break, etc.).

To make an investment decision on the CWF, the District is providing you with the

current costs and benefits for options 1,2 and 3 of the CWF, The additional pipeline

capacity would be allocated to participants based on their Table A amount (beginning in

20;20, tñe District's Table A amount will be 41,350 are-feet, or 1.019% oÍ the SWP

contractors south of the Delta). Aspects of the CWF that are not yet fully developed or
determined include (a) the project financing, (b) assurances that the CWF will be

carefully managed, (c) SWRCB impacts on CWF yields, and (d)what level of additional

water management flexibility can be negotiated with the State'

Needless to say, uncertainties remain beyond the direct control of the District, SWP

contractors, and DWR. The Governor, SWRCB, State and federalwildlife agencies, and

the courts can all effect the future of the CWF. A project of this size and complexity will

always have a major element of risk. Throughout the process, the District will continue

to advocate on your behalf to mitigate or reduce these risks. Currently, $127 million of
financing is needed through the end of 2018 to maintain the project schedule until the
Financing JPA is formed and bonds can be sold.

you may also want to review a DWR-funded economic analysis prepared February 12,

2018 byThe Brattle Group (www.californiawaterfix.com/economic-analvsis/). The

findings show the economic impacts of benefiUcost ratios at various financing terms
(1o/o, 7.5o/o, and 3o/o interest for 40 years) and ag participation ("trading" scenarios

similar to District options 2 and 3 above). Although the analysis is based on a 6,000 cfs

facility, it assumes (a) an ag benefit due to improved water quality, (b) increases in crop
prices over the past decade will continue, (c) ag benefits from higher groundwater levels
(not applicable within the District), (d) higher CWF yields than presented herein, and (e)

does not estimate the economic benefit to ag for reduced Delta outages (but states it

"may be substantial").

G:\Dudtey Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-3



4

To complete our transfer negotiations with urban contractors and to establish our
positions in the pending contract amendment negotiations, the District needs
decisions from you. Specifically, which of the four options are you signing up
for? So that the District can proceed with said negotiations in support of your
decision on the CWF, please comolete the attached "Galifornia WaterFix
Participation Form" to the District office no later than March 15. 2018.

Do not hesitate to call me (cell 559-355-5880) or the Board President (Bill Phillimore at
661-776-1315) ¡f you have any questions.

Respectfully,

Dale K. Melville, P.E.
Manager-Engineer

CC: Board of Directors
Joseph Hughes, Esq

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\50o\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-4



5

Galifornia WaterFix (*GWF") Participation Form

Landowner:

Representing Parcels (APN): (attach additional page(s) if needed)

Selected CWF Option: lf more than one option is selected, landowner must
identify the specific parcels associated with each option. Selection of an option(s) is
based on the "Current District Assumptions" described in the accompanying February
23 letter.

1. Partially opt-out and pay 10o/o of the CWF costs, retaining the CWF benefits of
(a) receiving additional Article 21 water and (b) transfer capacity through the
CWF facilities.

2. Partially opt-out and pay 15o/o ol the CWF costs, retaining the CWF benefits of
(a) receiving additionalArticle 21water, (b) transfer capacity, and (c) emergency
protection from a Delta outage through the CWF facilities'

3. Fully participate and receive 100o/o of the costs and benefits of the CWF.
4. Full opt-out of the CWF costs and benefits. This option could restrict the District's

use of the enhanced water management provisions.

Landowner acknowledgement:

I understand that the Dudley Ridge Water District ("District") will rely on this
acknowledgment in making its decision as to the level of the District's CWF participation

and authorize the District to pursue arrangements to secure the option(s) I have
identified for my participation in the CWF.

Return this completed form for vour lands to the District no later than Thtf.rsdav.
March 15.2018 (email dmelville@ppenq.com & rbesecker@ppenq.com g¡ mail to
Dudley Ridge Water District, 286 W. CromwellAve, Fresno, CA 93711-6162).

Signature

Printed Name of Signatory:

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\So0\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\tr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-5



6

Feqlures

lntqkes

lnlermediote Foreboy

Northern Tunnels

Clifton Courl

Pumping Plqnl

Connection lo Bqnks

Conneclion lo Jones

Description, Yields, and Costs to DRWD
Landowners for the California WaterFix ("CWF")

1. CWF Facilities

Moin Tunnels

ó,000 cFs

Sroged Síngle Pipeline 
(r)

2

No

Reqch I (28'lD)

Reqch 2 (44'lDl

Single Reqches

4,5,6 ond 7

(44'lD)

Yes

(r ) ó,000 cFs

Yes

No(')

(1) DWR Staged Alternative
(2) Could include connection to CVP if

desired

G:\Ducf tey Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\5oo\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-6



7

2. GWF Gapital and Operational Cost Estimates
(2017 costs in $millionì

Stoged ó,000 cfs Single Pipeline

Copitol Costs

Woter Focilily:

Construclion

Contingency (3óolo)

Progrom Monogemenl,
Engineering ond Construclion
Monogemenl

Lond Acquisition

$o,gos
2,2O7

1,858

142

Sub-TotolWoler Focililies 10,512

Miligotion (Cqpilql) 377

Totol Woler Focility ond
Mitigotion cqpitqlcosts $10'889

Annuol Operolions ond
Moinlenqnce Cosls

Wqter Focilily O&M, Power, ond
Replocement 3l '9

Mitigolion (Operotions) 17.7

TotolAnnuol O&M Cosls $49.ó

SWP share of the above cosús and benefits could rangefrom 83-10096,
depending on the extent of CVP participation (TBD).

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\50o\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\tr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-7



8

3. Proiected DRWD Pavment Schedule (Annual-blue vs Capitalized-red)

s140,000

S12o,ooo

Sloo,ooo

sSo,ooo

S6o,ooo

S40,ooo

S20,ooo

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\tr to landowners 2-26-l8.docx

B-8

So
oì N uì qr F{ <f |\ c) m r0 oì N ro 00 É st È I o !0 9lã à¡ ñ ñ m ó rn <l sf <t ç tO rO rO t¡¡ tl¡ ç¡ Þ Þ È Èö ö a5 ¿t a5 ct ci o o O o o Q () e Q a I Q ç2 QÑ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ N N N Nr\ (\¡ ñ¡ N



I

4. Water Supplv Benefits with and without CWF

CURRENT FUTURE
w/o cwF

620/o 5lo/o

FUTURE W/ SWP-
only CWF

630/o

I in l0 yecrs I in l0 yeors 4.5 in I O yeors

AVG TABTE A
ATTOCATION

ARTICTE 2I
OCCURANCE

TRANSFER
CAPACITY
AVAILABILITY qnd
tossEs FoR
TRANSFERS

DETTA OUTAGE
REtIABIt¡TY

Allocqtions less
thon 4,5o/o

lncur 20-25o/o
Dellq losse¡

3-5o/o eoch yeor
of mclor Deltq

foilure

Allocqtions less
lhon 457o

lncur 2ù25o/o
Deltc losses

3-5o/o eoch yeor
of moior Deltq

failure

All bul in the
wettesl of yeors
No Delto losses

A portion of
Tqble A neqr

l00o/o
proleclion

G:\Dudley R¡dge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\5o0\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-9



{5

4.0

!:5

¡.0

Tot*l SWP ll*lfvoric¡
(Probrb!Ëty of E rc*edrutcl

10

i*JEio¡¡¡¡¿ tlJ*¡*rF.r I
t

.-*tl

rn

E! *
Èl<.8 __

tËú+
¿

fikTuñnc&

dfþ dÉ Ëdþ dft ¡r* ãd|" 3$ rÞs r# ,úfr' 6* dþ

r FilmrnÉT oerî rÈd;ù!ú!ft Bun

ð
I

r
1,t

l.û

Ê.5

0.0

u

tdÉ n¡rûÞ 
"dtt 

$S 1Ê+

Sor¡re€: CH?II tliH.
l,lote: Tatal $lTP &livefies in this graph only include Table A.{rlicle 2l and tutiele 56.

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\tr to landowners 2-26-'18.docx

B-10



Porlicipqtion
Level:

ADDITIONAT TABLE A
(overoge)

ADDITIONAL ARTICIE
2l (overoge)

ADDITIONAL DETTA

TRANSFER CAPACITY
(overage, July-
Seplember)

DETTA OUTAGE
PROTECT¡ON

5.2iolly

1.5 lof/y 1.5 tof/y

lO.3 tof/y 10.3 lof/y

11

l00o/o ll0o/o
BTEND
(50/50)

2,6lally

1.5 rof/y

lO.3 tof/y

O,5o/o of tolol
pipeline

ovoilcbility

5. CWF Participation Options for DRWD

lOOo/o l5o/o l0o/o

o0

t.5
tally

10.3
taÍly

noneI o/o of totql
pipeline

ovoilobility

I o/o of totql
pipeline

cvoilobility

Yield Anal is for CWF

6

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-11

Y

Year Type

Wet
Above normal

Below normal

Dry

Critically Dry

32%

r4%
19%

2L%

L4%

too%Total



L2

7

Note: As of 2020, DRWD will be 1.019o/o of the south of Delta Table A quantities above

8. Available Capacitv to Move Non-Proiect Wate[

A',;a rlablt'": {...an**ltrl 4 l-Åf: ¡

iu{ Sep

itj-,ltü Sll'3: 8ll1: ,''Jï: ÊG-:; àij'lo åj.;i', .ílJ'1:, .-ltT,: 1.:j,1. tlii

-çl;j1ç*; 
,jr,rff 

-l1J"r 
llfû SifSt:,.:iå .nl,t iti![i*ll]ll :fu

X:: i3

f

:Ji:T:T

l3 tl

j¡. J-l

\:t¡i

'l¡.
¡J.

t-

H
flt
rr.
ñt
!t
lll
!¡
,!,1

rll

"i:
m

1

t
C-
.t_

Í

t:

.i ,!r :t: ¡ ¡

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-12

SWP Table A Yield (TAF)

Current
Adjusted for Future

w/o cwF øcwF
Allocation Yield Allocation Yield Allocation Yield

85%

80%

55%

47%

25%

3,547

3,338

2,295

t,g6L
1,,043

65%

s7%

53%

42%

23%

2,73t
2,376

2,201

1,767

980

84%

77%

65%

46%

26%

3,505

3,2L3
2,712

t,920
1,085

2,596AVG 62% 5t% 2,133 63% 2,642



L3

21Yi GWF:

Note: As of 2020, DRWD will be 1.019o/o of the south of Delta quantities above

Cost Analvsis fo r CWF for DRWD Water Users

10. SWP Table A Costs with and without the GWF:

Cost StlllP Tahle A f$/AFl

Curcnt
Adlujrtedfor Futurew/o

cwF w/cwr

Allocation Cost Allocation Cost Allocatlon Gost

8s%

80%

55Vo

47iÉ

75Vo

s

I
$

$

$

t60
169

234

z7ú

4e5

65%

5796

s3%

rz"Á

23%

s

Þ

þ

$

$

201

227

243

297

5r5

v%
77%

6s%

46%

76%

s

s

$

$

$

4)2
497

569

779

L,3J7

sz,ñ 5 ?M sr% $ 277 ssx $ 675

9

Cost CWF Only

{$/AFt

10O96 ofDabt
Payarent

L,237

1,,1¿13

L,873

6,¿5õ

9,115

1,881

Based on financing at 5% over 40 years with no capital principal and interest payments

until the CWF is operational

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\500\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.doçx

B-13

SWP Article 2l Yield (TAFI

Adjusted for Future

wlo CWF w/cwF
Current

Allocation YieldYield Allocation YieldAllocation

84%

77%

6s%

46%

26%

304
258

106

80

18

85%

80o/o

5s%

47%

2s%

31

20

L7

20

13

6s%

57%

s3%

42%

23%

31

20

L7

20

L3

L7363%62% 22 5t% 22



L4

11. WP Arti 21 CWF

12. FO

Based on 2010 contract amount of 41,350 acre-feet Table A.
2 Based on 2018 Standby Charge area of 23,118.60 acres.
3 lncludes in-District Water Toll charges.
a For DRWD's 1.094o/o portion of the $10.889 billion CWF capital cost ($119,126,000),
the debt to landowners participating at 100o/o CWF levelwould be $5,153/acre,

G:\Dudley Ridge WD - 1029\DOCUMENTS\SOO\CA WaterFix\Landowner lnfo\ltr to landowners 2-26-18.docx

B-14

cost sWP Arr¡clg 21 fS/AFl

AllEcation
Currcnt

Adjusted for
Futursdo CTllfF u/ orr

8s%

8û%

s5%

47Vr¡

75Yo

$

$

s

$

$

25

25

25

25

25

$

$

$

$

Þ

25

25

23

z5

z5

9?

94

88

B1

46

$

$

$

$

$

AVG $2s 25$ $ar

Current
Option I
wl 10o/o

cwF

Option 2
wl 16%
cwF

Option 3
ú 100o/o

cwF

Option {
Future w/o

CWF
Projected
Average
Allocationl

620/ 51o/o 51o/o 630/o 51o/o

SWP Fixed
Costs ($/Acre)2 9177 $284 $261 $548 $21 5

SWP Variable
Costs ($/AF) $25 $28 $28 $32 $25

Total Gosts at
Projected Avg.
Table A
Delivery ($/AF)3

s202 $3r2 $289 $585 $240

Total Gosts at
Projected Avg.
Table A &
Article 21
Deliverv ($/AF)g

$r99 $307 $284 $523 $236

Capital CWF
Debt ($/ac)2,4 NA $515 8773 $5,153 NA


	Agenda
	#3: Ratify/Approve Board of Directors' Attendance at Meetings and Events
	#4: Minutes of Board Meeting
	#5: 2018 Legislative and Regulatory Update
	#6: Culver Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement Consultant Selection
	#7: MWRP Biosolids and Energy Recovery Facilities Contract Change Order No. 73
	#8: MWRP Asphalt Replacement Contract Award
	#9: 2017 Sewer Rehabilitation Final Acceptance
	#10: Baker Water Treatment Plant Final Acceptance
	#11: Addendum No. 3 to the Baker Water Treatment Plant Project Final Environmental Impact Report
	#12: Seawatch Recycled Water Main Rehabilitation Construction Award
	#13: Withdrawal from SOCWA Recycled Water Master Permit (Project Committee 12)
	#14: Landscape and Irrigation Contract -Two-Year Contract Extension
	#15: San Joaquin Marsh and NTS Facilities Three-Year Landscape Maintenance Services Contract
	#16: CA WaterFix Participation Through Dudley Ridge Water District

